
REGULAR MEETING OF WASHINGTON, MISSOURI CITY COUNCIL 

MONDAY, AUGUST 21, 2023 - 7:00 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 405 JEFFERSON STREET, WASHINGTON, MISSOURI 

SUGGESTED 

1. INTRODUCTORY ITEMS: COUNCIL ACTION 

Roll Call / Pledge of Allegiance

Approval of the Minutes from the August 7, 2023, Council Meeting Need Motion/Mayor       Memo

Approval and Adjustment of Agenda including Consent Agenda Need Motion/Mayor     Memo 

a. Collector’s/Treasurer’s Report Summary – March 2023

b. Investment Report – March 2023

c. Liquor License – Droege’s Caterers LLC

2. PRIORITY ITEMS:

a. Washington Fire Department Officers Approve/Mayor     Memo 

Mayor’s Presentations, Appointments & Reappointments

b. Proclamation – Celebrating Othmar “Ott” Jasper Mayor  

c. Proclamation – Recognizing Mark Skornia Mayor  

d. Washington Historic Preservation Commission Appointment Approve/Mayor     Memo 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

a. Rezoning - 1780 High Street Accept Into Minutes      Memo 

b. An ordinance rezoning 1780 High Street from R-1C Single-Family Attached to PDR-Planned Residential

in the City of Washington, Franklin County, Missouri. Read & Int/Read/Vote/Mayor     

c. A resolution approving the Preliminary Development Plan submitted by Bridgewater Communities, Inc.

for the property located at 1780 High Street, Washington, Missouri. Read/Second/Vote/Mayor 

d. An ordinance approving the Final Development Plan submitted by Bridgewater Communities, Inc. for

the property located at 1780 High Street, Washington, Missouri. Read & Int/Read/Vote/Mayor  

4. CITIZENS COMMENTS:

5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

6. REPORT OF DEPARTMENT HEADS:

a. Washington Police Explorer Post 2438



                 

7. ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS: 

a. An ordinance amending the 2023 Budget of the City of Washington, Missouri for the purchase and 

installation of a 100kW Generator and Transfer Switch for the Communications Division at the  

Public Safety Building.           Read & Int/Read/Vote/Mayor      Memo 

b. An ordinance authorizing and directing the execution of a Maintenance Agreement by and between the 

City of Washington, Missouri and AT&T for maintenance of 911 call handling equipment and services 

and amend the 2023 Budget.           Read & Int/Read/Vote/Mayor      Memo 

c. An ordinance amending the 2023 Budget of the City of Washington, Missouri for construction of the 

East-West Parkway Project.           Read & Int/Read/Vote/Mayor      Memo 

d. An ordinance authorizing and directing the execution of a Contract Agreement by and between the 

City of Washington, Missouri and K.J. Unnerstall Construction Company for the Second Street 

Improvements Project and amend the 2023 Budget.        Read & Int/Read/Vote/Mayor      Memo 

e. An ordinance authorizing and directing the execution of a Contract Agreement by and between the 

City of Washington, Missouri and N.B. West Contracting for the Westlink Drive Improvement 

Project STP-6400(627).           Read & Int/Read/Vote/Mayor      Memo 

f. An ordinance providing for the approval and acceptance of minimum improvements for maintenance 

for River Place Subdivision Plat II, in the City of Washington, Franklin County, Missouri.  Read & Int/Read/Vote/Mayor      Memo 

g. An ordinance authorizing and directing the execution of a Residential Sale Contract and Amendment to 

Sale Contract by and between the City of Washington, Missouri and Myles Branch.   Read & Int/Read/Vote/Mayor      Memo 

h. An ordinance authorizing and directing the execution of a Special Sale Contract by and between the 

City of Washington, Missouri and R.C. Schrader Construction, LLC.     Read & Int/Read/Vote/Mayor      Memo 

i. An ordinance repealing Ordinance No. 23-13789 and enacting in lieu thereof an ordinance authorizing 

and directing the Acceptance of a General Release and Settlement Agreement by and between the City 

of Washington, Missouri and Kist, LLC.         Read & Int/Read/Vote/Mayor      Memo 

j. An ordinance amending the provisions of Chapter 335 Schedule II of the Code of the City of Washington, 

Missouri by adding provisions for a stop sign at the location described below.    Read & Int/Read/Vote/Mayor      Memo 

k. An ordinance approving a Boundary Adjustment for Stone Crest Subdivision Plat 19, in the City of 

Washington, Franklin County, Missouri.         Read & Int/Read/Vote/Mayor       

l. An ordinance approving a Boundary Adjustment for the Wash Mo Main Street Development Plat II, 

in the City of Washington, Franklin County, Missouri.       Read & Int/Read/Vote/Mayor      

m. A resolution adopting a 2023 Community Economic Development Strategy.    Read/Second/Vote/Mayor      Memo 

 

8. COMMISSION, COMMITTEE AND BOARD REPORTS:      

 

9. MAYOR’S REPORT: 

a. Special Council Meeting – August 28, 2023, 6:00 p.m. 

b. Next Regular Council Meeting – Tuesday, September 5, 2023, due to the Labor Day Holiday 

 



10. CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:    

 

11. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

 

12. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT:     

Public Vote on whether or not to hold a closed meeting to discuss personnel, legal and real estate  

matters pursuant to Section 610.021 RSMo (2000).        Roll Call Vote 

 

13. INFORMATION: 

 

14. ADJOURNMENT:    

 

NOTICE: COPIES OF THE PROPOSED ORDINANCES ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION 

PRIOR TO THE TIME THE BILL IS UNDER CONSIDERATION BY THE CITY COUNCIL. 

POSTED BY SHERRI KLEKAMP, CITY CLERK, AUGUST 18, 2023 

A COPY OF THIS NOTICE IS ALSO AVAILABLE ONLINE AT www.washmo.gov 

http://www.washmo.gov/


MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF WASHINGTON, FRANKLIN COUNTY, MISSOURI 

MONDAY, AUGUST 7, 2023 

INTRODUCTORY ITEMS: 
The Regular Meeting of the City of Washington, Missouri, City Council was held on Monday, 
August 7, 2023, at 7:05 p.m. in the Council Chamber. Mayor Doug Hagedorn opened the 
meeting with roll call and Pledge of Allegiance. 

Mayor: 
Council Members: Ward I 

Doug Hagedorn 
Al Behr 

Ward II 

Ward III 

Ward IV 

Also Present: City Attorney 
City Administrator 
City Clerk 

Duane Reed 
Mark Hidritch 
Mark Wessels 
Chad Briggs 
Jeff Patke 
Mike Coulter 
Joe Holtmeier 

Economic Development Director 
Interim City Engineer 
Finance Director 
Police Chief 
Street Superintendent 
Communications Director 
Emergency Management Director 

Present 
Absent 
Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 

Mark Piontek 
Darren Lamb 
Sherri Klekamp 
Sal Maniaci 
Charles Stankovic 
Mary Sprung 
Jim Armstrong 
Tony Bonastia 
Jennifer Brune 
Mark Skornia 

Originals and/or copies of agenda items of the meeting, including recorded votes are available on 
record in the office of the City Clerk. Each ordinance is read a minimum of twice by title, unless 
otherwise noted. 

Approval of Minutes: 
* Approval of the Minutes from the July 17. 2023, Council Meeting 

A motion to accept the minutes as presented made by Councilmember Briggs, seconded by 
Councilmember Coulter, passed without dissent. 

Approval and Adjustment of Agenda including Consent Agenda: 
* Liquor License Renewal : Cherry Blossom 

A motion to accept and approve the agenda including the consent agenda accordingly made 
by Councilmember Holtmeier, seconded by Councilmember Patke, passed without dissent. 

Page 1 
August 7, 2023 



PRIORITY ITEMS: 
Mayor's Presentations, Appointments & Rea.ppointments: 
* Proclamation - Aging Ahead is Awesome Month 

Aging Ahead 
Is Awesome Month 
Whereas, Aging Ahead is one of ten Area Agencies on Aging in Missouri which has been 
providing supportive services in surrounding communities since 1973 and will be celebrating 
fifty years supporting countless journeys; and 
Whereas, the Washington Senior Center joined Aging Ahead, formerly known as the Mid
East Area Agency on Aging, in August 1984; and 

Whereas, their vision is for all individuals to have opportunities to age with honor and 
dignity; and 
Whereas, adults sixty and older count on Aging Ahead to provide nutritious meals, 
connection to resources and supportive services like Meals on Wheels, Community Centers, 
Caregiving Services and Community Options Consulting and Case Management. 
Now Therefore, I, James D. Hagedorn, Mayor of the City of Washington, Missouri, do 
hereby proclaim August 2023 as 
Aging Ahead Is Awesome Month 
in the City of Washington and urge all citizens to join in supporting Aging Ahead as we "Re
imagine Aging" and support individuals through the journey of aging. 
In Witness Whereof I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed the Seal of the City 
of Washington, Missouri, this 7th day of August 2023. 
James D. Hagedorn 
Mayor 

* Police Department Reappointment 
July 26, 2023 
City Council 
City of Washington 
Washington, Missouri 
Dear Council Members: 
I herewith submit for your approval the following for reappointment to the Police 
Department: 
NAME DATE EFFECTIVE DATE EXPIRES 
Eric Dobelmann 
Detective 
Respectfully submitted, 
James D. Hagedorn 
Mayor 

August 6, 2023 August 6, 2024 

A motion to accept and approve the reappointment made by Councilmember Patke, 
seconded by Councilmember Hidritch, passed without dissent. 

Page 2 
August 7, 2023 

1 



PUBLIC HEARINGS 
* None 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 
* None 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
* None 

REPORT OF DEPARTMENT HEADS 
* 911 Update 

July 27, 2033 
Honorable Mayor and City Council 
Washington, MO 
Re: 911 Update 
Honorable Mayor and City Council, 
This letter is to provide you with an update of the 911 system project. Since January, myself 
along with the other PSAP directors in the county, have been researching other options for 
the 911 system. These options have included other vendors, going out on our own with 
Pacific, joining an established system with another county and all the PSAPs in the county 
going in together. Of these options, we decided that staying virtually consolidated on the 
same system with Franklin County and AT&T is the best option. We found that this option is 
more reliable than the other vendors and costs less. Staying with AT&T as our vendor and 
being virtually consolidated with Franklin County, Pacific and Gasconade County our all-in 
total cost for 5 years is $289,506.21 (see attached chart). This number also includes text-to-
911 and adding an ES!net. In January our total to go along was $341,444.13. If we stayed 
with Franklin County, our total was $290,457.61. Our current costs haven't decreased 
much, but we are adding options that will help us provide better service to callers. I will be 
available at the August 7111 meeting to answer any questions. 
Sincerely, 
Jennifer Brune, Director of Communications 
Communications Director Jennifer Brune updated Council on the 911 System Project. 

* Propo ed Hangar Rental Rates 
Economic Development Director Sal Maniaci presented to Council the new proposed hangar 

rental rates. Topics included new leases and language for all hangars and existing and proposed 
hangar rates. After discussion, a motion to increase the hangar rental rates made by 
Councilmember Holtmeier, seconded by Councilmember Patke, passed without dissent. An 
ordinance will be presented at the August 21, 2023, Council Meeting. 

(Remaining of page intentionally left blank) 

Page 3 
August 7, 2023 

1 



ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS 
Bill No. 23-12847, Ordinance No. 23-13812, an ordinance authorizing and directing the 
City of Washington, Missouri to accept the Bid from NOC Technology for the purchase of 
new servers, configuration, set up and installation. 
The ordinance was introduced by Councilmember Holtmeier. 

After a brief discussion, the ordinance was read a second time and approved on the 
following vote; Wessels-aye, Holtmeier-aye, Reed-aye, Coulter-aye, Patke-aye, Briggs-aye, 
Hidritch-aye, Behr-absent. 

Bill No. 23-12848, Ordinance No. 23-13813, an ordinance amending Section 220.015 Use of 
Municipal Landfill of the Code of the City of Washington, Missouri. 
The ordinance was introduced by Councilmember Holtmeier. 

After a brief discussion, the ordinance was read a second time and approved on the 
following vote; Wessels-aye, Holtmeier-aye, Reed-aye, Coulter-aye, Patke-aye, Briggs-aye, 
Hidritch-aye, Behr-absent. 

Bill No. 23-12849, FAILED, Introduced by Councilmember Holtmeier, an ordinance 
amending Section 400.045, 400.080.D, 400.085.D, 400.095.B, 400.205 and Chapter 400, 
Attachment I of the Code of the City of Washington, Missouri. 
The ordinance was introduced by Councilmember Holtmeier. 

After discussion, the ordinance was read a second time and failed 4-3 on the following roll 
call vote; Wessels-aye, Holtmeier-aye, Reed-aye, Coulter-aye, Patke-nay, Briggs-nay, 
Hidritch-nay, Behr-absent. 

After the ordinance failed, discussion ensued regarding going with the Planning and Zoning 
Commissions recommendation. 

• Permitted by right in C-1, C-2, C-2 Overlay and C-3 
• Special Use Permits allowable in R-2 Overlay with 150 ft. buffer between uses 
• If a STR passes two quarters without remitting any tourism tax, it is considered inactive, 

and the permit is revoked 
• All SUP's revokable via City Council ordinance 
A motion to go with the Planning and Zoning Commissions recommendation and remove 

the verbiage of Special Use Permits allowable in R-1 Single Family Residential Zone Districts 
with 500 ft. buffer between uses made by Councilmember Hidritch, seconded by Councilmember 

. Briggs and passed 5-2 on the following roll call vote; Wessels-nay, Holtmeier-nay, Reed-aye, 
Coulter-aye, Patke-aye, Briggs-aye, Hidritch-aye, Behr-absent. 

Bill No. 23-12850, Ordinance No. 23-13814, an ordinance amending Section 400.045, 
400.080.D, 400.085.D, 400.090.B, 400.095.B, 400.205 and Chapter 400, Attachment I of the 
Code of the City of Washington, Missouri. 
The ordinance was introduced by Councilmember Holtmeier and passed on the following roll 
call vote; Wessels-nay, Holtmeier-nay, Reed-aye, Coulter-aye, Patke-aye, Briggs-aye, 
Hidritch-aye, Behr-absent. 

Page4 
August 7, 2023 

.1. 



Bill No. 23-12851, Ordinance No. 23-13815, an ordinance of the City of Washington, 
Missouri to establish a procedure to disclose potential conflicts of interest and substantial 
interest for certain Municipal Officials. 
The ordinance was introduced by Councilmember Holtmeier. 

After a brief discussion, the ordinance was read a second time and approved on the 
following vote; Wessels-aye, Holtmeier-aye, Reed-aye, Coulter-aye, Patke-aye, Briggs-aye, 
Hidritch-aye, Behr-absent. 

COMMISSION, COMM[TTEE AND BOARD REPORTS 
* None 

MAYOR'S REPORT 
* Thank you to the Emergency Responders, Fair Board and Volunteers for their hard work 

during the Washington Town & Country Fair. 
* A Proclamation for Othmar "Ott" Jasper will be presented at the August 21, 2023, Council 

Meeting. 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT 
* Budget Workshop Meeting scheduled for August 21, 2023, 6 p.m. 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 
* Ott Jasper was recognized on stage Saturday night at the Washington Town & Country Fair. 
* Brief discussion on the Washington Town & Country Fair. 
* Washington AAA Legion Baseball Team are State Champions. 

ADJOURNMENT 
With no further business to discuss, a motion to adjourn made at 7:53 p.m. by Councilmember 
Patke, seconded by Councilmember Holtmeier passed without dissent. 

Adopted: 

Attest: 
City Clerk 

Passed: 

Attest: 
City Clerk 

Page 5 
August 7, 2023 

President of City Council 

Mayor of Washington, Missouri 

1 



CITY OF WASHINGTON 
CITY COLLECTOR'S/TREASURER'S REPORT SUMMARY 
MARCH 2023 

City Collector's Report 
CASH BALANCE 

ASOF RECEIPTS DISBURSEMENTS 

3/1/2023 

CASH PUNDS: 

Gl!NEIUU. FUND @ 2 ,634,848.77 992,801.32 (2,005,388.01) 

LIIIRARY FUND @ 252 304.79 783,044.13 (449,184.29) 

~ LUNTl!l!R FIRE PUND ·-- 2 247 713.90 66 578.74 (65,254.64) 
VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT 

~ Rl!PLACEMENT FUND 1,082 651.69 17,672.88 (18 000.00) 
STORM WATER IMPROVEMl! NT 
FUND 2 ,762,153.44 99 833.50 (293 200.40) 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT SALl!S 
TAX FUND 2,226,848.79 209,407.86 (218,229.03) 
TRANSPORTATION SALES TAX @ 

FUND z 679,729.17 290,671.88 (291 ,352.21) 

DEIIT SERVICE C.D.P. FUND 1 966191.40 7 ,935.19 o.oo 
DOWNTOWN TIF RPA-1 FUND 1,262,397.39 51784.36 0.00 

FRONT & MAIN TIF RPA~3 FUND 90 247.67 293.00 o.oo 
RHINE RIVER Tlf RPA·Z FUND 94,629.92 307.22 0.00 

WATER FUND 626,967.15 180,785.09 (210 071.45) 

SPWAGE TREATMENT FUND (392,390.52) 227,098.76 (291 ,324.94) 

SOLID WASTE FUND 3 ,711 ,741.40 191.i.!_82.54 (304,994.99) 

PHOENIX CENTl!R II CID FUND 1 ,743.60 47,997.37 \47,518.02l - -
TOTALS $ 19,247,778,56 $ 3,121,993.84 $ (4,194,517.98) 

DELINQUENT CITY RE & PP TAXES COLLECTED THIS MONTH: ~$ ___ -"17"",0"-'7'-'S-".84c..c.. 

@ = Resolution No. 11 -108880 15% =Fund Balance Reserved For General Operating Fund 

CASH IIAL.ANCE 

ASOF 

3/31/2023 

1,622,262.08 

586,164.63 

2 249 038.00 

1,082,324.57 

2,568,786.54 

2,218,027 .62 

679,048.84 

1974126.59 

1 268,181.75 

90 540,67 

94937.14 

597 680.79 

(456 616.70) 

3,598,528.95 

2,222.95 

$ 18,175,254.42 

DATE 

25% - Fund Balnace Reserve For Enterprise Funds (Water, Sewer, and Solid Waste) 

Adjusted Cash Position 

CASH INVESTMENTS 

LESS RESTRICTED CASH 
LESS RESERVED UNRESTRICTED ASOF 

CASH 3131 /2023 

(79,462.38) (11 333.84) 1,531,465.86 2 ,483,550.62 

{219 552.101 {28,087.62) 338,524.91 0 .00 

0.00 (26 435.28) 2,222.602. 72 0.00 

0.00 0.00 1,082,324.57 0.00 

0.00 0.00 2,568,786.54 1 363,676.00 

0.00 o.oo 2,218,027.62 0.00 

0.00 0.00 679 048.84 o.oo 
(1 ,433 338.39) 0.00 540,788.20 0.00 

0.00 0.00 1 268,181.75 0.00 

0.00 o.oo 90,540.67 0.00 

0.00 0.00 94,937.14 0 .00 

0.00 0.00 597,680.79 0.00 

0.00 0.00 456,6~ . 0.00 

(7 374 298.39) 0.00 (3,775 769.44) 0.00 

o.oo 0.00 2 ,222.95 0.00 

$ (9,106,651.26) $ (65,856.74) s 9,002,746.42 $3,847,226.62 

@ =Annually in October, Transfers for debt service and subsidy allocations are done which may result in a negative cash balances until tax revenues come in at calendar year end. 

'.D LESS OVEII 

15% 125% (UNDER) 

DESIGNATED FUNDED 

(1 ,835,476.20) 2,179,540.28 

0.00 338,524.91 

0 .00 2.222.602. 72 

0.00 1 082 324.57 

o.oo 3,932.462.54 

o.oo 2,218,027.62 

o.oo 879,048.84 

o.oo 540,788.20 

o.oo 1 ,268 181.75 

o.oo 90 540.67 

o.oo 94,937.14 

(398,571.50) 199,109.29 

(669 762.75) (1,12.6 ,379,45) 

(907,580.2~ 14,683 349.69) 

0.00 2,222.95 

$(3,811,390.70) $ 9,038,582.34 



,,-~, 
I ' 
' ' '~-~- ~"-?' 

MARCH 2023 

GOVERNMENT BONDS: 

FEOERAL FARM CREOIT BANK BOND 

US TRASURY BILL 

US TREASURY NOTE 

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK BONDS 

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK BONDS 

IBN: BOND TOTALS: 

CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSITS: 

SYNCHRONY BANK DRAPER UT CD 

ALLY BANK MIDVALE UT CD 

ENERBANK USA CD 

STATE BANK OF INDIA CD 

BMW BANK OF NORTH AMERICA CD 

CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSITS TOTALS: 

MONEY MARKETS: 

IBN:MONEY MARKET 

MONEY MARKET TOTALS: 

GRAND TOTALS: 

INVESTMENT 

DATE 

3/31/2023 

8/1 1/2022 

7/27/2022 

1/31/2023 

1/31/2023 

11/1 5/2019 

7/2]/2022 

7/27/2022 

9/27/2019 

2/25/2019 

2/25/2022 

ALLOCATIONS OF FUNDS: 

PRINCIPAL - GENERAL FUND ACCT,- 001 -103000 

INVESTMENT GENERAL FUND- GAIN(LOSS) 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND: 

PRINCIPAL. STORMWATER FUND ACCT.· 250-103000 

TOTAL STORMWATER FUND: 

1,990,000.00 

493,550.62 

1,363,676.00 

INTEREST 

PERCENT 

0550% 

0.000% 

1.250% 

4 875% 

3625% 

2 250% 

3400% 

3300% 

1 950% 

3 050% 

1 700% 

TOTAL MARKET VALUE OF INVESTMENTS: 

$ 

$ 

s 

CITY OF WASHINGTON MONTHLY INVESTMENT REPORT 

MATURITY 

DATE 

7/22/2026 

7/13/2023 

7/31/2023 

9/1 3/2024 

10/26/2026 

12/8/2023 

712912025 

8/5/2024 

3121/2023 

2/28/2024 

9/4/2024 

2,483,550.62 

1,363,676.00 

3.847.226.62 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

s 

$ 

s 
s 

BEGINNING 

ADJUSTED 

COST 

. 
475.46224 

1,016,076.24 

362,956.00 

362.541 08 

469. 171.20 

~686,206. 76 

236,371.10 

239,036,70 

113,799.36 

235,248,00 

236.943.42 

1,061 398.58 

68229.41 

68 229.41 

3815834.75 

DATE 

s 

s 

I 

ADJUSTED 

GAIN/(LOSS) 

78,265.90 

2.178 00 

3,911 28 

3,836 15 

6,661 78 

2,529 60 

97,382.71 

43120 

401 80 

200 64 

345,60 

667 32 

2 046.56 

19A211.27 

$ 

s 

• 

INVESTMENT 

INCOME 

(194,383 87) 

. 
6.227.81 

(188,156.06) 

. 

170 53 

3.690 08 

2.099 10 

1182.196.35) $ 

178 95 

1111,on . ..01 I 

EXPENSE 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

(20.00) 

(20.001 

SO LD/REINVESTED ENDING 

10/01/22 - 09130/23 ADJUSTED 

COST 

. $ 192.265.90 

. s 477.64024 

$ 1.019.987.52 

. $ 366.792.15 

. $ 369.202.86 

$ 471.700.80 

$ $ 2,897,589.47 

$ 236.802.30 

$ 239.438.50 

$ 114.000 00 s . 
$ 235.593 60 

. $ 237,610.74 

s 114,000.00 s 949,445.14 

(68,196 35) $ 192.01 

$ 192.01 

$ 3,847,226.62 



405 Jefferson Street, Washington, MO 63090 

August 16, 2023 

Re: Liquor License 

Mrs. Sherri Klekamp, City Clerk 
City of Washington 
405 Jefferson Street 
Washington, MO 63090 

Dear Sherri, 

636-390-1090 www.washmo.gov 

Michelle Unnerstall has submitted an alcohol license application for the privilege of 
selling liquor of all kinds in the original package at retail. She will sell Monday through 
Saturday. Mrs. Michelle Unnerstalls business is named Droeges Caterers LLC and is 
located at 109 W Main. 

Mrs. Michelle Unnerstall has submitted all required paperwork and has paid the $100.00 
fee. 

Mrs. Michelle Unnerstall has asked that his application go before the City Council on 
August 21, 2023. 

Sincerely, 

Heather M Parker, Clerk 
City of Washington 

.1c 



City of Washington Fire Department 
200 E. Fourteenth Street, Washington, MO 63090 

www.washmofire.org 

August 9, 2023 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Washington 
405 Jefferson Street 
Washington, MO. 63090 

RE: Ordinance 17-11667 

Honorable Mayor and City Council: 

Phone 636-390-1020 I www.washmo.gov 

Professional Volunteer Service Since 1852 

Pur uant to the aforementioned ordinance, I am forwarding for your review the names of the 
Officer selected by the membership to serve the Washington Fire Department through July 
2024. 

Fire Chief- Tim Frankenberg 
Assistant Chief- Mark Skornia 
Deputy Chief of Support-Mike Holtmeier 
Deputy Chief of Admini tration- Louis "Buzz" Eckelkamp III 

The Fire Company Membership stands at 74 with recruitment a constant priority. 

If you have additional questions, feel free to contact me. 

Yours in service, 

Tim Frankenberg 
Fire Chief 



Ce{ebrating 
Othniar "Ott" Jasper 

0th.mar "Ott" Jasper was born in Washington, Missouri on July 1, 1920; 

and is one of Franklin County's oldest Word War II Veterans; and 

Ott served in the United States Army from 1942 to 1945 and landed with 

his unit at Utah Beach in 1944. The unit fought through France, 

Belgium, Holland, Luxembourg and Germany; and 

he . served as a Tank Gunner and was promoted to Sergeant as 

Commander of a Sherman Tank throughout the final days of the war; and 

throughout his service, Ott earned seven medals, including two Purple 

Hearts. 

NOW 'T3f'E'R'Ej'O'R'E, I Jaines D. Hagedorn; by virtue of the authority vested·in me as 

Mayor of the City of Washington, and on behalf of the entire City Council hereby extend Ott 

Jasper our token of affection and admiration with which you are regarded in this city. 

In Witness 'Wfiereof, I have hereunto set my hand and 
caused to be affixed the Seal of the City of Washington, 
Missouri this 21st day of August 2 023 . 



RECOGNIZING MARI( SKORNIA 
FOR HIS SERVICE TO THE CITY OF WASHINGTON 
AND WISHING-HIM CONTINUED SUCCESS UPON 

HIS RETIREMENT FROM PUBLIC SERVICE 

WHEREAS, It is with grc:::at admiration and respect, we honor Mark Skornia, a valued 
employee of the City of Washington, -on the occasion of his retirement 
after six (6) years of dedicated service to the City of-Washington as 
Emergency Management Director; and 

WHEREAS, he started his public service career with the Washington Volunteer Fire 
Company in August of 1980 and served as Secretary from June 1982 to 
June 1984. Mark rose through-the ranks and became First Lieutenant from 
July 1984 to July 1988, Second Lieutenant from July 1989 to. July 1990, 
Captain from July 1990 to July 1997, Assistant Chief from June 1997 to 
June 2017 and was relected as Assistant Chief in 2021 where he still 
serv_es; and 

WHEREAS, Mark joined the City of Washington in August 2017 as Emergency 
Management Director where he has faithfully served the -community. 
During his tenure, he served as. Safety Officer, trained Staff in CPR and 
AED usage, instructed NIMS Training to Staff and Elected Officials, 
na:vigated us through COVID-19, revived the City's Safety Program 
helping to reduce employee injuries and raising safety awareness and how 
it affects Worker's Compensation Premiums, and coordinated 
replacement of back up generators in critical infrastructure buildings 
within the City; and 

WHEREAS, his years of service have been marked by exemplary dedication to the best 
interest of our community and the public safety of our employees and 
citizens. Mark is entitled to just recognition for his dforts in the important 
work for the good in the growth and development of the City of 
Washington, where he is proud to be a part of the community as a whole. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, JAMES D. HAGEDORN do hereby honor and congratulate 
Mark Skornia for six (6) years of dedicated public service with the City of Washington 
and speaking on behalf of the City Council and all our citizens, do hereby tender to him 
this Proclamation extending our congratulations on his retirement, and our best wishes to 
him for -continued success, happiness and good health · n the years to come. 



405 Jefferson Street, Washington, MO 63090 

August 11, 2023 

City Council 
City of Washington 
Washington, Missouri 63090 

Dear Council Members: 

636-390-1000 www.washmo.gov 

I herewith submit for your approval the following for appointment to the 
Washington Historic Preservation Commission: 

Deanna Fitzgerald - term ending August 2024 
(Filling vacancy of Danielle Grotewiel) 

Respectfully submitted, 

~ D~ agedol11 
Mayor 



405 Jefferson Street, Washington, MO 63090 

July 26, 2023 

Mayor & City Council 

City of Washington 

Washington, MO 63090 

636-390-1010 www.washmo.gov 

File No. 23-0603-Rezoning 1780 High Street from R-1 C, Single Family Attached to PDR, Planned 

Residential. 

Dear Mayor & City Council, 

At the regular meeting of the Planning & Zoning Commission held on July 10, 2023 the above mentioned 

rezoning was approved with a unanimous vote. 

Sincerely, 

~~ (2. f+!Mt-YV'4_,U/u)J&< 
Thomas R. Holdmeier 

Chairman 

Planning & Zoning Commission 



405 Jefferson Street, Washington, MO 63090 

July 10, 2023 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
405 Jefferson Street 
Washington, MO 63090 

636-390-1010 www.washmo.gov 

APfROVED 
117/23 

RE: File No. 23-0603-1780 High Street-PDR-Preliminary Plan Review 

Dear Mayor and City Council Members: 

The Planning & Zoning Commission reviewed the requested Planned Development Residential at 
their July 10, 2023 meeting and approved the request with a unanimous vote. 

Sincerely, _ 

·~ t 
Thomas R. Holdmeier 
Chairman 
Planning & Zoning Commission 



To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Planning and Zoning Commission 

Planning and Engineering Department Staff 

June 12, 2023 

File # 23-0603 

Synopsis: The applicant is requesting review of a sketch plan for The Villas at High Street - a 
proposed Planned Residential Development 

Ad"acent Land Use /Zonin Matrix 
Existing Land Use Existing Zoning 

North Detention Basin C-2 

South Vacant Land R-1D 

East Autumn Leaf Common R-1A 
Ground 

West Senior Housin SCD 

Analysis: 
The applicant is requesting to rezone 4.4 acres of land from R-1C Single Family Attached 

Residential to PDR- Planned Residential. This process requires the following steps. 
1. Sketch Plan Review by City Staff 
2. Sketch Plan Review by Planning and Zoning 
3. Preliminary Plan Review by Planning and Zoning 
4. Preliminary Plan Review by City Council 
5. Final Plan Submittal and Review by City Council. 

They are currently on step 3, requesting P&z to review the attached plan. 

In the attached sketch plan, the applicant is requesting to create 25 lots off of Walter Way with 25 
new single family residential units. The property is currently zoned R-1C Single Family Attached for 
traditional shared wall duplexes. The applicant is requesting to rezone to PDR - Planned Residential 
so they can revise the plan to include 1 duplex, 1 triplex, two four-plexes, and two six-plexes. This 
proposed change would allow new single family homes to have shared walls on both sides, similar to 
a townhome, however the proposal shows single story units for all 25 homes. 

The plan proposes a 25 front and rear yard setback as well as a 6 ft. side yard setback on the ends of 
each building. Each home will access Walter Way with its own driveway and garage, allowing two 
parking spaces for each. As shown in the sketch plan notes, the overall density of the development is 
6,478 sq. ft. per unit. The current zoning requires 6,000 sw. ft. per unit, meaning the proposed 
zoning change to PDR does not necessarily increase the density requirement but requests the shared 
walls between units on the 3, 4, and 6 unit buildings. 



The sketch plan designates individual water and sewer laterals for each unit, just like any other single 
family home would have. It shows the existing sanitary sewer easements and keeps all buildings and 
patios in buildable area only allowing the development to move forward without the relocation of any 
utilities. Walter Way is 35 ft. in width with a 96 ft. cul-de-sac making it more than capable for 
handling 25 units. 

The development is clearly designed and marketed towards seniors allowing it to fit in nicely with the 
surrounding neighborhood on High Street. They do not propose any additional landscaping or 
screening other than what exists today. The single family to the east is buffered by a creek and 
common ground for Autumn Leaf and the proposed single family to the south is also buffered by a 
creek. Staff sees no reason the proposed Planned Residential Development would cause any 
detriment to the surrounding properties. 

*No changes were requested by the Commission or neighboring properties at the lune 
2023 meeting, prompting none in the attached document. 

Recommendation: 
The submitted preliminary plan meets the requirements of the Planned Residential Code and 
staff recommends approval for the review to move to Council for Preliminary and Final Review. 







o>
 

p
 

-~. 
0 ~
 

N
 

i; ~! 
iiH

I 
~~
 

"!.
··~

<,(
~ 

"'-l
',,1

,~
-

P'f
'I 

~
-""~

. 
j!

 
~
 

tl
 

S
K

E
T

C
H

 
P

LA
N

 
V

IL
LA

S
 

A
T 

H
IG

H
 

S
T

R
E

E
T

 
P

D
-R

 

A
 

T
R

A
C

T
 

O
F 

LA
N

D
 

B
E

IN
G

 
P

A
R

T
 

O
F 

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 
2

8
, 

T
4

4
N

. 
R

IW
 

O
F 

T
H

E
 

5
T

H
 

P
.M

. 
IN

 
T

H
E

 
C

IT
Y

 
O

F 
W

A
S

H
IN

G
T

O
N

, 
F

R
A

N
K

L
IN

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
. 

M
O

 

C
W

/(l
fJ

B!
Jf

iiJ
/J

K[
J8

lb
tJ

©
IN

I 
S

U
R

V
E

Y
IN

G
 &

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 I

N
C

. 
5

1
2

 
E

A
S

T 
M

A
IN

 
S

TR
E

E
T 

U
N

IO
N

, 
M

O
 

6J
O

B
4 

(6
:3

6)
 

S
B

J
-

6'
10

0 
W

S
E

T
E

A
M

.C
O

M
 

ll'
IJ

flO
C

II
U

(~
 

Si
Jl

 ..
. ('

J1
"1

'. 
I,

 
(h

'G
IN

E
l"

"'
IG

 
IN

C 

U
tS

S
D

IJ
II

IS
rA

l(
<

(A
!,

r1
C

A
1[

 
(J

r
AO

J .
. IO

Rt
T'I

', 
,,

on
H

J.
o 

>
 

[f
).

 
~
 

~
 

tr
j 
~
 ~ (".) ()
 

~
~
 

""C
l 

[f
).

 
t"

"' 
~
 

>
~

 
z 

tr
j 

tr
j 
~
 

""C
l 

C1
 

I ~
 



I 
-
,
-
-

,
-

~
 

I 
I 

I 
/ 

) 
~ 

I 
~ 

I 
:g 

I
~

 I
 

~
, 

:g 
I 

_ 
_

J
 
_

_
 1

 _
_ 

L
 

_ 
l_

 _
f_

 
....

.J
I 

,,
.-

-
-

--
.-

-
-

CO
N

CE
PT

U
A

L 
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
 

PL
A

N
 

V
IL

LA
S 

AT
 

H
IG

H
 

ST
R

EE
T 

P
D

-R
 

fM
Jf

'&
lli

/:!
J/

Jj
)l.

lf/
Ji

l&
O

@
O

fl 
S

U
R

V
E

Y
IN

G
 &

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 I

N
C

. 
~

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-

-
--

--
1

 
51

2 
EA

ST
 

M
AI

N 
ST

R
E

ET
 

A
 T

R
A

C
T

 
O

F 
LA

N
D

 
B

E
IN

G
 

P
A

R
T

 
O

F 
S

E
C

T
IO

N
 

2B
, 

T
4

4
N

, 
R

!W
 

O
F 

T
H

E
 

5
T

H
 

P
.M

. 
IN

 
T

H
E

 
C

IT
Y

 
O

F 
W

A
S

H
IN

G
T

O
N

, 
F

R
A

N
K

LI
N

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
, 

M
O

 

U
N

IO
N

, 
M

O
 

6J
O

B
4 

(6
J

6
) 

5
8

J
-B

4
0

0
 

W
S

E
T

E
A

M
.C

O
M

 

W
U

M
)c

m
JC

H
 

~
U

IW
[f

\l
lG

 
" 

EJ
IO

H
,,I

C
[~

IN
G

, 
llo

lC
. 

-
-
~

~
~

c
i
~

,n
;.•U

'P•
 

"' 



ESS 

"l 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 1,& 
I I 

\ \ I 
\/ 
\ /\ 

~ 
~ 
~ 

~ a:: 
.. UJ 
~""-3 
,:s ;o 

t"?,i 
t_:,:, 

- ...., 

I \ 
I \ 

---------------

Ul 

~ 

ESS -

- - ~~_=:_:I : 
,,,~1: r 11 I:• 

rN 1, -:J ~ JJI 
11 n ~ L/,,, · ,~ ~ nl 
u:

1 
n. ~" <\ 

1
:1 

IUL I I ~ ·s1 -- \ ~ 
I SKETCH I 

I " TRACT o,· LAND BEING PART of' 
SE CTION 2 B, T44N, Rl W OF THE 5TH P 

I U _ ~ rn "' c,rr ce " """°"· "~" -w-- COUNTY, MO 

r--r-- - 0 ..,, I I 1..-' 50 awrJIJIJtll!i)iiiiiiii:ii@ctJ ,.~' ~ 

11 
r-=es=, SURVEYING & ENGINEERING INC. _,,#.Y I l OF 

_ I SCALE 1" = 50' u••.w. ~ ~"' "";~ = • :V "" )8) >53--~ -= 

3cl-



" ~ 

-w.... 
(IIYOH;JIS) 

-~ fM-=~ u;:1 

I 
'--r 

I 
.,J. 

HIGH STREET PD-R 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

VILLAS AT 
PRELIMINARY 

•. 

.: 

~"""'' ~tE,<r(ST~r,s 

occ1=,,1, 

/ 

'°"'" f"~. = ~l.o""1(/tlftt~J(""9•-

=1· ==""''"' 
IIU-ul'•...,.._rrttw ,__,,_. ,,.._. ,. ~., .~ 
~ ..... ,~.,- • ....-1..., 
~ .=,,.~~.., 
,-, .,:::: .. 
lf!J8U .,.,_...,._ 

p """""',.a,,,., 
~ :;-J~ 
• •...«al~ ...... 
l:l -~o- ...... 
.w Jllllla.t~-.,wq 

. . 
6 = ~ -.llli!? 

- ~~ IM.0(.U) 
• SfCR.i'*'TLR.JIJNl:/'l(}NflO~(Jtl) 

1: S:11~ DRCCT~ 

a 0,,STIM:5Nll"/ni,•,.,O,.r(-} 

:. ~!}d,ANfl~"'""'IHOI.C(""') 
.. ~~ ·---~-"-""' 
;.~~ 

PROPOSED USE 
Z'ERO lOT ~ .. E ATTAC.MeO \/Ill.AS 

ZONING 
~OKING:R1-C 
Pfa'OSEO ror.NG· PD R 

OPEN SPACE / COMMON AREA 
TOTALGROS$ACREAGE•4.f>:ACRES 

~Z:~::;.~};;t~;s 
TOTAL P4VEMENT AREi< • 0 roACRES 
l OTALCOW,!()NGbJND = 0.SI IICRES 

RESIDENTIAL DATA 
PROP0SE00WELLINGIJN1TS • 25 ::=:~:g=~~~;:~:es 
PltOPOSEDAESIDellW.Oli:NSITY • 5,478$FA.INIT 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
ooc,r20os. ,11,,1a1 

PARKING 

==~~=~~~'=T'S•50$AACES 
PRCIPOSED PMlVIOEO: SD SP.,,CES Q~U.IOES GAAAI:.£) 

SEWER SERVICES 
ONESEWEi!i 1.ATERA!_PEltVNIT 

WATER SERVICES 
L'.lNEWATE~I.ATER.0.Ll'EF'IUNIT 

TRASH SERVICES 
ll«lMOU.AlTOTE.sPE.RllNrT 

8UILDIIIG /• 5.155 SF (4 UNITS) 
81.JilOWG 2: 1,7]2 sr (6 UNITS) 
8111f.OING J. ,.n2 sr (6 IINITSJ 
Wt1-DING '< : ;,sn sr (1 UNITS) 
€UILD11/G !, • 5. 155 sr (• UNlrS) 
et/lL0/1/G 6: •.7'<1 SF (J UNITS) 

~ ~ g 2 
0~ (!) • -

~~J d "'3Ww~ 1• 
! ~~~l q ~ffi~r---~ ;, 
ij .. :n~ ~ p 
~ ~~:s ~ J & I::&>· 0 • 
St.lUJ"'~ J 

~ ~ ~ i "' ~ 1 

z 
..: 0:: 
....a I 
°'o 
f- 0. 
zf
""w :::ew 
0. 0:: 
Of
...:,rJJ 
w 
>:,:: 
""o 0-

:,:: 
;:,.. 
0::P 
<t< 
::::CJ) 
:::...: -....a ....,...., 
wo::> 
0. 

"'"" NO 

§§i 
u . 
"'"'>ui:,:,-. 

~1---5 
ozo 
~~u 
<i:~~ 
~p.,~ 

":rz z,-< -,,,"' 
"' 0. 

"'"' i:::;XZ 
z'"o 
j~~ 
5:=::c 

-en ,...o:.., 
u ·"' <z o:.,. ...... .., ... 

~ .... 
....... ,~ 

~)' ~,.,,.,_~~ 
~~ :)t"'~· 
...,.. .. _ 

,,: ! ' :J::::t.- ;:,.,..,.. 
.,,OfiN<,"'I""' 

~,t.4---~.,.-. -:=~~ 
~·:-e 

~z'.il:1 .. . 
,;. 

1 OF 2 

30-



.lJ 

1lii! "---

} 

VILLAS AT HIGH STREET 
CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE 

PD-R 
PLAN 

,,--

~ 
_J 

~ 

', I 
99 / + 

08 

97 

96 

95 

94 

I -
r 

~ 
I 

J 
I 

J 
I 
I 

1 

~_____!!IQ_ 

,t.N..l; I' • # 

I 

l 

~~NL~io 
~ 
~~~-tt.C 
~1)~1'D,..tl 

~Uf.~~ARE" 
=:=-'i~:» 
f0'!'4""'-YDC..<iff41CA W> •re-Al;IIO 
tt'IIJW.aMrt,IO,IQAOl,IIO••~.aua. 
RE.SlOEh'TW.. CATA 
W .11WUJ"lliil'"+l·~ .....,.,":)._..~ .......... ,,~ 
=~~~~~ 
PROPERlY DESCRIPTION 
OOC.•2005-18,0 91 

PARKING 
~P!RC>Wa~INGUNlT 
f'ROF"OSED REl)UIRED ~:r~UNITS•iiOSP.O.CES 
f!IICIJ01&0~1D)Uaf.l111QJ.GD~. 

SE\YER SERI/ICES 
Clll.lillfilt1l!~f"l .. ~ 

WATEA'SERVIC'ES 
uc .;;.,,,ii ... m"'"Wf 
m\St-1 ~R}'l5JS 

~l: .J,,l!;l. SF(' ~ 
~ 2: 1.~JJ SF (6 ~ 
~ .J: 1.T» SF (6 ~ 
~ ,f; U11 SF (2 uw,:J 
IC.II.or,,,; 5: J,,r5$ SF (4 UWlf) 
~ 6: 4.)<tr SF(J ~ 

~ ~ 0 

Di i, ~ 
~?: ~,.!, 
:i ffi~~ 
s:J w,-
!6 :Z "'w ~ 
~aa;e-8 
';::J ~! ~ 
§1 ~t;; ~ ~ 

H r ' ~ 
" & ~ 

o i:51') ~ z fD §: 

~ 
>~o • • 
w"' " 

~ 
> . ~ ~ 

j a: 6 :, z 
<J) " 

z.:>:: 
«:I 
""'O il.p., 

l>lE-o 
il.t.:i 
<w 
u .:,:: 
[/JE-o 
Arn z 
<:r: 
""'t.!l 
...:ii 
< 
;:,E-o 
E-<< 
il, 
t.:irn 
Uj 
Z,-1 
O
U:> 

., .. 
NO 

~i:o 
~u~ 
u . 
"'">ui:,:,-.. 

,-..z 
.. :0 
o:zo 

-u 

5~~ 
P..o..~ 

'-':,::z :z,-.< ~\()e: 
"'"' All::i :z,-..o 
jo.'"' 

0~ 

~~~ 
,-..o,< 
u . ;,, 
<z 

"'" ...... 
< ... 

*l-'l;-4. 
N ·f ~<>i# </'fS'~.,w 
&'¥' 

~~.= P.£ W _ _,,,,, ·-~ -.tt..:.Ntm.-.-
OI/~~-r1a·~ 
-" - ..., 

2 OF 2 

3Cl--



BRIDGEWATER 
COMMUNITIES 

\>Jiff \\Utt r\,H'l'h. 

Cottage Villa Summary 

Bridgewater Communities Cottage Villa Series is designed for people who want an "Easy Living" lifestyle 

combined with luxury features. Our target buyer profile is a customer who desires safety, convenience, 

and value. Our buyers want to free themselves of older homes and/or oversized homes and yards that 

require too much money and energy to maintain. 

Our customers have typically raised their families in large homes on large lots that simply are too big and 

require _too much time and money to maintain at this stage in their lives. Until we designed our cottage 

villa series, our customer base might have had to move to an apartment with surface parking on a 

parking lot and multiple steps/staircases to their apartment. That lifestyle is not what they want but it is 

some of the only housing stock available. 

Some of the many features and benefits include: 

Fee simple ownership - the buyer owns their building and home site. 

There is an HOA that is granted an easement to come on to the property to provide lawn, landscaping, 

and snow removal for the resident. 

Single level living 

Low threshold entries - no steps 

2 bedroom and 2 bathrooms 

9' ceilings 

l't floor laundry 

Attached garage with garage door opener 

Luxury Vinyl Plank flooring 

Walk-In Pantry 

Walk-in Master closet 

Wider doorways, wider hallways, and lever door handles 

Sodded yards (where disturbed} and a landscape package 

The brochure for a similar community that we built in St. Peters, MO is attached. 

Tim Miller 636 299-1931 



GREEN FOR ... ST 
- -- V r L L AS 

Yes, It's Included 
• Location, Location, Location 

• Single Level Living 

• Low Threshold Entry 

• 2 Bedrooms/2 Bathrooms 

• 9' Ceilings 

• Granite Countertops 

• Upgraded Cabinetry 

• Luxury Vinyl Plank Flooring 

• Walk-In Pantry 

• Walk-In Closet 

• and MUCH MORE 

BRIDGEWATER 
COMMUNITIES 

-



GREEN FORE-ST 
--- VILLAS --

Yes, It's Included 
Convenience Features 

- Easy Access to Shopping Areas along Mexico 

Road and Mid Rivers Mall Drive 

- Fully Sodded Homesites 

- No Steps Outside to Front Door 

- Common Ground Areas 

- Utilities Individually Melered 
- Maste r Bedroom and Bathroom Suite 
- Covered Front Porch 
- lever Handles on All Doors 
- Wider Hallways and Wide Doors 

- Garage Door Opener 
- Recessed Can Lights in Kitchen 

- Kitchen Island with Seating 
- 3 Phone and 1 TV Outlets 
- ,Raised Vanities with drawers in both bathrooms 

- Walk-In Master Bedroom Closet 

- Over-sized Closet in 2nd Bedroom 
- 2 Exterior Freeze -Proof Faucets 

- 2 Exterior GFCI Protected Outlets 
- 36" Wall Cabinetry in Kitchen 

- 6' Privacy Fence on 3 Sides of Community 

- Moen Chrome Single -Lever Faucets 
·· Anti-Scald Pressure Balanced Shower Heads 

.. Termite Treatment Applied 

- Concrete Personal Driveways 

- Screens on all Operable Windows 

Safety Features 
- Carbon Monoxide Detectors 

- Smoke Detectors (Hardwired with Battery Back-up 

and interconnected · if one rings, they all ring) 

- Deadbolts plus Key Locks on all Exterior Doors 

- Street Lights 

- No Through Streets 

- Smoke Detectors Inside and Outside each 

Bedroom 

- Electric Furnace and Water Heater 

· Fire Walls Between Villas 

- High Glass Window in Front Door Allows light 

and maintains security 

Value Features 
- 1/10 Builder W,urc111ly 
- Five Year Electrical Warranty Package 
- 1 O'x6' Concrete Patio 
- 9' Ceilings Throughout 

- Brick on All Elevations 

- Dryer Vented to the Outside 
- Electric Dryer Receptacle (220 Volts) 

- Microwave Vented to Outside 

- Grills on Front Windows 

- No Shared Walls (each villa has 4 side walls 

with 1.5" between wall s in connecting areas 

- 13 SEER Air Conditioner 

- 5 1 /4" Base Mouldings in Public Areas 

- 80% Efficient Electric Furnace 
- Brushed Nickel Door Hardware· 

- Painted, Smooth 2-panel Interior Doors 

- Wide -Plank Luxury Vinyl Plank (LVP) 

fiooring in all Public Areas and Bathrooms 

-Tyvek House Wrap on all Exterior Walls 

- Vinyl Siding for Reduced Maintenance Cost 
- Painted Wood Window Sill s and Aprons 

- Vinyl Windows with Insulated Glass 

- 30-Year Warranty on Shingles 

- Enclosed Soffits and Fascia 

- Lighting Package 

for additional information call: Tracy Geraghty 314-315-5925 
tracygeraghty@br1dgewatercommunities.corn 

Bri d g ewaterCo mm unities. com 



BILL NO. INTRODUCED BY - - ------ - - ----- ----

ORDINANCE NO. --- --------

AN ORDINANCE REZONING 1780 HIGH STREET FROM R-lC 
SINGLE-FAMILY ATTACHED TO PDR-PLANNED RESIDENTIAL IN 
THE CITY OF WASHINGTON, FRANKLIN COUNTY, MISSOURI 

WHEREAS, an application has been filed with the City of Washington, Missouri 

to rezone 1780 High Street from R-1 C Single-Family Attached to PDR-Planned 

Residential; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the ordinances of the City of Washington, Missouri, a 

Public Hearing on such request was held in the City Council Chambers, 405 Jefferson 

Street, Washington, Missouri, on Monday, August 21, 2023, notice of said hearing having 

been duly published in the "Washington Missourian"; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that allowance of said request would 

be proper and in the best interest of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Council of the City of Washington, 

Missouri as follows: 

SECTION 1: The following above-described property is hereby rezoned from R-

1 C Single-Family Attached to PDR-Planned Residential. 

SECTION 2: Attached hereto is the legal description of the development. 

SECTION 3 Attached hereto is Resolution __ passed on Monday, August 21, 

2023, approving the preliminary development plan and which authorizes preparation of the 

final development plan. 



SE TION 4: The Final development plan was submitted to City Council for 

approval on Monday, August 21, 2023. 

SECTION 5: The proposed development includes 25 two-bedroom units varying 

from 4,241 sq. ft to 7,732 sq. ft. 

SECTION 6: Building shall not exceed 30 ft in height. 

SECTION 7: The proposed setbacks are shown on the attached exhibit. 

SECTION 8: Two parking spaces per unit are provided. 

SECTION 9: A sign easement is shown along Walter Way, the actual sign will 

be subject to Chapter 405 of the City's Sign Regulations. 

SECTION 10: Gross Acreage is 4.4 acres, total net acres is 3.7 acres, total building 

area is 0.75 acres, total pavement area is .7 acres, total common ground is 0.51 acres. 

SECTION 11: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

SECTION 12: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and approval. 

Passed: -----------

ATTEST: -------- --
President of City Council 

Approved: _________ _ 

ATTEST: ----------
Mayor of Washington, Missouri 

3b 



DESCRIPTION OF TRACT TO BE REZONED FROM "RIC" TO 
"PDR": 

It is the sole responsibility of the recipient to make sure 
the word file contained herein matches the property 
description written on the face of the survey for any type 
of conveyance. 

A tract ofland being part of the East half of the Northeast Quarter of Section 28, 
Township 44 North, Range 1 West of the 5th P.M., in Franklin County, Missouri, being 
more fully described as follows: 

Commencing at an iron rod at the Southwest comer of the Northwest Quarter of the 
Northwest Quarter of Section 27; 
Thence S 00° 11' 55" Won the section line 622.68 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; 
Thence S 00° 11' 55" W 232.19 feet; 
Thence S 75° 20' 59" W 91.34 feet; 
Thence S 84° 37' 49" W 212.71 feet; 
Thence S 66° 33' 30" W 87.33 feet; 
Thence S 49° 07' 56" W 106.11 feet; 
Thence S 40° 04' 33" W 206.36 feet; 
Thence N 16° 39' 22" W 119.08 feet; 
Thence on a curve to the right in a northwesterly direction having a radius of 470.00 feet 
and a chord bearing and distance ofN 08° 08' 47" W 139.10 feet; 
Thence N 00° 21' 47" E 165.96 feet; 
Thence N 67° 14' 44" E 184.13 feet; 
Thence N 80° 13' 07'' E 271.81 feet; 
Thence N 89° 10' 02" E 159.87 feet; 
Thence S 89° 48' 05" Ea distance of 49.45 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; 

Containing 4.41 Acres more or less. 

SUBJECT TO easements, conditions, and restrictions ofrecord. 

3b 



w
o.:nO

J~3SM
 

oo,s-rns 
(9

t9
) 

i,em
.·g 

O
ri 

'N01Nn 
1]3~U

S 
N

I\M
 

1SV
3 

Z
l~ 

:JN
I !lN

l!l3
3

N
l!lN

3
 'II !lN

IA
3

A
!lflS

 

DD:J»0'1/llll1/TJ«DIJl{Jd[)a!lfJ 

i 
1-

1 
I 

j I 

O
W

 
'A

J.N
flO

:J 
N

r!JIN
\lll.,I 

'N
O

.L
:JN

IH
SV

.ll 
.oO

 
A

J.l:J 
:rn

J. 
N

I 
'W

'd 
H

J.g 
3H

J. .iO
 

A
l.Ill 

'N
H

.L
 

'9
2

 
N

O
IJ.:J3S 

,,rn 
.L

l!V
d 

:JN
I3E

I 
O

N
V

1 
.oO

 
.L

:JV
lll 

V
 

H
-G

d
 

.L33'H
.LS

 
H

!lIH
 

.LV 
S

V
111A

 
N

V
1

d
 

.L
N

3
W

d
0

1
3

A
3

G
 

J..'H
V

N
IW

I13'H
d 

~
~
~
l
i
i
~
~
 

~
~
R
~
~
~
 

.............. ., ..... 
.:.;,;.;,;.;

.<ii<a 

C
\I 

~
 

0 



u CJ 

·C::'~1! ·na~ ,, 

VILLAS AT 
CONCEPTUAL 

HIGH STREET 
LANDSCAPE 

PD-R 
PLAN 

99 

96 I 
--j 

97 I 
J 

96 I 
J 

95 I 
I 

l 
94 

L _J 

I 
) 
I 

. . 
a 
~ .~a,,,a,, ... 

- . ,._..,. PIITf ~ -.,.......,.._ ·--
PROPOSED USE 
ieiEoLolUNE .. nAC,.llOO'lk.L-.3 

ZONING 
~ONINCOII.(: 
PllOPOSEOlOHING ~ 

OPEN SPACE / COMMON AREA 
!Ef c;ucak:iOi. .. ._a; 
TOTAi.NET AC.REACE•) h.t.CAE5 
TCT,.LBLALOINDAA6'•Q7' ACAES: 
TCTALPAVEMENT.o.REA • 07DAC!U=S 
TOTAL COMMON GROUtD = D.$1 ACRES 

RESIDENTIAL DATA 
PROPOSED ~LL.NC UNl"IS • '5 
PROPllSEO PO-M GROSS AREA : 4 4s ACRES 
PROPOSED PD-It NET AREA "' ) h .ACRES 
Pi(OCIOSE!I ttESIDENTML OEH$11'f • fi ,4 111 Sf"I\Nl 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
DOCW,ia, 
PARKING 
~PEHIJWEL.UNCl,IMT 
~OPOSEC RECUIMEC • ~2! l,III.IITS "' 50 SPACES 
PROPOSED PROVIDSO SC SP..CES (INCLUDES CAAACI:) 

SEWER SERVICES 
ONESE\\EJtlAH:.KALPEII IJIIIT 

WATER SERVICES 
&i WATEA UITEit<II. PEii LINIT 

TRASH SERVICES 
iNOIVIOUAL fo11::s ~ER UNIT 

8UIUJtNG 1• .S,155 SF (,t UNITS} 
8t111.0,,VC 1: 7.J.JZ SF (S UM,S) 
9VILDING J; l.7J2 S£ (S IJMIS) 
8UllDllfC " ' 1 • .sn sr (2 UMrsJ 
8Url..DmC 5 : S.IS5 SF (4 IJNlfS) 
8Ult.D1NC 5: 4.24 r SF (J UNtr5) 

~;;:':· 
... "'' - -.,..t ,# ,,,.,_ ... h:. 

~~~=~:se; 

2 OF 2 



RESOLUTION NO .. _ ___ _ INTRODUCED BY _ _______ _ 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
SUBMITTED BY BRIDGEWATER COMMUNITIES, INC. FOR THE 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1780 HIGH STREET, WASHINGTON, MISSOURI 

WHEREAS, Bridgewater Communities, Inc. has submitted an Application to rezone the 

property located at 1780 High Street, Washington, Missouri from R-IC Single Family Residential 

and PDR-Planned Development-Residential; and 

WHEREAS, in addition to the Application for Rezoning Bridgewater Communities, Inc. has 

submitted a Preliminary Development Plan as required by Section 400.115 of the Code of the City 

of Washington, Missouri; and 

WHEREAS, the Preliminary Development Plan included all of the information required by 

Section 400. l 15(J)(2) and Section 400.115(k)(l) of the Code of the City of Washington, Missouri; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Preliminary Development Plan was referred to the Planning and Zoning 

Commission for review and public hearing and said Commission voted on July I 0, 2023, to 

recommend approval of said Plan to the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the Preliminary Development Plan, together with the recommendation for 

approval from the Planning and Zoning Commission, were forwarded to the City Council of the 

City of Washington, Missouri. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the City of Washington, 

Missouri as follows: 

Section I: The Preliminary Development Plan submitted by Bridgewater Communities, Inc. 

and reviewed by the City Council of the City of Washington, Missouri on July 17, 2023, is hereby 

approved. 

Section 2: Prior to the commencement of construction the Applicant shall prepare and 

submit a Final Development Plan to the Zoning Administrator for review and approval. 

Section 3. The Final Development Plan shall also include: 

23339357.vl 

3c 



a. the information required for the Preliminary Development Plan, except that it be in its 

final form; 

b. the final landscape plan with specific location of all plant material, specifying size and 

species; 

Section 4. The Final Development Plan shall be in substantial compliance with the 

approved Preliminary Development Plan. Modifications and refinements, resulting from the final 

design process, may be approved. In no event shall any modification of the development plan result 

in the following: 

a. A change in the use or character of the development; 

b. An increase in building or site coverage; 

c. An increase in the intensity of use ( e.g., number of dwelling units); 

d. An increase in vehicular traffic generation or significant changes in traffic access and 

circulation; 

e. A reduction in approved open space or required buffer areas. 

Section 5. The Zoning Administrator shall review the Final Development Plan for 

compliance with the approved Preliminary Development Plan and any modifications and 

refinements that resulted from the final design process and provide a report to the City Council. 

If the Final Development Plan is in compliance with the approved Preliminary Development Plan 

and any approved modifications or refinement, the City Council shall introduce an ordinance 

approving the Final Development Plan. 

Section 6. After the final development plan (and subdivision plat, if applicable) and other 

associated documents have been approved by the City Council, the applicant shall record the Final 

Development Plan in accordance with provisions of Section 410.040 of the Code of the City of 

Washington, Missouri. 

Section 7. Minor changes in the location, siting and height of buildings and structures may 

be authorized by the Zoning Administrator if required by engineering or other circumstances not 

23339357.vl 



foreseen at the time the final plan was approved. No change authorized by this Section shall cause 

any of the following: 

a. A change in the use or character of the development;

b. An increase in building or site coverage;

c. An increase in the intensity of use ( e.g., number of dwelling units);

d. An increase in vehicular traffic generation or significant changes in traffic access and

circulation; 

e. A reduction in approved open space or required buffer areas; or

f. A change in the record plat.

Section 8. All proposed changes in use, or rearrangement of lots, blocks and building tracts, 

changes in the provision of common open spaces, and changes which would cause any of the 

situations listed under Section 400.11 S(Q)(l) shall be subject to approval by the City Council. In 

such event, the applicant shall file a revised development plan and be subject to the requirements of 

this Section as if it were an entirely new application. 

Section 9. No approval of a Final Development Plan shall be valid for a period longer than 

two (2) years from the date of approval unless, within such period, a building permit is obtained, 

and construction of a development's foundation is commenced. The City Council may grant a one

year extension upon written request of the original applicant if the application submitted is 

substantially the same as the initially approved application. At such time as the period of validity of 

an approved Final Development Plan lapses, the Final Development Plan and all uses, terms and 

conditions thereof may be declared null and void, and the City Council may initiate proceedings to 

rezone the site to its original or other appropriate zoning district in accordance with the procedures 

and requirements of Article XII, Amendments, of the Code of the City of Washington, Missouri. 

Adopted this 21st day of August 2023 by the City Council of the City of Washington,

Missouri. 

23339357.vl 

3C 



(Seal) 

Passed: ----------

ATTEST: - ---------
President of City Council 

Approved: _ _______ _ 

ATTEST: ----------
Mayor of Washington, Missouri 

23339357.vl 



BILL NO. 
---------

INTRODUCED BY ___ _____ _ 

ORDINANCE NO. _________ _ 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN SUBMITTED BY BRIDGEWATER COMMUNITIES, 
I

N

C. FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1780 HIGH 
STREET, WASHINGTON, MISSOURI 

WHEREAS, Bridgewater Communities, Inc. has submitted an Application to rezone 

the property located at 1780 High Street, Washington, Missouri from R-lC Single Family 

Residential to PD-R, Planned Development-Residential; and 

WHEREAS, in addition to the Application for Rezoning Bridgewater Communities, 

Inc. has submitted a Preliminary Development Plan as required by Section 400.115 of the 

Code of the City of Washington, Missouri; and 

WHEREAS, the Preliminary Development Plan included all of the information 

required by Section 400.1 l 5(J)(2) and Section 400. l l 5(k)(l )  of the Code of the City of 

Washington, Missouri; and 

WHEREAS, the Preliminary Development Plan was referred to the Planning and 

Zoning Commission for review and public hearing and said Commission voted on July 10, 

2023, to recommend approval of said Plan to the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the Preliminary Development Plan, together with the recommendation 

for approval from the Planning and Zoning Commission, were forwarded to the City 

Council of the City of Washington, Missouri; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved the Preliminary Development Plan on 

August 21, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, Bridgewater Communities, Inc. has submitted its Final Development 

Plan for approval; and 

WHEREAS, the Final Development Plan includes the required information 

described in Section 400.l 15(K) and (M) of the Code of the City of Washington, Missouri; 

and 

23339435.v2 



WHEREAS, the Final Development Plan includes the information required for the 

Preliminary Development Plan and the final landscape plan with specific location of all 

plant material, specifying size and species; and 

WHEREAS, the Final Development Plan is in substantial compliance with the 

approved Preliminary Development Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the Zoning Administrator has reviewed the Final Development Plan for 

compliance with the approved Preliminary Development Plan and has determined that the 

Final Development Plan is in compliance with the approved Preliminary Development Plan 

and any approved modifications or refinements. 

NOW, THEREOFRE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Washington, Missouri, as follows: 

SECTION 1: The Final Development Plan submitted by Bridgewater 

Communities, Inc. for the property located at 1780 High Street, Washington, Missouri, a 

copy of which is marked Exhibit A and is incorporated herein by reference, is hereby 

approved. 

SECTION 2: As a condition of approval of the Final Development Plan, the 

applicant is hereby ordered and directed to record the Final Development Plan in the 

Office of the Recorder of Deeds of Franklin County, Missouri. 

SECTION 3: Approval of this Final Development Plan shall be valid for a period 

of two (2) years from August 21, 2023, unless, within such period, a building permit is 

obtained, and construction of a development's foundation is commenced. At such time as 

the period of validity of the approved Final Development Plan lapses, the Final 

Development Plan and all uses, terms and conditions thereof may be declared null and void, 

and the City Council may initiate proceedings to rezone the site to its original or other 

appropriate zoning district in accordance with the procedures and requirements of Article 

XII, Amendments, of the Code of the City of Washington, Missouri. 

SECTION 4: All ordinances or parts of ordinances m conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed. 

23339435.v2 



SECTION 5: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and approval. 

Passed: -----------

ATTEST: ----------
President of City Council 

Approved: _________ _ 

ATTEST: ----------
Mayor of Washington, Missouri 

23339435.v2 



23339435 .v2 

Cottage Villa Summary 

EXHIBIT 
A 

'f:r:· ,;.,. . 
.... i 

BRIDGEWATER 
COMMUNITIES 

\, ,111 Villn I 'I"''" 

Bridgewater Communities Cottage Villa Series is designed for people who want an "Easy Living" lifestyle 

combined with luxury features . Our target buyer profile is a customer who desires safety, convenience, 

and value. Our buyers want to free themselves of older homes and/or oversized homes and yards that 

require too much money and energy to maintain. 

Our customers have typically raised their families in large homes on large lots that simply are too big and 

require _too much time and money to maintain at this stage in their lives. Until we designed our cottage 

villa series, our customer base might have had to move to an apartment with surface parking on a 

parking lot and multiple steps/staircases to their apartment. That lifestyle is not what they want but it is 

some of the only housing stock available. 

Some of the many features and benefits include: 

Fee simple ownership. the buyer owns their building and home site. 

There is an HOA that is granted an easement to come on to the property to provide lawn, landscaping, 

and snow removal for the resident. 

Single level living 

Low threshold entries - no steps 

2 bedroom and 2 bathrooms 

9' ceilings 

1" noor laundry 

Attached garage with garage door opener 

Luxury Vinyl Plank noorlng 

Walk-In Pantry 

Walk-in Master closet 

Wider doorways, wider hallways, and lever door handles 

Sodded yards (where disturbed) and a landscape package 

The brochure for a similar community that we bu ilt in St. Peters, MO Is attached 

Tim Miller 636 299-1931 



23339435 .v2 

Yes, It's Included 
• Location, Location, Location 

• Single Level Living 

• Low Threshold Entry 

• 2 Bedrooms/2 Bathrooms 
• 9' Ceilings 

• Granite Countertops 

• Upgraded Cabinetry 

• Luxury Vinyl Plank Flooring 

• Walk-In Pantry 

• Walk-In Closet 

• and MUCH MORE 
.~~ ·, ' ,-,. 

BRIDGEWATER 
COMMUNITIES 



23339435.v2 

Yes, It's Included 
Convenience Features 

· Easy Access to Shopping Areas along Mexico 
Road and Mid Rivers Mall Drive 

· Fully Sodded Homesites 

• No Steps Outside to Front Door 
· (ommon Ground Areas 

· Utilities lndlvldually Metered 
· Master Bedroom and Bathroom Suite 

• Covered Front Porch 

· Lever Handles on All Doors 
- Wider Hallways and Wide Doors 
· Garage Door Opener 
- Recessed Can Lights In Kitchen 

· Kitchen Island with Seating 

· 3 Phone and 1 TV Outlets 
• ,Raised Vanities with drawers In both bathrooms 
· Walk-In Master Bedroom Closet 

· Over-sized Closet in 2nd Bedroom 
- 2 Exterior Freeze-Proof Faucets 
• 2 Exterior GFCI Protected Outlets 

36" Wall Cabinetry in Kitchen 

· 6' Privacy Fence on 3 Sides of Community 
- Moen Chrome Single-Lever Faucets 

Anti -Scald Pressure Balanced Shower Heads 

· Termite Treatment Applied 

• Concrete Personal Driveways 

· Screens on all Operable Windows 

Safety Features 
· Carbon Mono~lde Detectors 

· Smoke Detectors (Hardwired with Battery Back-up 

and interconnected · if one rings, they all ring) 

• Deadbolts plus Key Locks on all Exterior Doors 
· Street Lights 

· No fhrough Streets 

· Smoke Detectors Inside and Outside each 

Bedroom 

• Electric Furnace and Water Heater 

- Fire Walls Between Villas 

· High Glass Window in Front Door Allows light 

and maintains security 

Value Featurei. 
· 1/10 Bulld~rWdtrdnly 
· Five Year Electrical Warranty Package 
· 10'116' Concrete Patio 
· 9' Ceilings Throughout 

• Brick on All Elevations 
· Dryer Vented to the Outside 

· Electric Dryer Receptacle (220 Volts) 
· Microwave Vented to Outside 

· Grllls on Front Windows 

· No Shared Walls (each villa has 4 side walls 
with 1.5" between walls in connecting areas 

· 13 SEER Air Conditioner 

• S 1 /4" Base Mouldings in Public Areas 

• 80% Efficient Electric Furnace 

· Brushed Nickel Door Hardware· 

· Painted, 5mooth 2-panel Interior Doors 
· Wide-Plank Luxury Vinyl Plank (LVP) 

nooring in all Public Areas and Bathrooms 
· Tyvek House Wrap on all Exterior Walls 

· Vinyl Siding for Reduced Maintenance Cost 

· Painted Wood Window Sills dnd Aprons 

· Vinyl Windows with Insulated Glass 

· 30-Year Warranty on Shingles 

· Enclosed Soffits and Fascia 

· Lighting Package 

for i1 cl d It Ion d I 11d or mat Ion c ,ii I Tr ilf y Geraghty 3 1 4 . 3 1 S. 5 9; s 
tr;;cy9ern9hty([t1br1d9ew<1tP1 co1n111unit1es com 

B rid g ewaterCo mm unities .com 



23
33

94
35

.v
2 

0 'T
l 

/\
l 

.,
 I

 
1,1

 
I 

I
. 

il: t
ii!I

 '\
~

t, 
111

·1•
1 

~
~

\,.
 

,, 

S
K

E
T

C
H

 
P

LA
N

 
V

IL
LA

S
 

AT
 

II
IG

H
 

S
TR

B
V

.T
 

P
D

-R
 

A
 T

llA
C

T 
m

' 
I.A

N
D

 
IJ

ll:
IN

G
 

Pi
'IR

l' 
O

F 
!IK

C
TI

O
N

 
;l

8,
 

T
H

N
, 

R
 L

 11
 

O
Ii 

'l'
II

F.
 

!T
H

 
JJ 

M
 

IN
 

rm
: 

C
l'f

"Y
 

ov
 

1!
',\

SI
II

N
(:

11
1~

. 
11

HA
NK

l.1
1'4

 
CU

IJ
N

T
Y

, 
M

O
 

;:: t"
' f;: [.

fl
 

>
 

U
l 

'"3
 

~:
:i:

:: 
ri 

c.=
i 

ti::
 ::

i::: 
'O

 [
.f

l 

f;@
 

zg
i '"3
 

't
i 

0 I ::0
 



23
33

94
35

. v
2 



23339435.v2 



23
33

94
35

.v
2 

mm
 

~i
@

l)i
j':

 
q 

.. 
~1

11
1:,

. 
.!

1
:;

!,
l,

i"
~

 

mm
 



23
33

94
35

.v
2 

(\
) 

0 "
i 

{
\)

 

mm
 

. " ...
.... 

~
 

mm
 

;;:
~:

; 
mm

 

I 
, ( I 

i 
JI

I 
l 

) 
C

O
N

C
E

P
T

U
A

L 
LA

N
U

S
C

A
P

E
 

P
t.

A
N

 
O

!I
J1

(J
/ll

JI
J/

4}
i1

(f
lll

ll.
ll(

1:
/D

0 
~
 

ti 
·••

J 
°\

. 
V

ll,
J.

.IS
 

hT
 

11
1(

;11
 

S'
l'R

F.
E

T
 

P
ll

-
H

 
B

W
M

V
IN

G
&

E
N

O
IN

E
E

R
IN

O
IN

C
 

t 
· 

n11
 

~~
'<

i 
,_

_
 _

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
 _
_

, 
m

 
W

T
 

I.W
N

 
s1

11m
 

II
A

IM
 

" 
I 

' 
ol!l

.<°
t 

A
 

T
R

A
C

T
 

01
' 

I.A
N

O
 

B
R

IN
G

 
l'A

H
'I'

 
O

f'
 

SE
C

T
IO

N
 

2
8

, 
U

~I
C

H
, 

uo
 6

JM
4 

{S
.l8

) 
~f

t.
H

~-
10

0 
~
~
,
 

. 

iii, 
'l'

 
Ir.

 .
.

. .
.,

, 
T

H
N

. 
R

Ii
i' 

O
F 

T
ilt

! 
,n

u 
I'

M
, 

IN
 

11
11

1: 
C

IT
Y

 
O

P' 
W

a'l
'lJ

IM
C

'tW
 

• 
""

 
t 

J 
lf

A
S

H
IN

C
'ru

N
',

 
F

J<
A

N
K

U
N

 
C

O
IJ

1'
,"l

''r
, 

M
O

 
_ 

_.._
u

._
•
-

11
 

.,.
...

.. 
...

.. 
_

_
_

 , .
. _

_
 



~·~~ ·~~~~ 

~·11 1 ~ POLICE -m-CITY OF WASHINGTON 
"~ ·-~o"' 

.-;.,~ '»., 

August 15, 2023 

To: Washington City Council 
Mayor Doug Hagedorn 

From: Chief Jim Armstrong 

Re: Washington Police Explorer Post 

Honorable Mayor and City Council, 

Washington Police Department 
Chief Jim Armstrong DSN 256 

301 Jefferson Street 
Washington, MO 63090 

Police Dispatch: 636 390-1050 
Direct Line: 636 390-1207 

Fax: 636 390-2455 

I would like to recognize the Washington Missouri Police Explorer Post 2438. Members of the 
post recently spent a week at Lindenwood University for the 2023 St Louis Area Law 
Enforcement Academy. They participated in competitions against other explorer posts from the 
St. Louis region. They also learned about DWI investigations, crash investigations, traffic stops, 
K9, SWAT, firearms, defensive tactics, crime scene processing, and many other topics. The 
explorer post earned three 3rd place awards. One for a C.I.T. incident, one for a shooting 
investigation and one for arrest and search procedures. 

The explorers along with their police advisors, Officer Mindy Schmelz and Officer Nolan 
Crawford, worked hard for several months to prepare for the academy. The young people in the 
program set a positive example for other youth in the community. Please join me in 
congratulating members of the Washington Missouri Police Explorer Post 2438 and their 
advisors. 

Respectfully, 



BILL NO. ________ _ INTRODUCED BY ---------

ORDINANCE NO. _________ _ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2023 BUDGET OF THE 
CITY OF WASHINGTON, MISSOURI FOR THE PURCHASE 
AND INSTALLATION OF A 100 kW GENERATOR AND 
TRANSFER SWITCH FOR THE COMMUNICATIONS 
DIVISION AT THE PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING 

Be It Ordained by the Council of the City of Washington, Missouri, as follows: 

SECTION 1: This ordinance shall amend the 2023 Budget as follows: 

General Fund--Increase 001-13-000-54220 Machinery and Equipment $69,875.00 

Decrease--001-341000 Fund Balance-Unreserved $69,875.00 

SECTION 2: This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its 

passage and approval. 

Passed: ----------

ATTEST: ---------
President of City Council 

Approved: ________ _ 

ATTEST: ---------
Mayor of Washington, Missouri 



-~Cllt~ 

/" ~ ~~"flJi 
301 Jeffe,soa Stceet, Washiagtoo, MO 63090 t ~-~ 636-390-1050 w~w washmo.go, 

~~~~) 

August 07, 2023 

Mayor Doug Hagedorn 

City Council Members 

405 Jefferson St. 

Washington, MO 63090 

., j" . ·~ !£ &,..• . 0 ~.,/ ,,, ~ .,'>,, 
~l'ON,~ ---

Honorable Mayor and City Council Members, 

Attached you will find an ordinance to amend the 2023 budget in the amount of 

$69,875.00 for the emergency purchase and installation of the new lOOkw generator for 

Communications at the Public Safety Building. I have also attached the approved 

ordinance dated December 5, 2022, accepting the bid from Rowles Electric. At that 

time, I did not include a budget amendment. 

I will be available at the August 21st council meeting to answer any questions. 

Sincerely, 

~--- \i.Jvlru~0\ ~ 
Jen~ifer Brune, Director of Communications 



BILL N0. __ =22"---=12""'"70"'-4,___ __ INTRODUCED BY __ -=-P=A=T=KE=:: ___ _ 

ORDINANCE N0. __ ---=2=2-....::.1~36=6-=-6 ___ _ 

AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL FROM ROL WES 
ELECTRIC, WENTZVILLE, MISSOURI AND TO APPROVE THE PURCHASE 
AND INSTALLATION OF A IOOkW GENERATOR AND TRANSFER 
SWITCH FOR THE COMMUNICATIONS DIVISION AT THE PUBLIC 
SAFETY BUILDING 

Be It Ordained by the Council of the City of Washington, Missouri, as follows: 

. • CTI ON l: The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to accept the proposal 

with Rolwes Electric, Wentzville, Missouri in the amount totaling Sixty-Nine Thousand, 

Eight Hundred Seventy-Five Dollars and Zero Cents ($69,875.00) for the purchase and 

installation of a new I OOkW Generator and Transfer Switch for the Communications 

Division at the Public Safety Building. A copy of said propsal is attached hereto and 

marked as Exhibit A. 

ECTION 2: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed. 

SE TION 3: This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after 

it's passage and approval. 

Passed: 12-05-22 --~~ ~~----

ATIEST:~ ~ 

Approved :_---=l 2c....-0=5c....-=22=------



Exhibit A 

City of ~ashington 

Emergency Generator Proposal 

405 Jefferson Street 

Washington, MO 63090 

ATIN: Sherri Klekamp, City Clerk 

Date: 10/3/2022 

Included In Quote 

• Replacement of Existing 100kw 3P 480/277-volt dual fuel generator 

o Existing Generator will be removed on day of installation by crane 

• Generator disposal Included 

o New Generator will be installed on roof by crane same day of generator removal 

• ReplacementGeneratorwill not require any additional alterations to the roof 
curb and mount system. 

• Reconnection of fuel lines and plumbing provided (licensed plumbing 
contractor) 

• NewATSCabinetand Equipment 

• New Remote Annunciator 

• Wiring to existing omnimetrix system not included 

• During the initial site walk it was determined that this system is not 
needed 

o During Generator Change over the current ATS Will Be bypassed and the building will 

run off the regular power supplied by the utility company 

• Additional generators will not need to be provided 

• Power loss will be limited to no longer than 20 minutes while bypass takes place 
• Labor And Installation Plan 

o 1 Day of Evaluation and Site Survey 

• Confirmation of sizes and equipment prior to ordering of Generator and 
materials 

o 1 Day of Preparation work before installation day 

• Disconnection of generator and ATS Cabinet 

• Disconnection of fuel lines and wiring to prepare for crane lift the following day 
• Power Bypass to be conducted at this time. 

• Areas of work on street will be established and blocked off to allow access and 

working area of crane and staging area of generator and materials 
o Installation Day 

• Removal of Existing generator to be done first 

• 
Installation and hool<up of replacement generator 
Installation of replacementATS Cabinet 

Mark Rolwes 
(314)-249-5563 

mark@rolweselectric.com 

----------------:10... 



• Installation of replacement annunciator 
• Generator Startup, Testing, and Training Included 

Lead time of generator and equipment is 34-40 weeks after receipt of 

order. All project coordination will be completed by Rolwes electric 

included scheduling of work, delivery of materials, planned 

downtimes, scheduling of additional trades (crane operator, plumbing 

contractor), and project management. 

The working days of replacing the generator will take place during 

two consecutive business days during normal business hours. To 
ensure that there are no power losses during this period, and to 

ensure a safe working environment for the crane. The generator 

replacement will need to be scheduled with optimum weather 

conditions present. This is to include night prior to replacement to 

ensure that there will be no loss of power. 

Total: $69,875 

Mark Rolwes 
(314)-249-5563 

in ark@rolwe se le ctric. com 

-----------------~o... 



City of Washington 

Emergency Generator Proposal 

405 Jefferson Street 

Washington, MO 63090 

ATIN: Sherri Klekamp, City Clerk 

Date: 10/3/2022 

Included In Quote 

• Replacement of Existing lOOkw 3P 480/277-volt dual fuel generator 
o Existing Generator will be removed on day of installation by crane 

• Generator disposal included 

o New Generator will be installed on roof by crane same day of generator removal 

• Replacement Generator will not require any additional alterations to the roof 
curb and mount system. 

• Reconnection of fuel lines and plumbing provided (licensed plumbing 
contractor) 

• 
• 
• 

New ATS Cabinet and Equipment 

New Remote Annunciator 

Wiring to existing omnimetrix system not Included 

• During the initial site walk It was determined that this system is not 

needed 

o During Generator Change over the current ATS Will Be bypassed and the building will 

run off the regular power supplied by the utility company 

• Additional generators will not need to be provided 

• Power loss will be limited to no longer than 20 minutes while bypass takes place 

• Labor And Installation Plan 

o 1 Day of Evaluation and Site Survey 

• Confirmation of sizes and equipment prior to ordering of Generator and 
materials 

o 1 Day of Preparation work before installation day 

• Disconnection of generator and ATS Cabinet 

• Disconnection of fuel lines and wiring to prepare for crane lift the following day 

• Power Bypass to be conducted at this time. 
• Areas of work on street will be established and blocked off to allow access and 

working area of crane and staging area of generator and materials 
o Installation Day 

• Removal of Existing generator to be done first 

• Installation and hookup of replacement generator 

• Installation of replacement ATS Cabinet 

Mark Rolwes 
(314) -249-5563 

mark@rolweselectric.com 



• Installation of replacement annunciator 
• Generator Start up, Testing, and Training Included 

Lead time of generator and equipment is 34-40 weeks after receipt of 

order. All project coordination will be completed by Rolwes electric 

included scheduling of work, delivery of materials, planned 

downtimes, scheduling of additional trades (crane operator, plumbing 

contractor), and project management. 

The working days of replacing the generator will take place during 

two consecutive business days during normal business hours. To 
ensure that there are no power losses during this period, and to 
ensure a safe working environment for the crane. The generator 

replacement will need to be scheduled with optimum weather 
conditions present. This is to include night prior to replacement to 
ensure that there will be no loss of power. 

Total: $69,875 

Mark Rolwes 
(314)-249-5563 

mark@rolweselectric.com 



INVOICE 

Rolwes Electric 

1736 Hiawatha Dr 
Wentzville, MO 63385 

City of Washington 

Bill to 

City of Washington 

Invoice details 

Invoice no.: 1868 

Terms: Net 30 

Invoice date: 08/04/2023 

Due date: 09/03/2023 

1. PerBld 

rolweselectric@gmail.com 
(314)249-5563 

Emergency Generator Replacement at Police Department 

Bid Amount $69,875 

Project Complete 7/28/2023 

Ways to pay 

~VISA 

1 unit x $69,875.00 $69,875.00 

Total $69,875.00 



BILL NO. INTRODUCED BY _ _ ______ _ ----- ----

ORDINANCE NO. -----------

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE 
EXECUTION OF A MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT BY AND 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF WASHINGTON, MISSOURI AND AT&T 
FOR MAINTENANCE OF 911 CALL HANDLING EQUIPMENT AND 
SERVICES AND AMEND THE 2023 BUDGET 

Be It Ordained by the Council of the City of Washington, Missouri, as follows: 

SECTION 1: The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute a 

Maintenance Agreement by and between the City of Washington, Missouri and AT&T for 

maintenance of 911 call handling equipment and services. A copy of the agreement is 

attached and is marked as Exhibit A. 

SECTION 2: This ordinance shall amend the 2023 Budget as follows: 

General Fund--Increase 001-13-000-521620 Equipment Repair & Maintenance $14,000 

Decrease--001-341000 Fund Balance-Unreserved $14,000 

SECTION 3: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

SECTION 4: This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its 

passage and approval. 

Passed: - ---------

ATTEST: - -------- President of City Council 

Approved: ________ _ 

ATTEST: -------- -
Mayor of Washington, Missouri 

1~ 



August 17, 2023 

Mayor Doug Hagedorn 

City Council Members 

405 Jefferson St. 

Washington, MO 63090 

Honorable Mayor and City Council Members, 

Attached you will find an ordinance accepting a maintenance agreement between the City of 

Washington and AT&T for the maintenance of 911 call handling equipment and services and 

amending the 2023 budget in the amount of $14,000. Currently, we are using the equipment 

without a maintenance contract. The maintenance was previously paid for by the County and 

when the contract expired, they passed the cost onto the individual PSAPs. This equipment is 

vital to our 911 operations and without a contract, repairs can become costly. The maintenance 

contract also secures our total figures for the 911 system upgrade. Having this contract in place 

would mean we will receive an update rather than a new system with new licensing which would 

increase our overall costs for the upcoming project. It is my recommendation to enter into a 

maintenance agreement with AT&T. 

I will be available at the August 2l51 council meeting to answer questions. 

Sincerely, 

~ of~ 

1b 



CUSTOMER Legal Name ("Customer") 

City of Washington 

CUSTOMER Address 
301 Jefferson St 
Washington 
Missouri USA 
63090 

CUSTOMERContact 

Name: Jennifer Brune 
Title: Director of Communication 
Telephone: 636-390-1050 
Fax: 
Email : jbrune@washmo.gov 

Exhibit A 

AT&T Public Safety Equipment Resale and Related Services 
Pricing Schedule for 911 CPE Call Handling 

MA Reference No.: MA50005030UA 
Pricing Schedule No.: __ _ 

AT&T Corp. ('AT&T") AT&T Branch Sales Contact Name 

' 
AT&T Corp. Name: Todd Karl 

AT&T Corp, Address and Contact AT&T Branch Sales Contact Information 
One AT&T Way 115 W Adams Ave 
Bedminster, NJ 07921-0752 Kirkwood, Missouri USA 
Attn: Master Agreement Support Team 63122 
E-mail: mast@att.com Phone : (314) 450-2520 

Email : todd.karl@att.com 
Sales/Branch Manager: Dustin Alexander 
SCVP Name: Scott Aqnew 
AT&T Contact Information 

-
Name: Todd Karl 
Address: 115 W Adams Ave 
City: Kirkwood 
State / Province: Missouri Country: USA 
Domestic/ Intl/ Zip Code: 63122 
Telephone: (314) 450-2520 
Email: todd.karl@.att.com 

CUSTOMERBlllina Address and Contact 
301 Jefferson St 
Washington 
Missouri USA 
63090 
Contact Name: Jennifer Brune 
Title: Director of Communication 
Telephone: 636-390-1050 
Fax: 
E-mail: jbrune@lwashmo.qov 

This Pricing Schedule is part of the Agreement between AT&T and Customer referenced above. In the case of a conflict, the descending order of 
priority for the documents in this Pricing Schedule is Sub-Rider 83, the other applicable Sub-Riders, the applicable Rider and the General Terms. 

D Rider A - Purchased Equipment 

CUSTOMER 

By: 
(by its authorized reoresentative) 

/Tvoed or Printed Name) 

(Title) 

(Date) 

Public Safety UA Pricing Schedule 
V. 10/16/14 

~ Rider B - AT & T-Provided Services 
~ Sub-Rider 81 -AT&T-Provided 911 Voice Maintenance 
D Sub-Rider B2-AT&T-Provided 911 Voice Warranty Services 
D Sub-Rider 83-AT&T 911 Call Handling Equipment and 
Services 

AT&T Corp. 

By: 
(by its authorized representative) 

/Tvoed or Printed Name) 

(Title) 

(Date) 

AT&T and Customer Confidential Information Page 1 of 10 

1b 



GENERAL TERMS APPLICABLE TO 
AT&T PUBLIC SAFETY EQUIPMENT RESALE AND RELATED SERVICES 

1. SERVICES AND PURCHASED EQUIPMENT 

• "Purchased Equipment" - means equipment (including Software) sold and Software separately sold by AT&T to Customer pursuant to this 
Pricing Schedule. "Purchased Equipment" includes replacement hardware and Software provided in connection with AT&T-Provided 
Maintenance and Warranty Services. 

• "Software" - means software purchased separately or software included with the equipment purchased, pursuant to this Pricing Schedule. 

• "Services" - per applicable Riders and Sub-Riders. 
2. QUOTE 

AT&T may provide a quote for the price of Purchased Equipment or Services to Customer ("Quote") or include such information in a Statement of Work 
("SOW"). Such Quote will expire thirty (30) days after the dale of the Quote, unless a different lime period for expiration is stated in the Quote. All such 
pricing is applicable only to the project or purchase specified in such Quote unless stated otherwise in the SOW or Sub-Rider. 
3. ORDERS 
(a) Order means an order for Purchased Equipment or Services, including Statements of Work and requests to change an Order, that Customer 
submits lo AT&T in writing (or other method specifically authorized by AT&T). AT&T reserves the right not to accept any Order. Except for information 
required by AT&T to fulfill the Order, no terms and conditions, or other language contained in any Customer-supplied document or purchase order 
shall apply. 

(b) Telephone Orders may be accepted for moves, adds, or changes to Purchased Equipment that do not require design engineering support from 
AT&T or the supplier and can be ordered off the shelf without being configured or designed with other components. 
4. TAX EXEMPTION 
Customer must present a tax exemption certificate to AT&T, valid In the place of delivery, prior to or with an Order to receive exemption status. 
5. TERMINATION 
(a) Either party may terminate this Pricing Schedule upon thirty (30) days' prior written notice, except that all work under any outstanding Orders will 
be completed unless one party notifies the other otherwise in writing. 
(b) Customer may terminate an Order on five (5) days prior written notice. AT&T may recover all amounts owing under the Order for any time, materials 
and expenses incurred through the effective date of termination, and any third party charges resulting from the termination. 

6. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 
(a) EACH PARTY'S LIABILITY SHALL BE LIMITED TO PROVEN DIRECT DAMAGES NOT TO EXCEED PER CLAIM (OR IN THE AGGREGATE 
FOR CLAIMS ARISING DURING ANY TWELVE MONTH PERIOD) TWICE THE NET PURCHASE PRICE OF THE PURCHASED EQUIPMENT OR 
SERVICES IN THE ORDER GIVING RISE TO THE LIABILITY. THE LIMITATION IN THIS SECTION SHALL NOT LIMIT CUSTOMER'S 
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE PAYMENT OF ALL PROPERLY DUE CHARGES. 

{b) Except for AT&T-Provided Service, AT&T SHALL HAVE NO DUTY TO DEFEND, INDEMNIFY, OR HOLD CUSTOMER HARMLESS FROM OR 
AGAINST ANY SETTLEMENTS, DAMAGES, COSTS AND OTHER AMOUNTS INCURRED BY CUSTOMER ARISING FROM THE ACTUAL OR 
ALLEGED INFRINGEMENT OR MISAPPROPRIATION OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY BASED ON OR INVOLVING EQUIPMENT, SOFTWARE 
OR SERVICES FURNISHED UNDER THIS PRICING SCHEDULE. 

7. PURCHASED EQUIPMENT WARRANTY AND LIMITATION ON USE 
(a) AT&T shall pass through to Customer any warranties available from Purchased Equipment manufacturers or licensors. The manufacturer or 
licensor and not AT&T is responsible for any such warranties. 

(b) Except as set out in Section 7(a), ALL PURCHASED EQUIPMENT IS PROVIDED TO CUSTOMER ON AN "AS IS" BASIS. AT&T DISCLAIMS 
ANY AND ALL REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED OF ANY KIND (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, 
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, TITLE, NON-INFRINGEMENT, SATISFACTORY QUALITY, 
NON-INTERFERENCE, ACCURACY OF INFORMATIONAL CONTENT, OR ANY WARRANTY ARISING BY USAGE OF TRADE OR COURSE OF 
DEALING). These disclaimers shall apply even if the express warranties from equipment manufacturers or licensors fail of their essential purpose. 
8. MAINTENANCE CHARGES 
AT&T may invoice maintenance charges in full in advance of the term for AT&T-Provided and Manufacturer-Provided maintenance services. Such 
maintenance charges are non-refundable. . 

Public Safety UA Pricing Schedule 
V. 10116114 

AT&T and Customer Confidential lnfonnation Page 2 of 10 

1b. 



Rider A - Purchased Equipment 

1. AVAILABILITY AND DELIVERY SCHEDULE 
AT&T's delivery of Purchased Equipment is contingent upon the availability and lhe delivery schedule of the manufacturer or supplier. AT&T can not 
guarantee availability or firm delivery dates. Purchased Equipment is deemed accepted by Customer upon passage of title and risk of loss. 

2. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS 
Title to and risk of loss of Purchased Equipment passes to Customer on delivery by manufacturer or supplier to a carrier for shipment; provided that 
if AT&T also provides Services (other than Warranty Services or Maintenance Services) in connection with the Purchased Equipment, title and risk of 
loss passes to Customer on delivery to Customer. 

3. SHIPPING AND STORAGE 
(a) Shipping Charges. 

(i) Standard Fee for AT&T-provided shipping: One percent (1%) of the total purchase price for the Purchased Equipment (other than Software) 
shipped. 
(ii) Customer may request in an Order to be invoiced by the carrier of its choice by providing AT&T the identification of the shipper, Customer's 
account information, and method of shipment. 
(iii) If Customer requires overnight shipping, Customer should make such a request in writing and AT&T will quote the pricing associated with 
such delivery on a case by case basis. 

(b) Storage Charges. Any storage charges for Purchased Equipment following transfer of title and risk of loss are the sole responsibility of Customer 
and are not included in shipping charges. 

4. INVOICING; CREDIT TERMS 
AT&T may Invoice Customer for Purchased Equipment upon delivery to the carrier. AT&T retains a lien and purchase money security interest in each 
item of Purchased Equipment and Software until Customer pays all sums due. AT&T is authorized to sign and file a financing statement to perfect 
such security interest. 

5. PURCHASED EQUIPMENT RETURNS 
(a) Warranty Returns. If Purchased Equipment requires return during its respective warranty period, and the manufacturer or supplier determines such 
Purchased Equipment qualifies for a return, AT&T will obtain a Return Material Authorization ("RMA') and instructions from the manufacturer or 
supplier. Upon AT&T providing the RMA to Customer, Customer will return the Purchased Equipment according to the manufacturer's or supplier's 
policies and Instructions. 

{b) Non-defective Returns. If Customer seeks to return Purchased Equipment that is non-defective or not otherwise covered by a warranty, Customer 
must contact AT&T in time for AT&T lo obtain an RMA with instructions from the manufacturer or supplier within fifteen (15) days following delivery of 
such Purchased Equipment to the ship-to address in the applicable Order; however, if the Purchased Equipment is delivered to an AT&T staging facility 
prior to delivery to the ship-to address, Customer must contact AT&T within fifteen (15) days following notice to Customer of delivery to the staging 
facility. Any such return shall be at the sole discretion of the manufacturer or supplier. If the return is authorized, Customer will be responsible for 
payment of any associated return or restocking fee, return shipping costs, and risk of loss of the Purchased Equipment. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
ONCE AT&T'S CONFIGURATION OF PURCHASED EQUIPMENT FOR USE BY CUSTOMER HAS COMMENCED, NON-DEFECTIVE RETURN IS 
NOT AVAILABLE. 

(c) Maintenance Returns. To return Purchased Equipment covered by a maintenance service, Customer must contact the applicable maintenance 
service provider to obtain an RMA and instructions. 

6. MANUFACTURER-PROVIDED SERVICES 
Manufacturer-Provided Services identified in Customer's Order with the manufacturer's stock-keeping unit number are provided directly to Customer by 
the manufacturer under a separate agreement between Customer and the manufacturer. Customer shall assent lo and comply with the terms of the 
agreement with the manufacturer. AT&T is not a party to that agreement. AT&T's sole responsibility is to place Customer's orders for Manufacturer
Provided Services, except that AT&T may invoice Customer for the Manufacturer-Provided Services. 

7. LICENSES, RESTRICTIONS, REQUIREMENTS 
(a) Software is provided subject to the terms of the Software licensor's license agreement which is a separate agreement between Customer and the 

licensor. Customer must assent to and comply with the license agreement. 

(b) Purchased Equipment may be subject to additional requirements or restrictions imposed by manufacturer or licensor. Customer must assent to 
and comply with all such requirements or restrictions. · 

Public Safety UA Pricing Schedule 
V. 10/16114 

AT&T and Customer Confidential Information Page 3 of 10 

1b 



Rider B -AT&T-Provided Services 

1. SERVICE 

• Per applicable Sub-Rider 
• Services have an end date and do not continue under a month-to-month service arrangement after the end of a term unless specifically identified 

as such in the applicable Sub-Rider. 
2. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS 
(a) All intellectual property rights used in providing, or arising by virtue of AT&T's performance, of the Services are and will be the sole and exclusive 
property of AT&T, and neither ownership nor title to any such property will pass lo Customer. 

(b) Customer shall own'copies of any reports produced and furnished to Customer by AT&T ("Reports"), and AT&T grants Customer a perpetual, non
exclusive, personal and non-transferable right to reproduce and modify Reports solely for Customer's own internal business purposes. For avoidance 
of doubt, "internal business purposes" exclude public distribution, resale to third parties and revenue generation purposes. 

(c) AT&T grants lo Customer the non-exclusive, personal, and non-transferable right lo use any items other than Reports produced and furnished to 
Customer by AT&T under this Pricing Schedule, solely (i) for Customer's own internal business purposes during the term of this Pricing Schedule or 
(ii) for such other purposes as may be agreed in writing by the parties. 

(d) Except as otherwise specified in this Pricing Schedule, no other right or license to or under any of AT&T's intellectual property rights is either 
granted or implied under this Pricing Schedule. 

3. WORKMANSHIP 
The provision of Services under this Pricing Schedule shall be performed in a workmanlike manner that would meet commercial industry standards in 
the field to which the work pertains. AT& T's obligation under this Section expires upon Customer's acceptance of the Services. 

4. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
AT&T is an independent contractor for the Services performed under Pricing Schedule. 
5. ACCEPTANCE 
Upon completion of professional and implementation Services ("Service Completion Date"), Customer either shall sign the acceptance document AT&T 
presents or shall provide within five (5) Business Days of the Service Completion Date written notice to AT&T identifying any non-conforming 
professional or implementation Service. 'Business Day" means Monday through Friday, excluding AT&T-recognized holidays. If Customer fails to 
provide such notice, Customer is deemed to have accepted the Service as of the Service Completion Date. AT&T may invoice Customer for 
professional and implementation Services upon acceptance. 
6. NON-SOLICITATION 
Customer agrees not to directly solicit for employment any personnel of AT&T or its subcontractors or agents performing Services hereunder until one 
(1) year following the completion or termination of applicable Order pursuant to which the Services were performed without the prior written consent of 
AT&T. 

7. DELAYS 
If there is a delay in providing Services that was not caused by AT&T, Customer may incur additional labor or other charges. AT&T shall not be liable 
for such a delay. Such a delay may also impact future schedules. 

8. REMOTE ACCESS TO EQUIPMENT 
Customer shall provide remote access to equipment during installation and maintenance for trouble isolation, monitoring and resolution. Customer 
may satisfy this requirement: (i) by providing in-band or out-of-band connection; (ii) providing technical personnel on Site; or (iii) as otherwise described 
in the applicable Service Guide. 

9. EQUIPMENT STORAGE 
On the premises where the Services are being performed, AT&T or its subcontractors may store, at no charge, a reasonable amount of equipment, 
materials, tools and other items necessary for the performance of Services in a secure location provided by Customer ('Storage location"). Customer 
will take reasonable precautions to protect and maintain the integrity of any such items. Customer agrees to accept delivery of any such items, to 
place them or direct their placement in the Storage Location and to .notify AT&T of the delivery and Storage Location. 
10. SERVICES SUPPLIER 
If an AT&T supplier necessary for the delivery of Services ceases to provide all or a portion of such Services, either Party may terminate the affected 
portion of the Services, and Customer will receive a pro-rata refund of any amounts prepaid for such terminated Services. 

Public Safety UA Pricing Schedule 
V. 10/16/14 

AT&T and Customer Confidential Information Page 4 of 10 

1b 



Rider B1 -AT&T-Provided 911 Voice Maintenance Services 

1. SERVICES; SERVICE PUBLICATIONS 

Service Service Publication Location 

AT&T 911 Voice Maintenance Solutions ("911VMS") Pending Approval 

AT&T provides AT&T 911 Voice Maintenance Solutions Services ("Maintenance Services") for certain equipment ("Supported Equipment"), in 
accordance with this Pricing Schedule, the applicable SOW and the applicable Service Guide. Supported Equipment covered by Maintenance Services 
is specified in an SOW or the Service Guide. 

2. CERTIFICATION AND REVIEWS 
(a) Manufacturer's Certification for Supported Equipment. If an item of equipment is not covered by the manufacturer's warranty or by a manufacturer
approved maintenance service immediately before AT&T begins providing the Maintenance Service for the equipment, Customer must provide a 
manufacturer's certification that equipment is in working order and eligible to be included in a maintenance plan. 

(b) Changes in Supported Equipment covered by Maintenance Services. AT&T may conduct periodic equipment reviews for additions or deletions of 
Supported Equipment that is being maintained, and will make any appropriate adjustments to Maintenance Services. 
(c) Neither Customer nor any party other than AT&T or its designated agents may alter, repair, or maintain any Supported Equipment. 

3. MAINTENANCE TERM AND RENEWAL 
The term for Maintenance Services (the 'Maintenance Term") and level of Maintenance Service are set forth in the applicable Order. UNLESS EITHER 
PARTY TERMINATES BY WRITIEN NOTICE ON COMPANY LETIERHEAO WITH A HANDWRITIEN SIGNATURE AT LEAST THIRTY (30) 
BUSINESS DAYS PRIOR TO EXPIRATION OF THE THEN-CURRENT MAINTENANCE TERM, ANO IF THE LEVEL OF MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
REFLECTED IN SUCH ORDER REMAINS AVAILABLE UNDER THE APPLICABLE SERVICE PUBLICATION AT TIME OF RENEWAL, THE 
MAINTENANCE TERM WITH REGARD TO SUCH ORDER AUTOMATICALLY RENEWS: (l) FOR VOICE SUPPORTED EQUIPMENT, FOR AN 
ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR. AT&T MAY, AT THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY RENEWAL MAINTENANCE TERM, CHANGE THE PRICE OF 
SERVICE UPON AT LEAST THIRTY (30) DAYS PRIOR WRITIEN NOTICE. 

4. PRICE CHANGES 
AT&T also may change the price of Maintenance Services on written notice for Supported Equipment at the time it is changed, upgraded or added. 

5. REPLACEMENT PRODUCTS; END-OF-SUPPORT; RETURN OF DEFECTIVE EQUIPMENT 
(a) Spare parts and equipment ("Replacement Products") may be new or reconditioned if equivalent to new in performance. AT&T's provision of 
Replacement Products during the Maintenance Term is contingent upon the delivery schedule of the manufacturer or supplier. AT&T has no liability 
for delays in any delivery schedule. AT&T cannot guarantee firm delivery dates. 

(b) If an item of Supported Equipment is discontinued or placed at end-of-life or end-of-support status by the manufacturer, AT&T shall only be obligated 
to use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain replacement parts and provide Maintenance Service for the item of Supported Equipment for which 
additional charges may apply or AT&T may delete such item of Supported Equipment from Maintenance Services and provide a pro-rata refund. 

(c) AT&T will provide an RMA number for defective Supported Equipment ("Defective Item"). Customer shall return the Defective Item within thirty (30) 
days after the date of the RMA, or Customer will be invoiced, and shall pay, for the corresponding Replacement Product. Defective Items are the 
property of AT&T upon delivery to the carrier. 

6. EXCLUSIONS FOR AT&T-PROVIDED MAINTENANCE SERVICES. 
(a) AT&T will perform Maintenance Services only for damage to, substandard performance of or failure of Supported Equipment resulting only from 
Supported Equipment defects or normal wear and tear ("Covered Maintenance"). 

(b) Covered Maintenance does not include hardware defects or software failures resulting from any cause whatsoever not attributable to AT&T, 
including, but not limited lo: (i) mishandling, abuse, misuse, improper storage, Improper installation, improper maintenance, improper electrical voltage 
or current or improper operation (including use in conjunction with equipment electrically or mechanically incompatible); (ii) accident; (iii) theft; (iv) force 
majeure events, including, fire, explosion (other than fire or explosion directly attributable to a Supported Equipment defect), power failure, lightning or 
other induced power surge, flood, wind, war, terrorism, virus and acts of God; (v) Customer-caused programming errors in software or applications; 
(vi) Customer-performed system configurations; (vii) Customer's failure to maintain a proper operating environment, to back up its data or to secure its 
network environment; (viii) Customer's failure to follow manufacturer/licensor recommendations; and, (ix) repair, relocation, damage or alteration of 
the Supported Equipment by anyone other than AT & Tor its designated agents. Supported Equipment supporting IP telephony may experience certain 
compromises in performance, reliability and security even when performing as warranted; diagnostic and repair work in response to such compromises 
is not included in Covered Maintenance. 

(c) Diagnostic and repair work AT&T performs outside of Covered Maintenance Is invoiced at AT&T's prevailing rates for time and materials. 

Public Safety UA Pricing Schedule 
V.10116114 

AT&T and Customer Confidential lnfo,rnaLion Page 5 of 10 

-,,, 



Rider B2-AT&T-Provided 911 Voice Warranty Services 

1. WARRANTY SERVICES 

(a) AT&T Warranty Services, as described in this Sub-Rider, apply to Purchased Equipment used in 911 CPE call handling solutions purchased from 
and installed by AT&T. Purchased Equipment covered by AT&T Warranty Services is specified in a SOW or the Service Guide. Basic Warranty 
Service is provided without additional charge. AT&T may invoice in full for warranty upgrades in advance of the Warranty Period. 
(b) The standard "Warranty Period" is one (1) year from installation of the Purchased Equipment. The Warranty Period will not restart or increase due 
to or as a result of any repair, replacement or move of or addition or change to any Purchased Equipment. 

(c) During the Warranty Period, if the Purchased Equipment other than Software does not conform to the manufacturer's warranty, Customer shall 
notify AT&T of such nonconformance. AT&T shall, at AT& T's sole option, repair or replace any non-conforming, warranted hardware. 

(d) During the specified Warranty Period, if any item of Software that is properly installed and operating on the Purchased Equipment for which it is 
originally licensed does not conform to the Software warranty or if the media on which the Software is provided is defective in materials or workmanship 
under normal use, Customer shall notify AT&T of such nonconformance. AT&T shall, at AT&T's sole option, (i) provide a suitable fix, patch, or 
workaround any non-conforming warranted Software; or (ii) will replace at no charge any non-conforming warranted Software media if it is delivered 
to carrier for shipment to AT&T during the Warranty Period along with proof of date of shipment to Customer. 
(e) If AT&T determines that any remedy set forth in Section 1 (c) or 1(d) is not reasonably available, then AT&T may issue a refund, at its sole option, 
of an amount (e.g., using Customer's federal income tax depreciation schedule) based upon: (i) the price paid by Customer in the case of defective 
warranted hardware, or (ii) the one-time fee paid in the case of defective warranted Software. 

2. REPLACEMENT PRODUCTS; RETURN OF DEFECTIVE EQUIPMENT 
(a) Spare parts and equipment ("Replacement Products") may be new or reconditioned if equivalent to new in performance. AT&T's provision of 
Replacement Products during the Warranty Period is contingent on the delivery schedule of the manufacturer or supplier. AT&T has no liability for 
delays in any delivery schedule. AT&T can not guarantee firm delivery dates. If an item of Purchased Equipment is placed at end-of-life status by the 
manufacturer, AT&T shall only be obligated to use commercially reasonable efforts to provide Replacement Products for an item of Purchased 
Equipment. 

(b) AT&T will provide an RMA number for a defective warranted hardware ("Defective Item"). Customer shall return the Defective Item within thirty (30) 
days after the RMA is generated, or Customer will be invoiced for the corresponding Replacement Product. Defective Items are the property of AT&T. 
If the returned warranted hardware is found not to be defective, Customer will be charged for the Replacement Products at Customer's current price. 

3, EXCLUSIONS FOR AT&T WARRANTY SERVICES. 
(a) AT&T will perform AT&T Warranty Services only for damage to, substandard performance of or failure of Supported Equipment resulting only from 

Supported Equipment defects or normal wear and tear ('Covered Work"). 

(b) Covered Work does not include hardware defects or software failures resulting from any cause whatsoever not attributable to AT&T, including, but 
not limited lo: (i) mishandling, abuse, misuse, improper storage, improper installation, improper maintenance, improper electrical voltage or current or 
improper operation (including use in conjunction with equipment electrically or mechanically incompatible); (ii) accident; (iii) theft; (iv) force majeure 
events, including fire, explosion (other than fire or explosion directly attributable to a Supported Equipment defect), power failure, lightning or other 
induced power surge, flood, wind, war, terrorism, and acts of God; (v) Customer-caused programming errors in software or applications; (vi) Customer
performed system configurations; (vii) Customer's failure to maintain a proper operating environment, to back up its data or to secure its network 
environment; (viii) Customer's failure to follow manufacturer/licensor recommendations; and, (ix) repair, relocation, damage or alteration of the 
Supported Equipment by anyone other than AT&T or its designated agents. Supported Equipment supporting IP telephony may experience certain 
compromises in performance, reliability and security even when performing as warranted; diagnostic and repair work in response to such compromises 
is not included in Covered Work. 

(c) Diagnostic and repair work AT&T performs outside of Covered Work is invoiced at AT&T's prevailing rates for time and materials. 

Public Safety UA Pricing Schedule 
V.10/16114 

AT&T and Customer Confidential lnfonnation Page 6 of 10 



Sub-Rider B3-AT&T 911 Call Handling Equipment and Services 

SERVICE 

This Sub-Rider B-3 for AT&T 911 Call Handling Equipment and Services covers AT&T's sale of voice Purchased Equipment (referred to as 
Purchased Equipment, Equipment or CPE in this Sub-Rider) installation and/or maintenance Service for such Purchased Equipment to be provided 
by AT&T under the Maintenance Plan as set forth herein (the "Maintenance Plan'), and as further described below. The Purchased Equipment is 
identified in this Sub-Rider or in the attached or referenced Bill of Materials, or Order. This Sub-Rider also covers any Orders issued hereunder or in 
a SOW issued under this Sub-Rider, as well as any additions or replacement to the Purchased Equipment or Service. 

I. Service Order Information and Payment Terms 

*Taxes & Freight will be listed separately on the Invoice. Total Purchase Price does not Include maintenance. 
Rates and Charges 

Non-Recurring Charges 

Site Name Address City State 
Quantity of 
Positions 

Total Non-Recurrlna Charae 

Recurring Rates 

Service Type Payment Period Term 
(Monthlv/Annual) lin months) 

Total Recurring Rate 

Payment Terms: 
• Locations to be invoiced and billed after each installation and customer acceptance. 
• 100% of equipment and services at acceptance of services 
• Equipment & Services Detail as per quote dated: 5/15/2023 

Leasing: 0 AT&T Capital Servic;;es O Other: (Name of Leasing Company) 0 No 

Purchase Order Number: 

Public Safely UA Pricing Schedule 
V. 10/16/14 

AT&T and Cuslomer Confidenlial Information 

Non-Recurring 
Costs 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

Recurring 
Costs 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

Page 7 or 10 

1b 



Sub-Rider B3-AT&T 911 Call Handling Equipment and Services 

SELECTION OF EQUIPMENT SERVICE PLAN: 

AT&T 911 Voice Maintenance Solutions•: OEssential Plus [81Custom Customer Initials: ___ (Required) 
• Customer must select either Essential Plus or Custom In order to receive maintenance services under this Pricing Schedule. 

Initial Term: 1 Year From: 5123/2023 To: 5/22/2024 Prepaid Price: $7,366.30 
Service Plan Payment Terms (default is annual): r81Prepay 0Annual 0Financing: 

NOTE: Hardware Maintenance Services commence at system installatlon/cutover. 

TERMINATION PRICING ADJUSTMENTS: If Customer terminates AT&T 911 Voice Maintenance Solutions in whole or in part, Including reduction 
in service level, Customer, depending on the payment terms, either shall be (a) invoiced fifty percent (50%) of the fees 30 days from the date AT&T 
received written notice of termination to the expiration of the maintenance term plus any non-recoverable and third party costs incurred by AT&T; or 
(b) credited fifty percent (50%) of fees paid for the terminated Service less any non-recoverable and third party costs. 

Manufacturer-Provided Maintenance Services: OEM: lntrado 

Name of Service: Software Support & Software Subscription 

Coverage Level: standard 
ACCEPT. Customer Initials: __ _ DECLINE. Customer Initials: __ _ 

Initial Tenn: 1 Year From: 512312023 To: 5/22/2024 Prepaid Price: $6,562.50 
Service Plan Payment Terms: [8]Prepay 0Annual 0Financing: 

NOTE: Software Support Services commence when Equipment is shipped from supplier/distributor. 

TERMINATION PRICING ADJUSTMENTS: If Customer terminates Manufacturer-Provided Maintenance Service in whole or in part, the remaining 
unused portion of the maintenance fees is non-refundable, either by way of cash or credits. 

Remittance for invoices rendered by AT&T Global Services for Service Plans should be to AT&T Global Services. 

Attachments: 

1. Statements of Work e.g. SOW, SCOW, PIG 

2. Bill of Materials for Equipment and Services 

3. Invoicing Schedule and Payment Terms 

4. Implementation Timeline 

5. Certificate of Acceptance 

6. Other: ._f ___ _. 

Public Safety UA Pricing Schedule 
V. 10/16/14 

D 
D 
D 
D 

AT & T and Customer Confldenlial lnfonnation Page 8 of 10 

1b 



Sub-Rider B3 -AT&T 911 Call Handling Equipment and Services 

II. Special Terms and Conditions for PSAP- LAN Configurations or Installations 

CUSTOMER WARRANTS TO AT&T AND ALL 911 EMERGENCY SERVICE USERS THAT THE 911 EQUIPMENT AND/OR SERVICES BEING 
PROVIDED HEREUNDER, OR PREVIOUSLY SUPPLIED BY AT&T, IS NOT CONNECTED AND WILL NOT BE CONNECTED TO ANY LOCAL 
AREA NETWORK ("LAN") OR ANY OTHER COMPUTER NETWORK OUTSIDE OF AT&T'S CONTROL, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION THE 
NATIONAL CRIME INFORMATION CENTER NETWORK ("CIC") OR SIMILAR NETWORK; PROVIDED, HOWEVER, THAT CUSTOMER MAY 
CONNECT SAID EQUIPMENT AND/OR SERVICES TO THE CIC OR SIMILAR NETWORK IF AND ONLY IF SUCH CONNECTION IS EXPRESSLY 
APPROVED IN WRITING BY AT&T, WHICH APPROVAL SHALL BE IN AT&T'S SOLE DISCRETION. AT&T RELIES ON THIS REPRESENTATION 
BY CUSTOMER IN AGREEING TO INSTALL AND/OR MAINTAIN SAID EQUIPMENT AND ALL SERVICES THEREON. 

AT&T MAINTAINS A STRICT POLICY ("PSAP NETWORK SECURITY POLICY") THAT IT WILL INSTALL 911 EQUIPMENT ONLY IN A SECURE 
PSAP LAN, AND ONLY WHERE SUCH LANS ARE NOT CONNECTED TO ANY OTHER COMPUTER NETWORK OUTSIDE OF AT& T'S CONTROL. 
AT&T WILL NOT INSTALL OR TERMINATE A PSAP LAN TO A FIREWALL. AT&T WILL IDENTIFY THE DEMARCATION POINT FOR THE PSAP 
LAN, BEYOND WHICH CUSTOMER AGREES THAT AT&T IS NOT RESPONSIBLE. IN THE EVENT CUSTOMER CONNECTS ITS PSAP LAN TO 
ANY OTHER COMPUTER NETWORK, CONTRARY TO AT&T'S EXPRESS PSAP NETWORK SECURITY POLICY (WHICH CUSTOMER 
ACKNOWLEDGES IT HAS RECEIVED AND READ), AND THE PSAP LAN IS INFECTED OR DAMAGED AS A RESULT OF SUCH ACTIONS, THEN 
ALL WARRANTIES, AND MAINTENANCE AND SERVICE PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE NULL AND VOID AND AT&T 
DISCLAIMS ANY LIABILITY WHATSOEVER RELATING TO ANY PSAP LAN WHICH CUSTOMER OR ITS AGENTS CONNECT TO ANY OTHER 
COMPUTER NETWORK CONTRARY TO THE PSAP NETWORK SECURITY POLICY. 

UNDER SUCH CIRCUMSTANCES, AT&T WILL PROVIDE REPAIR SERVICES FOR THE PSAP LAN AT CUSTOMER'S REQUEST, WHICH WILL 
BE BILLED ON A TIME AND MATERIALS BASIS AT AT&T'S THEN-PREVAILING SERVICES RATES. CUSTOMER FURTHER AGREES TO 
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD AT&T HARMLESS FOR ANY DAMAGES TO OR CLAIMS BY ANY THIRD PARTY AGAINST AT&T WHICH ARISE IN 
WHOLE OR IN PART FROM CUSTOMER'S CONNECTION OF THE 911 EQUIPMENT AND/OR SERVICES BEING PROVIDED HEREUNDER TO 
ANY LAN OR ANY OTHER COMPUTER NETWORK OUTSIDE OF AT&T'S CONTROL, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION THE NATIONAL CIC. 

Public Safety UA Pricing Schedule 
V. 10/16114 

AT&T and Customer Confidential Information Page 10 of 10 



BILL NO. INTRODUCED BY ________ _ ----------

ORDINANCE NO. --- --------

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2023 BUDGET OF THE 
CITY OF WASHINGTON, MISSOURI FOR CONSTRUCTION 
OF THE EAST-WEST PARKWAY PROJECT 

Be It Ordained by the Council of the City of Washington, Missouri, as follows: 

SECTION 1: This ordinance shall amend the 2023 Budget as follows: 

Transportation Sales Tax Fund 261--Increase of $250,000.00 for East-West Parkway 

Construction Services (261-18-000-541101 Street Improvements Program). 

Storm Water Improvement Fund 250--Increase of $150,000 for East-West Parkway 

Construction Services (250-40-000-541107 Stonnwater Improvements). 

SECTION 2: This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after 

its passage and approval. 

Passed: ----------

ATTEST: - --------- President of City Council 

Approved: ________ _ 

ATTEST: --------
Mayor of Washington, Missouri 



405 Jefferson Street, Washington, MO 63090 

August 14, 2023 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Washington 
Washington, MO 63090 

RE: East-West Parkway Budget Amendment 

Dear Mayor and City Council Members: 

636-390-1010 www.washmo.gov 

The following is pertinent information to the subject request. 

Description: 
An agreement with Northern Star Homes, LLC for the purchasing of property for the East-West 
Parkway was previously approved by Council. Within that agreement was the option for Northern 
Star Homes, LLC to complete the construction of the East-West Parkway roadway. The Contractor has 
supplied unit costs that have been approved by City staff. 

It was previously discussed at Council on May 15th that the $700,000 budgeted for the Earth Crest 
Extension would be used to fund the East-West Parkway since a deal could not be reached with the 
property owner at that location. Enclosed you will find an ordinance that would amend the 2023 
Budget to cover the additional costs of construction. 

Breakdown of East-West Parkway Costs: 

Purchase of property/right-of-way 
Roadway design 
Roadway Construction 
Total 

Budget Amendment: 

Transportation Sales Tax: 
Additional Transportation Sales Tax: 
Additional Stormwater Fund: 
Total: 

$351,200 
$39,435 
$663,043 
$1,053,678 

$700,000 (Original Earth Crest Extension) 
$250,000 
$150,000 
$1,100,000 

1c 



Budget Information: 
The project will be paid for out of two budgeted funding sources: Transportation Sales Tax, 
Stormwater fund. 

Approving this amendment would require a $250,000 Budget Amendment increase to the 
Transportation Sales Tax Fund and a $150,000 Budget Amendment increase to the Stormwater 
Fund. 

This project is anticipated to be completed this fall and approving this project is recommended. 

As always, if you have any questions, concerns or would like additional information, please feel free 
to contact me. 

Respectfully, 

Charles Stankovic, PE 
Interim City Engineer 

t 



BILL NO. _ _______ _ INTRODUCED BY _ _______ _ 

ORDINANCE NO. -----------

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE 
EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT AGREEMENT BY AND 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF WASHINGTON, MISSOURI AND K.J 
UNNERSTALL CONSTRUCTION COMPANY FOR THE 
SECOND STREET IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT AND AMEND 
THE 2023 BUDQET 

Be It Ordained by the Council of the City of Washington, Missouri, as follows: 

SECTION l: The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute a Contract 

Agreement by and between the City of Washington, Missouri and K.J. Unnerstall 

Construction Company for the Second Street Improvements Project. A copy of the 

agreement is attached and is marked as Exhibit A. 

SECTION 2: This ordinance shall amend the 2023 Budget as follows: 

Transportation Sales Tax Fund 261-- Increase of $35,000.00 for Second Street 

Improvements Project Construction Services (261-18-000-541 l 02 Street Reconstruction 

Program). 

SECTION 3: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed. 

SECTION 4: This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after 

its passage and approval. 

Passed: ----------

ATTEST: --------- President of City Council 

Approved: ________ _ 

ATTEST: ---------
Mayor of Washington, Missouri 



Exhibit A 
CONTRACT AGREEMENT 

SECOND STREET IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this day of , 
2023, by and between the CITY OF WASHINGTON, MISSOURI, party of the first part; 
hereinafter termed the "City", and K.l. Unnerstall Construction Company, party of 
the second part, hereinafter termed in this agreement as the "Contractor". 

WITNESSETH: 

THAT WHEREAS, the City has caused to be prepared specifications and other 
contract documents for the work herein described, and has approved and adopted 
these contract documents and has invited proposals for the furnishing of materials, 
labor and equipment for, and in connection with, the construction of improvements in 
accordance with the terms of this contract; and, 

WHEREAS, the Contractor, in response to the invitation, submitted to the City in the 
manner and at the time specified, a proposal in accordance with the terms of the 
contract; and, 

WHEREAS, the City has opened, examined and canvassed the proposals submitted, 
and as a result of such canvass, has determined and declared the Contractor to be the 
lowest and best bidder for constructing said improvements, and has duly awarded to 
the said Contractor contract therefore, for the sum or sums named in the proposal 
attached to and made a part of this contract; 

NOW THEREFORE, THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH, that the parties to these 
presents, in consideration of the compensation to be paid the Contractor, and of the 
mutual agreements herein contained, have agreed and hereby agree the City for itself, 
and its successors and the Contractor for itself, himself, or themselves, its, his or their 
successors and assigns, to its, his or their executors and administrators, as follows: 

ARTICLE I: That the Contractor will furnish at his own cost and expense, all labor, 
tools, equipment and materials required, and construct and complete in a good first 
class and workmanlike manner, the work as designated, described and required by the 
plan, specifications and proposals for construction of the improvement, all in 
accordance with the specifications, general conditions, supplementary conditions, 
instructions to bidders, proposal, and other specified documents, all of which contract 
documents from the contract, and are as fully a part thereof as if repeated verbatim 
herein; all work to be done under the direct supervision, and to the entire satisfaction 
of the City. 

Contractor shall provide (a) a ten-hour Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration (OSHA) construction safety program for its employees working onsite on 
the project. The program shall include a course in construction safety and health 

1 



approved by OSHA or a similar program approved by the Missouri Department of Labor 
and Industrial Relations which is at least as stringent as an approved OSHA program. 
All employees working on the project are required to complete the program within sixty 
(60) days of beginning work on the construction project. (b) Any employee found on 
the worksite subject to this section without documentation of the successful completion 
of the course required under subsection (a) shall be afforded 20 days to produce such 
documentation before being subject to removal from the project. (c) Contractor shall 
require all onsite employees of any subcontractors to complete the ten-hour training 
program required under subsection (a). (d) Pursuant to Sec. 272.675 RSMo., 
Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty to the City $2,500.00 plus $100.00 for each 
employee employed by Contractor or subcontractor, for each calendar day, or portion 
thereof, such employee is employed without the required training. The penalty shall 
not begin to accrue until the time periods in subsections (a) and (b) have elapsed. City 
shall withhold and retain from the amount due Contractor under this contract, all sums 
and amounts due and owing City as a result of any violation of this section. 

ARTICLE II: Specifically, the Contractor shall comply in all respects with the 
Anti-Discrimination Provisions. 

ARTICLE III: In accordance with the provisions of Section 34.600 RSMo. the 
Contractor shall, upon execution of the Contract, execute and deliver to the City an 
affidavit in the form marked Affidavit of Compliance with Section 34.600 RSMo 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. Failure to provide the affidavit 
and comply with the provisions of Section 34.600 RSMo shall render the Contract void. 

ARTICLE IV: That the Contractor shall be held to comply with all requirements of 
the Prevailing Wage Law of the State of Missouri, and shall forfeit as a penalty to the 
state, county, city and county, city, town, district, or other political subdivision on 
whose behalf the contract is made or awarded, one-hundred dollars ($100.00) for each 
workman employed, for each working day, or portion thereof, such workman is paid 
less than the said stipulated rates for any work done under this contract, by him or by 
any subcontractor under him. 

ARTICLE V: Contractor agrees to comply with Missouri Revised Statute Section 
285.530.1 in that it shall not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to 
employ an unauthorized alien to perform work within the State of Missouri. As a 
condition for the award of this contract, the Contractor shall, by sworn affidavit, and 
provision of documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work 
authorization program with respect to the employees working in connection with the 
contracted services. The Contractor shall also sign the affidavit, attached hereto and 
made a part of this contract, affirming that it does not knowingly employ any person 
who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the contracted services. Contractor 
shall require each subcontractor to affirmatively state in its contract with Contractor 
that the subcontractor shall not knowingly employ, hire for employment or continue to 
employ an unauthorized alien to perform work within the State of Missouri and shall not 
henceforth do so. Alternatively, Contractor shall require each subcontractor to provide 
Contractor with a sworn affidavit under the penalty of perjury attesting to the fact that 

2 

1ci 



the subcontractor's employees are lawfully present in the United States. 

ARTICLE VI: TIME OF COMPLETION 
All time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence. The Work to be 
performed under the Contract shall commence within seven (7) consecutive calendar 
days of the date of the written Notice to Proceed from the Owner to the Contractor, and 
shall be completed within 120 consecutive calendar days from and including the date of 
said written Notice to Proceed, subject to adjustments of this Contract Time as provided 
in the Contract Documents. 
Contractor shall pay, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, the sum of 
$950.00 for each consecutive calendar day after the Final Completion date that the 
Work has not been completed. The total amount so payable to the Owner as liquidated 
damages may be deducted from any sums due or to become due to Contractor from 
Owner. 
The City of Washington anticipates issuing notice to proceed in the January of 2024. 

ARTICLE VII: That the City will pay the Contractor for the performance of this 
Contract and the Contractor will accept in full compensation therefore, the sum of 
Eight Hundred Fifty-Nine Thousand Fifty-Seven Dollars and Sixty Cents 
{$859,057.60), for all work covered in the Base Proposal Bid. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed this Agreement the day 
and year first above written. 

K.J. UNNERSTALL 
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 

By: ___________ _ 

Contractor 

Title 

3 

CITY OF WASHINGTON 
COUNTY OF FRANKLIN 
STATE OF MISSOURI 

Mayor 

City Clerk 

16.. 



405 Jefferson Street, Washington, MO 63090 636-390-1080 www.washmo.gov 

August 11, 2023 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Washington 
405 Jefferson Street 
Washington, MO 63090 

RE: Second Street Improvements Project 
Construction Bids and Contract Approval 

Honorable Mayor and City Council, 

Description: 
Second Street between Cedar Street and Jefferson Street will be reconstructed including improvements 
to sidewalks, curb & gutter, brick paver crosswalks, storm water, and pavement. 
The project has 120 calendar days allotted for construction with an anticipated construction start date 
of January 2024. 

Bid information : 
The bids received are as follows: 

Budget Information: 

K.J. Unnerstall Construction Co.: 

Sweetens Concrete Services: 
Lamke Trenching & Excavating, Inc.: 
Engineering Estimate: 

$859,057.60 
$945,945.45 
$1,326,300.15 
$691,239.00* 

Approving this project will cost $859,057.60. The current Transportation Sales Tax budget for this fiscal 
year has $825,000.00. Approving this contract would require a $35,000 Budget Amendment. 

Staff is recommending accepting the bid from K.J. Unnerstall Construction Company for a contract 
amount of $859,057.60. 

As always, if you have any questions, concerns or would like additional information, please feel free to 
contact me. 

Respectfully, 

Charles Stankovic, PE 
Interim City Engineer 



BILL NO. INTRODUCED BY 

follows: 

--------- - ----------

ORDINANCE NO. -----------

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE 
EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT AGREEMENT BY AND 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF WASHINGTON, MISSOURI AND N.B. 
WEST CONTRACTING FOR THE WESTLINK DRIVE 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT STP-6400(627) 

Be It Ordained by the Council of the City of Washington, Missouri, as 

SECTION 1: The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute a 

Contract Agreement by and the City of Washington, Missouri and N.B. West Contracting 

for the Westlink Drive Improvement Project STP-6400(627). A copy of the agreement is 

attached and is marked as Exhibit A. Said execution is subject to approval by MoDOT. 

SECTION 2: The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and 

directed to execute said agreement, and to do all things necessary by the terms of said 

agreement. 

SECTION 3: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith 

are hereby repealed. 

SECTION 4: This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from 

and after its passage and approval. 

Passed: -----------

ATTEST: ---------- President of City Council 

Approved: ________ _ 

ATTEST: ----------
Mayor of Washington, Missouri 

1e. 



Exhibit A 

CONTRACT AGREEMENT 
WESTLINK DRIVE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this day of , 
2023, by and between the CITY OF WASHINGTON, MISSOURI, party of the first part; 
hereinafter termed the "City", and N.B. West Contracting, party of the second part, 
hereinafter termed in this agreement as the "Contractor". 

WITNESSETH: 

THAT WHEREAS, the City has caused to be prepared specifications and other 
contract documents for the work herein described, and has approved and adopted 
these contract documents and has invited proposals for the furnishing of materials, 
labor and equipment for, and in connection with, the construction of improvements in 
accordance with the terms of this contract; and, 

WHEREAS, the Contractor, in response to the invitation, submitted to the City in the 
manner and at the time specified, a proposal in accordance with the terms of the 
contract; and, 

WHEREAS, the City has opened, examined and canvassed the proposals submitted, 
and as a result of such canvass, has determined and declared the Contractor to be the 
lowest and best bidder for constructing said improvements, and has duly awarded to 
the said Contractor contract therefore, for the sum or sums named in the proposal 
attached to and made a part of this contract; 

NOW THEREFORE, THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH, that the parties to these 
presents, in consideration of the compensation to be paid the Contractor, and of the 
mutual agreements herein contained, have agreed and hereby agree the City for itself, 
and its successors and the Contractor for itself, himself, or themselves, its, his or their 
successors and assigns, to its, his or their executors and administrators, as follows: 

ARTICLE I: That the Contractor will furnish at his own cost and expense, all labor, 
tools, equipment and materials required, and construct and complete in a good first 
class and workmanlike manner, the work as designated, described and required by the 
plan, specifications and proposals for construction of the improvement, all in 
accordance with the specifications, general conditions, supplementary conditions, 
instructions to bidders, proposal, and other specified documents, all of which contract 
documents from the contract, and are as fully a part thereof as if repeated verbatim 
herein; all work to be done under the direct supervision, and to the entire satisfaction 
of the City. 

Contractor shall provide (a) a ten-hour Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration (OSHA) construction safety program for its employees working onsite on 

1e 



the project. The program shall include a course in construction safety and health 
approved by OSHA or a similar program approved by the Missouri Department of Labor 
and Industrial Relations which is at least as stringent as an approved OSHA program. 
All employees working on the project are required to complete the program within sixty 
(60) days of beginning work on the construction project. (b) Any employee found on 
the worksite subject to this section without documentation of the successful completion 
of the course required under subsection (a) shall be afforded 20 days to produce such 
documentation before being subject to removal from the project. ( c) Contractor shall 
require all onsite employees of any subcontractors to complete the ten-hour training 
program required under subsection (a). (d) Pursuant to Sec. 272.675 RSMo., 
Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty to the City $2,500.00 plus $100.00 for each 
employee employed by Contractor or subcontractor, for each calendar day, or portion 
thereof, such employee is employed without the required training. The penalty shall 
not begin to accrue until the time periods in subsections (a) and (b) have elapsed. City 
shall withhold and retain from the amount due Contractor under this contract, all sums 
and amounts due and owing City as a result of any violation of this section. 

ARTICLE II: Specifically, the Contractor shall comply in all respects with the 
Anti-Discrimination Provisions. 

ARTICLE III: That the Contractor shall be held to comply with all requirements of 
the Prevailing Wage Law of the State of Missouri, and shall forfeit as a penalty to the 
state, county, city and county, city, town, district, or other political subdivision on 
whose behalf the contract is made or awarded, one-hundred dollars ($100.00) for each 
workman employed, for each working day, or portion thereof, such workman is paid 
less than the said stipulated rates for any work done under this contract, by him or by 
any subcontractor under him. 

ARTICLE IV: Contractor agrees to comply with Missouri Revised Statute Section 
285.530.1 in that it shall not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to 
employ an unauthorized alien to perform work within the State of Missouri. As a 
condition for the award of this contract, the Contractor shall, by sworn affidavit, and 
provision of documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work 
authorization program with respect to the employees working in connection with the 
contracted services. The Contractor shall also sign the affidavit, attached hereto and 
made a part of this contract, affirming that it does not knowingly employ any person 
who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the contracted services. Contractor 
shall require each subcontractor to affirmatively state in its contract with Contractor 
that the subcontractor shall not knowingly employ, hire for employment or continue to 
employ an unauthorized alien to perform work within the State of Missouri and shall not 
henceforth do so. Alternatively, Contractor shall require each subcontractor to provide 
Contractor with a sworn affidavit under the penalty of perjury attesting to the fact that 
the subcontractor's employees are lawfully present in the United States. 

1e 



ARTICLE V: That the City will pay the Contractor for the performance of this 
Contract and the Contractor will accept in full compensation therefore, the sum of 
Three Hundred Eighty-Nine Thousand Two Hundred Eighty-Three dollars and Thirty
Five cents ($389,283.35), for all work covered in the Base Proposal Bid. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed this Agreement the 
day and year first above written. 

CITY OF WASHINGTON 
COUNTY OF FRANKLIN 
STATE OF MISSOURI 

By: ____ ______ _ 

Mayor 

City Clerk 

N.B. West Contracting 

Contractor 

Title 

1e. 



405 Jefferson Street, Washington, MO 63090 

August 16, 2023 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
405 Jefferson Street 
Washington, MO 63090 

RE: Westlink Drive Improvement Project, STP-6400(627} 

Dear Mayor and City Council Members: 

636-390-1010 www.washmo.gov 

On August 15, 2023 the City received the following bids for this project: 

N.B. West Contracting 
Gershenson Construction Co. Inc. 
Ford Asphalt Company, LLC 

Engineer's Estimate 

$389,283.35 
$447,195.75 
$475,000.00 

$541,396.17 

Find in this packet an ordinance for your consideration that would allow the City to enter into a 
contract with N.B. West Contracting in the amount of $389,283.35. This award is contingent on 
MoDOT's concurrence to award which is anticipated in September. The contractor has 60 
calendar days once Notice to Proceed has been issued to complete the project. This project 
includes edge milling on Westlink Drive for a two inch asphalt overlay from Bluff Road to Main 
Street with striping, and new right turn lane reconstruction at Westlink Drive on to Bluff Road. 

The City has budgeted $437,750.00 to construct this project. The federal grant will reimburse 
80% of the total construction costs. This ordinance is contingent upon Mo DOT approval. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Charles Stankovic, P.E. 
Interim City Engineer 



BILL NO. ---------- INTRODUCED BY _____ ___ _ 

ORDINANCE NO. ------------

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL AND 
ACCEPTANCE OF MINIMUM IMPROVEMENTS FOR 
MAINTENANCE FOR RIVER PLACE SUBDIVISION PLAT II, 
IN THE CITY OF WASHINGTON, FRANKLIN COUNTY, 
MISSOURI 

WHEREAS, "River Place Subdivision Plat II", was approved by the City Council 

on July 18, 2022, Ordinance No. 22-13598; and 

WHEREAS, the minimum improvements have now been constructed, inspected, 

and can be accepted by the City of Washington, Missouri. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Washington, Missouri, as follows: 

SECTION 1: The City's requirements have been met, the City of Washington, 

Missouri, accepts the storm sewers, sanitary sewers, and water for maintenance within 

said subdivision. 

SECTION 2: The Council hereby authorizes the release of all remaining escrows 

funds previously deposited by the developer to guarantee the installation of such storm 

sewers, storm water controls, sanitary sewers, and water. 

SECTION 3: The applicant shall execute the Maintenance Bond Contract 

marked Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference and receipt by 

the City of Washington, Missouri of a Maintenance Bond Contract for said minimum 

improvements. 



SECTION 4: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the 

date of its passage and approval. 

SECTION 5: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with any of the 

provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 

Passed: -----------

ATTEST: ---------- President of City Council 

Approved: _ ________ _ 

ATTEST: ----------
Mayor of Washington, Missouri 

1( 



Exhibit A 
MAINTENANCE BOND CONTRACT 

WHEREAS, the Code of the City of Washington, Missouri provides in Section 

410.025(L), that upon acceptance of minimum improvements within a subdivision by the 

City Council of the City of Washington, Missouri the subdivider shall execute a 

maintenance bond with sufficient sureties to ensure that all minimum improvements are 

installed properly and that such construction has been performed in a workmanlike 

manner; and 

WHEREAS, Section 410.025(L) provides that the maintenance bond shall remain 

in effect for a period of two (2) years from the date of acceptance of the minimum 

improvements and be in an amount equal to twenty percent (20%) of the estimated costs 

of the minimum improvements as determined by the City Engineer. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the acceptance of the minimum 

improvements by the City Council of the City of Washington, Missouri, serving "River 

Place Subdivision, Plat II", the undersigned hereby agrees to furnish the City of 

Washington, Missouri a maintenance bond in the amount of $4,386.60, binding the 

undersigned to the City of Washington, Missouri for two (2) years from the date of 

acceptance to indemnify the City of Washington, Missouri for all loss that the City of 

Washington, Missouri may sustain by reason of any defective materials or workmanship 

in the minimum improvements which become apparent during that two (2) year period. 

Owner/Subdivider/Divider/ Applicant 

Name & Title 

Company Name 

Dated this _____ day of ___________ ..., 2023. 

1f 



405 Jefferson Street, Washington, MO 63090 

August 7, 2023 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Washington 
405 Jefferson Street 
Washington, MO 63090 

RE : River Place Subdivision Plat II 
Acceptance of minimum improvements 

Honorable Mayor and City Council, 

The following is pertinent information to the subject request. 

Description: 

636-390-1080 www.washmo.gov 

The following ordinance will allow for the acceptance of minimum improvements by the City of 
Washington. The City will take over maintenance of the improvements. A 20% maintenance bond in 
the amount of $4,386.60 is included. 

As always, if you have any questions, concerns or would like additional information, please feel free to 
contact me. 

Respectfully, 

Charles Stankovic, PE 
Interim City Engineer 

1~ 



BILL NO. INTRODUCED BY ---------- ----------

ORDINANCE NO. - - ----- - - ---

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE 
EXECUTION OF A RESIDENTIAL SALE CONTRACT AND 
AMENDMENT TO SALE CONTRACT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF WASHINGTON, MISSOURI AND MYLES 
BRANCH 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Washington, Missouri, as 

follows: 

SECTION 1: The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute a 

Residential Sale Contract and Amendment to Sale Contract by and between the City of 

Washington, Missouri and Myles Branch, a copy of which is marked Exhibit A and is 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, and such other documents, 

certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply 

with the intent of this Ordinance, for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City. 

The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City 

to the said Sale Contract and Amendment and such other documents, certificates and 

instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of 

this Ordinance. 

SECTION 2: The City shall, and the officials, agents and employees of the City 

are hereby authorized and directed to, take such further action, and execute and deliver 

such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to 

carry out and comply with the intent of this Ordinance. 

23709494.v2 

1'3 



SECTION 3: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed. 

SECTION 4: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and approval. 

Passed: -----------

ATTEST: 
President of City Council 

Approved: _________ _ 

ATTEST: ----------
Mayor of Washington, Missouri 

23709494.v2 



This document has legal consequences. 
If you do not understand it, consult your attorney. 
The text of this form may not be altered in any manner 
without written acknowledgement of all parties. 

Form # 2090 07 /23 

Exhibit A 
© ST. LOUIS REAL TORS® 

Approved by Counsel for St. Louis REALTORS® and by the Bar 
Association of Metropolitan St. Louis. To be used exclusively by 

REAL TOR® members of St. Louis REALTORS®, those issued a use 
license by St. Louis REAL TORS®, and members of the Bar Association 

211 99002 of Metropolitan St. Louis. 

RESIDENTIAL SALE CONTRACT 

DATE: August 21 , 2023 

1 1. PARTIES AND PROPERTY. 
2 Myles Branch , Buyer(s), agrees to purchase from the 
3 undersigned Seller, the following real property in the municipality of (if incorporated) Washington , County of 
4 Franklin Missouri (legal description on Seller's title to govern) being all the real property 
5 Seller owns at said address: 302 Lafayette Street. Washington, Missouri 63090 

6 2. INCLUSIONS AND EXCLUSIONS. 
7 Note: This contract, not the Seller's Disclosure Statement, the MLS or other promotional material, provides for what is to be 
8 included in this sale. To avoid any misunderstanding, the parties are urged to list as "included" or "excluded" any items which 
9 may be subject to question or unclear as to being considered a "fixture" such as electronic equipment. The purchase price includes 

IO all existing improvements on the property (if any) and appurtenances, fixtures and equipment (which Seller guarantees to 
11 own free and clear) including: 

12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 

28 

29 
30 

31 

32 
33 

34 

35 

36 

37 

38 

39 

Access to Property 
All Keys & Remote Entry Controls 
Electric Garage Door Openers & Controls 

Exterior 
Exterior Lighting, Landscaping & 

Mailbox 
Invisible Pet Fence Systems & Collars 

System & Utilities 
Built-in Heating, Ventilating & 
Cooling Systems 

Security & Alarm Systems 
Radiator Shields 
Built-in Plumbing Systems & Fixtures 

Water Softeners & Sump Pump 
All Window Air Conditioning Units 
Central Vacuum System & Attachments 

Kitchen/Cooking Related 
Dishwashers & Trash Compactors 
Ovens/Ranges/Stoves and Attachments 

Built-in Microwave Ovens 
Attached Gas Fired Barbecue Grills 

Electrica l, Lighting & TV Related 
All Lighting Fixtures & Ceiling Fans 

Attached TV Antennas 

Attached TV Mounts only 
Flush Mounted Speakers 

Fire/Fireplace Related 
Artificial Fireplace Logs 
Attached Fireplace Equipment & Doors 

Flooring Related 
Attached Floor Coverings 

Window/Wall Related 
Curtain /Drapery Hardware only 
Blinds, Shades, Shutters & Awnings 

Attached Mirrors & All Bathroom Mirrors 
Attached Shelving/Closet Organizers 

Screens & Storm Windows 

Miscellaneous 
All Articles Now Provided For Tenant Use 
Remotes for All Included Items 

In addition, the following items are included: -'N-'=/A-'-----------------------------

The following items are excluded: ...,.N~/~A~--------------------------------

3. PURCHASE PRICE. 
$~2~9~5~,~o~o~o~-- is the total purchase price to be paid as fo llows: 

$_5~,~0_0_0 ____ eamest money ($0 if none stated) (check one) a received for delivery to OR • to be delivered to 

U.S. Title 1381 Hi h St. Ste. 207. Was hi ton MO 63090 escrow agent within 

5 days (3 days if none stated) after "Acceptance Deadline" date. Selling broker to be 

escrow agent if none specified above. 

$ 0 additional earnest money ($0 if none stated) to be delivered to escrow agent within N/A days 

after the "Acceptance Deadline" date (1 S days if none stated) or N/A 
40 The balance, including any adjustments set forth in this contract, less any amount of Seller financing or of Seller's loan being 
4 1 assumed as stipulated in this contract, if applicable, is to be paid at Closing by cashier's check, wire transfer or any form acceptable 
42 to Closing agent. 

Page I of9 
___ / ___ Initials BUYER and SELLER acknowledge they have read this page ___ / __ _ 
BUYER BUYER SELLER SELLER 



43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 
51 
52 
53 
54 
55 
56 
57 
58 
59 
60 
61 
62 
63 
64 

65 
66 
67 
68 
69 

21199002 

4. METHOD OF FINANCING. 
Note: If Buyer's lender or Closing agent cannot fulfill their obligations under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and 
Consumer Protection Act and the regulations promulgated by the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau, it may be 
necessary for the Buyer to request Seller to agree to an extension of the Closing Date. 

JI Not Contingent Upon Financing. This contract is not contingent upon financing; however, Buyer reserves the right to finance 
any portion of the purchase price. 

D Contingent Upon Financing. Buyer agrees to do all things necessary, including, but not limited to the execution of a loan 
application and other instruments, the payment to the lender of the credit report, appraisal and any other required fees, and to 
otherwise cooperate fully in order to obtain the financing described below. If Buyer does not deliver written notice, provided 
by Buyer's lender, to Seller or listing broker, of Buyer's inability to obtain a loan approval on the terms described below on or 
before (or 30 days after the "Acceptance Deadline" date if none stated) (the Loan 
Contingency Date) then this condition shall be deemed waived and Buyer's performance under this contract shall thereafter 
not be conditioned upon Buyer's obtaining financing. lflender will not give Buyer such written notice then Buyer may directly 
notify Seller or listing broker (on or before the Loan Contingency Date) by providing a notarized affidavit that Buyer has 
complied with all of the terms of this paragraph and that despite request, Buyer was unable to obtain such written notice from 
lender. If Buyer has complied with the terms of this paragraph and has provided timely written notice to Seller or listing broker 
of Buyer's inability to obtain the loan approval, then this contract shall be terminated with earnest money to be returned to 
Buyer, subject to paragraph 12. 
Note: If Loan Contingency Date passes without written notice as outlined above, Buyer remains obligated under this 
contract. Therefore, Buyer should be certain that he will have the funds to close. If Buyer's performance under this 
contract is to be independently conditioned upon the property appraising at a specified value, then Buyer should 
complete and attach to this contract an appropriate appraisal rider. 

Loan amount: ___________ _ __ % of the purchase price OR $ _______________ _ 

Initial interest rate not to exceed: %. Amortization term: ------------- years. 

Other terms (none if blank): --- ----------------- --------------
LOAN TYPE: (Check applicable) D Conventional D FHA D VA 
RATE TYPE: (Check applicable) D Fixed Rate D Adjustable Rate 

D Other: --------------
0 Other: 

70 D Seller agrees to pay, at Closing, a cost not to exceed % of purchase price OR $_,O.__ ___________ _ 
71 ($0 if none stated) towards Buyer's closing costs, prepaids, points and other fees allowed by lender. 

72 S. CLOSING AND POSSESSION. 
73 Note: All parties are encouraged to use the same title company to reduce risk. If Seller does not close at the same title 
74 company as Buyer, or Seller's choice of title company does not have a common underwriter with Buyer's title company, 
75 then Seller will be required to sign a Notice of Closing or Settlement Risk acknowledging that their settlement funds are 
76 not protected by the title insurance underwriter. 
77 The "Closing" is the exchange of the Seller's deed for the total purchase price. Seller shall be deemed to have received funds when 
7 funds are received by Seller or Seller's title company. The Closing of this sale shall take place on 
79 September 29, 2023 or any other date that both parties agree in writing. Buyer will close at 
80 U.S. Title . the title company which provides title insurance. Regardless of who closes 
81 for Buyer, Seller may close at the title company of Seller's choice. Title will pass when the sale is closed. Seller to deliver 
2 possession of the property and keys to Buyer no later than (check one only):Jil Closing OR D m (time) of 

8J (date) but in no event prior to Closing as defined above. All parties agree to sign Closing documents 
84 at a time that facilitates this possession. Note: If possession is to be delivered on a day other than Closing, as defined above, 
85 parties should complete the appropriate rider. Deed as directed by Buyer. Except for tenants lawfully in possession, Seller 
86 warrants that the property will be vacant and free of personal property (except as otherwise provided herein) and debris, at time of 
87 possession and delivered to Buyer in its same condition (together with any improvements or repairs required by this contract), 
88 ordinary wear and tear excepted, as it was on the date of this contract. Buyers should change locks and codes following possession. 
89 Buyer and Seller authorize title company and/or Closing agent to release to broker(s) signed copies of the Closing statements. 
90 Note: Parties are cautioned to always call to confirm instructions before sending any funds via wire transfer. 

9 l 6. RIDERS. The following riders or supplements are attached hereto and incorporated herein as a part of this contract. 
92 a Appraisal Rider (Form #2046) a Possession by Buyer Prior to Closing (Form #2094) 
93 a Back-Up Contract (Form #2 120) a Possession by Seller After Closing (Form #2095) 
94 a Contingency for Sale and Closing of Buyer's Property (Form #2092) a Rental Property Rider (Form #2096) 
95 a Contingency for Closing of Buyer's Property (Form #2092a) a Residential Lease (Form #2118) 
96 a Condominiums, Villas or Similar Lifestyle Communities (Form #2059) a Review of Indentures/Restrictive Covenants (Form #2143) 
97 a FHA Loan Provision Rider (Form #2 l35fua) a VA Loan Provision Rider (Form #2 l 35va) 

98 ,a Other: Amendment to Sale Contract a Other:--- - - - ----------

Page 2 of9 
___ / ___ Initials BUYER and SELLER acknowledge they have read this page _ __ / __ _ 
BUYER BUYER SELLER SELLER 



21199002 

99 7. FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE. 
100 Although one or more of the Brokers may be a member of a franchise, the franchisor is not responsible for the acts of said 
101 Broker(s). 

102 8. TITLE AND SURVEY. 
103 Seller shall transfer title to Buyer by general warranty deed (or fiduciary deed, where applicable), subject to the following: 
104 a) zoning regulations; b) leases and occupancy of tenants existing on the date contract is executed by Buyer and disclosed to Buyer 
105 in writing before execution of contract by Buyer; c) general taxes payable in the current year and thereafter; d) any lien or 
106 encumbrance created by or assumed by Buyer in writing or any easement accepted by Buyer in writing; e) subdivision, use and 
107 other restrictions, rights of way and utility easements, all ofrecord, which do not adversely affect the use of the property as it exists 
108 for residential purposes at the time of the contract. 
109 Check applicable box (whether "Seller to Order, Provide and Purchase Title" or "Buyer to Order, Provide and Purchase 
110 Title"). 
111 D Seller to Order, Provide and Purchase Title. Note: Any Seller paid title costs set forth below are in addition to any 
112 Seller paid costs in Paragraph 4. 
113 Not later than days (5 days ifnone stated) after the "Acceptance Deadline" date, Seller will order a commitment for 
114 title insurance to be provided to the Buyer for both an Owner's policy of title insurance and for a lender's policy of title insurance 
115 (if required by lender) in the latest ALT A form including mechanics lien coverage from the title company selected in paragraph 
116 5. Seller and Buyer authorize and direct the title company to furnish this commitment to the selling and listing broker. Seller 
117 shall pay for the title insurance (including title premium and title service charges), at Closing, at a cost not to exceed 
118 $ . Buyer to pay title cost exceeding this amount. 
119 ~ Buyer to Order, Provide and Purchase Title. 
120 Buyer may, at Buyer's option and expense, order a title examination and commitment to issue an Owner's and/or lender's policy 
121 of title insurance in the latest ALT A form including mechanics lien coverage from the title company specified in paragraph 5. 
122 Note: This should be ordered promptly after contract acceptance in order to allow sufficient time to obtain and review 
123 documents, and, if necessary, object to defects that may be discovered. 
124 Buyer may, at Buyer's option and expense, order a Boundary Survey and Improvement Location ("stake survey") or a Surveyor's Real 
125 Property Report (SRPR) of the property to determine ifthere are any defects, encroachments, overlaps, boundary line or acreage 
126 discrepancies, or other matters that would be disclosed on a survey. 
127 Note: A "stake survey" is generally required in order to obtain full survey coverage in an Owner's policy of title insurance. 
128 A SRPR may or may not disclose all of the defects involving such matters as encroachments, overlaps, boundary line or 
129 acreage discrepancies. 
130 If any defects are discovered as a result of the title examination, title commitment, or the survey, and if Buyer chooses to act on this 
131 contingency, Buyer shall within 15 days (25 days if none stated) after the "Acceptance Deadline" date, furnish a 
132 copy of the document evidencing the defect to Seller or listing broker stating, in writing, any title or survey defects that are 1) 
133 unacceptable to Buyer; 2) not listed above; and 3) adversely affect the use of the property as it exists for residential purposes at the 
134 time of the contract. Failure by Seller or listing broker to receive such objections to title or survey within such time will constitute 
135 a waiver by Buyer of any objections to the title so long as Buyer is able to obtain at Closing, an Owner's title insurance policy in 
136 the latest ALT A form including mechanics lien coverage. If Buyer does timely object to any title or survey defects, Seller has five 
137 (5) days from receipt of Buyer's notice of objection by Seller or listing broker, to agree in writing to correct the defects prior to 
138 Closing at Seller's expense. If Seller does not so agree, this contract is terminated unless Buyer, within two (2) additional days, 
139 agrees in writing to accept the title and survey "as is". If the contract is terminated in accordance with the provisions of this paragraph, 
140 Buyer's earnest money is to be returned, subject to paragraph 12 and Seller agrees to reimburse Buyer's cost to pay for title, survey, 
141 inspection(s) and appraisal. Seller shall be responsible for clearing any defects that arise between the date of the contract acceptance 
142 and Closing. 
143 Note: Easements, subdivision indentures, and government regulations may affect Buyer's intended use of the property. 
144 Construction of improvements (for example: a room addition, fence or swimming pool), non-residential use of the property 
145 (for example: use of a room for a business), or the right to keep certain vehicles or animals on the property, all may be 
146 affected. Buyer is advised to review all easements, government regulations, and subdivision indentures before making an 
14 7 offer to purchase the property if he plans these or similar uses. If Buyer requires assistance in reviewing easements, surveys, 
148 indentures, or other matters affecting title or use of the property, Buyer should consult an attorney. 

149 9. ADJUSTMENTS AND CLOSING COSTS. 
150 Adjustments, charges, and Closing costs are agreed to be paid by the parties (subject to Rider #2135fha or #2135va and current 
151 FHA and VA regulations) as follows: 
152 Buyer shall pay for (where applicable): 
153 • hazard insurance premium(s) and flood insurance premium, ifrequired by lender; 
154 • survey and title company charges (for example: Closing, recording, escrow, wire and closing protection letter fees) customarily paid by 
155 Buyer, subject to paragraph 8; 
156 • any charges imposed by lender (for example: appraisal and credit report fees, loan discount points, loan origination fees, 
157 funding fees, and other loan expenses), unless specifically agreed to be paid by Seller; 

Page3of9 
___ / ___ Initials BUYER and SELLER acknowledge they have read this page ___ / __ _ 
BUYER BUYER SELLER SELLER 

19 



21199002 

158 • building, termite, and environmental inspections; 
159 • the fair market value of any heating oil or propane gas in tank(s) on the property at Closing, based on supplier' s current charges; 
160 • real estate compensation to broker per separate written agreement; 
161 • municipal occupancy permit; and 
162 • agreed upon repairs . 
163 Seller shall pay for (where applicable): 
164 • existing loans on property (if not assumed by Buyer); 
165 • any expenses of Buyer's loan agreed to in paragraph 4; 
166 • title company charges (for example: Closing, release, escrow, wire and closing protection letter fees) customarily paid by 
167 Seller, subject to paragraph 8; 
168 • municipal, Conservation District and fire district inspection fees; 
169 • special taxes and special assessments levied before Closing; 
170 • real estate compensation to broker per separate written agreement; Seller authorizes selling portion of commission to be paid 
171 directly to selling broker; and 
172 • agreed upon repairs. 
173 Buyer and Seller shall have prorated and adjusted between them on the basis of thirty (30) days to the month as of the date 
174 of Closing (Seller to pay for last day): 
175 • current rents whether collected or not by Seller (Seller to receive rent for day of Closing); rents which are delinquent over 
176 thirty (30) days to be collected by Seller and not adjusted; 
177 • general taxes (based on assessment and rate for current year, if both are available, otherwise based on previous year); 
178 • district improvement assessments for current year; Buyer to pay thereafter; 
179 • subdivision upkeep assessments and monthly condominium fee; 
180 • interest (when Buyer assumes existing loan); and 
181 • flat rate utility charges (including water, sewer, and trash). 

182 10. INSPECTIONS, DISCLAIMERS, AND WARRANTIES. 
183 Within days ( 10 days if none stated) after the "Acceptance Deadline" date (the "Inspection Period"), Buyer 
184 may purchase one or more written home inspection report(s) from any independent qualified inspector(s) of the property and 
185 improvements as deemed necessary by Buyer, including, but not limited to, environmental hazards; termite and wood-destroying 
186 insect infestation and damage; plumbing, including water, well , sewer, septic and waste-water treatment systems; roof and other 
187 structural improvements; heating and air conditioning systems and equipment; electrical systems and equipment; swimming pools 
188 and equipment; chimneys, flues and gas lines/fuel runs; basement leaks and exterior drainage; and mechanical equipment, including 
189 appliances. Discovery of an unsafe condition(s) may result in immediate shut off of one or more appliances or utilities. 
190 Buyer's Inspection Period will end upon the delivery of the Inspection Notice described below or the time period stated above, 
191 whichever occurs first. Failure by Buyer to purchase and perform an inspection within the time period stated above shall constitute 
192 a waiver and acceptance of any conditions an inspection would have disclosed. Buyer should contact law enforcement officials 
193 for information pertaining to whether registered sex offenders or other convicted criminals reside in the area. 
194 Within the Inspection Period, Buyer shall furnish a written Inspection Notice to Seller or listing broker stating one of the 
195 following: 
196 (1) Buyer is satisfied with the inspections. Delivery of inspection reports to Seller or listing broker is not required. If Seller or 
197 listing broker has not received the written Inspection Notice by the end of the Inspection Period, Buyer shall be deemed to be 
198 satisfied with the results of any inspections. 
199 (2) Buyer is terminating the contract, with earnest money to be returned to Buyer, subject to paragraph 12. In this case, Buyer shall 
200 have purchased one or more home inspection report(s) from an independent qualified inspector(s), as provided for above, which 
201 together cover the substantial structural elements and systems of the property. Buyer shall provide such report(s) to Seller or 
202 listing broker, ifrequested by Seller. 
203 (3) Buyer is willing to close upon satisfaction of the requirements set forth in the Inspection Notice which must be accompanied 
204 by a complete copy of the written inspection report(s), purchased by Buyer. The parties have a total of 1 O days (10 days 
205 ifnone stated) after date of Seller or listing broker' s receipt of the Inspection Notice (the "Resolution Period") to reach a written 
206 agreement as to the requirements set forth in the Inspection Notice, or as to an agreed upon monetary adjustment, or the contract 
207 is terminated, and earnest money deposit to be returned to Buyer, subject to paragraph 12. During the Resolution Period, either 
208 a written commitment by Seller to meet the requirements originally submitted by Buyer in the Inspection Notice, or a written commitment 
209 by Buyer to accept the property without such requirements, shall constitute an "agreement" for purposes of this paragraph even 
210 after earlier negotiation failed to produce an agreement. 
211 Buyer acknowledges: 1) that listing broker and selling broker do not have expertise in determining any defects that may be disclosed 
212 by any inspections; 2) that Buyer will not rely upon listing broker or selling broker in any way as to the selection of a particular company 
213 for any inspections, warranties, and services; 3) that any inspections, warranties, and services may be available from more than one 
214 company and that the determination to select a particular company and the completeness and satisfaction of any said inspection, 
215 warranty or service is the sole responsibility of Buyer; 4) that when choosing an inspector, warranty , service company, title 
216 company, lender, repair company, or any other service provider, Buyer should consider, but not be limited by, the existence of 
217 errors and omissions insurance, liability insurance, business and professional licensure, membership in professional associations 
218 and years of experience; 5) that there have been no warranties, express or implied, by Seller or real estate brokers. 

Page4of9 
___ / ___ Initials BUYER and SELLER acknowledge they have read this page / 
BUYER BUYER SELLER SELLER 



21199002 
219 Home Warranty (Check one): 
220 -' Buyer acknowledges that Seller is not providing a limited warranty or service agreement product as a part of this sale. 
221 Buyer may purchase one separately, if desired. 
222 CJ Seller agrees to purchase, on or before Closing, a limited warranty or service agreement at a cost not to exceed$ ______ _ 
223 and further described ______________________________________ ---' 

224 10a. INSURABILITY. 
225 This contract is conditioned upon Buyer's ability to obtain homeowner/hazard insurance for the property. If within 10 days 
226 (10 days if none stated) after the "Acceptance Deadline" date (the "Tnsurability Period"), Buyer does not deliver to Seller or Seller's 
227 broker a written notice from an insurance company of Buyer's inability to obtain homeowner/hazard insurance on the property, this 
228 condition shall be deemed waived and Buyer's performance under this contract shall thereafter not be conditioned upon Buyer's 
229 obtaining insurance. If Buyer has complied with the terms of this paragraph and has timely provided written notice to Seller of 
230 Buyer's inability to obtain such insurance, then this contract shall be terminated with earnest money to be returned to Buyer, subject 
231 to paragraph 12. Note: If an inspection by the Buyer's insurance company is required, it shall be completed prior to the 
232 expiration of the Insurability Period. If the Buyer is obtaining a loan as referenced in paragraph 4, Buyer should 
233 communicate insurance information to lender prior to Loan Contingency Date. 

234 11. GOVERNMENTAL INSPECTIONS AND OCCUPANCY REQUESTS. 
235 Seller agrees to immediately request any compliance inspection(s) including municipality, conservation, fire district or any other 
236 required governmental authority, at Seller's expense, when such inspection(s) are required. In the event the property and 
237 improvements do not meet such requirements or pass such inspection(s), Seller must notify Buyer in writing within 
238 15 days (15 days if none stated) after the "Acceptance Deadline" date of any violations or requirements that Seller 
239 will not correct. Failure of Seller to notify Buyer within this period shall constitute an elimination of Seller's ability to negotiate 
240 any violations or requirements of the inspections. In such event, Seller agrees to comply with all requirements of the 
241 inspections prior to Closing. In the event Seller notifies Buyer of Seller's refusal to correct all violations, Buyer and Seller have 
242 ten ( 10) days after date of Buyer's receipt ofnotification from Seller, in which to reach an agreement in writing as to which party will 
243 complete and pay for the required corrections, or to an agreed monetary adjustment at Closing in lieu of the correction. Note: A 
244 monetary adjustment may affect the terms of Buyer's loan, e.g. down payment, interest rate and private mortgage insurance, 
245 and may also affect Buyer's ability to obtain an occupancy permit. If no written agreement is reached within said ten (10) days, this 
246 contract is terminated and earnest money to be returned to Buyer, subject to paragraph 12. A written commitment within said ten (10) 
247 day period by Seller to make the required corrections, at Seller's expense prior to Closing, or a written commitment within said ten 
248 (10) day period by Buyer to accept the property without correction by Seller of those violations contained in the original list provided 
249 to Buyer by Seller shall also constitute an "agreement" for the purposes of this paragraph, even after earlier negotiations failed to 
250 produce an agreement. In instances where the Buyer must make the occupancy permit request (application) to initiate the inspection 
251 process, Buyer agrees to do so within four (4) days after the "Acceptance Deadline" date. Nothing herein shall require Buyer to 
252 close this sale ifhe is unable to obtain an occupancy permit after making a bonafide effort to do so. Buyer is cautioned not to rely on 
253 government inspections but should satisfy himself as to the condition of the property (see paragraph 10). Governmental jurisdictions 
254 vary in their occupancy requirements, including the time for applying for the permit and the number of occupants permitted. Buyer 
255 intends to have no more than N/A persons occupy the property. 

256 lla. LAWN IRRIGATION SYSTEM/ BACK FLOW CERTIFICATION. 
257 If the property has a lawn irrigation system attached to the public water system, Seller must provide to Buyer, documentation (dated 
258 within 12 months prior to Closing) from a certified back flow inspector indicating that the proper back flow prevention device is 
259 installed and functioning properly. 

260 12. EARNEST MONEY. 
261 Buyer and Seller agree that the earnest money received by the escrow agent in connection with this contract shall be deposited 
262 within ten (10) banking days after the "Acceptance Deadline" date. Additional earnest money, if applicable, is to be deposited by 
263 escrow agent within ten (10) banking days after receipt. Any earnest money received within ten (10) banking days prior to the 
264 scheduled Closing date, shall be in the form of a cashier's check or any other form acceptable to the escrow agent. If sale is closed, 
265 earnest money to apply to the purchase. If any earnest money is being returned to Buyer, Buyer agrees that any expenses for 
266 services requested by Buyer may be withheld by escrow agent and paid to the applicable service provider(s). In the event of a 
267 dispute over any earnest money held by the escrow agent, the escrow agent shall continue to hold said deposit in its escrow account 
268 until: 1) escrow agent has a written release from all parties consenting to its disposition; or 2) until a civil action is filed to determine 
269 its disposition (at which time payment may be made into court, and in such event, court costs and escrow agent's attorney fees will 
270 be paid from earnest money); or 3) until a final court judgment mandates its disposition; or 4) as may be required by applicable 
271 law. The parties specifically acknowledge and agree that whenever ownership of the earnest money or any other escrowed funds, 
272 received by a Missouri licensed real estate broker, is in dispute between the parties, said broker is required by Missouri Statute, 
273 Section 339.105.4 RSMo to report and deliver the monies to the State Treasurer within 365 days of the initial projected Closing 
274 date. Broker shall not report and deliver any such monies to the State Treasurer until at least sixty (60) days after the initial projected 
275 Closing date. 

Page 5 of9 
___ / ___ Initials BUYER and SELLER acknowledge they have read this page ___ / __ _ 
BUYER BUYER SELLER SELLER 



21199002 

276 Note: An escrow agent who is not a licensed real estate broker is not bound by Missouri statutes and regulations which apply to 
277 earnest money deposits. If the escrow agent is not a licensed broker, the parties are urged to have the escrow agent agree in 
278 writing to be bound by the provisions of this contract before being named as the escrow agent. 

279 13. REMEDIES. 
280 If either party defaults in the performance of any obligation of this contract, the party claiming a default shall notify the other party 
281 in writing of the nature of the default and his election of remedy. The notifying party may, but is not required to, provide the 
282 defaulting party with a deadline for curing the default. If the default is by Buyer, Seller may either accept the earnest money as 
283 liquidated damages and release Buyer from the contract (in lieu of making any claim in court), or may pursue any remedy at law 
284 or in equity. If Seller accepts the earnest money, it shall be divided as follows: expenses of broker and Seller in this transaction will 
285 be reimbursed, and balance to go one-half to Seller, and one-half divided equally between listing broker and selling broker (if working 
286 as subagent of Seller) in lieu of commission on this contract. If the default is by Seller, Buyer may either release Seller from liability 
287 upon Seller's release of the earnest money and reimbursement to Buyer for all direct costs and expenses, as specified in Buyer's notice 
288 of default (in lieu of making any claim in court), or may pursue any remedy at law and in equity, including enforcement of sale. 
289 Buyer's release of Seller does not relieve Seller of his liability to brokers under the listing contract. In the event of litigation between 
290 the parties, the prevailing party shall recover, in addition to damages or equitable relief, the cost of litigation including 
291 reasonable attorney's fee. This provision shall survive Closing and delivery of Seller's deed to Buyer. 

292 14. LOSS. 
293 Risk of loss to the improvements of the property shall be borne by the Seller until title is transferred. If any improvements covered 
294 by this contract are damaged or destroyed, Seller shall immediately notify Buyer or selling broker in writing of the damage or 
295 destruction, the amount of insurance proceeds payable, if any, and whether Seller intends to restore the property prior to Closing, 
296 to its condition at the time of the contract. In the event Seller restores the property to its prior condition before scheduled Closing, 
297 and provides Buyer with proof of the repairs, Buyer and Seller shall proceed with Closing. In the event the property is not to be 
298 restored to its prior condition by the Seller before Closing, Seller shall immediately provide Buyer or selling broker with a copy of 
299 any policies of insurance, the name and number of the agent for each of said policies, and written authorization (if needed) for 
300 Buyer to communicate with the insurer. Buyer may either a) proceed with Closing and be entitled to the amount of insurance 
301 proceeds relating to real property improvements, if any, payable to Seller under all policies insuring the improvements plus receive 
302 a credit from the Seller at Closing in an amount equal to the deductible not covered by insurance, orb) terminate the contract, 
303 thereby releasing all parties from liability hereunder. If all of the aforementioned insurance information is received by the Buyer or 
304 selling broker more than ten (10) days prior to the scheduled Closing date, Buyer is to give written notification to Seller or listing 
305 broker as to his election of (a) or (b) above within ten (10) days after the Buyer or selling broker's receipt of such information; and 
306 ifnot received by Buyer or selling broker more than ten (10) days prior to the scheduled Closing date, Buyer may, at Buyer's option 
307 and by written notice to Seller or listing broker, extend the Closing date up to ten (10) days, during which time Buyer may make 
308 his election as to (a) or (b) above. Failure by Buyer to notify Seller shall constitute an election to terminate the contract. If the 
309 contract is terminated in accordance with the provisions of this paragraph, Buyer's earnest money is to be returned, subject to 
310 paragraph 12. Seller agrees to reimburse Buyer's cost to pay for title, survey, inspection(s) and appraisal. 

311 15. ASSIGNABILITY OF CONTRACT. 
312 This contract is assignable by Buyer, but not without the written consent of Seller if: a) Seller is taking back a note and deed of 
313 trust as part of the purchase price, or b) Buyer is assuming the existing note. Assignment does not relieve the parties from their 
314 obligations under the contract. 

315 16. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 
316 Time is of the essence in the performance of the obligations of the parties. All references to a specified time shall mean Central 
317 Time. This contract shall be binding on and for the benefit of the parties and their respective heirs, personal representatives, 
318 executors, administrators or assigns. This contract shall be considered a contract for the sale of real property and shall be construed 
319 in accordance with the laws of the State of Missouri. This contract constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto and 
320 there are no other understandings, written or oral, relating to the subject matter hereof. The contract may not be changed, modified 
321 or amended, in whole or in part, except in writing signed by all parties. 

322 17. FOREIGN INVESTMENT IN REAL PROPERTY TAX ACT (FIRPT A). 
323 Seller represents that it is not a foreign person as described in the Foreign Investment in Real Property Tax Act [26 U.S.C §1445] 
324 and agrees to deliver a certificate at Closing to that effect which contains Seller's tax ID number or Green Card. 
325 

Page6of9 
___ / ___ Initials BUYER and SELLER acknowledge they have read this page ___ _ _ _ 
BUYER BUYER SELLER SELLER 



21199002 

326 18. CONSTRUCTION. 
327 Words and phrases shall be construed as in the singular or plural number, and as masculine, feminine or gender neutral, according 
328 to the context. When the term "listing broker" is used, it refers to one of the following : a) a broker working for the Seller under an 
329 agency listing contract; orb) a broker assisting the Seller as a transaction broker, whichever is appropriate. When the term "selling 
330 broker" is used, it refers to one of the following: a) a broker working for the Buyer under a buyer's agency agreement; b) a broker 
331 assisting the Buyer as a subagent of the Seller; or c) a broker assisting the Buyer as a transaction broker, whichever is appropriate. 
332 The term "broker" shall include the broker's affiliated licensees (referred to as "salespeople"). With the exception of the term 
333 "banking days" as used in paragraph 12, a day is defined as a 24-hour calendar day, seven (7) days per week. 

334 19. ACCESS, FINAL WALK-THROUGH AND UTILITIES. 
335 Seller agrees to permit inspections of the property by inspectors, contractors, termite inspectors, surveyors, engineers and appraisers 
336 selected by Buyer as provided for in the contract, or inspections required by Buyer's lender or insurer, upon reasonable advance 
337 notice to Seller. Buyer and selling broker may also be present during these inspections. Seller grants Buyer, selling broker, and any 
338 inspector whose report prompted a request for repairs, the right to enter and walk-through the property, and the right to have the 
339 utilities transferred to Buyer, within four (4) days prior to Closing. The purpose of the walk-through is only for the Buyer to confirm 
340 that the property is in the same condition, ordinary wear and tear excepted, as it was on the date of this contract, and that repairs 
341 are completed in a workmanlike manner. Seller will arrange, at Seller's expense, to have all utilities turned on during the period 
342 specified for any inspection and the walk-through, unless utilities have been transferred to Buyer. Waiver of property and 
343 improvement inspections does not waive the right to a walk-through prior to Closing. The Closing does not relieve Seller of Seller' s 
344 obligation to complete improvements and repairs required by this contract. 

345 20. FLOOD PLAIN. 
346 Buyer may terminate this contract if any portion of the property is located in a designated I 00-year flood plain unless disclosed to 
347 Buyer in writing prior to contract. If terminated, earnest money to be returned to Buyer, subject to paragraph 12. Failure by Buyer 
348 to terminate within 10 days of actual knowledge of 100-year flood plain, or by Closing, whichever occurs first, shall be deemed a 
349 waiver by Buyer of this contingency. 

350 21. SPECIAL AGREEMENTS. 
351 Special agreements between Buyer and Seller forming a part of this contract: ___________________ _ 
352 _N_/A~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
353 
354 
355 
356 
357 

358 22. SQUARE FOOTAGE AND LOT SIZE DISCLOSURE. 
359 Broker is not an expert in measuring and does not measure the total square footage or lot size of the property. To the extent that 
360 Broker provides or shares information about the property, the information comes from one or more other sources, is only an 
361 approximation and is not verified by Broker. There may be differing standards used in Missouri for measuring total square footage 
362 of property, and the available information about total square footage can vary depending upon the source, the measurement standard 
363 that was used and the date of measurement. One source for total square footage is public information from the county assessor's 
364 office, but the county assessor's office does not warrant the accuracy of the information and neither does Broker. If you wish to 
365 have verifiable and accurate information about the total square footage of the property, you should retain a qualified professional 
366 appraiser to measure the property according to the measurement standard that the appraiser deems appropriate. The price per square 
367 foot for any property is a calculation based upon, among other things, total square footage, so price per square foot also is only an 
368 approximation and is subject to the same uncertainties and limitations described in this paragraph. If you wish to have verifiable 
369 and accurate information on lot size you should retain a licensed surveyor. 

Page7of9 
_ __ / ___ Initials BUYER and SELLER acknowledge they have read this page ___ / __ _ 
BUYER BUYER SELLER SELLER 



21199002 

370 23. SELLER'S DISCLOSURE STATEMENT. (Check one) 
371 D Buyer confirms that before signing this offer to purchase, Buyer has read a copy of the Seller's Disclosure Statement for this 
372 property. The Seller's Disclosure Statement is not a substitute for any inspection that Buyer may wish to obtain. Buyer is 
3 73 advised to address any concerns Buyer may have about information in the statement by use of contingencies in the contract. 
374 D Seller agrees to provide Buyer with a Seller's Disclosure Statement within one (1) day after the "Acceptance Deadline" date. 
375 Buyer shall have three (3) days after the "Acceptance Deadline" date to review said statements and to declare in writing that 
376 the contract is terminated and the earnest money is to be returned to Buyer, subject to paragraph 12. Otherwise, this contingency 
377 shall be deemed as waived by Buyer. 
378 II No Seller's Disclosure Statement will be provided by Seller. 
3 79 By his signature, Seller confirms that the information in the Seller's Disclosure Statement is accurate as of the date of this contract. 
380 Seller will fully and promptly disclose in writing any new material information pertaining to the property that is discovered at any 
381 time prior to Closing. Seller states that if Seller knows or should have known that the property was a lab, production or storage 
382 site for methamphetamine, or was the residence of a person convicted of crimes related to methamphetamine, Seller will attach a 
383 written description. 
384 Note: The Seller's Disclosure Statement is not in any way incorporated into the terms of this contract. 

385 24. RELATIONSHIPS & COMMUNICATIONS DISCLOSURES. 
386 Buyer and Seller confirm that disclosure of the licensee's relationship was made no later than the first showing of the property, 
387 upon first contact, or immediately upon the occurrence of a change to the relationship. 
388 Note: Under MREC Rules and Regulations, one box must be checked in each of the following two sections by the Selling 
389 Licensee. 
390 Licensee assisting Seller is a: (Check appropriate box) 
391 D Seller's Agent: Licensee is acting on behalf of the Seller. 
392 D Buyer's Agent: Licensee is acting on behalf of the Buyer. 
393 D Dual Agent: Licensee is acting on behalf of both Seller and Buyer. 
394 D Designated Agent: Licensee has been designated to act on behalf of the Seller. 
395 D Transaction Broker Assisting Seller: Licensee is not acting on behalf of either Seller or Buyer. 
396 Licensee Personal Interest Disclosure: (Complete only if applicable) 

397 (insert name of licensee) is a real 
398 estate broker or salesperson licensed in the state of N/A and is (Check one or more, as applicable) 
399 D a party to this transaction; D a principal of and/or has a direct or indirect ownership interest with D Seller D Buyer; and/or 
400 D an immediate family member of D Seller D Buyer DOther Specify: N/A 

401 Licensee assisting Buyer is a: (Check appropriate box) 
402 D Buyer's Agent: Licensee is acting on behalf of the Buyer. 
403 D Seller's Agent: Licensee is acting on behalf of the Seller. 
404 D Dual Agent: Licensee is acting on behalf of both Buyer and Seller. 
405 D Designated Agent: Licensee has been designated to act on behalf of the Buyer. 
406 D Transaction Broker Assisting Buyer: Licensee is not acting on behalf of either Buyer or Seller. 
407 D Subagent of Seller: Licensee is acting on behalf of the Seller. 
408 Licensee Personal Interest Disclosure: (Complete only if applicable) 

409 (insert name oflicensee) is a real 
410 estate broker or salesperson licensed in the state of NIA and is (Check one or more, as applicable) 
411 D a party to this transaction; D a principal of and/or has a direct or indirect ownership interest with D Seller D Buyer; and/or 
412 Dan immediate family member of D Seller D Buyer DOther Specify : N/A 

413 Sources of Compensation to Broker(s), including commissions and/or other fees: D Seller D Buyer 

414 Buyer and Seller acknowledge that they have received and read the Missouri Real Estate Commission Broker Disclosure Form. 

415 By signing below, the licensees confirm making disclosure of the brokerage relationship to the appropriate parties. 
416 All Parties agree that this transaction can be conducted by electronic/digital signatures, according to the Uniform Electronic 
417 Transaction Act as adopted by the state of Missouri . 

Page 8 of9 
_ __ / ___ Initials BUYER and SELLER acknowledge they have read this page ___ / __ _ 
BUYER BUYER SELLER SELLER 



418 
419 

420 

421 

422 

423 

424 

425 

426 
427 

428 
429 

N/A 
Brokerage Firm Name Assisting Buyer 

Broker's Firm State License JD#: --------

By (Signature): ---------------

Printed Name: --------------

Licensee State License ID#: -----------

Date: ------- MLS ID: - --------

21199002 

NIA 
Brokerage Firm Name Assisting Seller 

Broker's Firm State License ID#: ---------

By (Signature): ----------------

Printed Name: ----------------

Licensee State License ID#: ------------

Date: _ ______ MLS ID: ----------

OFFER to be accepted by Seller by: _______ m of _______________________ _ 

BUYER SIGNATURE DATE BUYER SIGNATURE DATE 

Myles Branch 
Buyer Printed Name Buyer Printed Name 

430 SELLER ACCEPTS THE TERMS SET FORTH IN THIS CONTRACT. 

431 
432 

433 
434 

435 
436 

SELLER SIGNATURE 
August 22. 2023 

TIME and DATE 

James D. Hagedorn. Mayor 
Seller Printed Name 

SELLER SIGNATURE 

Seller Printed Name 

OR _______ (initials) WE REJECT THIS OFFER AND MAKE A COUNTEROFFER. 
(use Form #2164 Sale Contract Counteroffer Form). 

437 OR (initials) WE REJECT THIS OFFER. 

TIME and DA TE 

438 Note: Unless otherwise agreed in writing, "Acceptance Deadline" is defined as the date for acceptance which was provided to 
439 the last party whose signature resulted in a contract (even if that signature was obtained before the deadline). 

Page 9 of9 

Printed Using formsRus.com On~Line Forms Software 7/23 



2 

3 
4 

This document has legal consequences. 
If you do not understand it, consult your attorney. 
The text of this fonn may not be altered in any manner 
without written acknowledgement of all parties. 

Fann# 2089 01 /20 

©ST. LOUTS REAL TORS• 

Approved by Counsel for St. Louis REAL TORS· 

To be used exclusively by REAL TORS· 

AMENDMENT TO SALE CONTRACT 

SALE CONTRACT DATE: ____________ _,A-"u""'g,,.,u=s:..:..t=2..:..1 ...... 2.,_,0=2=3,__ ___________ _ 

PROPERTY: ------------"3'-"'0_,,,,2_,,Le,:,a,.,_,fa~y~e~tt~e...!:S~t!..l:re'--"e,..,t,'---'W~ a""'sh'--'-'i-'-'ng:::,.:t,.,,,o"--'n.,_, M= is'--"s""o_,,,_u,_,_ri _,,6""3""0""'"90:::...._ _______ _ 

5 Buyer and Seller agree to amend the Sale Contract only as to those matters checked below: 

6 D New Closing date: - - ------------------------------------

7 D New Possession date (check one): DClosing or D _ ___ m (time) of _________________ (date) 

8 D New Loan Contingency date: ----------------------------------

9 D New Purchase price: $ ___________________________________ _ 

10 

11 

12 

13 

D New Loan Amount: ________ % of the purchase price, or$ _ __________________ _ 

D New Interest Rate not to exceed: ________________________________ % 

D New Amortization term: __________________________________ years 

D New Loan type: ______________________ (lfFHA/VA,attachform#2135thaor#2135va) 

14 D Seller agrees to pay, at Closing, a cost not to exceed % of purchase price or$. ____________ _ 
15 ($0 if none stated) towards Buyer' s closing costs, prepaids, points and other fees allowed by lender. 

16 
17 

18 
19 

20 
21 

D New contingency deadline date: ----------- Describe contingency : --------------

D Paragraph# ____ ..., Line# _ __ or Rider# _ __ is changed as follows: -----------------

D Paragraph# ----'' Line# _ __ or Rider# ___ is changed as follows: -----------------

22 IKI Paragraph# 10, Line# 185-193 is deleted and changed as follows: improvements as deemed necessary by 
23 Buyer limited to structural and foundation inspections only. 
24 

25 

26 
27 

28 
29 

30 
31 

32 
33 

BUYER SIGNATURE 

Buyer Printed Name 

BUYER SIGNATURE 

Buyer Printed Name 

DATE 

DATE 

August 22, 2023 
SELLER SIGNATURE DATE 

James D. Hag.e.d.Qrn...Ma:.}-',d---
seller Printed Name 

SELLER SIGNATURE DATE 

Seller Printed Name 

Printed Using formsRus.com On-Line Forms Sortware 1/20 



405 Jefferson Street, Washington, MO 63090 

August 15, 2023 • 

Mayor & City Council 

City of Washington 

Washington, MO 63090 

Re: 302 Lafayette (Graces Place) 

Mayor & City Council, 

636-390-1010 www.washmo.gov 

On your agenda for the August 21, 2023 agenda is an ordinance approving a contract of sale for 302 

Lafayette with Myles Branch. 

Mr. Branch has agreed to purchase 302 Lafayette for $295,000 with an earnest deposit of $5,000. The sale 

is subject to improvements as deemed necessary limited to structural and foundation inspections only. 
If the buyer wishes to demolish the structure, City Council has a first right of refusal to purchase back the 

property. Closing is scheduled for September 29, 2023. 

Feel free to reach out with any questions. 

Sincerely, 

Sal Maniaci 
Community and Economic Development Director 



BILL NO. INTRODUCED BY - --------- -----------

ORDINANCE NO. ------------

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE 
EXECUTION OF A SPECIAL SALE CONTRACT BY AND 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF WASHINGTON, MISSOURI AND 
R.C. SCHRADER CONSTRUCTION, LLC 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Washington, Missouri, as 

follows: 

SECTION 1: The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute a Special 

Sale Contract by and between the City of Washington, Missouri and R.C. Schrader 

Construction, LLC, a copy of which is marked Exhibit A and is attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by reference, and such other documents, certificates and instruments 

as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this 

Ordinance, for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City. The City Clerk is 

hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City to the said Special 

Sale Contract and such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary 

or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this Ordinance. 

SECTION 2: The City shall, and the officials, agents and employees of the City 

are hereby authorized and directed to, take such further action, and execute and deliver 

such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to 

carry out and comply with the intent of this Ordinance. 

SECTION 3: All ordinances or parts of ordinances m conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed. 

23461162.vl 1h 



SECTION 4: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and approval. 

Passed: ------- ----

ATTEST: ---------- President of City Council 

Approved: _________ _ 

ATTEST: ----------
Mayor of Washington, Missouri 

23461162.vl 



This document has legal consequences. 
Tfyou do not understand it, consult your attorney. 
The text of this fonn may not be altered in any manner 
without written acknowledgement of all parties. 

Fann# 2043 07/22 

Exhibit A 

SPECIAL SALE CONTRACT 

©ST. LOUIS REAL TORS® 
Approved by Counsel for St. Louis REALTORS®. 

To be used exclusively by REAL TOR® members 
of St. Louis REALTORS® and those issued a use 

license by St. Louis REAL TORS®. 

73431826 

DATE: August21,2023 

I Note: This contract does not have many clauses protecting Buyers included in the Residential Sale Contract, Form #2090. It 
2 should normally be used only for the sale of property without provision for building, termite, environmental, gas, municipal, 
3 insurability, and other inspections. Regardless of whether Seller's Disclosure Form is to be provided, Seller is still obligated to 
4 comply with Federal and State laws which require disclosure of certain defects, hazardous conditions and adverse material facts. 

5 I. PARTIES AND PROPERTY. 
6 R.C. Schrader Construction, LLC , Buyer(s), agrees to purchase from the 
7 undersigned Seller, the following real property in the municipality of (if incorporated), ..crt.y of Washington , County of 
8 Franklin , Missouri (legal description on Seller's title to govern) being all the real property 
9 Seller owns at said address: 604 Hancock Street, Washington Missouri 63090 

10 2. INCLUSIONS AND EXCLUSIONS. 
11 The purchase price includes all existing improvements on the propetty {if any) and appurtenances, fixtures and equipment (which 
12 Seller guarantees to own free and clear) including: 
13 Note: To avoid any misunderstanding, the parties are urged to list as "included" or "excluded" any items which may be subject 
14 to question or unclear as to being considered a "fixture" such as electronic equipment. The purchase price includes all existing 
15 improvements on the property (if any) and appurtenances, fixtures and equipment (which Seller guarantees to own free and 
16 clear) including: 

17 In addition, the following items are included: ------------------------------
18 

19 The following items are excluded: ----------------------------------
20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

3. PURCHASE PRICE. 
$45,100 is the total purchase price to be paid as follows : 

$..5.QO ....... o .... o.__ ___ earnest money ($0 if none stated) (check one) D received for delivery to OR Ii to be delivered to 

True Title Company, Washington, Missouri escrow agent within 

3 days (3 days if none stated) after "Acceptance Deadline" date. Selling broker to be 

escrow agent if none specified above. 

$ ..,._ ______ additional earnest money ($0 if none slated) to be delivered to escrow agenl within .._N..._/._A...__ ____ days 

after the "Acceptance Deadline" date (1 S days if none stated) or .... N~{ .... A..L-____________ _ 
29 The balance, including any adjustments set forth in this contract, less, any amount of Seller financing or of Seller's loan being 
30 assumed as stipulated in this contract, ifapplicable, is to be paid at Closing, by cashier's check, wire transfer or any form acceptable 
31 to Closing agent. 

32 4. METHOD OF FINANCING. 
33 Note: If Buyer's lender or Closing agent cannot fulfill their obligations under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and 
34 Consumer Protection Act and the regulations promulgated by the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau, it may be 
35 necessary for the Buyer to request Seller to agree to an extension of the Closing Date. 

36 JE:I Not Contingent Upon Financing. This contract is not contingent upon financing; however, Buyer reserves the right to finance 
3 7 any portion of the purchase price. 
38 D Contingent Upon Financing. Buyer agrees to do all things necessary, including, but not limited to the execution of a loan 
39 application and other instruments, the payment to the lender of the credit report, appraisal and any other required fees, and to 
40 otherwise cooperate ful ly in order to obtain the financing described below. If Buyer does not deliver written notice, provided 
41 by Buyer's lender, to Seller or listing broker, of Buyer's inability to obtain a loan approval on the terms described below on 
42 or before (or 30 days after the ''Acceptance Deadline" date if none stated) (the Loan 

Page \ of7 

___ / ___ Initials BUYER and SELLER acknowledge they have read this page ___ / __ _ 
BUYER BUYER SELLER SELLER 

1h 



43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 
51 
52 
53 

54 
55 
56 
57 
58 

73431826 

Contingency Date) then this condition shall be deemed waived and Buyer' s performance under this contract shall thereafter 
not be conditioned upon Buyer's obtaining financing . If lender will not give Buyer such written notice then Buyer may directly 
notify Seller or listing broker (on or before the Loan Contingency Date) by providing a notarized affidavit that Buyer has 
complied with all of the terms of this paragraph and that despite request, Buyer was unable to obtain such written notice from 
lender. If Buyer has complied with the terms of this paragraph and has timely provided written notice to Seller or listing broker 
of Buyer's inability to obtain the loan approval, then this contract shall be terminated with earnest money to be returned to 
Buyer, subject to paragraph 12. 
Note: If Loan Contingency Date passes without written notice as outlined above, Buyer remains obligated under this 
contract. Therefore, Buyer should be certain that he will have the funds to close. If Buyer's performance under this 
contract is to be independently conditioned upon the property appraising at a specified value, then Buyer should 
complete and attach to this contract an appropriate appraisal rider. 

Loan amount: _ ______________ % of the purchase price OR $ ______________ _ 

Initial interest rate not to exceed : %. Amortization term : - - ----------- years. 
Other terms (none if blank):---------- --------- --------------
LOAN TYPE: (Check applicable) D Conventional D FHA D VA D Other: ------ --- ---
RATE TYPE: (Check applicable) D Fixed Rate D Adjustable Rate D Other: -------------

59 JI Seller agrees to pay, at Closing, a cost not to exceed % of purchase-price OR $ ~Q....,..0~0~-----------
60 ($0 if none stated) towards Buyer's closing costs, prepaids, points and other fees allowed by lender. 

61 S. CLOSING AND POSSESSION. 
62 Note: All parties are encouraged to use the same title company to reduce risk. If Seller does not close at the same title 
63 company as Buyer, or Seller's choice of title company does not have a common underwriter with Buyer's title company, 
64 then Seller will be required to sign a Notice of Closing or Settlement Risk acknowledging that their settlement funds are 
65 not protected by the title insurance underwriter. 
66 The "Closing" is the exchange of the Seller's deed for the total purchase price. Seller shall be deemed to have received funds when 
67 funds are received by Seller or Seller's title company. The Closing of this sale shall take place on 
68 September 21. 2023 or any other date that both parties agree in writing. Buyer will close at 
69 True Title Company, Washington, Missouri , the title company which provides title insurance. Regardless of who closes 
70 for Buyer, Seller may close at the title company of Seller's choice. Title will pass when the sale is closed. Seller to deliver 
71 possession of the property and keys to Buyer no later than (check one only):JI Closing OR D m (time) of 
72 (date) but in no event prior to Closing as defined above. All parties agree to sign Closing documents 
73 at a time that facilitates this possession. Note: If possession is to be delivered on a day other than Closing, as defined above, 
74 parties should complete the appropriate rider. Deed as directed by Buyer. Except for tenants lawfully in possession, Seller 
75 warrants that the property will be vacant and free of personal property ( except as otherwise provided herein) and debris, at time of 
76 possession and delivered to Buyer in its same condition (together with any improvements or repairs required by this contract), 
77 ordinary wear and tear excepted, as it was on the date of this contract. Buyers should change locks and codes following possession. 
78 Buyer and Seller authori ze title company and/or Closing agent to release to broker(s) signed copies of the Closing statements. 
79 Note: Parties are cautioned to always call to confirm instructions before sending any funds via wire transfer. 

80 6. TITLE AND SURVEY. 
81 Seller shall transfer title to Buyer by general warranty deed (or fiduciary deed, where applicable), subject to the following: 
82 a) zoning regulations; b) leases and occupancy of tenants existing on the date contract is executed by Buyer and disclosed to Buyer 
83 in writing before execution of contract by Buyer; c) general taxes payable in the current year and thereafter; d) any lien or 
84 encumbrance created by or assumed by Buyer in writing or any easement accepted by Buyer in writing; e) subdivision, use and 
85 other restrictions, rights of way and utility easements, all ofrecord, which do not adversely affect the use of the property as it exists 
86 for residential purposes at the time of the contract. 
87 Check applicable box (whether "Seller to Order, Provide and Purchase Title" or "Buyer to Order, Provide and Purchase 
88 Title"). 
89 D Seller to O,·der, Provide and Purchase Title. Note: Any Seller paid title costs set forth below are in addition to any 
90 Seller paid costs in Paragraph 4. 
91 Not later than days (5 days if none stated) after the "Acceptance Deadline" date, Seller will order a commitment 
92 for title insurance to be provided to the Buyer for both an Owner's policy of title insurance and for a lender's policy of title 
93 insurance (if required by lender) in the latest AL TA form including mechanics lien coverage from the title company selected 
94 in paragraph 5. Seller and Buyer authorize and direct the title company to furnish this commitment to the selling and listing 
95 broker. Seller shall pay for the title insurance (including title premium and title service charges), at Closing, at a cost not to 
96 exceed$ . Buyer to pay title cost exceeding this amount. 

97 
98 
99 

J5it Buyer to Order, Provide and Purchase Title. 
Buyer may, at Buyer's option and expense, order a title examination and commitment to issue an Owner's and/or lender's policy 
of title insurance in the latest AL TA form including mechanics lien coverage from the title company specified in paragraph 5. 

Page 2 of7 
/ Initials BUYER and SELLER acknowledge they have read this page ___ / __ _ 

BUYER BUYER SELLER SELLER 

1h 



73431826 
l 00 Note: This should be ordered promptly after contract acceptance in order to allow sufficient time to obtain and review 
l O I documents, and, if necessary, object to defects that may be discovered. 
102 Buyer may, at Buyer's option and expense, order a Boundary Survey and Improvement Location ("stake survey") or a Surveyor's 
I 03 Real Property Report (SRPR) of the property to determine if there are any defects, encroachments, overlaps, boundary line or 
I 04 acreage discrepancies, or other matters that would be disclosed on a survey. 
l 05 Note: A "stake survey" is generally required in order to obtain full survey coverage in an Owner's policy of title insurance. 
106 A SRPR may or may not disclose all of the defects involving such matters as encroachments, overlaps, boundary line or 
l 07 acreage discrepancies. 
108 If any defects are discovered as a result of the title examination, title commitment, or the survey, and if Buyer chooses to act on 
l 09 this contingency, Buyer shall within 1 O days (25 days if none stated) atler the "Acceptance Deadline" date , furnish 
110 a copy of the document evidencing the defect to Seller or listing broker stating, in writing, any title or survey defects that are I) 
111 unacceptable to Buyer; 2) not listed above; and 3) adversely affect the use of the property as it exists for residential purposes at 
112 the time of the contract. Failure by Seller or listing broker to receive such objections to title or survey within such time will 
113 constitute a waiver by Buyer of any objections to the title so long as Buyer is able to obtain at Closing, an Owner's title insurance 
114 policy in the latest AL TA fo1m including mechanics lien coverage. If Buyer does timely object to any title or survey defects, Seller 
115 has five (5) days from receipt of Buyer's notice of objection by Seller or listing broker, to agree in writing to correct the defects 
116 prior to Closing at Seller's expense. If Seller does not so agree, this contract is terminated unless Buyer, within two (2) additional 
117 days, agrees in writing to accept the title and survey "as is". If the contract is terminated in accordance with the provisions of this 
118 paragraph, Buyer's earnest money is to be returned, subject to paragraph 12 and Seller agrees to reimburse Buyer's cost to pay for 
119 title, survey, inspection(s) and appraisal. Seller shall be responsible for clearing any defects that arise between the date of the 
120 contract acceptance and Closing. 
121 Note: Easements, subdivision indentures, and government regulations may affect Buyer's intended use of the property. 
122 Construction of improvements (for example: a room addition, fence or swimming pool), non-residential use of the property 
123 (for example: use of a room for a business), or the right to keep certain vehicles or animals on the property, all may be 
124 affected. Buyer is advised to review all easements, government regulations, and subdivision indentures before making an 
125 offer to purchase the property if he plans these or similar uses. If Buyer requires assistance in reviewing easements, surveys, 
126 indentures, or other matters affecting title or use of the property, Buyer should consult an attorney. 

127 7. FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE. 
128 Although one or more of the Brokers may be a member of a franchise, the franchisor is not responsible for the acts of said Broker(s). 

129 8. ADJUSTMENTS AND CLOSING COSTS. 
130 Adjustments, charges, and Closing costs are agreed to be paid by the parties (subject to Rider #2135tha or #2135va and current 
131 FHA and VA regulations) as follows: 
132 Buyer shall pay for (where applicable): 
133 • hazard insurance premium(s) and flood insurance premium, if required by lender; 
134 • survey and title company charges (for example: Closing, recording, escrow, wire and closing protection letter fees) customarily paid by 
135 Buyer, subject to paragraph 8; 
136 • any charges imposed by lender (for example: appraisal and credit report fees, loan discount points, loan origination fees, 
137 funding fees, and other loan expenses), unless specifically agreed to be paid by Seller; 
138 • building, termite, and environmental inspections; 
139 • the fair market value ofany heating oil or propane gas in tank(s) on the property at Closing, based on supplier's current charges; 
140 • real estate compensation to broker per separate written agreement; 
141 • municipal occupancy pe1mit; and 
142 • agreed upon repairs . 
143 Seller shall pay for (where applicable): 
144 • existing loans on property (if not assumed by Buyer); 
145 • any expenses of Buyer's loan agreed to in paragraph 4; 
146 • title company charges (for example: Closing, release, escrow, wire and closing proteclion letter fees) customarily paid by 
14 7 Seller, subject to paragraph 8; 
148 • special taxes and special assessments levied before Closing; and 
149 • real estate compensation to broker per separate written agreement; Seller authorizes selling portion of commission to be paid 
150 directly to selling broker; and 
151 • agreed upon repairs. 
152 Buyer and Seller shall have prorated and adjusted between them on the basis of thirty (30) days to the month as of the date 
153 of Closing (Seller to pay for last day): 
154 • current rents whether collected or not by Seller (Seller to receive rent for day of Closing); rents which are delinquent over 
155 thirty (30) days to be collected by Seller and not adjusted; 
156 • general taxes (based on assessment and rate for current year, if both are available, otherwise based on previous year); 
157 • district improvement assessments for current year; Buyer to pay thereafter; 
158 • subdivision upkeep assessments and monthly condominium fee; 
159 • interest (when Buyer assumes existing loan); and 
160 • flat rate utility charges (including water, sewer, and trash). 

Page 3 of7 
___ ; ___ Initials BUYER and SELLER acknowledge they have read this page ___ / __ _ 
BUYER BUYER SELLER SELLER 

1h 



73431826 
161 9. LOSS. 
162 Risk of loss to the improvements of the property shall be borne by the Seller until title is transferred . If any improvements covered 
163 by this contract are damaged or destroyed, Seller shall immediately notify Buyer or selling broker in writing of the damage or 
164 destruction, the amount of insurance proceeds payable, if any, and whether Seller intends to restore the property prior to Closing, 
165 to its condition at the time of the contract. In the event Seller restores the property to its prior condition before scheduled Closing, 
166 and provides Buyer with proof of the repairs, Buyer and Seller shall proceed with Closing. In the event the property is not to be 
167 restored to its prior condition by the Seller before Closing, Seller shall immediately provide Buyer or selling broker with a copy of 
168 any policies of insurance, the name and number of the agent for each of said policies, and written authorization (if needed) for 
169 Buyer to communicate with the insurer. Buyer may either a) proceed with Closing and be entitled to the amount of insurance 
170 proceeds relating to real property improvements, if any, payable to Seller under all policies insuring the improvements plus receive 
171 a credit from the Seller at Closing in an amount equal to the deductible not covered by insurance, or b) terminate the contract, 
172 thereby releasing all parties from liability hereunder. If all of the aforementioned insurance information is received by the Buyer 
173 or selling broker more than ten (10) days prior to the scheduled Closing date, Buyer is to give written notification to Seller or 
174 listing broker as to his election of (a) or (b) above within ten ( I 0) days after the Buyer or selling broker's receipt of such 
175 information; and if not received by Buyer or selling broker more than ten (10) days prior to the scheduled Closing date, Buyer 
176 may, at Buyer's option and by written notice to Seller or listing broker, extend the Closing date up to ten (10) days, during which 
177 time Buyer may make his election as to (a) or (b) above. Failure by Buyer to notify Seller shall wnslilule an eledion lo lerminate 
178 the contract. If the contract is terminated in accordance with the provisions of this paragraph, Buyer's earnest money is to be 
179 returned, subject to paragraph 12. Seller agrees to reimburse Buyer' s cost to pay for title, survey, inspection(s) and appraisal. 

180 10. ASSJGNABILITY OF CONTRACT. 
181 This contract is assignable by Buyer, but not without the written consent of Seller if: a) Seller is taking back a note and deed of 
182 trust as part of the purchase price, orb) Buyer is assuming the existing note. Assignment does not relieve the parties from their 
183 obligations under this contract. 

184 11. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 
185 Time is of the essence in the performance of the obligations of the parties. All references to a specified time shall mean Central 
186 Time. This contract shall be binding on and for the benefit of the parties and their respective heirs, personal representatives, 
187 executors, administrators or assigns. This contract shall be considered a contract for the sale of real property and shall be construed 
188 in accordance with the laws of the State of Missouri . This contract constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto and 
189 there are no other understandings, written or oral, relating to the subject matter hereof. The contract may not be changed, modified 
190 or amended, in whole or in part, except in writing signed by all parties. 

191 12. EARNEST MONEY. 
192 Buyer and Seller agree that the earnest money received by the escrow agent in connection with this contract shall be deposited 
193 within ten (10) banking days after the "Acceptance Deadline" date. Additional earnest money, if applicable, is to be deposited by 
194 escrow agent within ten ( 10) banking days after receipt. Any earnest money received within ten ( 10) banking days prior to the 
195 scheduled Closing date, shall be in the form of a cashier's check or any other form acceptable to the escrow agent. If sale is closed, 
196 earnest money to apply to the purchase. If any earnest money is being returned to Buyer, Buyer agrees that any expenses for 
197 services requested by Buyer may be withheld by escrow agent and paid to the applicable service provider(s). In the event of a 
198 dispute over any earnest money held by the escrow agent, the escrow agent shall continue to hold said deposit in its escrow account 
199 until: I) escrow agent has a written release from all parties consenting to its disposition; or 2) until a civil action is filed to determine 
200 its disposition (at which time payment may be made into court, and in such event, court costs and escrow agent's attorney fees will 
20 I be paid from earnest money); or 3) until a final court judgment mandates its disposition; or 4) as may be required by applicable 
202 law. The parties specifically acknowledge and agree that whenever ownership of the earnest money or any other escrowed funds, 
203 received by a Missouri licensed real estate broker, is in dispute between the parties, said broker is required by Missouri Statute, 
204 Section 339.105.4 RSMo to report and deliver the monies to the State Treasurer within 365 days of the initial projected Closing 
205 date. Broker shall not report and deliver any such monies to the State Treasurer until at least sixty (60) days after the initial projected 
206 Closing date. 
207 Note: An escrow agent who is not a licensed real estate broker is not bound by Missouri statutes and regulations which 
208 apply to earnest money deposits. If the escrow agent is not a licensed broker, the parties are urged to have the escrow agent 
209 agree in writing to be bound by the provisions of this contract before being named as the escrow agent. 

210 13. REMEDIES. 
211 If either party defaults in the performance of any obligation of this contract, the party claiming a default shall notify the other party 
212 in writing of the nature of the default and his election of remedy. The notifying party may, but is not required Lo, provide the 
213 defaulting party with a deadline for curing the default. If the default is by Buyer, Seller may either accept the earnest money as 
214 liquidated damages and release Buyer from the contract (in lieu of making any claim in court), or may pursue any remedy at law 
215 or in equity. If Seller accepts the earnest money, it shall be divided as follows: expenses of broker and Seller in this transaction will 
216 be reimbursed, and balance to go one-half to Seller, and one-half divided equally between listing broker and selling broker (if working 
217 as subagent of Seller) in lieu of commission on this contract. lf the default is by Seller, Buyer may either release Seller from liability 
218 upon Seller's release of the earnest money and reimbursement to Buyer for all direct costs and expenses, as specified in Buyer's notice 

Page 4 of7 
___ ! _ _ _ Initials BUYER and SELLER acknowledge they have read this page ___ / __ _ 
BLJYER BLJYER SELLER SELLER 

1h 



73431826 
219 of default (in lieu of making any claim in court), or may pursue any remedy at law and in equity, including enforcement of sale. 
220 Buyer·s release of Seller does not relieve Seller of his liability to brokers under the listing contract. In the event of litigation between 
221 the parties, the prevailing party shall recover, in addition to damages or equitable relief, the cost of litigation including 
222 reasonable attorney's fee. This provision shall survive Closing and delivery of Seller's deed to Buyer. 

223 14. FOREIGN INVESTMENT IN REAL PROPERTY TAX ACT (FIRPTA). 
224 Seller represents that it is not a foreign person as described in the Foreign Investment in Real Property Tax Act [26 U.S.C § 1445] 
225 and agrees to deliver a certificate at Closing to that effect which contains Seller's tax ID number or Green Card. 

226 15. CONSTRUCTION. 
227 Words and phrases shall be construed as in the singular or plural number, and as masculine, feminine or gender neutral, according 
228 to the context. When the term "listing broker" is used, it refers to one of the following : a) a broker working for the Seller under an 
229 agency listing contract; orb) a broker assisting the Seller as a transaction broker, whichever is appropriate. When the term "selling 
230 broker" is used, it refers to one of the following : a) a broker working for the Buyer under a buyer's agency agreement; b) a broker 
231 assisting the Buyer as a subagent of the Seller; or c) a broker assisting the Buyer as a transaction broker, whichever is appropriate. 
232 The term "'broker" shall include the broker's affiliated licensees (referred to as "salespeople"). With the exception of the term 
233 "banking days" as used in paragraph 12, a day is defined as a 24-hour calendar day, seven (7) days per week. 

234 16. FLOOD PLAIN. 
235 Buyer may terminate this contract if any portion of the property is located in a designated I 00-year flood plain unless disclosed to 
236 Buyer in writing prior to contract. If terminated, earnest money to be returned to Buyer, subject to paragraph 12. Failure by Buyer 
237 to terminate within 10 days of actual knowledge of JOO-year flood plain, or by Closing, whichever occurs first, shall be deemed a 
238 waiver by Buyer of this contingency. 

239 17. ACCESS, FINAL WALK-THROUGH AND UTILITIES. 
240 Upon reasonable advance notice to Seller or listing broker, Seller agrees to provide access for appraiser(s) and other professionals 
241 as may be provided for in the contract or required by Buyer's lender or insurer. Buyer and selling broker may be present. Seller 
242 grants Buyer and selling broker the right to enter and walk-through the property and the right to have utilities turned on or 
243 transferred, at Buyer's expense, within four (4) days prior to Closing. This right is for the Buyer to see that the property is in the 
244 same condition, ordinary wear and tear excepted, as it was on the date of this contract. The Closing does not relieve Seller of his 
245 obligation to complete improvements and repairs required by this contract. 

246 18. SPECIAL AGREEMENTS. 
247 Special agreements and Riders between Buyer and Seller forming a part of this contract: _ ______________ _ 
248 ~N=/A~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-
249 
250 
251 
252 
253 

254 a Special Sale Inspection Rider (Form #2184) a Short Sale Rider to the Sale Contract (Form #2176) 

255 a Other# _ ______________ _ C Other#-- - - ------------

256 19. SQUARE FOOTAGE AND LOT SIZE DISCLOSURE. 
257 Broker is not an expert in measuring and does not measure the total square footage or lot size of the property, To the extent that 
258 Broker provides or shares information about the property, the information comes from one or more other sources, is only an 
259 approximation and is not verified by Broker. There may be differing standards used in Missouri for measuring total square footage 
260 of propetty, and the available information about total square footage can vary depending upon the source, the measurement 
261 standard that was used and the date of measurement. One source for total square footage is public information from the county 
262 assessor ' s office, but the county assessor's office does not warrant the accuracy of the information and neither does Broker. If you 
263 wish to have verifiable and accurate information about the total square footage of the property, you should retain a qualified 
264 professional appraiser to measure the property according to the measurement standard that the appraiser deems appropriate. The 
265 price per square foot for any property is a calculation based upon, among other things, total square footage, so price per square 
266 foot also is only an approximation and is subject to the same uncertainties and limitations described in this paragraph . ff you wish 
267 to have verifiable and accurate information on lot si ze you should retain a licensed surveyor. 

Page 5 of7 
___ ; _ __ Initials BUYER and SELLER acknowledge they have read this pngc _ __ / __ _ 
BUYER BUYER SELLER SELLER 

1h 



73431826 

268 20. SELLER'S DISCLOSURE STATEMENT. (Check one) 
269 D Buyer confirms that before signing this offer to purchase, Buyer has read a copy of the Seller's Disclosure Statement for this 
270 property . The Seller's Disclosure Statement is not a substitute for any inspection that Buyer may wish to obtain . Buyer is 
271 advised to address any concerns Buyer may have about information in the statement by use of contingencies in the contract. 
272 D Seller agrees to provide Buyer with a Seller's Disclosure Statement within one ( 1) day after the "Acceptance Deadline" date. 
273 Buyer shall have three (3) days after the "Acceptance Deadline" date to review said statements and to declare in writing that 
274 the contract is terminated and the earnest money is to be returned to Buyer, subject to paragraph 12. Otherwise, this 
275 contingency shall be deemed as waived by Buyer. 
276 Im No Seller's Disclosure Statement will be provided by Seller. 
277 By his signature, Seller confirms that the information in the Seller's Disclosure Statement is accurate as of the date of this contract. 
278 Seller will fully and promptly disclose in writing any new material information pertaining to the property that is discovered at any 
279 time prior to Closing. Seller states that if Seller knows or should have known that the property was a lab, production or storage site 
280 for methamphetamine, or was the residence of a person convicted of crimes related to methamphetamine, Seller will attach a 
281 written explanation. 
282 Note: The Seller's Disclosure Statement is not in any way incorporated into the terms of this contract. 

283 21. RELATIONSHIPS AND COMMUNICATION DISCLOSURES. 
284 Buyer and Seller confirm that disclosure of the licensee's relationship was made no later than the first showing of the property, 
285 upon first contact, or immediately upon the occurrence of a change to the relationship. 
286 Note: Under MREC Rules and Regulations, one box must be checked in each of the following two sections by the Selling 
287 Licensee. 
288 Licensee assisting Seller is a: (Check appropriate box) 
289 D Seller' s Agent: Licensee is acting on behalf of the Seller. 
290 D Buyer's Agent: Licensee is acting on behalf of the Buyer. 
291 D Dual Agent: Licensee is acting on behalf of both Seller and Buyer. 
292 D Designated Agent: Licensee has been designated to act on behalfof the Seller. 
293 D Transaction Broker Assisting Seller: Licensee is not acting on behalf of either Seller or Buyer. 
294 Licensee Personal Interest Disclosure: (Complete only if applicable) 
295 (insert name of licensee) is a real 
296 estate broker or salesperson licensed in the state of and is (Check one or more, as applicable) 

297 D a party to this transaction; D a principal of and/or has a direct or indirect ownership interest with D Seller D Buyer; and/or 

298 D an immediate family member of D Seller D Buyer DOther Specify: ------ ------ ------

299 Licensee assisting Buyer is a: (Check appropriate box) 
300 D Buyer's Agent: Licensee is acting on behalf of the Buyer. 
301 D Seller's Agent: Licensee is acting on behalfofthe Seller. 
302 D Dual Agent: Licensee is acting on behalfofboth Buyer and Seller. 
303 D Designated Agent: Licensee has been designated to act on behalf of the Buyer. 
304 D Transaction Broker Assisting Buyer: Licensee is not acting on behalf of either Buyer or Seller. 
305 D Subagent of Seller: Licensee is acting on behalfof the Seller. 
306 Licensee Personal Interest Disclosure: (Complete only if applicable) 
307 (insert name of licensee) is a real 
308 estate broker or salesperson licensed in the state of and is (Check one or more, as applicable) 

309 D a party to this transaction; D a principal of and/or has a direct or indirect ownership interest with D Seller D Buyer; and/or 

310 Dan immediate family member of D Seller D Buyer DOther Specify: - - ----------------

311 Sources of compensation to Broker(s), including commissions and/or other fees: D Seller D Buyer 

Page 6 of7 
_ _ _ / ___ Initials BUYER and SELLER acknowledge they have read this page ___ / __ _ 
BUYER BUYER SELLER SELLER 

1h 



73431826 
312 Buyer and Seller acknowledge that they have received and read the Missouri Real Estate Commission Broker Disclosure Form. 

313 By signing below, the licensees confirm making disclosure of the brokerage relationship to the appropriate parties. 
314 All Parties agree that this transaction can be conducted by electronic/digital signatures, according to the Uniform Electronic 
315 Transaction Act as adopted by the state of Missouri. 

316 
317 

318 

319 

320 

321 

322 

323 

324 
325 

326 
327 

Brokerage Firm Name Assisting Buyer 

Broker's Firm State License ID#: ____ ... N,..../A...._ ___ _ 

By (Signature): ---------------

Printed Name: -------~N~LA~------

Licensee State License ID#: - -----N-l~A~----

Date: ______ MLS ID: ---~N~l~A~---

Brokerage Firm Name Assisting Seller 

Broker's Firm State License ID#: ____ _._N,../.._A.__ ___ _ 

By (Signature): --- ------------ -

Printed Name: --------~~--------
Licensee State License ID#: NIA 

Date: _______ MLS ID: ----~N~lA~----

OFFER to be accepted by Seller by: -~5~·0_0......,.p~-m of _________ A._...u~g ... u ... s ... t _2 .... 5_2 ... 0_2 .... 3 _ _ _ ____ _ 

BUYER SIGNATURE DATE BUYER SIGNATURE DATE 

Buyer Printed Name Buyer Printed Name 

328 SELLER ACCEPTS THE TERMS SET FORTH IN THIS CONTRACT. 

329 
330 SELLER SIGNATURE TIME and DA TE SELLER SIGNATURE TIME and DA TE 

331 
332 

333 
334 

James D Hagedorn City of Washington , Missouri 
Seller Printed Name Seller Printed Name 

OR ________ (initials) WE REJECT THIS OFFER AND MAKE A COUNTEROFFER. 
(use Form #2164 Sale Contract Counteroffer Form). 

335 OR (initials) WE REJECT THIS OFFER. 
336 Note: Unless otherwise agreed in writing, "Acceptance Deadline" is defined as the date for acceptance which was provided to 
33 7 the last party whose signature resulted in a contract ( even if that signature was obtained before the deadline). 

Page7of7 

Printed Using rormsRus.com On~Line Forms Software 7/22 1h 



August 11, 2023 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 

Washington MO 63090 

Re: Sale of City owned residential lot at 604 Hancock Street 

Dear Mayor and Council, 

636-390-1000 www.washmo.gov 

On June 27, 2023, the City requested proposals for the sale of a City owned lot at 604 Hancock Street. 

The minimum bid requested was $40,000. On July 28, 2023, the City received one proposal from RC 

Schrader Construction, LLC in the amount of $45,100. 

Staff recommends accepting the bid of $45,100 from RC Schrader Construction, LLC and entering into a 

contract to sell the residential lot at 604 Hancock Street. 

Sincerely, 

Darren Lamb, AICP 

City Administrator 

1h 



BILL NO. ________ _ INTRODUCED BY ________ _ 

ORDINANCE NO. -----------

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 23-13789 AND 
ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING 
AND DIRECTING THE ACCEPTANCE OF A GENERAL RELEASE 
AND SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY 
OF WASHINGTON, MISSOURI AND KIST, LLC 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Washington, Missouri, as follows: 

SECTION 1: Ordinance No. 23-13789 is hereby repealed. 

SECTION 2: The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to accept a General Release 

and Settlement Agreement by and between the City of Washington, Missouri and KIST, LLC, a 

copy of which is marked Exhibit A and is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, 

and such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry 

out and comply with the intent of this Ordinance, for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of 

the City. 

SECTION 3: The City shall, and the officials, agents and employees of the City are 

hereby authorized and directed to, take such further action, and execute and deliver such other 

documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply 

with the intent of this Ordinance. 

SECTION 4: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

SECTION 5: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 

and approval. 

Passed: - ---------

ATTEST: ----- -----
President of City Council 

Approved: ________ _ 

ATTEST: ----------
Mayor of Washington, Missouri 

22428642.v2 



Exhibit A 
GENERAL RELEASE AND SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

For the sole consideration of SIX THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED EIGHTY-SIX AND 24/100 
DOLLARS ($6,386.24) paid to KIST, LLC., a Missouri limited liability company, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
hereby acknowledged, KIST, LLC hereby releases, acquits and forever discharges the City of Washington, Missouri, and 
all of their attorneys, officers, directors, stockholders, partners, successors, assigns, agents and employees and all other persons, 
firms and corporations of and from any and all known or unknown liability, claims, causes of action, actions, demands, rights, 
damages, costs, expenses and compensations whatsoever, without limitation, including, but not limited to all claims involving 
water leakage or water damage to the structure located at #10 Lafayette Street/#11 W. Main Street, Washington, Missouri 
63090. 

It is understood and agreed that this settlement is a compromise of a doubtful and disputed claim, and that the payment 
made is not to be construed as an admission of liability on the part of the parties hereby released, and that said releasees deny 
liability therefor and intend merely to avoid litigation and buy their peace. 

KIST, LLC hereby declares and represents that the injuries and damages sustained are or may be permanent and 
progressive and that recovery therefrom is uncertain and indefinite and in executing this General Release and Settlement 
Agreement (hereinafter referred to as "Release"), it is understood and agreed that KIST, LLC rely wholly upon their judgment, 
belief and knowledge of the nature, extent, affect and duration of said injuries and damages and liability therefor and this is 
made without reliance upon any statement or representation of the parties hereby released or their representatives. KIST, LLC 
further declare and represent that no promise, inducement or agreement not herein expressed has been made to them and this 
"Release" contains the entire agreement between the parties hereto and that the terms of this "Release" are contractual and not 
a mere recital. 

KIST, LLC agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City of Washington, Missouri, and all of their 
attorneys, officers, directors, stockholders, partners, successors, assigns, agents and employees from any and all actions, causes 
of actions, claims, demands, costs, expenses, compensation and all consequential damages relating to liens or subrogation of 
healthcare benefits or medical expenses and workers' compensation benefits and payments, or any other form of lien arising 
from payments or benefits given to them or anyone else as a result of water leakage or water damage to the structure located 
at #10 Lafayette/#11 West Main Street, Washington, Missouri 63090. 

KIST, LLC agrees that this "Release" shall be construed and enforced under the laws of the State of Missouri. 

KIST, LLC agrees that this "Release" contains the entire understanding of the parties and may not be amended, 
modified, or otherwise changed in any respect except by written amendment executed by the parties to this agreement. 

CAUTION: READ BEFORE SIGNING BELOW: 

KIST,LLC 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

WITNESSES: 

Name Name 

Address Address 

21024877.v3 1i 



Signed and sworn to before me this __ day of 2023. -------

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: _____ _ 

21024877.v3 2 



405 Jefferson Street, Washington, MO 63090 

August 17, 2023 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 

Washington, MO 63090 

Re: General Release and Settlement Agreement with KIST, LLC 

Dear Mayor and City Council, 

636-390-1000 www.washmo.gov 

At the regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council on Monday, June 5, 2023, the Council approved a 

General Release and Settlement Agreement with the above mentioned for concrete work to be 

performed to improve drainage. As a result of such work being performed, some damage occurred to 

the existing conduit lines. The repairs were $1,059.94. Staff is recommending to approve the change to 

the settlement agreement from $5,326.30 to $6,386.24 to include the repairs to the conduit. 

Sincerely, 

b ~ 
City Administrator 

. 
1, 



BILL NO. --------- INTRODUCED BY ________ _ 

ORDINANCE NO. -----------

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROVISIONS OF 
CHAPTER 335 SCHEDULE II OF THE CODE OF THE 
CITY OF WASHINGTON, MISSOURI BY ADDING 
PROVISIONS FOR A STOP SIGN AT THE LOCATION 
DESCRIBED BELOW 

Be it ordained by the Council of the City of Washington, Missouri, as follows: 

SECTION 1: Chapter 335 Schedule II of the Code of the City of Washington, 

Missouri, is hereby amended by adding provisions for a stop sign at the following location, 

on the first name street: 

Schedule II: Stop Signs 

Location 
Add Delete 

- State Street, approaching Hom Street from the North ./ 

SECTION 2: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

SECTION 3: This ordinance shall take full effect and be in full force from and after 

its passage and approval. 

Passed: ------

ATTEST: ----------
President of City Council 

Approved: ________ _ 

ATTEST: ----------
Mayor of Washington, Missouri 

• 



405 Jefferson Street, Washington, MO 63090 

August 11, 2023 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Washington 
Washington, MO 63090 

RE : Propose Stop Sign 
State Street at Horn Street 

Dear Mayor and City Council Members: 

636-390-1010 www.washmo.gov 

The following ordinance was reviewed by the Traffic Committee August 11, 2023 and is recommended 
for approval. Thank you for your consideration. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Charles Stankovic, P.E. 
Interim City Engineer 



The City Traffic Committee shall erect stop signs at the following intersections on the first named streets: 
Location 

A Roy Drive, approaching the Wal-Mart south parking lot entrance from the north 

Abby Ridge Drive, approaching Westridge Drive from the north 

Alberta Lane, approaching Fifth Street from the north and south 

Alley, approaching Circle Drive from the south, between High Street and State Street 

Andrea Crest Drive, approaching Deutsch Crest Drive from the south 

Andrea Crest Drive, approaching Rock Crest Drive from the west 

Apple Blossom Lane, approaching Clay Street from the east 

Ashton Hills Court, approaching Washington Heights Drive from the east 

Auffenberg Ford, north/south entrances, approaching Washington Heights Drive from the east 

Bellars Lane, approaching Rabbit Trail Drive from the west 
[Ord. No. 20-13061, 2-18-2020] 

Bernard Street, approaching North Park Drive from the north 

Bernard Street, approaching Main Street, West from the south 

Bethony Court, approaching Rabbit Trail Drive from the east 
[Ord. No. 20-13061, 2-18-2020] 

Blue Jay Drive, East, approaching State Highway 47 from the west 

Blue Jay Drive, approaching East Fourteenth Street from the north 

Blue Jay Drive, approaching Sunnyside Street from the east and west 

Blue Jay Drive, on the west side of school entrance on the west side approaching east 

Bluff Road, approaching Westlink Drive from the west 

Boone Street, approaching Fifth Street from the north 

Boone Street, approaching Third Street from the north and south 

Borgia Drive, from the exit approaching Ninth Street, West 

Borgia's south parking lot, approaching High Street from the west 

Bradford Court, approaching Lexington Lane from the north 



Location 

Brookshire Lane, approaching Lexington Lane from the north 

Brookview Drive, approaching Brookview Drive from the east and west 

Brookview Drive, approaching East Fifth Street from the west 

Buckingham Drive, approaching Fourteenth Street from the south 

Burnside Street, approaching Eighth Street from the north 

Burnside Street, approaching Fifth Street from the north and south 

Burnside Street, approaching Third Street from the north and south 

Busch A venue, approaching Jefferson Street from the west 

Camp Street, approaching Eighth Street from the south 

Camp Street, approaching Missouri Route 100 from the south 

Cardinal Crest Court, approaching Rock Crest Drive from the east 

Carmel Lane, approaching West Main Street from the south 

Caroline Drive, approaching Madison Avenue from the east 

Carriage Court, approaching Fourteenth Street from the south 

Carriage Courts Drive, approaching Marbach Drive from the east 

Cecelia Drive, approaching Brookview Drive from the west 

Cedar Street, approaching Eighth Street from the north and south 

Cedar Street, approaching Fifth Street from the north and south 

Cedar Street, approaching Front Street from the south 

Cedar Street, approaching Main Street from the north and south 

Cedar Street, approaching Second Street from the north and south 

Cedar Street, approaching Third Street from the north and south 

Center Drive, approaching East Fifth Street from the north 

Center Drive, approaching Third Parkway from the south 

Chamber Drive, approaching Missouri Route A from the east 

Cherry Lane, approaching Meadlowlark Drive from the north and south 

Cherry Lane, approaching Ridgeview from the north and south 



Location 

Circle Drive, approaching State Street from the north 

City parks exits, approaching and entering High Street from the west, one (1) of the exits being opposite Second Street, West one (1) being 
opposite the west end of Roberts Street and the south line of one (1) of the exits being thirty (30) feet north of the south line of the City park 

Clark Drive, approaching Expedition Drive from the north 

Clark Drive, approaching Expedition Drive from the south 

Clark Drive, approaching Steutermann Road from the north 

Clay Avenue, approaching Fifth Street from the south 

Columbus Lane, approaching Wildey Way from the east 

Commodore Drive, approaching its intersection with Southbend Drive and Ninth Street from the north 

Crestview Drive, approaching Madison A venue from the west 

Dawn Drive, approaching Steutermann Road from the south 

Deer Run Drive, approaching Bieker Road from the east 

Deutsch Crest Drive, approaching Rock Crest Drive from the east 

Deutsch Crest Drive, approaching Rock Crest Drive from the west 

Deutsch Crest Drive, approaching South Point Road from the west 

Discovery Court, approaching Expedition Drive from the north 

Don A venue, approaching High Street from the east 
[Ord. No. 20-13061, 2-18-2020] 

Don A venue, approaching High Street from the west 
[Ord. No. 20-13061, 2-18-2020] 

Dubois Street, approaching Fremont Street from the north and south 

Dubois Street, approaching Fifth Street, West from the north 

Dukes Way, approaching Rabbit Trail Drive from the northwest 
[Ord. No. 20-13061, 2-18-2020] 

Duncan A venue, approaching Madison A venue from the southwest 

Durham Drive, approaching Buckingham Drive from the west 

Eaglecrest Drive, approaching Stone Crest Drive from the south 

Earth Crest Drive, approaching Deutsch Crest Drive from the north 

• 



Location 

Earth Crest Drive, approaching North Crest Drive from the east 
[Ord. No. 20-13061, 2-18-2020] 

East Lane Drive, approaching Fifth Street from the north 

East Rose Lane, approaching Camp Street from the east 
[Ord. No. 15-11428 § 1, 8-3-2015] 

Eckelkamp Court, approaching Bieker Road from the north 

Edith Street, approaching High Street from the east 

Edith Street, approaching Rand Street from the east and west 

Edward Place, approaching Mike Alan Drive from the southwest 

Eighth Street, approaching Klingsick Lane from the east and west 

Eighth Street, approaching Madison Avenue from the east and west 

Eighth Street, East, approaching Clay Street from the east 

Eighth Street, East, approaching Roosevelt Street from the west 

Eighth Street, West, approaching High Street from the east and west 

Eighth Street, West, approaching Hill Street from the east and west 

Eighth Street, West, approaching Stafford Street from the east and west 

Eighth Street, East, approaching Sunnyside Street from the east and west 

Eisenberg's first addition parking lot, approaching Washington Heights Drive from the west at both the northern and center locations 
[Ord. No. 15-11361 § 1, 1-20-2015] 

Eleventh Street, East, approaching Jefferson Street from the east 

Eleventh Street, East, approaching Sunnyside Street from the west 

Elliott Hills Court, approaching Ashton Hills Court from the south 

Elm Street, approaching Eighth Street from the north 

Elm Street, approaching Eighth Street from the south 

Elm Street, approaching Fifth Street from the north and south 

Elm Street, approaching Front Street from the south 

Elm Street, approaching Second Street, West from the north and south 

Elm Street, approaching Third Street from the north and south 



Location 

Elm Street, approaching Main Street, West from the north and south 

Emerson Drive, approaching Main Street, West from the north 

Enduro Drive, approaching Vossbrink Drive from the north 

English Crest Drive, approaching Deutsch Crest Drive from the west 

Esther Street, approaching High Street from the west 

Ethan Drive, approaching Vemaci Drive from the west 

Expedition Drive, approaching Highway A from the east 

Fair Street, approaching Esther Avenue from the south 
[Ord. No. 22-13619, 9-19-2022] 

Fair Street, approaching James Street from the north and south 

Fairview Drive, approaching Madison A venue from the west 

Fawn Drive, approaching Bieker Road from the east 

Fieldcrest Drive, approaching Madison A venue from the west 

Fieldstone Court, approaching Madison A venue from the west 

Fifth Street, approaching MacArthur A venue from the east and west 

Fifth Street, West, approaching Cedar Street from the east and west 

Fifth Street, West, approaching High Street from the east and west 

Fifth Street, West, approaching Stafford Street from the east and west 

Fifth Street, West, approaching Missouri Route 100 from the east 

Fire Crest Court, approaching Earth Crest Drive from the west 
[Ord. No. 20-13061, 2-18-2020] 

First Parkway, approaching West Way Drive from the east 

First Street, approaching Missouri A venue from the west 

First Street, East, approaching Boone Street from the east 

First Street, East, approaching Franklin A venue from the east and west 

First Street, East, approaching West Way Drive from the west 

Fourteenth Street, approaching High Street from the east and west 

Fourth Street, approaching Jefferson Street from the east and west 



Location 

Fourth Street, East, approaching Hooker Street from the west 

Fourth Street, East, approaching Locust Street from the east and west 

Fourth Street, East, approaching Market Street from the east and west 

Fourth Street, West, approaching Cedar Street from the east 

Fourth Street, West, approaching Elm Street from the east and west 

Fourth Street, West, approaching Lafayette Street from the east and west 

Fourth Street, West, approaching Oak Street from the east and west 

Fox Trotter Lane, approaching Thoroughbred Drive from the south 

Frank Street, approaching Horn Street from the north 

Frank Street, approaching Third Street from the south 

Fremont Street, approaching Cedar Street from the west 

Fremont Street, approaching Stafford Street from the east and west 

Front Street, West, approaching Lafayette Street from the east and west 

Fulton Street, approaching Eighth Street from the north 

Fulton Street, approaching Fifth Street from the north and south 

Fulton Street, approaching Third Street from the north and south 

Glenn A venue, approaching Ninth Street from the south 

Gold Crest Drive, approaching Deutsch Crest Drive from the west 

Graham Road, approaching Weber Heights Drive from the south 
[Ord. No. 20-13061, 2-18-2020] 

Grand Avenue, approaching Fifth Street from the north 

Grayson Ridge Drive, approaching Westridge Drive from the north 

Halls Green Drive, approaching Statten Drive from the north 
[Ord. No. 20-13061, 2-18-2020] 

Halls Green Road, approaching Weber Heights Drive from the south 
[Ord. No. 21-13240, 1-19-2021] 

Hancock Street, approaching Eighth Street from the north 

Hancock Street, approaching Fifth Street from the south 



Location 

Hancock Street, approaching First Street from the north and south 

Hancock Street, approaching Third Street from the north 

Hanover Way, approaching West Ninth from the south 
[Ord. No. 20-13061, 2-18-2020] 

Hara Lane, approaching Mike Allen Drive from the south 

Hara Lane, approaching Wenona Drive from the north 

Henry Street, approaching Eighth Street from the north 

Henry Street, approaching Fifth Street from the north and south 

Henry Street, approaching Third Street from the south 

Hickory Street, approaching Fifth Street from the south 

High Street, approaching Fifth Street from the north and south 

High Street, approaching Front Street from the south 

High Street, approaching Ninth Street from the north and south 

High Street, approaching Third Street from the north and south 

Hill Street, approaching Fifth Street from the north and south 

Hill Street, approaching Ninth Street from the north 

Homestead at Hickory View parking lot, approaching Marbach Drive from the west 

Hooker Street, approaching Fifth Street from the north and south 

Hooker Street, approaching Third Street from the north and south 

Hom Street, approaching Fair Street from the west 

Hom Street, approaching High Street from the east 

Hom Street, approaching Louis Street from the east 

Hom Street, approaching Stafford Street from the east and west 

Horse Crest Court, approaching Rock Crest Drive from the east 

Huxel Drive, approaching Fourteenth Street from the north 

Huxel Drive, approaching Fourteenth Street from the south 

Huxel Drive, approaching Highway 100 from the north 

• 

1~ 



Location 

Image Drive, approaching Stafford Street from the west 

Industrial A venue, approaching Eighth Street from the north 

International Avenue, approaching Fifth Street from the north and south 

James Street, approaching High Street from the east and west . 
Jasonridge Drive, approaching Westridge Drive from the north 

Jasper Lane, approaching Westridge Drive from the south 

Jefferson Street, approaching Front Street from the south 

Jefferson Street, approaching Third Street from the north and south 

Jessica Hills Court, approaching Washington Heights Drive from the west 

Johnson Street, approaching Second Street from the north and south 

Johnson Street, approaching Third Street, West from the north 

Jubilee Lane, approaching Rabbit Trail Drive from the west 
[Ord. No. 20-13061, 2-18-2020] 

Kaleb Court, approaching Washington Heights Drive from the west 

Karen Lane, approaching Madison A venue from the east 

Kelley Court, approaching Karen Lane from the north 

King Crest Court, north entrance, approaching Rock Crest Drive from the west 

King Crest Court, south entrance, approaching Rock Crest Drive from the west 

Kingsland Drive, approaching Old Highway 100, from the north 

Kingsland Drive, approaching the railroad crossing from the north and south 

Klingsick Lane, approaching Fifth Street, from the south 

Klingsick Lane, approaching Ninth Street, West from the north 

Koerner Court, approaching Weber Heights Drive from the south 

Kohl's Department Stores, Inc., east parking lot entrance, approaching South Point Road from the south 

Kohl's Department Stores, Inc., west parking lot entrance, approaching Phoenix Center Drive from the south 

Kuenzel Drive, approaching Shirley Close Road from the west 
[Ord. No. 20-13061, 2-18-2020] 

Kuenzel Drive, approaching Weber Heights Drive from the north 

• 



Location 

Kuenzel Drive, approaching Weber Heights Drive from the south 

Lafayette Street, approaching Fifth Street from the north 

Lafayette Street approaching Fourth Street from the north and south 
[Ord. No. 18-11962, 12-17-2018] 

Lafayette Street, approaching Front Street from the south 

Lafayette Street, approaching Main Street from the north and south 

Lafayette Street, approaching Second Street from the north and south 

Lafayette Street, approaching Third Street from the north and south 

Lake View Drive, approaching Rabbit Trail Drive from the west 

Lake Washington Drive, approaching Lakeview Drive from the north 

Lake Washington Drive, approaching Lexington Lane from the south 

Lange Drive, approaching Bluff Road from the south 

Lewis and Clark Drive, approaching Washington Crossing from the west 

Lexington Lane, approaching Bieker Road from the east 

Lexington Lane, approaching Washington Heights Drive from the east and west 

Lincoln Street, approaching Ninth Street from the north 

Locust Street, approaching Eighth Street, East from the north and south 

Locust Street, approaching Eleventh Street from the north and south 

Locust Street, approaching Fifth Street from the north and south 

Locust Street, approaching Third Street from the north and south 

Louis Street, approaching Fifth Street from the north and south 

Louis Street, approaching Ninth Street from the north 

Lyon Street, approaching Fourteenth Street from the north 

MacArthur A venue, approaching Eighth Street from the north and south 

MacArthur Avenue, approaching Fifth Street from the north and south 

MacArthur Avenue, approaching Third Street from the north and south 

Madison Avenue, approaching Fifth Street from the north and south 



Location 

Madison Avenue, approaching State Highway 47 from the east 

Madison Avenue, approaching Third Street from the north and south 

Madison Avenue, east side, ninety-five (95) feet north of the north line of Fifth Street, East 

Madison Avenue, west side, one hundred twenty (120) feet south of the south line of Third Street, East 

Main Street, approaching Jefferson Street from the east and west 

Main Street, approaching Tiemann Drive from the east 

Main Street, East, approaching Market Street from the east and west 

Main Street, West, approaching Cedar Street from the east and west 

Main Street, West, approaching Elm Street from the east and west 

Main Street, West, approaching Lafayette Street from the east and west 

Main Street, West, approaching Oak Street from the east and west 

Main Street, West, approaching Olive Street from the east 

Malinda Lane; approaching Fifth Street from the north 

Maple Valley Court, approaching Locust Street 
[Ord. No. 21-13240, 1-19-2021] 

Maplecrest Court, approaching Stone Crest Drive from the south 

Marbach Drive, approaching Fourteenth Street from the south 

Market Street, approaching Fifth Street from the north and south 

Market Street, approaching Jefferson Street from the north 

Market Street, approaching Main Street from the north and south 
[Ord. No. 20-13224, 12-21-2020] 

Market Street, approaching Third Street from the north and south 

Marquart Drive, approaching Highway A from the west 

Martina Drive, approaching Steutennann Road from the south 

Mason Close Road, approaching Statten Drive from the north 
[Ord. No. 21-13468, 12-20-2021] 

Mason Close Road, approaching Weber Heights Drive from the south 
[Ord. No. 20-13061, 2-18-2020] 



Location 

Maurice Unnerstall Drive, approaching Vossbrink Drive from the south 

McLean Avenue, approaching Hom Street from the north 

Meadow Drive, approaching Steutermann Road from the south 

Meadowlark Drive, approaching High Street from the east 

Meadowlark Drive, approaching Stafford Street from the west 

Meadowood Drive, approaching Highway A from the west 

Melanie Lane, approaching Karen Lane from the south 

Mercy Doctor's Building parking lot, approaching Fifth Street from the north 

Mercy Doctor's Building parking lot, approaching Third Street from the south 

Meriwether Drive, approaching Expedition Drive from the north 

Michelle Drive, approaching Streutermann Road from the south 

Mike Alan Drive, approaching Rabbit Trail Drive from the west 

Mike Alan Drive, approaching Wenona Drive from the north and south 

Millicent Court, approaching Rabbit Trail Drive from the west 

Mission Drive, approaching Old Highway 100 from the north 

Missouri A venue, approaching Missouri Route 4 7 from the east and west 

Missouri State Highway 100, driveway north of, approaching Brookview Drive from the east 

Monticello Drive, approaching Lexington Lane from the north 

Monty View, approaching Martina Drive from the west 

Monty View, approaching Steutermann Road from the south 

Moon Crest Court, approaching Wind Crest Court from the north 
[Ord. No. 20-13061, 2-18-2020] 

Mountain Crest Drive, approaching Earth Crest Drive from the west 

Nickridge Drive, approaching Westridge Drive from the north 

Ninth Street, at its intersection with Southbend Drive, approaching Southbend Drive from the south 

Ninth Street, East, approaching International Avenue from the east and west 

Ninth Street, West, approaching Cedar Street from the west 

• 



Location 

Ninth Street, West, approaching Clay Street from the east 

Ninth Street, West, approaching High Street from the east and west 

Ninth Street, West, approaching Stafford Street from the east and west 

Nora Street, approaching Eighth Street from the north and south 

Nora Street, approaching Ninth Street, West from the north and south 

Nora Street, approaching Seventh Street, West from the north and south 

North Crest, approaching Wind Crest Court from the north 
[Ord. No. 20-13061, 2-18-2020) 

North Park Drive, approaching Tiemann Drive from the west 

Norwood Trailer Park, approaching Missouri Route 47 from the east, both north and south entrances 

Oak Street, approaching Fifth Street from the north 

Oak Street, approaching Fourth Street from the north and south 

Oak Street, approaching Front Street from the south 

Oak Street, approaching Main Street from the north and south 

Oak Street, approaching Second Street from the north and south 

Oak Street, approaching Third Street from the north and south 

Old Highway 100, approaching East Fifth Street from the east 

Olive Street, approaching Front Street from the south 

Olive Street, approaching Second Street from the north and south 

Olive Street, approaching Third Street from the north and south 

Oriole Lane, approaching Stafford Street from the east 

Oxford Drive, approaching Buckingham Drive from the east 

Palomino Court, approaching Fox Trotter Lane from the north 

Paradise Lane, approaching Fifth Street from the north 

Pauwels Drive, approaching Bluff Road from the south 

Penn Street, approaching Eighth Street from the north 

Penn Street, approaching Fifth Street from the north and south 

• 
1) 



Location 

Penn Street, approaching Third Street from the north and south 

Phoenix Center Drive, approaching Vernaci Drive from the east and west 

Phoenix Center II parking lot entrance of Lot 2, approaching Phoenix Center Drive from the north 

Phoenix Drive, approaching Rabbit Trail Drive from the east 

Phoenix Park Drive, approaching Vernaci Drive from the west 
[Ord. No. 20-13061, 2-18-2020] 

Pine Street, approaching Main Street from the south 

Pine Street, approaching Second Street from the north 

Pool Brook Way, approaching Weber Heights Drive from the north 
[Ord. No. 20-13061, 2-18-2020] 

Rainbow Drive, approaching Duncan Avenue from the east 

Rainbow Drive, approaching Madison Avenue from the west 

Rand Street, approaching Second Street from the north and south 

Rand Street, approaching Third Street, West from the north and south 

Rand Street, approaching West Main Street from the south 

Rebecca Court, approaching Wenona Drive from the south 

Recycle Drive, approaching Westlink Drive from the north 

Red Bird Crest Lane, approaching Deutsch Crest Drive from the south 

Regina Drive, approaching Westridge Drive from the south 

Ridgeview Drive, approaching High Street from the east 

Ridgeview Drive, approaching Stafford Street from the west 

Riverbend Estates parking lot, approaching High Street from the west 
[Ord. No. 20-13061, 2-18-2020] 

Riverview Place, approaching Boone Street from the west 

Roberts Street, approaching High Street from the east 

Roberts Street, approaching Johnson Street from the east 

Roberts Street, approaching Rand Street from the west 

Roberts Street, approaching Stafford Street from the west 



Location 

Rock Crest Drive, approaching Deutsch Crest Drive from the north 

Rock Crest Drive, approaching Deutsch Crest Drive from the south 

Rock Crest Drive, approaching Stone Crest Drive from the north 

Ron Avenue, approaching High Street from the east 

Roosevelt Street, approaching Fifth Street from the south 

Roosevelt Street, approaching Ninth Street from the north 

Rose Lane, approaching Madison A venue from the east 

Royal Crest Court, east entrance, approaching Stone Crest Drive from the north 

Royal Crest Court, west entrance, approaching Stone Crest Drive from the north 

Ruether Court, approaching Highway A from the west 

Running Creek Court, approaching Fourteenth Street from the north 

Scenic Drive, approaching Madison A venue from the west 

Schaper A venue, approaching Eighth Street from the south 

Schnucks Washington Crossing entrance, approaching Steutermann Road from the north 

Schnucks Washington Crossing Shopping Center, approaching Washington Crossing from the east 

Second Street, approaching Jefferson Street from the east and west 

Second Street, East, approaching Locust Street from the east and west 

Second Street, East, approaching Market Street from the east and west 

Second Street, West, approaching Oak Street from the east and west 

Second Street, West, approaching Cedar Street from the east and west 

Second Street, West, approaching Elm Street from the east and west 

Second Street, West, approaching High Street from the east 

Second Street, West, approaching Lafayette Street from the east and west 

Seventh Street, approaching Elm Street from the east 

Seventh Street, East, approaching Burnside Street from the east and west 

Seventh Street, East, approaching MacArthur A venue from the west 

Seventh Street, West, approaching Clay Street from the east 



Location 

Seventh Street, West, approaching High Street from the east and west 

Seventh Street, West, approaching Hill Street from the east and west 

Seventh Street, West, approaching Klingsick Lane from the east 

Seventh Street, West, approaching Stafford Street from the west 

Shirley Close Road, approaching Weber Heights Drive from the south 
[Ord. No. 20-13061, 2-18-2020] 

Silver Crest Drive, approaching Deutsch Crest Drive from the west 

Sixth Street, approaching Hancock Street from the east and west 

Sixth Street, approaching Jefferson Street from the east and west 

Sixth Street, approaching Roosevelt Street from the east and west 

Sixth Street, East, approaching Burnside Street from the east and west 

Sixth Street, East, approaching Franklin Avenue from the east and west 

Sixth Street, East, approaching Fulton Street from the east and west 

Sixth Street, East, approaching Henry Street from the east and west 

Sixth Street, East, approaching Hooker Street from the east and west 

Sixth Street, East, approaching Locust Street from the east and west 

Sixth Street, East, approaching MacArthur A venue from the east and west 

Sixth Street, East, approaching Madison Street from the east and west 

Sixth Street, East, approaching Market Street from the east and west 

Sixth Street, East, approaching Penn Street from the east and west 

Sixth Street, East, approaching Walnut Street from the east and west 

Sixth Street, East, approaching Washington Avenue from the east and west 

Sixth Street, West, approaching Cedar Street from the east and west 

Sixth Street, West, approaching Elm Street from the east and west 

Sixth Street, West, approaching Stafford Street from the east and west 

South Lakeshore Drive, approaching Grand Avenue from the east 

Southbend Drive, approaching Fifth Street from the west 

• 



Location 
Southlink Drive, approaching Westlink Drive from the south 
Southwinds Circle, approaching Southwinds Drive from the west 
Southwinds Drive, approaching Fourteenth Street from the south 
Springcrest Court, approaching Stone Crest Drive from the south 
Stafford Street, approaching Eighth Street from the north and south 
Stafford Street, approaching Fifth Street from the north and south 
Stafford Street, approaching Fourteenth Street from the north 
Stafford Street, approaching Front Street from the south 
Stafford Street, approaching Second Street from the south and north 
Stafford Street, approaching Third Street from the north and south 
State Street, approaching Horn Street from the north 
State Street, approaching James Street from the north and south 
Statten Drive, approaching Graham Road from the east 
[Ord. No. 21-13468, 12-20-2021] 
Statten Drive, approaching Rabbit Trail Drive from the west 
[Ord. No. 20-13061, 2-18-2020] 
Steriger Avenue, approaching Fifth Street, East from the north 
Steutermann Road, approaching Missouri Route A from the east 
Stone Crest Drive, approaching Deutsch Crest Drive from the west 
Stone Crest Drive, approaching South Point Road from the west 
Struckhoff Lane, approaching Bluff Road from the north 
St. John's Hospital parking lot exit, approaching Washington Avenue from the west 
Suncrest Court, approaching Stone Crest Drive from the south 
Sunnyside Street, approaching Blue Jay Drive from the north 
Sunnyside Street, approaching Eighth Street, East from the north and south 
Sunnyside Street, approaching Eleventh Street from the north and south 
Sunnyside Street, approaching Seventh Street from the south 
Target Corporation east parking lot entrance, approaching Phoenix Center Drive from the south 

7j



Location 

Target Corporation parking lot entrance, approaching Vemaci Drive from the west 

Target Corporation west parking lot entrance, approaching Phoenix Center Drive from the south 

Tayson Way, approaching Weber Heights Drive from the north 
(Ord. No. 20-13061 , 2-18-2020] 

Tenth Street, approaching Jefferson Street from the east and west 

Tenth Street, East, approaching Locust Street from the west 

Terry Lane, approaching Fifth Street from the north and south 

Third Parkway, approaching East Lane Drive from the west 

Third Parkway, approaching West Way Drive from the east 

Third Street, approaching Jefferson Street from the east and west 

Third Street, East, approaching Alberta Lane from the east and west 

Third Street, East, approaching East Lane Drive from the east 

Third Street, East, approaching International A venue from the east and west 

Third Street, East, approaching Market Street from the east and west 

Third Street, East, approaching Terry Lane from the east and west 

Third Street, West, approaching Cedar Street from the east and west 

Third Street, West, approaching Elm Street from the east and west 

Third Street, West, approaching High Street from the east and west 

Third Street, West, approaching Lafayette Street from the east and west 

Third Street, West, approaching Oak Street from the east and west 

Third Street, West, approaching Stafford Street from the east and west 

Third Street, West, approaching State Street from the east 

Thirteenth Street, approaching Jefferson Street from the west 

Thoroughbred Drive, approaching South Point Road from the east 

Tiemann Drive, approaching Main Street from the north and south 

Tina Drive, approaching Mike Allen Drive from the north 

Twelfth Street, approaching Jefferson Street from the west 

• 
1) 



Location 

Twelfth Street, West, approaching Stafford Street from the east 

Union Street, also know as Simonds Avenue, approaching the railroad tracks of Missouri Pacific Railroad Company from the south and north 

Valley Drive, approaching Steutermann Road from the south 

Vemaci Drive, approaching Phoenix Center Drive from the south 

Veterans Drive, approaching Grand Avenue from the east 

Veterans Drive, approaching State Street from the west 

Vossbrink Drive, approaching Bluff Road from the south 

Vossbrink Drive, approaching Highway 100 from the east 

W-W Industrial Park Drive, approaching Missouri Route 100 from the north, both east and west entrances 

Wainwright, approaching Jefferson Street from the east 

Wal-Mart north parking lot entrance, approaching A Roy Drive from the west 

Wal-Mart north parking lot 
[Repealed by Ord. No. 15-11361 § 1, 1-20-2015] 

Wal-Mart south parking lot entrance, approaching A Roy Drive from the west for left-tum movements 

Walnut Street, approaching Eighth Street from the north 

Walnut Street, approaching Fifth Street from the north and south 

Walnut Street, approaching Fourth Street from the north and south 

Walnut Street, approaching Second Street from the north and south 

Walnut Street, approaching Third Street from the north and south 

Washington Avenue, approaching Eighth Street from the north 

Washington Avenue, approaching Fifth Street from the north and south 

Washington Avenue, approaching Third Street from the north and south 

Washington Crossing, approaching Steutermann Road from the north 

Washington Heights Drive, approaching Lexington Lane from the north and south 

Washington High School exit, approaching Blue Jay Drive from the south at the intersection of Blue Jay Drive and Sunnyside Street 

Washington Post Office parking lot, approaching Washington Crossing from the west 

Washington Square parking lot, approaching Missouri Route 100 from the south 

• 
1.) 



BILL NO. INTRODUCED BY ________ _ ---------
ORDINANCE NO. ___ ______ _ 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A BOUNDARY 
ADJUSTMENT FOR STONE CREST SUBDIVISION 
PLAT 19, IN THE CITY OF WASHINGTON, FRANKLIN 
COUNTY, MISSOURI. 

WHEREAS, the plat, attached as Exhibit A demonstrating the boundary adjustment 

in the City of Washington, Missouri has been submitted to the City for approval; and 

WHEREAS, said plat meets the requirements of the applicable ordinances of the 

City of Washington, Missouri. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Washington, Missouri, as follows: 

SECTION 1: The boundary adjustment as shown in the attached Exhibit A in 

the City of Washington, Missouri is hereby approved. 

SECTION 2: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

SECTION 3: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and approval. 

Passed: ________ _ 

ATTEST: --------
President of City Council 

Approved: _________ _ 

ATTEST: ----------
Mayor of Washington, Missouri 

11( 



Exhibit A 

STONE CREST SUBDIVISION PLAT 19 1, /r,., <11>dr,1519n11.u 0 • 11e1 ol tr,._, r,ocl of /c: ,-.d SflD• r, f>cn'CW hove cDu::;ed fr,c ~Om<.· lo ce su.'"Veye<I c:ri,1 
subd,-vided ,,, ,~ monr,er S/lc,o,,n ~'<ff)fl Seid sutxf,v.sion stirilf oe lf,"lu• n os ""STONf CRFSf SUBOIVtSION 
1-'lA/ 1'!1 " 

BEING A RESUBDIVISJON OF LOT 198 OF STONE CREST SUBDIVISION PLAT 11 , 
AND LOT 199 OF STONE CREST SUBDIVISION PLAT 11 PHASE 1. IN PART OF 

U. S. SURVEY 1912, T44N, RlW OF THE 5TH P.M. 

/he: ., • .,.,.-..iq 1W ~ -""' ffll'~•"S w t:« ~ ... t4.)' e,;,se:n~-llls per plDf ot Stone Cresr $1,/:>d,vis,or 
P/ol H n ,..,.,(!r,d..., (\tn,,-w"t! JI.A l fl(U"' .'.ft tr- Office o f !fie Fron;.,1,"n Co<1nly Rccotd<:<r :,if /k~c,s 
'.If(] nff~/ l'Wf"~ ~ #'tCIUI;/ A' U'e• ~ IIWNif' 

rnc e-,isting Ir,/ /ine:s. or,d adjom,n r; $1:l tmc.lfs c,nd urd,ty eosem ants per plc,( of St-..,. Cresr Su:,d111,s,c,, 
0 /of 14- Pt,c,s ,: 1 c,s ,·ccorded in Ooc.vmen! No. 1900762 in the OffK::e c,( lhe I ~ Cavnry ~ecord<tr 
-, / De1:rJ<, o,c, hc,•rby tC'rnolll}O ona/c,t vacQ /ed as sr,i:,..,n hereon 

s rorvt cF<v,, r su&o1v1S10N 
P!AI 14 PHASE :J 

DOC. l 190J/4} 
LOT 2 i6 

rouND vr "'°"' MJb 
N8745':J8"w 5.00' ,llC'I lX)RJillp 

srONf CRfST SUBDM51QN 
,t:>LAf r ,; PNASC 2 

i)(JC /t~OJ143 
!01 21;, 

FOUND vr IRON ,1iOG, 

STOIVC CREST 51.JBDIVJSJON - PLAr 1 : 
Uf.X: /i! UJ12~ 

I 
4t,;.' f96 

l 
_ _J_ 

LOT r!i l 

IN THE CITY OF WASHINGTON, FRANKLIN COUNTY, MO. 

SrDNE CR[ST SUBO/V/S/ON 
Pt.Ar 14 .0HAS£ l 

DOC f1S00762 
LOT 200 

\ \ \ ------L0T22 r ~ 

f""'4>~b,,,,,,.,.... - ---
\ N1.TJ,4 '41L &.01'.:!f!!" C"GR1o'at 

\ 
\ 
\ 

I 

\- ---

~ 5/8 • IRON ROD 

h l I 
<; ~ I I 

wr 220 

STONC CREST SU8DMSl0N 
PUtr 14 PHAS~ I 

one /l!J0076? 

---

-1'"--;:;;,,,:,~,,,~. ;;::: .... ~ 8t"'°'•,"""· -~:: I I 
r, / Oi'OSS Cur ON CURB _J r 

---'c/ 1, IY!ND (;.REST CT. SD71• '12',r 7.14' FROM CORNER 
!'X!$ '1Mf) .$i0" ~ PDif-c,r-..o,y - --- - --- - _ 

5,;fleduf.! fl of a currenr M/e rep.Jrl has nct 
b = n turn,"shc a to V, c ~0 1'0' 5,,r~e-yc>r l>y 11:,e 
Clie,., r ano no ff, tes li901ior, /'l as t.,,/:Cfl 

conovdcd as to ine prc!>erd s/a/u:: of 
141JSemenls orolfle'f"rcstr:ctiv,ei:o ndition:; 
01fec1:n9 :fl(• s"bfccr lrmd 

rem:e lire encroacnmcn!:, 111il/ nor 
necessc,•llybe::;no 11n 

Linc ,;ro i, cs .,,;11 no/ be., prr:w,dcd un/c!.'J 
spcc.d1co11y rcq u l·r; l f:d. 

F<Jflti ermor<1 .. ;1;1(,Ju/ ri r;urtfft'' I Ii/le r<1111:.r l 
/ /'! ,; lrmrl ~·1.11~1:yur mcltt:s no l)u<1ronreo1 /11.: 
a-.nC'r!J ,;.•, st1r, w11 /io:r11r,m m11 1:011,K/ 

/.nyth(nr; r1ul v .:.1l!l1: !rum 1h11 1,urlul·11 ,,. r1c. l 
CCJf !if,c,,.1 i., 

i:a11veyi.1,.c., oy tJt1ttd 1>'flr.JII /1]//r, ,. te~·ordohOll 
ol plot ro c h'1n9.: <J"'n111s.11,p 

I!,., lumJ 3 1,fVe'yQr molte$ , ,., 91,urul//eo'/ Cho: 
1Jf;1:t1c:.,,: 10 the lon.Js cs 1,hc,,..n ne.-e.in llc::s 
bt·t::, ,p<1nfeC:, ,dent,ficd. or reserv<Jd. 

-T-
':ilONt. CHtS-1 S-Uf:J/JMSION - ~LA I I I 

i)QC. / 1110;25 

I 
LOT ,., I 

I 
l 
I 

CURVE TABLE 

I 

I 
,.o, 179 

l 5,0N( CRE:ST SU80IV1SIO!;' - ~LAT I f l IJUf.'/ I IIU r~~:, 

LOT 178 

!!!!!:!!:!..ER I CHORD DIR[CTION l CHORD ( (.Nl.;TH f RADIUS I Af/C LENGTH 

c, I ~ or47'J5· c T t12:J;, ) :nboo l H:,,11.J 

c.1 I 0w "1f"»'J~ · • · , , J1 1,0 oo j ,sgs 

It..- ~ti~ tll'f' ...,~ 0t ~ I-A Id~ ,r>,Ut"!"'V"'rt N"Nt' ,Qt'r l'l ,rcby 
·k•dir:,1/eod to /t, ~· ::r, +' ~M PS:' J/IWo,,-., ~ ~ ~(~ CIXI .a....,:•, lo, " ' CCll.llth.>( ' O"I 
Jnd 'rJLJi,i/c•nom,c li1J ur-t- r~ i.1t* Nl~-.i:, J ~ ~ r111 .o-::M, M""ttl, ~ ts, N 
~11U'9Qlft9~~-· r,..~ tt«"mf'r~~,,,........,.,..,. """°"" '" '1w~1,o ,_ 
rht1: Otrrie,r '6.i f!OC M ili)4 _., nu, f~•'t" ~ ilt...i ,.,IN'lf~J j>,,. alOU'II "'ult:r ·~~ • m s-.:r vmq 

~~; ~~b~;~ooMU ~ .. ~ ~~~ :f:.~ ~ ~~ ~°:o~i;':J» ~:;-:.'::-.: uoJy t;~~ 
<JBrvea by i.r-11 #.f.""1" • lot( .. ~I~ 

it;e lots are :;i,b/er::t !c, r~str,c1i,;.ms cf re~urd. os rht-y ,:;isf 
: meflde.i. 

90 '/II ',nTNCSS Wf/CRCOr: I haw, 11ar~1m/c sef my IIDflrJ Ul,s doy c,I __ --- • 

SCALC 1 • JO 

• • FOUND MONUMENT 
+ • FOUNO CROSS CUT 

sa vr (RON ROD ,4f LOT CORNERS 

U.E. - unurr OOEMENr 
S.0.£ = s rORU DRNHAGE fASfM[Nr 

SF • SOUARE FUJ 

A.CCUR.4C r STANDARD - URBA,N PROPERrr 

oeED RffERENCE DOC. /21 02220 
& DOC. /210494'4 , 

8£:AR/NGS BASED ON AJISSOURI STA rE PLANE 
COORDINATr SYSTEM, EAST ZONE (GRID NORTH), 

ZONED R IA & RID 

~ 
SETBACKS; 
FRONT YARD .- 2 ~ ' 
SIDE YMD • 6' 
REAR YMD = 25' 
IJINIMUM wr 1,/([A• 10,000 SF 

/ilD....ZJ!fJjJ 
~CKS.· 
fROl,IT YARD - 2~· 
SIDE YARD • 6' 
R("Af( YARD • 25' 
j,tMJ/(ll,IC.Of~t.msr 

~ ucaor-- rrooo: 
{MA Y NOr BE CRAPHICALJ.Y D£PJC1F.D HEREON) 

fflONT "' r,• 
RF.AR ~ 10· 
SID( = 5 ' 

W,NIA(:I f'A41// Y flW';f II/A 

SiA i[ ,• MIS~OUF?/ 

:ouNiY or f"RANl<LJN 

,N T£.Sm.t0 N>' Wh[ R[.Or. ' lla ett nare i,n /c se t my nond O,"ld a ff,J/er;J m,. c,/t ic ,;:il :,e'11 ,n 1'i t1 C:01;,1 /y a11.: 
Stoic oforcso,d. tile daJ ond Jcor rit!It oao,e wrirt~r,. 

4'y /,:rm e11pires: - - -- ·--------- ••• 

I. Do"g rum/mo,,,;. (:c,11ec:,,, ,,1 kt:vt•n,. ,t :<,r f1ankl1n Coua/y. Misso,.u,. f,rsf t.lt!"lfl9 d,Jly :;wQln dcpn,;., 
enc, soy lhe>r , om fomilict with Ille fc,nd tJelon9,n9 lo 4/or,io~i f"omiJy Tru$I e>nd subd,-viC:ed c,.1 ·5ror.;[ 
CPi.Sf SUHfJIVl'>ION P1A : :9• r.110 !urtne: slate 1001 :r>Nl' c,c no <1c.1inQU('"1/ lo" C3 Sf'~::-r.ll'fl::. Oil I/!(' 

ofo, .,!.r1«J l<md ,;huwn 1:vc 1-·ronlil,n Coun:y 

Dou'} rnm u num r 
Ce>/Jecfc,r or Revenue 
Fre>nk/i,: Co,R, l;t, Mo 

I, ~-lierri Klekomt:J, City Cieri< fc,r onrJ w, t fl in tne Cilv of Washington. Missr;,uri. do n£>1t!OJ r:c,·MJ /llo / 
r:h~ (]00VO: p lo / /JI 'STON[ (.'!,.'[Sr SU801V!SJUN Pu,r }':I " .. as CJpj,raet'd by II' <: C,!y Co 11n,,/ v: 
t','c,5/J ,ngle>n 11.issour,. by Otai, u.mi:t: Nu -- --- -------- pos5ecJ a11<1 Qporoo~ r/,., 

:N TCS nMQI\/'( Wll[R[ Dr. , rio~t r>,t1<1vnlo St:I my hond ond a fln1ed ffl)' c,ff-r.,ol S'701 uf ,,,., C,ty of 
Washington, 4-tisse>vn (111:; aoy vf 

S11erri l<~komp 
C,ry Cl~rk. Wos11,n9Ce>11. MO 

1. Com~tQII L11~ke11. l>eteOy cr:mly te> Br,tlon; Loc11er lhor rr,,s 
svr,ey was r;c,mpleled under m y di;ec l S:Jpervis ;on. um:J lo r/,., 
b,rs/ ,:i,• my kr,c, 111Je,:J9c informrHiDn e>nd professione>I jvdr;mcr, r :he 
result:s si"IO wn ll•teon are correct Q()(J art:' rr. ade in cc,mplit;nce 
wi rh the currenl sle>ndards for pto~f"fy l>o1,n<Jc,ry .SuNeys o f /ne 
Mif;sc,uri Oepl of Insurance, rinor,ciol msttrvt:or,s Dfl d Profusic,rral 
Regis/ra tio" (20 - C.SI? :?O J0 - 15.0) c-: Ml l fur /Ii /hr11om 

STONE CREST SUBDIVISION - PLAT 19 

BEING A RESUBDIV!SION OF LOT 198 OF STONE CREST 
SUBDIVISION PLAT 11, ANO LOT 199 OF STONE CREST 

SUBDIVISION PLAT 14 PHASE l, IN PART OF 
U.S. SURVEY 1912, T441\', RlW OF THE 5TH P.M. 

IN THE: CITY OF WASHINGTON. FRANKLIN COUNTY, MO. 

1 OF 1 



BILL NO. INTRODUCED BY _______ _ _ -------- --

ORDINANCE NO. _________ _ 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A BOUNDARY 
ADJUSTMENT FOR THE WASH MO MAIN STREET 
DEVELOPMENT PLAT II, IN THE CITY OF 
WASHINGTON, FRANKLIN COUNTY, MISSOURI 

WHEREAS, the plat, attached as Exhibit A demonstrating the boundary adjustment 

in the City of Washington, Missouri has been submitted to the City for approval; and 

WHEREAS, said plat meets the requirements of the applicable ordinances of the 

City of Washington, Missouri. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Washington, Missouri, as follows: 

SECTION 1: The boundary adjustment as shown in the attached Exhibit A in 

the City of Washington, Missouri is hereby approved. 

SECTION 2: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

SECTION 3: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and approval. 

Passed: ----------

ATTEST: ---------- President of City Council 

Approved: ________ _ 

ATTEST: ----------
Mayor of Washington, Missouri 

11 



Exhibit A 

WASH MO MAIN STREET DEVELOPMENT PLAT 2 
A RESUBDIVISION OF LOT 1, LOT 2 AND LOT 3 OF 'WASH MO MAIN STREET DEVELOPMENT", 

BEING PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 44 NORTH, RANGE 1 WEST, 
OF THE 5TH P.M., CITY OF WASHINGTON, FRANKLIN COUNTY, MISSOURI 

SCALE: 1" = 20' 

I 

I 
I 

I 

I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

......... 

'-
......... ......... z 

......... 

I 
I 

I 

......... 
......... '-

'-
#' '-~,.,,.., 

/ ~·;¢)' 
J',,i ,' 

ji\~ 

NOTES: 

I , Beurings referenced lo Grid Norlr, at lhe Missouri Coordinole Syslem 
1983, Eos\ Zone per CPS ouservotions ul1l ,z,ng the '-IDDOT VRS RTI( Network 

2. fie ld worh was complelcO on lh is sile by Buescher fronkenberg 
Anoc:,oles, In c on Dece mber 19, 2022 

M • lnd;coles measured oulbnu ndory ,,i(ormotinn Otlloined Oy Buescher 
F'ron~enberg Assoc1oles, Inc 

R = Recorded oulboundory ,nformolion 011 per 'General Wom~nly Deed" 
recorded on September 23 20 20 wilh Document No. 2016041 al lhe Franklin 
County Recorder ol Der.d s OH:ce 

J Genera l Worronly Deed recorded on September 2J, 2020 wilh Dccumen! 
No 2016041 or the Fronldin Cou rilr Rettlfdcr ol Deeds Ol!ice 

4. Zon,ng 10 - CJ 

STATE Of MISSOURI ) 
COUNTY Of FRANl<UN) SS 

lhis is le cert ify lo Wo sh MO Mein Slreel Developmenl, LLC and Andrew 
Unerslall, lhol during lhe month of August 2023 we execuled a Properly 
Boundary Survey ond Subd;y,s,on Plol on oll ol Lol I , Lol 2 and Lot J or 
'Wash Mo Mo,n Slreel Oe11elopmerit' recorded on Jon.,ory 20, 2023, wi\h 
Document No 2300729, beinQ port or lhe Norlheosl Ouor\er of Sect,on 22, 
Townsnip 44 Nurln, Range 1 Wesl, of lhe 5u, PM , C,ly ot Wos n:nglon, 
Fronk1:n Courity, Missouri To lhe best or my kno ... 1edq e1 and belier, u,;!I mop 
or plol and the s.1rvey on wh;ch it is Dosed were mode in occordonce with 
the current 'Missouri Stondords for Property Boundary Surveys o( lhe Mi95Qur, 
Deporlmenl of Commerce and In surance. Missouri Boord of Architects, 
Proren,nnol Eng,neers, Profeu,onol Land Surveyors. and Proren,or,ol 
Lo,,d11cope Arcnilecls' ond meel!i llie occurocy requiremeril or o Urban Survey 
os def,ned tnere,n 

Onie ---- - ------

......... 

Mork. R Frankenberg, PLS ~2J65 
Slole or M,,so.1ri 
Reg,'.ite red Land Surveyo• 

" 1 -....... 
I 

I 
I 

'-
'-•,, 

......... e, 

......... 

OUTSlr 8UILD1NG W~\L 

,,§' 

.¢'/ 
,/" ..:· 

l 

~",'0 
,>,;,~ 

I "b~~J .. 
'-

'-
'-

'-
'-

LOT LINE TO---......... 
BE REMOVED / 

I 
I 

LOT 1A / 
6,948 SQ FT, / 
0 16 ACRES 

I 
I 

I, Andre"' Uner11lo1 1. or Wash MO Main Slreel Ot1"elopmenl, LLC. hereby cert,fy 
\hol I om !he owner of lhe properly shown and descr,bed hereon, end liove 
cou,ed lhe 5ome \o be surveyed and subd,v,ded ,n lhe mariner shown on 
\h,s plol, ond I hereby freely odapl lhis pion of subd v, s,on 

Tlie su bdivi sion Sholl be kriawn os ~Wash Mo Main Slrec:I Deve'opmenl" 

The uliloly r.osemenls os snnwn hereon ore n1r11by ded,coted to lhe vor,aus 
util ,ly corr,pon ,es for u!,lilypu•poses 

IN WllN ESS WH EREOF, we ho\le e-eculed lh,s plo\ os or 

Ln,s ___ doy or ----------------• 2023, 

Andrew Unersloll, Monng,r,q Mem ber 
Wosli MO Main Strecl Deveiopmenl, LLC 

STATE OF MISSOURI J 
COUNTY OF F'RANl<UNI SS 

On this ___ doy ol - - ---- ---------• 2023, before me persone,lly 
appeared Andrew Unersloll. Monoginq Member of Wo!in MO Mom Slreel 
De\lelopmenl, LLC. lo me known lo be lhe persona described :n and wlio 
e•ecuted the fnrego,ng insl,umenl, and acknowledged lhol lliey eucull!d th e 
some os the,r free ocl ond deed 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hove hereunl o set my liond ond off:X"ed my nfticio l 
seol in lhe Counly ond Slole oforesoid, lh e doy ond yr.or fi• sl above writlen 

1,1t tu"" «•bi",...-..1. -----

C ~,r1 ~ ~ #',, 
"'? 

WW ont8JPDrtfJ IOf 16 

A trocl ol land be,ng all ol Lal 1, Lol 2, and Lo t J o( "Wash Mo Mo,n 
Slreel Development', being poll ol lhe Nor!heosl Ouorler ol Section 22. 
To wn snip 44 Nartn, Range I Wnl or lhe 5\1, PM , C•ly of Wosn,ngton 
Fron~l in County, M,ssouri, to wjl : 

Beginning ol o lound cul "•" ol tn ci SoulMosl Corner of Lol J of "Wash Mo 
Mo:n SVeel Development· , al so being the west r,ght - of -,..oy lin e ol Lofoyelle 
Slreel: lhence lecv1ng said wes t riQh! - of-woy hr, e olonQ so,d soulh line 
NS6-ll'-45"W 77 1g fl loo found cul · x" ot lh e Soulhwe,t Corner of said 
Lol I: lnence leov;ng said soulh 1;ne along said west hne NJ•f-\6' - 42"E 
9000' lo o round b.1ildinq corner o! lhe Northwesl Corner ol soid Lo\ I, 
also oeing tne soulh riqnL- of- woy l,ne or W Mo,n Street: thence leaving said 
west line olonq so,d soulh righl - ol - woy line 556 - 11' - 45"[ 77 l9 It too 
found building corner ol \he Northc:os\ Corner of sai d Lol J, olsa beinq lhe 
inlerseclion cf so;d soulh right - or- woy line ond sui d wes l riglil - of - woy 1:ne: 
Lnence ieo"•ng said soulh r,ghl - nl - woy l,ne along so,d west righL- af - woy 1:r,e 
S34'- 16'-~2"W go 00 f t lo lhe po:rit of beginr,ing. conlo,n:nq O 16 ocres 
SubJecl loony and oll easements. cond,t,ons, reslr,clions, elc or record 

CITY Cl£RK'S CERTIFICATE: 

I, Sherr, Klekomp, C-rt)' Clt1"1 19'1' °"'II • lfl..i'I Ire C' ,L~ • f 'Wnflltl-lJIO'I, t,hlJtall,~ 
do hereby certify I.bot lmr o.tHMi t,l11t ~ "5to,!11: Ctltl l Slibdi , !c,,1 P\ol tll~ 
wosopproved by1111.rC.l)'(Ollofl<..411/V.11t-i'ifllQ161'1,. 1,1,,~tl'.II 

Ord,nor,ce No ----------------• paned o,,d opproyed the 

--- 401 ar ------ 2023 

DRAWN Wash MO Main Street _ _ ____,,A:7-.c::'.w.~---
DATE 

Development, LLC os- 01 - 23 
JOS No 

100/104/106 W. Main St. - --sH-=E4=E~5-:-: -~M"'E--• 

for Buesclier Fronkenberg Anucictes, In 
Corporate #0096 

Washington, Franklin BOUNDARY 
Missouri, 63090 ADJUSTMENT PLAT IOJ EU! 'ilREfJ WA5HINC10N '-l lSSQl.JRI ~1190 

,t 



RESOLUTION NO. ____ _ INTRODUCED BY ________ _ 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A 2023 COMMUNITY 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 

WHEREAS, in 2015 the City of Washington, Missouri adopted a Community 

Economic Development Strategy; and 

WHEREAS, the 2015 Community Economic Development Strategy is required to 

be updated every five (5) years, and the City's cmTent Community Economic Development 

Strategy is now out of date; and 

WHEREAS, the City has engaged a consultant to prepare an updated 2023 

Community Economic Development Strategy. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the City of 

Washington, Missouri as follows: 

SECTION 1: The 2023 Community Economic Development Strategy, a copy of 

which is marked Exhibit A and is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, is 

hereby approved and adopted. 

Adopted this 21st day of August 2023 by the City Council of the City of 

Washington, Missouri. 

(Seal) 

ATTEST: 

(Seal) 

ATTEST: 

23716051.vl 

----------

President of City Council 

----------

Mayor of Washington, Missouri 

1tn 



Exhibit A 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC PLAN 

CITY OF WASHINGTON, 
MISSOURI 
A COMPANION TO THE WASHINGTON COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

AUGUST 2023 

PREPARED FOR 

City of Washington 

SAINT LOUIS UNIVERSITY COMMUNITY PLANNING LAB 



WashinJ;ton, Missouri, E,vnomic Development Strate,~ic Plan 202 3 2028 

Page intentionally left blank 

SAINT LOUIS UNIVERSITY COM M UNITY PLANNING LAB 

1m 



Washington, Missouri, E conomic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

Contents 

SUMMARY ................... ............ ....................... ......... ..... .. ......... .. ...... .................... ................ ...... ...... .. .......... ............. .. ..... 1 
THE ECONOMY DEFINED BY JOBS IN ECONOMIC SECTORS ............................ ....... ... ..... ............ .. .......... ......... .. .. 2 

JOB LOCATION QUOTIENTS ............. ........... . .............. .................. .... .... ...... ...... ..................... ... .. . .. .............. ... .. . ....... 3 

THE BACKBONE OF WASHINGTON: MANUFACTURING . .. ... .. .... ... .. .. .. ... ... ........ ........... ..... ........... .......... ...... .. ... .. .. .. ...... .. 5 

THE MANUFACTURING COMPOSITION OF WASHINGTON'S ECONOMY ...... ................... .. .............. ....... .... ..... ...... .... .. ....... 7 

TRENDS IN COUNTY, METROPOLITAN, AND NATIONAL EMPLOYMENT .....•...•••••.•.•••••.• •.••......•..• ..•.• •....• .•.••••• .•. .•••••.•.•. •. ••• 9 

TRENDS IN MANUFACTURING EMPLOYMENT .•.••••.• ....... .. ........ ... ... •••.•.•••.•.•••.•...•.•.•..... .. ••...... ...... .... ... . ....•.... .....•.•.•.. 10 

EMPLOYMENT AND OUTPUT PROJECTIONS: U.S.A ........... .... ....... ..... .. . .... .... ... .... . ....... .. .......... ....... ............. . ... ... 11 

EMPLOYMENT AND OUTPUT PROJECTIONS: MANUFACTURING JOBS IN THE U.S .A ..................... ....... .. .... ... ...... ............ 12 

NOT ALL U.S. MANUFACTURING SECTORS ARE CREATED EQUAL. ... ........ .......... .. .. .......... ...... ...... ......... .. .. ...... .... ... .. ... 14 

SWITCHING TO ST. LOUIS REGIONAL PROJECTIONS .... ........................ ..................... .. ..................... .. ..................... ... 14 

MANUFACTURING GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES FOR WASHINGTON ................. ...... .. .. ...... .... ... .. .. .. ..... ... .. ........................ 17 

BUSINESS ESTABLISHMENTS AND EMPLOYMENT DATA .... .... ... ........ .... ...... ......... ... .... ..... . ..... ............ .... .................... 21 

THE CITY'S ESTIMATE OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED IN WASHINGTON .... ... ..... ................. .. ............................ .. . ....... .. ...... 22 

Comparing the City's List with the U.S. Census .... .. ....... ......... ..... ........ ............... ... .......... ..... .... ................ 23 

Employment Location Quotients Using Census Data ...... ........... .... .... ........................ ........ ..... ... .. ...... .. .... 24 

IMPORTANCE OF LABOR FORCE FROM ADJACENT COUNTIES ............................... .. ......... ...... .. ....... .. ................ 26 

WORKERS FROM ADJACENT COUNTIES ................... . ..... ....... ............... ..... .......... ... ... ... .. .. .............. ...... ................ ... 28 

SHARES OF WASHINGTON WORKFORCE BY SELECTED COUNTIES 2002-2020 ...... .................................................... 31 

JOB PROJECTION SCENARIO, 2020 TO 2030 .. ........................ ................... ... ... .................................................. 32 

WASHINGTON 'S RELATIVE STRENGTHS IN EMPLOYMENT, 2019 ... .... ......... ............................................ .................. . 32 

UNITED STATES PROJECTIONS TO 2030 ................... .. ......... ...... .... ..... ........ ............... ...... .... .............................. 33 

SWOT ANALYSIS OF THE WASHINGTON ECONOMY ..... .. ............. ........ . ... ...... .................... ...... ...... ...................... 36 

STRENGTHS .•.......•.. ... ... ......• .......•••..•••••••••..••••••••• ••.........•.. .. .•...••..•.•••••..••.•• ..•••• .. ... .•..... .... .. •... ...... ........ .. ..•..• .•••• 36 

WEAKNESSES •.•. •..•. ... .• •..... ....• ..•.•••••••............•.....•.......... ..........•.•••.•••.•.•.•••••...•.•••.• ..... ...... ... .. . .•••••••...•••.••....•.•.• . 36 

OPPORTUNITIES ... ......................... .......... ....... ...... .... ................ ......................... ... ... ............ ............................... . 36 

THREATS ........ ....................................... .. .. .... .... . .. . .. .... ..... ............ ................... ..... ..... . .. ............................... .... .. 37 

STRATEGIC DIRECTION AND ACTION PLAN ... .............. ................ . .... ....... ............ ... .... .......... ... ................ ............ 37 

STRATEGIC DIRECTION AND EVALUATION FRAMEWORK .... .......... ... . ..... ....... .. ... ... ........ ...... ..................... ...... ............. .. 37 

SAINT LOUIS UNIVERSITY COMMUNITY PLANNING LAB 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

SUMMARY BACKGROUND OF THE REGIONAL ECONOMY 

Washington has generally performed well as a city with quality of life and economic measures. 
Reviewing the goals, objectives, and strategies of Washington's 2015 Economic Development Strategic Plan 
suggests that a great many of those policies and ideas remain relevant for the 2023 to 2028 plan. As a 
start, therefore, the 2015 goals, et al, are the basis for the following strategic actions but the list includes 
modifications, additions, and deletions based on current and anticipated future economic conditions in 
the city. 

Washington is a job creator for the region. Total jobs in Washington increased from 9,726 in 2002 to 
12,135 in 2019, a growth rate of about 25 percent over almost two decades. Meanwhile, the rest of 
Franklin County added not quite ten percent more jobs, causing the county-wide growth to be about 14 
percent. Washington is clearly doing very well as an attractor of jobs relative to the county and local 
area. 

Manufacturing and Health Care are the predominant industry sectors for Washington. The City will 
look to diversify those job opportunities with supplemental help in the Professional, Scientific, and 
Technical Services in addition to Lodging, Dining, and Tourism along with Transportation, and Agriculture 
sectors. 

This plan will be a blueprint for growth and direction for the community in the next five years. The City 
should review these goals and strategies annually and use the data to enhance its comprehensive plan for the 
future of the community. 

1 

1m 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

THE ECONOMY DEFINED BY JOBS IN ECONOMIC SECTORS 
The greatest detail and greatest accuracy for local area economic profiles is based on county-level statis
tics throughout the U.S., including groups of counties such as metropolitan areas. This database of the 
U.S. Department of Commerce's Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA) was initiated in 1969. City or 
municipal-level statistics are available in a less precise but, nevertheless, very useful database initiated na
tionally in 2002 with data currently available through 2020.1 This data is helpful in evaluating Washing
ton's relative position in the metropolitan St. Louis economy. 

As shown on the following chart, total jobs in Washington increased from 9,726 in 2002 to 12,135 in 
2019, a growth rate of about 25 percent over almost two decades. Meanwhile, the rest of Franklin 
County added not quite ten percent more jobs, causing the county-wide growth to be about 14 percent. 
Washington is clearly doing very well as an attractor of jobs relative to the county, having captured 
roughly half of the net additional jobs in the county between 2002 and 2019. 

50,000 

40,000 

30,000 

20,000 

10,000 

0 

Total Employment in Washington and the Rest of Franklin County 
2002-2019 (Source: U.S. Census On-the-Map) 

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

• Washington • Rest of Franklin County 

As a result, Washington's share of jobs in Franklin County increased from 29 percent in 2002 to 31 per
cent in 2019. This wasn't a steady trend, however. Washington dropped slightly to 28 percent of the 
county's jobs from 2003 to 2007, then climbed gradually to 31 percent. 

Manufacturing jobs in Washington, as discussed shortly, are the backbone of the city's economy, but 
manufacturing jobs declined in the city between 2002 and 2019 by about seven percent even as the city's 
jobs overall increased by 25 percent. The city's growth and decline trends in the major economic sectors 
are shown on the next two bar charts. 

Obviously, the Health Care sector was the fastest growing, adding nearly 1,300 jobs with a growth rate 
of almost 180 percent between 2002 and 2019. The Administrative Support/Waste Management 

1 This latter database, the LEHD (Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics) "On-the-Map" series from the U.S. 
Census Bureau, is based on matching home addresses of workers to the addresses of their employers. Apparently, the 
unusual behavior of "work-from-home" policies during the Covid-19 pandemic period (very early 2020 to, perhaps, as 
late as the present time) has strained this statistical address-matching substantially. The nation still awaits meaningful 
On-the-Map data for the post-pandemic period and even for the pandemic period. 

2 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

sector was a close second in growth rate (up almost 160 percent) but a more distant second in actual jobs 
(almost 400). The Professional, Scientific, and Technical Services sector added 330 jobs, doubling 
its numbers. Lodging and Dining places (e.g., hotels, restaurants, bars) added 310 jobs (up 41 percent) 
while Construction added 235 jobs (up 62 percent), Transportation and Warehousing added 187 jobs 
(140 percent), and Finance and Insurance added almost 150 jobs (61 percent). In many ways, these 
net additions have helped to diversify the city's economy, enabling it to be more resilient to economic 
downturns and offering more options for the nearby workforce. 

Major Economic Sector Job Growth Rate Trends in 
the City of Washington, 2002 to 2019 

Source: U.S. Census "On-the-Map" 

-100% 0% 100% 

Construction 62.0% 

Manufacturing -7.1% I 
Wholesale Trade -29. 7% 

Retail Trade j 4.3% 

2000/o 

Transp & Warehsg 139.6% 

Information -57.2% 

Finance and Insurance 

Real Estate 

Prof, Scient, Tech 

Mgt of Enterprises 

Admin/Waste Mgt 

Education 

Health Care & Soc Asst 

-18.1% 

Arts, Ent, & Recreation -43.6% 

Lodg ing & Dining 

Other Private Services 

Public Administration -46.7% 

60.7% 

• 24.0% 

3.5% 

41,0% 

23.3% 

99.7% 

157.5% 

77.8% 

Major Economic Sector Job Changes in 
the City of Washington, 2002 to 2019 

Source: U.S. Census 11 0n-the-Map11 

-500 0 500 1,000 

Construction 235 

Manufacturing -226 

Wholesale Trade -81 I 
Retail Trade I 13 

Transp & Warehsg 187 

Information -202 
., 

Finance and Insurance • 148 

Real Estate 12 

Prof, Scient, Tech 330 

Mgt of Enterprises -SO I 
Admin/Waste Mgt 397 

Education 21 

Health Care & Soc Asst 

Arts, Ent, & Recreation -24 

Lodging & Dining - 310 

Other Private Services I 65 

Public Administration -56 

1,500 

1,284 

But not all is beautiful. The Information, Wholesale Trade, and Manufacturing sectors all declined 
as did-in smaller amounts-Management of Businesses and Enterprises; Arts, Entertainment, 
and Recreation; and Public Administration. In many ways, the last two decades have seen dramatic 
changes in the composition of the Washington economy based on jobs, which leads to a discussion of 
how that composition stacks up within the metropolitan economy. 

JOB LOCATION QUOTIENTS 

The chart on the next page illustrates employment location quotients (LQs) by major economic sector in 
Washington. The larger economy against which the city's LQs are calculated is the St. Louis 
metropolitan area.2 

A location quotient compares the percent of jobs in a given economic sector in Washington to the per
centage in that sector in the metropolitan area. To illustrate Washington's relative strengths, its 

2 The St. Louis metro area consists of 15 counties in both l\!Iissouri and Illinois, of which Franklin County is one. The St. 
Louis metro area is the 20'" largest (of 383) in the United States and has a remarkably diverse economic structure, as is 
described later. Thus, comparing Washington to the metro area is very instructive as to Washington's economic role in 
the larger region and even the nation. 

3 



Waihington, Miuouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

percentage is divided by the metro percentage in each sector. If the percentages are the same, then 
Washington's LQ equals 1.0. LQs exceeding 1.0 indicate relative strengths in the local economy (often 
referred to as net export sectors) while LQs ofless than 1.0 are considered support sectors without 
significant ability to attract "new dollars" into the city. The support sectors are, of course, critically 
important in sustaining the overall economy, so they should never be discounted. 

As the chart shows, Wash
ington's greatest strength is 
in the manufacturing sector, 
which shouldn't be surpris
ing to most readers. The city 
has a much higher share of 
jobs in manufacturing than 
the region as a whole, even 
though jobs in manufactur
ing have declined. The loca
tion quotient of 2.81 is quite 
large and demonstrates that 
manufacturing is a major rea
son for economic growth 
and success in Washington. 
Of course, this can also make 
Washington rather vulnera
ble to, say, downturns in na
tional or international manu
facturing sectors. If the 
profits and employment in 

Jobs Location Quotients: Washington Compared to the St. Louis 
Metropolitan Area, 2019 

Ag, Forestry, Fishing, Hunting 

Mining, Quarrying 

Utilities 

Construction 

Manufacturing 

Wholesale Trade 

Retail Trade 

Transport & Warehsg 

Information 

Finance & Insurance 

Real Estate 

Prof, Scient, Tech Svcs 

Management of Enterprises 

Ad min Support & Waste Mgt 

Educational Services 

Health Care & Social Assist 

Arts, Ent, Recreation 

Lodging & Dining 

Other Services 

Public Administration 

Source: U.S. Census On-the-Map 
0.5 1.0 1.5 

0.30 

• 0.16 

0.34 

0.13 

0.21 

0.67 

0.56 

0.62 

0.60 
0. 

0.65 

0.98 

1.42 

87 

1.01 

0.93 

87 

2.0 2.5 

Washington's manufacturers are reduced, a substantially negative impact on the city may result. 
why most economies (even at the city level) strive for more diversity in their location quotients. 

3.0 

2.81 

This is 

Note that retail trade is also important because Washington serves as something of a "shopping center" 
for a geographic area extending well beyond the city's boundaries. That is, retail shows off as a net ex
port industry for the city. 

The sectors of construction and lodging/ dining have LQs almost equal to 1.0, indicating that these have 
shares of employment almost identical to the shares throughout the metropolitan area. All the other sec
tors fall further and further below the "1.0 threshold" which gives them less importance in the general 
strength and diversity of the city's economy. 

Sectors with LQs less than 1.0 can also indicate opportunities for growth. If Washington could attract a 
larger share of wholesale trade businesses, for example, this would have the dual effect of increasing the 
city's value in the regional wholesale trade sector while likely reducing the percentage of jobs in the 
manufacturing sector. Washington would thus become less "dependent" on manufacturing alone. 
Instead, it would have more relatively strong sectors,3 making it less vulnerable in economic downturns in 
other sectors. 

3 Normally, local economies are compared to the U.S. national economy which is generally assumed to be almost "ideal" 
regarding distribution of jobs across sectors. The On-the-Map data is not available for the nation as a whole, however. 

4 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

Another way to analyze location quotients is to sum up the "absolute values" of the individual LQs.4 By 
measuring the numerical differences between the standard of 1.0 to the various location quotients, then 
adding them, a single "diversity metric" is created. For Washington in 2019, the shown LQs in the 20 
sectors achieve a sum of absolute values of 10.2. Franklin County's absolute value sum, when compared 
to the metro area in 2019, is 9.0, indicating that the county is slightly more resilient than Washington. 
This is not surprising. Larger geographic areas are expected to have more diversified economic structures 
than smaller areas. 

Note, however, that different data sources can result in different indicators. The above information is 
from the Census Bureau's On-the-Map series. The Regional Data series of the U.S. Bureau of Economic 
Analysis provides a deeper, and generally more accurate, set of data on employment, but only to the 
county level (or metropolitan level). Thus, LQs for the City of Washington cannot be determined with 
the BEA data, but LQs for Franklin County can be. And LQs for the St. Louis metro area can be created 
by comparing it to national data. On-the-Map does not provide national totals. 

The BEA employment data for 2019 (same year as above) shows that Franklin County, when compared 
to the St. Louis metropolitan area, had a location quotient absolute value sum of 10.5, a bit higher than 
the On-the-Map metric. When compared to the entire U.S. economy, however, the county's metric im
proves to 8.7 (keeping in mind that "closer to 1.0" is preferred. The St. Louis metropolitan economy, 
when measured against the national economy, had a metric of 3.7. The metro economy is far more in 
sync with the national economy than is Franklin County alone. By extension, Washington is probably 
even further from the national "ideal." 

This is not to denigrate the Washington or Franklin County economies. They each contribute substantial 
strengths to, and benefit from, the more balanced metropolitan economy. 

THE BACKBONE OF WASHINGTON: MANUFACTURING 

Manufacturing is the predominant sector both in Washington and throughout Franklin County. But, as 
the following two graphs demonstrate, the overall number of manufacturing jobs in Washington could 
be said to be relatively stagnant over time (2002 to 2019) and their share of all manufacturing jobs in the 
county has also been fairly consistent over time. 

Again, because metro St. Louis compares well with the nation, comparing Washington to the metro area is a good proxy for 
a national comparison 

4 Absolute values generally measure the distance from zero to the value, whether negative or positive. The number 1.5, 
for instance, has an absolute value of 1.5. So does negative 1.5. Absolute values are always expressed as positive measures. 
In the case oflocation quotients, however, the absolute value is a measure of each LQ's distance from 1.0. 

5 



12,000 

10,000 

8,000 

6,000 

4,000 

2,000 

0 

100% 

80% 

60% 

40% 

20% 

0% 

Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

Manufacturing Employment in Washington and the Rest of Franklin County 
2002-2019 (Source : U.S. Census On-the-Map) 

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

• Washington • Rest of Franklin County 

Manufacturing Employment in Washington as a Percent of Franklin County 
2002-2019 (Source: U.S. Census On-the-Map) 

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

• Washington • Rest of Franklin County 

As of 2021 (two years later than shown above and the latest comprehensive data available from the 
BEA), Franklin County encompassed 9.4 percent of all manufacturing jobs in the St. Louis metropolitan 
area. This was notably higher than the 7.9 percent of all manufacturing jobs in 2001 (the beginning of 
this data series), but the average from 2001 to 2021 is just 9.1 percent, so Franklin County has not im
proved its position significantly in two decades. 

6 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

THE MANUFACTURING COMPOSITION OF WASHINGTON'S ECONOMY 

The Community and Eco
nomic Development office of 
the City of Washington main
tains a list of businesses in the 
city. This inventory includes 
types of business as well as 
each firm's number of em
ployees. The graph summa
rizes the 38 firms in Washing
ton considered manufacturing 
companies according to their 
NAICS co<les. For example, 
there is one animal slaughter
ing firm in the city and five 
machine shops . All told, the 
38 manufacturers are com
prised of 20 separate 4-digit 
NAICS codes. 

Number of Manufacturing Firms in Washington by NAICS 
Code, July 2022 (Source: City of Washington) 

1 

3116 Animal Slaughtering 

3118 Bakeries -
3121 Beverages 

3169 Leather Products 

3222 Converted Paper Products 

3231 Printing & Related 

3261 Plastics Products 

3311 Iron & Steel Mills 

3312 Steel Products 

3323 Architectural Metals Prods. 

3327 Machine Shops 

3328 Coating & Engraving 

3332 Industrial Machinery Mfg 

3336 Engine & Power Transmission Equip. 

3339 Gen. Purpose Machinery Mfg 

3344 Semicondtors & Electronics 

3352 Household Applicances 

3362 Motor Vehical Bodies 

The city's full inventory of 3371 Household & Institutional Furniture 

existing businesses contains 3399 Miscellaneous Mfg 

485 separate listings. Manu 

2 3 4 5 

facturers, therefore, make up about eight percent of the city's enterprises. In some contrast, however, 
manufacturing firms average 94 employees in Washington while all other firms average just 14. Only 
local government (144 total/ average) and health care (60 average) exceed the manufacturing sector. 

6 

The next graph shows the number of employees in these 38 manufacturing firms by NAICS code. 
Manufacturing employment, from the city's list, totals 3,582. The previously discussed On-the-Map data 

7 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

from the U.S. Census Bureau 
for the year 2019 shows that 
there were 2,954 employees in 
Washington manufacturing 
firms, a difference of about 
628. As also mentioned ear
lier, the On-the-Map data are 
almost universally under
counted because some em
ployees and employers cannot 
be matched easily by their ad
dresses. 

The city's database shows that 
there were 10,230 people em
ployed overall in Washington 
as of mid-2022. On-the-Map 
shows 12,135 employees in 
the city as of 2019. Unlike 
manufacturing, the city's to
tals are lower than the Census 
Bureau's. As a result, the 
city's data indicates that man

Employment in Manufacturing Firms in Washington by 
NAICS Code, July 2022 {Source: City of Washington) 

3116 Animal Slaughtering 
3118 Bakeries 

3121 Beverages 

3169 Leather Products 

3222 Converted Paper Products 

3231 Printing & Related 

3261 Plastics Products 
3311 Iron & Steel Mills 

3312 Steel Products 

3323 Architectural Metals Prods. 

3327 Machine Shops 
3328 Coating & Engraving 

3332 Industrial Machinery Mfg 

3336 Engine & Power Transmission ... 

3339 Gen. Purpose Machinery Mfg 

3344 Semicondtors & Electronics 

3352 Household Applicances 

3362 Motor Vehical Bodies 

3371 Household & Institutional Furniture 

3399 Miscellaneous Mfg 

i 10 
2 

I 21 

I 

I 32 

200 400 600 800 1,000 

256 

280 

211 

183 

467 

223 

1,200 

1,025 

ufacturing jobs make up over a third (35.0 percent) of all jobs while On-the-Map says that, in 2019, man
ufacturing jobs comprised almost a quarter (24.3 percent) of all jobs in the city.s 

Other contrasts are important to bear in mind as the economic data are analyzed. 

• Manufacturing supports the greatest number and percentage of jobs in Washington. 
o City: 3,582 manufacturing jobs, 24.3 percent of the city's 10,230 jobs. 
o Census: 2,954 manufacturing jobs, 35.0 percent of the city's 12,135 jobs. 

• Health Care & Social Assistance is the second largest employer by NAICS Code. 
o City: 1,855 jobs, 18.1 percent 
o Census: 2,006 jobs, 16.5 percent 

• Retail Trade is the third largest employment sector in Washington. 
o City: 1,296 jobs, 12.7 percent 
o Census: 1,760 jobs, 14.5 percent 

Back to manufacturing quickly. The employment projections discussed later in this report at the national 
level include 73 unique, four-digit NAICS codes in the manufacturing sector. Washington has firms in 
20 of those codes. 

5 Some of the difference can be explained by different surveying and statistical techniques, some by different years of data 
(2019 vs. 2022) . Later years have been sharply affected by the Covid-19 pandemic, which could also explain some differ
ences. 

8 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

TRENDS IN COUNTY, METROPOLITAN, AND NATIONAL EMPLOYMENT 

Employment in Franklin 
County grew 15.0 percent 
between 2001 and 2021 
based on latest available 
data from the U.S. Bu
reau of Economic Analy
sis (BEA) which tracks all 
employment down to the 
county level, or groups of 
contiguous counties like 
metro areas and states.6 
Pranklin Counly's growlh 
rate outpaced the metro
politan area as a whole 
(8.4 percent) and even St. 

Total Employment in Franklin and St. Louis Counties and the St. 
Louis Metro Area 2001-2021 

Source: U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis 

2,000,000 
1,641,900 Up 8.4% 

1,500,000 

1,000,000 779,700 Upl.4% 

500,000 

47,400 

~ N rn ~ ~ ~ ~ 00 ~ 
8 8 8 a a a 8 8 8 
N N N N N N N N N 

U 15.0% 

- st. Louis Metro Area - st. Louis County - Franklin County 

1,779,200 --
790,900 

54,500 

0 
N <' 
0 C 
N <' 

Louis County (1.4 percent) where 44 percent of all metropolitan jobs are found (but down from 47 per
cent in 2001). As a result, Franklin County's share of the metropolitan employment expanded from 2.9 
percent in 2001 to 3.1 
percent in 2021. 

In fact, Franklin 
County's employment 
growth rate exceeded the 
national growth rate 
from 2001 to about 2016, 
as illustrated on the 
graph to the right that 
indexes job growth to 
"100" in 2001. In the 
subsequent two decades, 
the USA eventually 
reached 22 percent 
growth overall (about 

125 

120 

115 

110 

105 

100 

95 

90 

Total Employment Growth Rate Comparisons, 2001-2021 
Source: U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis 

100 

8 § 
N N 

USA 122 

one percent per year) while Franklin County slowed a little bit to reach a two-decade rate of 15 percent. 
Missouri's jobs grew nine percent, the metro area eight percent (8.4 percent, more precisely, as shown 
earlier), and St. Louis County grew just over one percent. 

r, These jobs encompass not only payroll jobs, which are reported on monthly in news reports and are relatively easy to 
track because the data relies on regularly supplied information on income tax withholdings. They also include all jobs that 
are not so readily tracked (self-proprietors, contractors) where tax information is not as current. Thus, there is a lag time 
between when payroll data is reported and when the BEA county-based data are reported. 2021 is the last available year. 
The time span shown here of 2001 to 2021 is consistent with reporting that uses NAICS (North American Industrial 
Classification System) definitions of economic sectors. Prior to 2001, sector definitions were based on the Standard In
dustrial Classification (SIC) system. 

9 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

TRENDS IN MANUFACTURING EMPLOYMENT 

While there has generally 
been net growth in jobs 
in Franklin County and 
elsewhere in the metro 
region, manufacturing 
jobs have not been con
tributing to this growth. 
Manufacturing jobs de
clined in number in 
Franklin County by 
eleven percent between 
2001 and 2021 even as 
all jobs in the county in
creased by 15 percent. 
These manufacturing 

Manufacturing Employment in Franklin and St. Louis Counties and 
the St. Louis Metro Area 2001-2021 

Source: U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis 

160,000 135 515 
140,000 ' ..........._ 120,000 ... _ ... ______ _ 

100,000 ~ 
= 

Down 24.8% 

80,000 72,163 -. 
60,000 • 
40,000 

Down 32.4% 

20,000 10,745 

§ § § § § 8 § s 
N N N N N N N N 

Down 11.0% 

8 0 rl N 
rl rl rl 
0 0 0 

N N N N 

- St. Louis Metro Area - st. Louis County - Franklin County 

101,878 

48,795 

9,564 

0 
N <' 
0 C 
N <' 

decreases, however, were not as severe as in the metro area as a whole ( down by a quarter) or in St. 
Louis County (down by a third). 

The region is not alone in these downturns. The next graph compares manufacturing job declines by 
indexing 2001 to "100." This shows that Franklin County's index dropped from 100 to 89 in the two 
decades, or eleven percent as noted above. In the U.S. as a whole, manufacturing jobs dropped to an 
index of 77, or a 23 percent decline. Missouri fared only a little better with a decline of 19 percent. 

Manufacturing Employment Growth Rate Comparisons, 2001-2021 
Source: U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis 

105 
100 

100 

95 

90 

85 

80 
77 

75 75 

70 

65 
68 

St. OUIS County 

60 
..-t N M <;f' Lil \.0 ,-.... 00 CJ) 0 ..-t N M <;f' Lil \.0 ,-.... 00 CJ) 0 ... 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ..-t ..-t ..-t ..-t ..-t ..-t ..-t ..-t ..-t ..-t N r 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 C 
N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N r 

In short, manufacturing jobs are still relatively important in Washington and Franklin County and they 
are not as high comparatively within the St. Louis metro area. 

10 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

EMPLOYMENT AND OUTPUT PROJECTIONS: U.S.A. 

The U.S. Bureau of Labor 
Statistics (BLS) produces pro
jections of jobs by economic 
sector looking out ten years at 
a time and looking back ten 
years. The latest available 
projections are for the year 
2031 based on 2021 data and 
looking back to 2011. 

Porecasted growth in the na
tion is for 5.3 percent more 
jobs in 2031 than in 2021. 
But this would only be about 
half the rate of increase of the 
prior ten years . National em
ployment will still be increas
ing in the next decade, but at 
a much lower rate than in the 
past, averaging about a half 
percent per year rather than 
one percent per year.7 

Given those national projec
tions, it is likely that the 
:'llower growing St. Louis area 
will experience even slower 
growth still. More on that 
topic shortly. 

The BLS projections also 

180,000 

160,000 

140,000 

120,000 

100,000 

80,000 

60,000 

40,000 

20,000 

0 

180,000 

160,000 

140,000 

120,000 

100,000 

80,000 

60,000 

40,000 

20,000 

0 

Trends and Projections: U.S. Total Employment 
2011-2021-2031 (thousands) 

Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

2011 2021 2031 

Trends and Projections: U.S. Total Employment 
2011-2021-2031 (thousands) 

Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

2011 2021 2031 

show anticipated changes in output by economic sector (graph on the following page). Output is the 
value of goods and services created in the economy. The projections show that the overall output 
growth rate for the next ten years is essentially the same as the past ten years. Yet this will be 
accomplished with slower employment growth. 

7 This is consistent with Census Bureau projections of the national population which show a dramatic decline in growth 

rates from 2020 to 2060. 

11 



This added growth with fewer 
workers is the result of a pro
jected increase in output (or 
productivity) per worker. In 
chained 2012 dollars, output 
per worker in the United 
States was, on average, 
$198,700 in 2011 . This in
creased by 11 percent in 2021 
to $220,700 per worker. It is 
projected to increase more 
rapidly-up 16 percent- by 
2031 to $256,500 per worker. 
Thus, the productivity of 
workers (aided by better edu-

$300,000 

$250,000 

$200,000 

$150,000 

$100,000 

$50,000 

cation, training, experience, $O 

Washington, Missoun; Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

Trends and Projections: U.S. Total Economic Output per 
Job, 2011-2021-2031 (constant 2012 dollars) 

Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

and technological advances) 2011 2021 2031 
will enable the U.S. economy 
to expand at least as strongly in the coming decade as in the last decade. 

Of course, these projections are not guaranteed to come true, nor do they necessarily apply to greater St. 
Louis or Washington in the same proportions. But they are a highly researched indication of both 
challenges and opportunities in the American economy. 

EMPLOYMENT AND OUTPUT PROJECTIONS: MANUFACTURING JOBS IN THE U.S.A. 

The BLS projections also include projections in a wide range of economic sectors of the national economy. 
Of greatest interest here are the projections of manufacturing jobs and output. Again, the latest available 
projections are for the year 2031 based on 2021 data and looking back to 2011. 

First, a word on comparing 
databases. The ten-year 
projections come from the 
Bureau of Labor Statistics 
(BLS) while the detailed 
counts of jobs at the county
to-national levels come from 
the Bureau of Economic 
Analysis. The former is in 
the U.S. Department of La
bor, the latter in the Depart
ment of Commerce. While 
statisticians in both agencies 
work closely together, their 
"totals" do not always fully 
match. The direction of 

14,000 

12,000 

10,000 

8,000 

6,000 

4,000 

2,000 

0 

Trends and Projections: U.S. Manufacturing Employment 
2011-2021-2031 (thousands) 

Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

--~U~oS;,,;,3~%'-r--~~ ---.,.D ... ow ..... n _,l.:.;1~%;,.__~ 

11,727.0 
12,346,6 12,207.2 

- - ____ ... - ~ 

2011 2021 2031 

trends and statistics, like percentages and ratios, are therefore often more important in analyzing differ
ent sources of information than the actual numbers. 

12 



The first thing to notice on 
the previous graph of all 
U.S. manufacturing jobs is 
that the BLS shows a 5.3 
percent historical increase 
over the ten years of 2011 to 
2021 while the BEA data 
(shown earlier) showed a de
cline in the 20 years between 
2001 and 2021. In fact, the 
two sources are compatible. 
The BEA data for the same 
years as the BLS data (2011 
to 2021) actually shows a 5.7 
percent increase in manufac
turing jobs after a decline in 

8,000 

7,000 

6,000 

5,000 

4,000 

3,000 

2,000 

1,000 

0 

Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

Trends and Projections: U.S. Manufacturing Output 
2011-2021-2031 ($billions 2012) 

Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

Up S.7% 

$5,986A 

2011 2021 2031 

the prior decade. The BLS prqjections, however, indicate a slight (1.1 % ) decrease in manufacturing jobs 
between 2021 and 2031 even though overall job projections indicate a 5.3 percent increase. 

Even though manufacturing employment is projected to decrease in the coming decade, output is ex
pected to increase by an impressive 18.0 percent, only a little slower than the 22.4 percent increase in 
output for the overall economy. In other words, there should be a rather large increase in labor produc
tivity (better training and education, more skills, expanded use of technology, etc.) in the manufacturing 
sector in the next decade compared to the last. 

This added output growth with fewer workers would result from a remarkable increase in output per 
worker. In chained 2012 dollars, output per manufacturing worker in the U.S. was, on average, $483,000, 
about 2.4 times higher than the overall national average of $198,700, shown earlier. But manufacturing 
output-per-worker stayed ef
fectively level between 2011 
and 2021 (up only 0.4 per
cent). 

But output-per-worker is pro
jected to increase by 19 .3 per
cent in the manufacturing 
sector between 2021 and 
2031, three percentage points 
higher than the overall econ -
omy (16.2 percent increase). 
If all holds true, output-per
worker in manufacturing will 
increase from 2.20 times the 
average of all American 
worker to 2.25 times.8 Still, 

$700,000 

$600,000 

$500,000 

$400,000 

$300,000 

$200,000 

$100,000 

$0 

Trends and Projections: U.S. Total Economic Output per 
Job, 2011-2021-2031 (constant 2012 dollars) 

Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

Up 0.4% 

$483,000 $484,900 

2011 2021 2031 

8 While a 19.3 percent increase in output-per-worker is impressive for manufacturing, it would be only the 9,h largest 
increase in productivity growth the among 24 major economic sectors evaluated by BLS. The highest rate of increase 

13 

1m 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

employment in manufacturing would decline nationally by about 139,400 jobs between 2021 and 2031. 

NOT ALL U.S. MANUFACTURING SECTORS ARE CREATED EQUAL 

While "all" manufacturing jobs are projected to decline 1.1 percent, or 139,400 jobs, there are many sub
sectors of manufacturing that would increase in size, including the top 20 sectors shown to below 
(though some of these are overlapping). Overall, the food manufacturing sector would add 41,700 jobs 
while chemical manufacturers would add 40,100 jobs between 2021 and 2031. 

At the other end of the spectrum, the entire machinery manufacturing subsector would lose 125,000 
jobs, effectively nine out of ten net lost jobs in manufacturing over the present decade. The printing 
subsector, too, would be a substantial loser of 96,800 jobs.9 

Manufacturing Sectors Adding the Most Jobs, 
U.S.A., 2021-2031 (thousands) 
Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

Food manufacturing 

Chemical manufacturing 

Plastics and rubber products 

Miscellaneous Food 

Pharmaceuticals & Meds 

Other electrical equipment 

Plastics products 

Electrical equipment 

Other Food Mfg 

Machine shops 

Motor vehicles 

Other miscellaneous 

Medical equipment 

Structural metals 

Semiconductors 

Computers & Electronics 

Wood Products 

Bakeries 

Fabricated Metal Products 

0 10 20 30 40 50 

SWITCHING TO ST. LOUIS REGIONAL PROJECTIONS 

Manufacturing Sectors Losing the Most Jobs, 
U.S.A., 2021-2031 (thousands) 
Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

-140 -120 -100 -80 -60 -40 -20 0 

Coating, Engraving (8.1) 1 

Pulp and Paper Mills (9.0) 
Converted Paper Products (9.9) 

Iron and Steel Mills (10.6) 
Ship and Boat building (11.7) 

Furniture (12.4) 

Office Furniture /12.6} 
Aerospace Products (13.~) 

HVAC Equipment (13.9 
Power Transmission Products (14..8) 

Paper Manufacturing (lll,9) ( 
Other Fabricated Metal Prods (2 .QL 

Metalworking Machinery (2 I 
Primary Metal Mfg (211 .4 

Ag, Const, Mining Machinery (25.5 
Textile Mills (~'.IJ 

Other Machinery ca.ill 
Apparel & Leather Goods (il.8) 

Printing (9.(i.8 
Machinery manufacturing (l.!5,.Q) 

After the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics publishes its ten-year employment and occupational projections 
for the nation as a whole, state economic analysts typically produce their own projections within that 

would be in the retail trade sector at a 32.8 percent increase! As a consumer, look out for much more technology (and self 
service) when shopping while there would likely be fewer retail workers. 

9 Obviously, these two sectors add to more than the net losses of all manufacturing but, as noted alongside, there are many 
subsectors where jobs are projected to increase. 

14 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

national context. State projections, therefore, are usually a year behind the U.S. projections. The 
Missouri Economic Research and Information Center (MERIC), a component of the Missouri 
Department of Economic Development (DED), produces its state projections within ten "regions" of 
the state, illustrated below. This report focused on the projections within the St. Louis region which 
encompasses Franklin,Jefferson, St. Louis, and St. Charles Counties plus the city of St. Louis . 
Projections by MERIC are only at the regional and state level, not smaller areas like counties or cities. 

For the five-county St. Louis region, MERIC projects that total employment will increase from 
1,120,200 to 1,201,700 be- tween 2020 and 2030, a net growth rate of 
7.3 percent. This would be slightly 
faster growth than the U.S. projections 
for 2021 to 2031 of 5.3 percent.lo 

Manufacturing job projections aren't so 
robust, as shown to the right. MERIC 
counted 91,580 manufacturing jobs in 
the region in 2020 and proj cts 91,470 

in 2030, a small decline. But, im
portantly, five of the 15 manufacturing 
subsectors tracked by MERIC would 
add jobs over the decade. 

• Food manufacturing would add 
600 jobs in the region for an 8.6 
percent growth rate. National pro
jections in food manufacturing call 
for a much smaller 2.5 percent 
growth rate (2021 to 2031), but St. 
Louis is a key center of agricultural 
production with many strengths in 
the food production sector. So, 

Manufacturing Job Projections for the St. Louis 

Region, 2020 to 2030 
Source: Missouri Economic Research & lnformat' Center 

-3,000 

Food Manufacturing 

Beverage & Tobacco Products 

Textile Mills I 
Textile Product Mills ~ 

2,000 7,000 

Appar.el M.anufact1,JrinHg 
Economic Keg1ons or t e Missouri Economic 

Printing and Related 

Petroleum & Coal Products I 
Chemical Manufacturing 

Plastics & Rubber Products 

Nonmetallic Mineral Products 

Primary Metal Manufacturing 

Fabricated Metal Products 

Machinery Manufacturing 

Furniture and Related Products 

Miscellaneous Manufacturing 

12,000 

ii 2020 

Iii 2030 

10 Note, however, that the U.S. BEA counted 1,388,700 total jobs in this 1\!IERIC-defined St. Louis region in 2020, some 
268,500 more than counted by MERIC, another indicator of the challenges of a variety of data sources. Given that this 
"gap" is about one-fifth of the BEA count, the difference is generally consistent with gaps between payroll jobs (i.e., those 
generally tracked by income tax withholdings) and total jobs, the latter including self-proprietors, contractors, and others 
who do not necessarily provide the state and federal governments with monthly or quarterly withholding tax statements. 
The important factor in this analysis is the projected growth rate which can be assumed to be the same for both counts. 

15 



ii7ashington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

the nation's growth is and should be heavily bolstered by greater St. Louis. 
• Machinery manufacturing is projected by MElUC to add 740 jobs over the decade for a 6.5 percent 

growth rate. In sharp contrast, the national projections show a substantial decline in machinery 
manufacturing jobs of 11.9 percent from 2021 to 2031. 

• Miscellaneous manufacturing in the St. Louis region would add 250 jobs for a 6.7 percent growth 
rate (national: 5.0 percent growth). 

• Fabricated metal products manufacturing would add 170 jobs in the St. Louis region for a 2.4 per
cent growth rate (national: 0.7 percent growth). 

• Beverage products manufacturing would add a small 25 jobs over the 2020s for growth of 0.76 per-
cent (national: 2.9 percent growth) . 

The fastest growing economic subsector in St. Louis is expected to be Performing Arts, Spectator 
Sports, and Related Industries. This would add almost 2,000 more jobs over the decade for a whop
ping 80 percent growth rate. It is part of the Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation sector which 
would grow by a combined 4,190 jobs, or 32.6 percent. This sector also includes museums and places of 
amusement. 

Io second place for rate of growth in greater St. Louis is the Motion Picture and Sound Recording 
subsector which would add 600 jobs for a 65 percent net growth rate. This is part of the Information 
sector which would grow just 10.7 percent overall because of a 17.3 percent drop in the Telecommuni
cations subsector. 

The greatest job gains are expected in Food Services and Drinking Places subsector with 17,780 more 
jobs (up 24.8 percent). This is part of the Accommodation and Food Services sector which would 
add just under 21,000 more jobs for an overall growth rate of 26.2 percent over the decade. 

The following graphs illustrate job projections in the St. Louis Region for each of the major economic 
sectors. 

Major Economic Sector Job Growth Rate Projections 
for the St. Louis Region, 2020 to 2030 

Source: Missouri Economic Research & Information Center 

-10% 0% 10% 20% 

Specialty Trade Contractors 

Manufacturing -0.1% 

Wholesale Trade ua 
Retail Trade ~ ; .. 

Transportation 

Information 

Finance & Insurance 

Real Estate 

Prof, Scient, & Tech Services 

Management of Enterprises -4.1% 

Ad min Support & Waste Mgt 

Educational Services 

Health Care & Social Asst 

Arts, Ent, Recreation 

Lodging & Dining 

Other Private Services 

Government -0.2% 

. •· , 

- -----26.2% 

30% 

Major Economic Sector Job Additions for the St. 
Louis Region, 2020 to 2030 

Source: Missouri Economic Research & Information Center 

-10,000 

Specialty Trade Contractors 

Manufacturing 

Wholesale Trade 

Retail Trade 

Transportation 

Information 

Finance & Insurance 

0 

-112 -

Real Estate 

Prof, Scient, & Tech Services 

Management of Enterprises 

Ad min Support & Waste Mgt 

-1,539 

Educational Services 

Health Care & Social Asst 

Arts, Ent, Recreation 

Lodging & Dining 

Other Private Services 

Government -97 

10,000 20,000 30,000 

94 

12 

16 

1m 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

If a goal is to identify where to invest resources where growth is most likely to happen, manufacturing 
might not automatically be on that list-at least from a jobs creation perspective. Yet this is the 
strength of Washington, and the city is well positioned to sustain that strength for the St. Louis area. 
The city has ample land for manufacturers and continues to develop more. It has a long and storied his
tory of supporting manufacturing. Manufacturing will not be going away. It is vital to economic activity 
and wealth creation everywhere. Yet it is doing so with greater productivity per worker and fewer work
ers, while more urban and suburban areas shun manufacturing establishments. The sector's national 
productivity per worker is presently more than double that of the overall national economy and is pro
jected to at least maintain that dominance (maybe slightly increase it) by the year 2031. 

MANUFACTURING GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES FOR WASHINGTON 

Several ways to consider how Washington might focus its manufacturing growth and attraction efforts 
emerge from this analysis. Initially, below, the opportunities are presented within the 20 manufacturing 
sectors already in Washington: 11 

1. Sectors of job growth as projected by Missouri Economic Research and Information Center (re-
gional projections) 

2. Sectors of job growth as projected by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics (national projections) 
3. Sectors of output growth as projected also by BLS (national projections) 
4. Sectors exhibiting growth in both jobs and output at the national level. 

Stl Region Job Growth Rate Projections 2020 to 2030 
Manufacturing Sectors Now in Washington 

Source: Missouri Economic Research & Information Center 

The first option simply 
looks at job growth 
projections for the lim
ited number of manu
facturing subsectors 
evaluated by MERIC 
for the St. Louis Re
gion. These are shown 
to the right. 

-25% -20% -15% -10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 15% 

Theoretically, Washing
ton could concentrate 
on expanding firms and 
jobs in the eight sectors 
where job projections 
are positive. Unfortu
nately, MERIC does 
not provide projections 
for five of the 20 sec
tors, perhaps further 
limiting this strategic 

3116 Animal Slaughtering 
3118 Bakeries 

3121 Beverages 

3169 Leather Products 
3222 Converted Paper Products 

3231 Printing & Related-21.1% 
3261 Plastics Products 

3311 Jron & Steel Mills -17.4% 
3312 Steel Products 

3323 Architectural Metals Prods. 
3327 Machine Sho"ps 

3328 Coating & Engraving 
3332 Industrial Machinery Mfg 

3336 Engine & Power Transmission Equip. 
3339 Gen. Purpose Machinery Mfg 

3344 Semicondtors & Electronics 

3352 Household Applicances 

3362 Motor Vehical Bodies 
3371 Household & Institutional Furniture 

3399 Miscellaneous Mfg 

-17.4% 
-17.4% 

-17.4% 

11 After this analysis, the discussion expands to other manufacturing subsectors. 

0.8% 

-4.1% 

-2.5% 

8.6% 
8.6% 

6.5% 
6.5% 

6.5% 

6.7% 

17 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

approach. This also ignores other possible growth measures, but MERIC does not consider other 
projection metrics. 

The second option does much the same but considers only the national job projections. In this 
case, ten of the 20 manufacturing sectors presently in Washington exhibit positive national job 
growth in the next decade. 

That said, while ten subsectors have positive projected growth, all but two of them would have 
job growth rates below the overall national average growth rate of 5.3 per- cent over ten years. 
Still, all ten would have positive growth rates-unlike their major sector of manufacturing as a 
whole where jobs would decline by 1.1 percent. 

A third approach to determining targets for Washington is to con- sider those sectors that are 
already in the city where national output growth (higher productivity) would be positive. In this 
case, all but one of the existing manufacturing sectors in Washington qualify. These 19 sectors 
anticipate output growth even though nine of them would have commensurate jobs decreases. 

National Output Growth Rate Projections 2021 to 
2031 

Manufacturing Sectors Now in Washington 
Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

-30% -20% -10% 0% 10% 20% 30% 
40% 

3116 Animal Slaughtering 
3118 Bakeries 

3121 Beverages 
3169 Leather 

Products 3222 Converted 
Paper Products 3231 Printing 

& Related 
3261 Plastics 

Products 3311 Iron & 
Steel Mills 3312 

Steel Products 
3323 Architectural Metals Prods. 

3327 Machine 
Shops 3328 Coating & 

Engraving 3332 Industrial 
Machinery Mfg 

3336 Engine & Power Transmission 
Equip. 3339 Gen. Purpose 

Machinery Mfg 3344 
Semicondtors & Electronics 3352 

Household Applicances 
3362 MotorVehical 

Bodies 3371 Household & Institutional 
Furniture 

3399 Miscellaneous Mfg 

5.4% 
5.7% 

5.6% 
5.6% 

'.'8% 

lS.4% 
:574%" 

,--- ,9,8% 

G.4~ 

32.4% 

34.0% 
36.4% 

18 

1m 



Washington, 1\;lissouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

A fourth approach 
combines the second 
and third by selecting 
only those sectors that 
demonstrate growth in 
both jobs and output at 
the national level. 
These ten sectors are 
shown on the graph to 
the right. If businesses 
in these sectors can ex
pand in Washington or 
more such businesses 
can be attracted (a 
"cluster" effect), Wash
ington could experience 
the maximum possible 
growth without adding 
more sectors. The lat
ter idea, of course, is 
both heartening and 
limiting. It would bol
ster the subsectors al-

National Sectors Projected to Grow Both Jobs and Output 2021 to 2031 
Manufacturing Sectors Now in Washington 

3116 Animal Slaughtering 

3118 Bakeries 

3121 Beverages 

3261 Plastics Products 

3323 Architectural Metals Prods. 

3327 Machine Shops 

3344 Semicondtors & Electronics 

3362 Motor Vehical Bodies 

3371 Household & Institutional 
Furniture 

3399 Miscellaneous Mfg 

Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

0% 

1.3% 

3.4% 

5.4% 

3.5% 

10% 

5.5% 

9.8% 

4.6% 

11.6% 

20% 

18.3% 

24 .2% 

30"/o 

• USA Job Growth 

USA Output Growth 

34.0% 

36.4% 

ready proven in Washington but would limit growth to just them. Thus, a more comprehensive eco
nomic development approach would expand the above graph to include more manufacturing sectors 
with projected national growth in both jobs and productivity. 

40% 

That graph is on the next page. It includes 21 additional manufacturing sectors-that is, excluding the ten 
shown above which are already present in \'v'ashington. Those shown on the next graph are not now 
found in \'v'ashington. The graph combines positive growth rates for employment in the nation between 
2021 and 2031 with positive growth rates projected for output. 

That said, there are 36 additional four-digit manufacturing sectors included in the BLS projections. Only 
two of those have negative growth rate projections for both jobs and output (tobacco manufacturing and 
magnetic optical media). Generally speaking, output and productivity will advance in almost all 
manufacturing sectors. Of the other 34 sectors, only one has negative output growth (of just -0.2 
percent) combined with positive job growth (other chemical products manufacturing). The remaining 33 
sectors all project negative job growth but positive productivity growth. 

This latter observation prompts the oft-asked question, "What is an advanced manufacturing company?" 
The best answer is that all manufacturing companies in the U.S. are "advanced" or they aren't in 
business. Productivity through technology and related "advances" in processing, management, etc., have 
been improving manufacturing output for several decades. But this has come at the cost of fewer jobs, 
though higher productivity per job (from not only technology but also training and experience) has 
improved the wages and salaries of most manufacturing workers. There just aren't as many of those 
workers as in the past. 

19 



Washington, Missouri; E conomic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

U.S. National Manufacturing Sectors Projected to Grow Jobs and 
Output, 2021 to 2031 (Excluding Such Sectors Now in Washington) 

(Sum of Growth Rates) Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

3111 Animal food 

3112 Grain and oilseed milling 

3113 Sugar and confectionery products 

3114 Fruit and vegetable preserving 

3115 Dairy products 

3119 Other food 

3211 Sawmills and wood preservation 

3212 Engineered wood products 

3219 Other wood products 

3251 Basic chemicals 

3252 Resin, synthetic rubber 

3254 Pharmaceutical and medicine 

3255 Paint, coating, and adhesive 

3256 Soap, cleaning compounds 

3262 Rubber products 

3272 Glass and glass products 

3273 Cement and concrete products 

3314 Nonferrous metal (ex aluminum) 

3321 Forging and stamping 

3324 Boiler, tank, & shipping container 

3325 Hardware 

3341 Computer and peripheral equip. 

3353 Electrical equipment 

3359 Other electrical equipment 

3361 Motor vehicle 

3363 Motor vehicle parts 

3391 Medical equipment 

0% 20% 

- --=---- - -

- . 

40% 60% 

Employment Growth Rate 

iill Output Growth Rate 

I ' -----. -~---

--.-...---. --- J 

80% 

20 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

BUSINESS ESTABLISHMENTS AND EMPLOYMENT DATA 

The City of Washington provided a list of "economic establishments" in the city according to its latest 
records, most of which date to 2021. This list includes business names but also non-businesses like 
churches, schools, and city government, all of which employ people. 

NUMBERS AND TYPES OF ESTABLISHMENTS 

The list also includes estimates of employees for each establishment and a brief description of "type of 
business." The type of business was then used by the Community Planning Lab to assign a 4-digit 
NAICS (North American Industrial Classification System) code. 

The business list further contains most of the establishment's web sites, which were often useful in better 
determining the type of business for the most appropriate NAICS code. 

NAICS codes were then abbreviated to their first two digits, which signify the major economic sector of 
that business. For in-
stance, an aerospace 

Business Establishments in Washington by Major 
equipment firm would 

Economic Sector (2-digit NAICS in parentheses) 
have a 4-digit code of 
3336 while a machine 

Sources: City of Washington (2022) 

shop would have a code 0 10 20 30 40 so 60 70 80 

of 3327. Both of these 
Agriculture, Forestry (11) 

are in manufacturing ... or 
1 

code 33 (manufacturing Mining, Extraction (21) 3 

actually covers three 2- Utilities (22) 

digit codes, 31 to 33). Construction (23) 47 
They are distinguished in Manufacturing (31-33) 38 
code 33 by their addi-

Wholesale Trade (42) 21 
tional two code numbers 
in the database (which Retail Trade (44-45) 76 

can extend to as many as Transp & Warehsg (48) 7 

eight digits but too little Information (51) 6 
is known about each firm Finance & Insurance (52) 42 
from the provided list to 

Real Estate (53) 12 
rationally extend beyond 
four digits). Prof, Scient, Tech Svcs (54) 29 

Mgt of Enterprises (55) 

Using the city's records, Admin Support, Waste Mgt (56) 26 
there are 475 "economic Educational Services (61) 7 
establishments" in Wash-
ington in the major eco-

Health Care & Social Asst (62) 31 

nomic sectors shown to Arts, Ent, Recreation (71) 14 

the right. No establish- Lodging & Dining (72) 65 

ments were identified in Other Services {81) 59 
the utilities and manage- Public Administration (92) 1 
ment of enterprises sec-
tors. 

21 



Washington, Missouri, E conomic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

Retail trade businesses lead the pace with 76, or 16% of all establishments. Lodging and dining makes 
up 13% with 65 businesses, and other private services total 59 or 12%. Construction also offers a rela
tively large number of firms, which is consistent with growth taking place in Washington and Franklin 
County. The 38 manufacturing firms might not seem like much, but they employ a great many people! 

THE CITY'S ESTIMATE OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED IN WASHINGTON 

Again, using the city rec
ords, the average estab
lishment has 21 employ
ees. The city's list indi
cates a total of 10,229 em
ployees among the 485 
establishments.12 

Average employment is 
dominated by the govern
ment sector. In this case, 
the sole government es
tablishment is the City of 
Washington with 144 em
ployees. This is followed 
by the 38 manufacturing 
firms on the list who em
ploy 3,582 people, an im
pressive average of just 
over 94 per firm. 

The third largest average 
is in health care and social 
assistance with 60 em
ployees per 31 establish
ments, with a total of 
1,855 total employees. 
Health care and social as
sistance is dominated by 
Mercy Hospital which 
claims almost 81 % of this 
sector's employees . 

Average Employees per Establishment in Washington 
by Major Economic Sector (2-digit NAICS in parentheses) 

Sources: City of Washington (2022) 

20 40 60 80 100 120 

Agriculture, Forestry (11) 1ll. 

Mining, Extraction (21) a:.o 
Utilities (22) 

Construction (23) 'ii 

Manufacturing (31-33) 94 

Wholesale Trade (42) 10 
Retail Trade (44-45) 17 

Transp & Warehsg (48) 33 

Information (51) 17 
Finance & Insurance (52) 9 

Real Estate (53) 5 

Prof, Scient, Tech Svcs (54) 1.0 
Mgt of Enterprises (55) 

Admin Support, Waste Mgt (56) 6 

Educational Services (61) 1lJ. 

Health Care & Social Asst (62) 60 

Arts, Ent, Recreation (71) 15 

Lodging & Dining (72) 13 

Other Services (81) 7 

140 

Public Administration (92) 144 

TOTAL 21 

12 50 of the entries did not have an employee estimate, and one or two included ranges (e.g., 30 to 50). The Community 
Planning Lab filled in the empty spaces with separate estimates mostly consisting of the average of other businesses in the 
same business type category. Those with ranges were converted to the midpoint of the range. Thus, just over ten percent 
of the establishments were given employee estimates by the Community Planning Lab. But these estimates make up just 
216 of the overall total of 10,229 employees, or 2.1 % of the total. The CPL's estimated jobs are in red on the accompanying 
spreadsheet. 

22 



Washington, Missoun·, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

Note that the retail trade sector, with the largest number of establishments and the third highest number 
of employees, has a relatively low average number of employees at 17, just below the overall city average. 
The notable exception to this average is Walmart with over 400 employees, which sharply skews the 
average. Without Walmart, the average retailer in Washington employs 11112 people. 

Comparing the City's List with the U.S. Census 

The U.S. Census Bureau 
publishes independent 
estimates of employees by 
sector within cities, 
though the latest available 
data are for calendar year 
2019.13 A comparison of 
the Census estimates with 
the city's list is shown on 
this graph. Not shown on 
the graph is that the 2019 
estimates for Washington 
indicate 12,135 total jobs 
in Washington while the 
city's latest estimate is 
10,229 (with adjustments 
as noted). This appears to 
suggest a decline in jobs 
in the city over a couple 
of years (again, the city's 
data is almost all from 
2021 ), and this ma,y actu
ally be the case. Explain
ing it could readily be the 
economic effects of the 
Covid-19 pandemic. The 
American economy only 
just Guly 2022) recovered 
the number of jobs lost at 
the beginning of the pan
demic period, so Wash
ington may be lagging, 
and/ or the city's data may 
not be fully current. 

Jobs in Washington by Major Economic Sector: 
(2-digit NAICS in parentheses) 

Comparing City Records with Census Records 
Sources: City of Washington (2022) and U.S. Census Bureau (2019) 

500 l,0001,5002,0002,5003,0003,5004,000 

Agriculture, Forestry (11) 

Mining, Extraction (21) 

Utilities (22) 

Construction (23) 

Manufacturing (31-33) 

Wholesale Trade (42) 

Retail Trade (44-45) 

Transp & Warehsg (48) 

Information (51) 

Finance & Insurance (52) 

-
11 
3 
31 
10 

Real Estate (53) I ~~ 
Prof, Scient, Tech Svcs (54) 

Mgt of Enterprises (55) 

Admin Support, Waste Mgt (56) ~ 

Educational Services (61) ~ 

Health Care & Social Asst (62) 

Arts, Ent, Recreation {71) 1.31215 

Lodging & Dining (72) 

Other Services {81) 

Public Administration (92) 

649 

628 

2,006 
1,855 

3,582 

• Census 

City 

There may also be certain inconsistencies in the measurement techniques and information sources be
tween the Census and city data. 

These inconsistencies are more pronounced within economic sectors, as illustrated above. For instance, 
the city's data show about 600 more jobs in manufacturing than the Census data, but the city shows 

u This is the Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics (LEI-ID) "On-the-Map" series begun in 2002. 

23 



Washington, Missoun·, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

about 460 fewer retail trade jobs than recorded by the Census . As it turned out during the pandemic, 
retail kinds of jobs in America declined a lot more rapidly than manufacturing, and have recovered more 
slowly, so the relatively recent city data may truly be more representative of current conditions than the 
2019 data from the Census. 

Many of these differences might also be the result of inconsistencies with the assignment of NAICS 
codes. Typically, businesses themselves choose a dominant code (a business can have more than one in 
a diverse production environment), which may be different than the codes assigned by SLU's 
Community Planning Lab. 

All-in-all, though, the figures are sufficiently close to essentially confirm the city's inventory. 

Employment Location Quotients Using Census Data 
This graph compares the 

Job Location Quotients 2019 
Washington vs. St. Louis Metro 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau LEHD 

Utilities 

Construction 

3.0 

percentages of jobs by 
sector in Washington to 
the same sectors in the St. 
Louis metropolitan area 
using the LEHD On-tbe
Map data from 2019-
illustrative but perhaps 
out of date. Location 
quotients greater than 1.0 
mean that Washington 
bas a larger share of jobs 
in that sector than does 
the metro area. Such sec
tors are typically consid
ered economic strengths 
for the city, but very large 
LQs can also indicate vul
nerabilities if those sec
tors suffer sharp reces
sions in the region or na-

Manufacturing 2.81 

tion. 

Manufacturing is clearly a 
strength of Washington 
within the metropolitan 
economy. A location 
quotient of 2.81 is a sub
stantial indicator of the 
important role that Wash
ington plays in the manu 

Wholesale Trade 

Retail Trade 

Transp & Warehsg 

Information 

Finance & Insurance 

Real Estate 

Prof, Scient, Tech Svcs 

Mgt of Enterprises 

Admin Support, Waste Mgt 

Educational Services 

Health Care & Social Assist 

Arts, Ent, Recreation 

Lodging & Dining 

Other Services 

Public Administration 

- 0.67 

- 0.56 

- 0.62 

11111 0.34 - 87 

- 0.60 

- 0.8 

- 0.65 

1.01 

.93 - 0.87 

• 0.21 

facturing sector of the region. But it also suggests an above average risk if the national or regional 
manufacturing sector declines for some reason. The city also has a healthy LQ in retail trade; this is 
almost certainly attributable to the city's amount of retail businesses serving a subregion much larger 
than the city itself. 

24 

1m 



1¥"asbington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

Notably, all the other employment location quotients, except health care, are below 1.0, indicating vary
ing degrees of "dependence" on the rest of the metro area for support. This does not mean that the 
manufacturing sector should be encouraged to shrink, however. Instead, using the manufacturing sector 
as a catalyst to attract more population, more workers, and a wide variety of additional businesses might 
be in order. 

The health care sector is effectively at par with the metro area, meaning that Washington is adequately 
supporting itself but not necessarily serving a much larger population. 

25 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

IMPORTANCE OF LABOR FORCE FROM ADJACENT COUNTIES 

Using the U.S. Census Bureau's "On the Map" data series, there were 11,834 people employed in 
Washington in 2020, the latest year in the data series that began in 2002.14 

As shown on the following chart, total jobs in Washington increased from 9,731 in 2002 to 11,834 in 
2020, an erratic growth rate of just under 22 percent through 2020, but a substantial (4.6%) one-year de
cline from 2019.15 Meanwhile, the rest of Franklin County (outside of Washington) added just 3.1 per
cent more jobs from 2002 to 2020 (but down 4.7% 2019-2020), causing the county-wide 2002-2020 
growth to be about 8.4 percent. 

Washington is clearly doing much better as an attractor of jobs relative to the county, having captured 
almost three quarters of the net additional jobs in the county between 2002 and 2020. While there have 
been ups and downs in the number of jobs over LhaL period, the 2019 jobs were the highest number 
recorded in the city though, as noted, this dropped in 2020 (as it did virtually everywhere). 16 

14 P11or to 2002, there were no reliable employment counts for sub-county areas like cities. Since then, the Census Bureau 
and other federal agencies match addresses of workers to the addresses of their employers to estimate how many jobs are 
within sub-county areas as well as identifying where those workers live, among other data items. The data, however, are 
limited to the ability to match addresses and this limitation means that the numbers provided by the On the Map series 
are almost always undercounted. This memo focuses on percentages of various sorts calculated with the On the Map data. 
The percentages and related ratios should be more reliable in tracking trends than the actual numbers. Far more reliable 
employment statistics remain at the county-level and above, but On the Map enables analysts to study city-level economic 
dynamics in ways not possible before. 

15 The year 2020 was an awkward year for counting employment based on where people worked and where they lived, 
which is the basis of the On the Map data series. The Covid 19 pandemic g11pped the world in March of 2020 and pushed 
many people either out of work or to their homes or other remote places to conduct their work. Job counts certainly 
declined almost universally, but the accuracy of matching home-to-work locations might also have suffered. 

16 A separate database on employment maintained by the U.S. Bureau of E conomic Analysis at the county level only (i.e., 
not at the city level) shows net job gains for Franklin County in 2021 over 2020. City level data is not yet available for 
2021. An implication is that Washington jobs also grew from 2020 to 2021. 

26 



14,000 

12,000 

10,000 

8,000 

6,000 

4,000 

2,000 

0 

Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

Number of People Employed in Washington, Missouri 2002-2020 
Source: U.S. Census "On the Map" 

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Jobs in Franklin County have also experienced something of a roller coaster ride with a result that the county 
(including all of the incorporated cities) had 8.4 percent more jobs in 2020 than in 2002. Washington grew 
more quickly and, in 2020, had 32.1 percent of the county's jobs, up from 28.6 percent in 2002. 17 

45,000 

40,000 

35,000 

30,000 

25,000 

20,000 

15,000 

10,000 

5,000 

0 

Number of People Employed in Franklin County, Missouri 2002-2020 
Source: U.S. Census "On the Map" 

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

17 Strictly county-level employment data from the U.S. Bureau of E conomic Analysis (BE A) counted 53,773 jobs in Frank
lin County in 2020, some 16,926 higher than the 36,847 jobs tracked by On the Map. On the Map, therefore, accounted 
for only 68.5 percent of actual jobs in the county. In 2002, On the Map's numbers were 72.1 percent of the BEA numbers.) 

27 

1m 



WORKERS FROM ADJACENT COUNTIES 

In 2020, well over half (55.2%) of the 
people employed in the city of 
Washington were residents of Franklin 
County. But only 17.2 percent were 
residents of Washington itself; the rest 
lived in other Franklin County locations. 
Among the counties adjacent to 
Franklin, Warren County was home to 
4.9 percent of people employed in 
Washington, 4.1 percent lived in 
Jefferson County, 3.1 percent in 
Gasconade County, and 1.3 percent in 
Crawford County. 

Franklin County was also the dominant 
home of people employed throughout 
Franklin County in 2020, not 
surprisingly. Again, over half (54.7%) of 
the workers in the county also lived in 
the county in 2020. 

Jefferson County was home to 5.3 
percent of Franklin County workers, 
Crawford County 4.4 percent, Gasconade 
County 3.5 percent, and Warren County 
was home to 2.8 percent of the people 
employed in Franklin County. 

But potential contradictions arise from a 
separate source of commuting 
information, even though it is also from 
the U.S. Census Bureau, as shown on the 
middle graph on this page. The source is 
the county-to-county commuter flows 
from the American Community Survey 
(ACS) showing annualized amounts for 
the five-year period of 2011 to 2015. 

Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

Percent of People Employed in Washington by 
Adjacent Counties of Residence, 2020 

Source: U.S. Census "On the Map" 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 

Franklin County, MO 

Jefferson County, MO 1 4.1% 

Gasconade County, MO 3.1% 

I 

Crawford County, MO ., 1.3% 

Percent of People Employed in Franklin County by 
Adjacent Counties of Residence, 2020 

Source: U.S. Census "On the Map" 

0% 10% 20% 30% 

Franklin County, MO 

Jefferson County, MO 5.3% 

Crawford County, MO 1 4.4% 

Gasconade County, MO 1 3.5% 

Warren County, MO 2.8% 

40% 50% 

60% 

55.2% 

60% 

54.7% 

28 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

Map of Five-County Labor Force Area of Washington, Missouri 
Source of Map: Esri Business Analyst 

( 
t S4 -

1' 

51 

t_61 

11 

It 

II 

OclW&lrdl C.111111 . 

?in Hl5 

0 I 7 14 Mis,ia,.; Dt:,l[I. Esn, HEil(, Gaffnin, S cGl'IWJ~ 00. ~ LISG.S, EPA. 

1:::::::=t===:j mi NPS 

-.. 

ml 

29 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

This shows that over three quarters of the people employed in Franklin County originated their 
commutes from inside Franklin County, well over 20 percentage points higher than documents by the 
On the Map data series, above. 

For the four selected counties outside of Franklin County, the share of commuters to jobs in Franklin 
County sums to 11.6 percent, while the sum from the previous charts is 
13.9 percent. 

Of course, the first two graphs represent 
different time periods: 2020 vs. an 
average of 2011 to 2015. The bottom 
graph, therefore, returns to the On the 
Map data (same as top graph) but 
averages the years 2011 through 2015. 
Again, however, On the Map displays a 
much lower share of Franklin County 
workers living in Franklin County 
(56.7%) than those show on the middle 
graph. 

County-to-County Commuter Flows, 2011-2015 
Workers Employed in Frankin County, MO 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey 

0% 20% 

Franklin County 

Crawford County 13.8% 
Jefferson County I 3.4% 

Gasconade County I 2.3% 

Warren County I 2.1% 

40% 60% 80% 

78.3% 

Percent of People Employed in Franklin County by 
Adjacent Counties of Residence, Average 2011-2015 

Source: U.S. Census "On the Map" 

100% 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 

Franklin County, MO 56.7% 

Jefferson County, MO l s.1% 
Crawford County, MO 1 4.2% 

Gasconade County, MO 1 3.0% 

Warren County, MO 

I 

1 2.7% 

30 

1m 



U/'ashington, Missouri, E conomic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

SHARES OF WASHINGTON WORKFORCE BY SELECTED COUNTIES 2002-2020 

While Franklin County was 
home to 55.2 percent of 
Washington's workers in 
2020, this was well down 
from almost three quarters 
(74.6%) in 2002.18 There has 
been a steady decline in the 
share of people working in 
Washington who actually live 
in Franklin County. As the 
city's workforce has grown, 
so apparently has the 
importance of other countie.s 
in providing workers for the 
city's employers. 

80% 

70% 

60% 

50"/o 

40% 

30% 

20% 

10% 

0% 

Percent of People Employed in Washington Living in 

Franklin County, 2002-2020 
Source: U.S. Census "On the Map" 

A key question at the moment is the share of workers employed in Washington that live in Warren, 
Jefferson, Gasconade, and Crawford Counties. 

• Warren County supplied 3.5 percent of the city's workers in 2002, increased that share to as high as 
5.5 percent in 2010, but began losing share to where Warren County was home to 4.9 percent of 
Washington's workers in 2020. 

• Jefferson County was home to 1.9 percent of Washington's workers in 2002 and increased it share 
steadily to 4.1 percent of the city's workers in 2020. 

• Gasconade County supplied just 2.0 percent of Washington's workers in 2002, increased to 4.1 
percent by 2007, then decreased to 3.1 percent by 2020. 

• Crawford County supplied less than one percent (0.8%) of the city's workers in 2002, reached 1.5 
percent in 2011, then fell to 1.3 percent in 2020. 

Again, these trends seem to be indicators that the workforce in the city of Washington has increasingly 
found more diverse places to reside over time. 

18 Intriguingly, this is a percentage quite similar to the county-to-county commuting share of 78.3 percent for the period 
of 2011 to 2015. Are they comparable? 

31 



Washington, Missouri; E conomic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

JOB PROJECTION SCENARIO, 2020 TO 2030 

The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics publishes bi-annual employment projections by major economic sec
tor for the United States. The latest available projections are for the period 2020 to 2030. Missouri, like 
the other states, uses those projections to forecast jobs by sector for the state and ten regions of the 
state. There is always a time lag between the U.S. projections and the state projections, but the Missouri 
Economic Research and Information Center (MERIC, which is part of the Missouri Department of 
Economic Development) published its 2030 projections in late July 2022. One of the regions of 
Missouri for which projections are made is called "St. Louis." The St. Louis region is made up of five 
counties: Franklin, Jefferson, St. Charles, St. Louis, and the City of St. Louis. This interim report 
provides background on where Washington fits within the trends and projections. 

WASHINGTON'S RELATIVE STRENGTHS IN EMPLOYMENT, 2019 

First, what are Washing
ton's employment 
strengths? This graph 
compares the percentages 
of jobs by sector in 
Washington to the same 
sectors in the St. Louis 
metropolitan area using 
the LEHD On-the-Map 
data from 2019.19 The 
data are illustrative even 
though out of date. Jobs 
in the year 2020 were se
verely impacted by the 
Covid-19, with some re
covery during 2021. But 
neither year should be 
considered typical. So 
reference to 2019 has rel
evance as a better stand
ard. 

Location quotients 
greater than 1.0 on the 
graph mean that Wash
ington had a larger share 
of jobs in that sector than 
did the metro area. Such 
sectors are characteristi
cally considered 

Job Location Quotients 2019 
Washington vs. St. Louis Metro 

Source : U.S. Census Bureau LEHO 

Utilities 

Construction 

Manufacturing 

Wholesale Trade 

Retail Trade 

Transp & \Narehsg -0.67 

Information -0.56 

Finance & Insurance -0.62 

Real Estate .0.34 

Prof, Scient, Tech Svcs - 87 

Mgt of Enterprises -0.60 

Admin Support, Waste Mgt -0.8 

Educational Services -0.65 

Health Care & Social Assist 1.01 

Arts, Ent, Recreation 

Lodging & Dining .93 

Other Services - 0.87 

Public Administration • 0.21 

3.D 

2.81 

19 The Longitudinal E mployer-Household Dynamics (LEI-ID) "On-the-Map" series began in 2002 and the latest data 
available for places in the United States is for calendar year 2019. 

32 



Washi11glon, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

economic strengths for the city, but very large LQs can also indicate vulnerabilities if those sectors suffer 
sharp recessions in the region or nation. 

Manufacturing is clearly a strength of Washington within the metropolitan economy. A location quo
tient of 2.81 is a substantial indicator of the important role that Washington plays in the manufacturing 
sector of the region. But it also suggests an above average risk if the national or regional manufacturing 
sector declines for some reason. The city also has a healthy LQ in retail trade; this is almost certainly at
tributable to the city's amount of retail businesses serving a subregion much larger than the city itself. 

Notably, all the other employment location quotients, except health care, are below 1.0, indicating vary
ing degrees of "dependence" on the rest of the metro area for support. This does not mean that the 
manufacturing sector should be encouraged to shrink, however. Instead, using the manufacturing sector 
as a catalyst to attract more population, more workers, and a wide variety of additional businesses might 
be in order. 

The health care sector is effectively at par with the metro area, meaning that Washington is adequately 
supporting itself but not necessarily serving a much larger population. 

UNITED STATES PROJECTIONS TO 2030 

The U.S . economy added 11,607,100 jobs between 2010 and 2020 for a ten-year growth rate of 8.2 per
cent. The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) projects that the economy will add another 11,879,900 
jobs between 2020 and 2030. This is slightly more jobs than the previous decade, but at a slower ten
year rate of 7.7 percent. By 2030, the U.S. economy should have about 165,413,700 jobs, up from 
141,926,700 in 2010. 

33 



But growth rates will be 
uneven among the major 
economic sectors. The 
graph to the right shows 
the growth rates of sec
tors that are projected to 
add jobs more quickly 
than the national average 
of 7.7 percent between 
2020 and 2030. Twelve 
of the 22 sectors would 
grow above 7.7 percent. 
Most notably, the arts, 
entertainment, and recre
ation sector is projected 
to add 41. 4 percent more 
jobs, followed by the so
cial assistance sector at 
30.1 percent. The slow
est growth rate among 
these sectors would be in 
administrative and sup
port services at 9.8 per
cent. Still, this would be 
above the national aver
age. 

Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

USA Sectors Projected to Grow Faster Than Total Jobs, 
2020-2030 

Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

0% 10% 

-

17.1% 

11.4% 

10.5% 

12.0% 

9.8% 

13.3% 

15.2% 

13.4% 

20% 30% 

-- - ---=--~--~-
30.1% 

40% 

Mining 

Transp & \Narehsg 

Information 

Prof, Scient, Tech Svcs 

Admin & Support Svcs 

\Naste Mgt 

Educational Services 

Health Care 

Social Assistance 

Arts, Ent, Recreation 

Lodging & Dining 

Other Services 

ALL JOBS 

-- - - 41.4% 

~ 

21.7% 

50% 

34 



The other ten major sec
tors, shown on the next 
page, would grow more 
slowly than the 7.7 per
cent overall average be
tween 2020 and 2030. In 
fact, three of them are 
projected to shrink in size. 
The utilities sector would 
have 7 .2 percent fewer 
jobs after ten years, retail 
trade 4.0 percent fewer, 
and the federal govern
ment 2.3 percent fewer. 

Manufacturing, a clear 
strength in Washington, 
Missouri, would add just 
1.2 percent more jobs 
while the fastest growing 
sector in these below-av
erage sectors would be 
real estate at 5. 9 percent. 

Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

USA Sectors Projected to Grow Slower Than Total Jobs, 
2020-2030 

Utilities 

Construction 

Manufacturing 

Wholesale Trade 

Retail Trade 

Finance 

Real Estate 

Mgt of Enterprises 

Federal Govt 

State & Local Govt 

Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

-10% -5% 0% 5% 

-7.2% 

5.9% 

.. 

- -·--- - -

10% 

Thus, the top two em- ALL JOBS 7.7% 

ployment sectors in 
Washington-manufacturing and retailing-would either grow very slowly in the overall U.S. economy 
or would shrink. The third strongest sector in Washington, health care and social assistance, is expected 
to grow rather impressively. While the local (LEHD) data does not separate health care from social as
sistance, the combined national growth rate for these two sectors is 16.8 percent. The health care sector 
in the U.S. is much larger than is sister social assistance sector, but social assistance is projected to in
crease from 18.1 of the combine sectors in 2010 to 22.2 percent in 2030. 

35 

1m 



Washington, Missoun; E conomic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

SWOT ANALYSIS OF THE WASHINGTON ECONOMY 

STRENGTHS 

• Net population growth taking place 

• Net job growth taking place 

• High quality of life in exurban St. Louis 

• Good quality labor force from multiple counties 

• Ample and well-managed industrial parks 

• Highly respected manufacturing firms in preferred exurban locations 
o Well separated from most of the rest of the city's activities to minimize conflicts 
o Strong tax base to support community services 

• Well-located and well-served by wifi for remote workers (work-from-home) 

• Out-commuters earning relatively high wages and salaries to be spent in Washington 

• Expanding lodging economic sector to accommodate both business and tourism visitors 

• Net positive retail center serving markets well beyond the city's boundaries 

• New Missouri Highway 47 bridge to the north 

• Good high-speed access to Interstate 44 

• Serviceable regional airport 

• Well-managed city government and active citizenry 

WEAKNESSES 

• Distance from urban/suburban center of metropolitan area where "density-based" amenities are found 
(e.g., cultural institutions, major sporting leagues, diverse retailing and dining options) 

• Lengthy labor force commutes from adjacent counties (and beyond) 

• Shortage of housing where prices/ rents better match local labor force wages and income 

• Decreasing manufacturing jobs per manufacturing establishment 

• Lack of diverse options for high-speed access to interstate highways (south to I-44, north to I-70) 

• Shortage of labor force relative to pace of business growth 

• Out-commuters earning higher wages than local jobs 

OPPORTUNITIES 

• More "brain power" jobs in light of quality of life and well-educated population 

• More manufacturing establishments with U.S. policies toward on-shoring 

• A technical and vocational training institution to support manufacturing and logistics 

• Additional road access to interstate highways 

36 



Washi,igtun, Missouri, E conomic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

• More tourism to take advantage of historic downtown and Missouri Riverfront with need to balance the 
needs and desires 

THREATS 

• Retail abundance in the city of Union closer to Interstate 44 
• Sharp decline in national population/workforce growth rates, reducing the future number of people and 

workers who can be attracted to greater St. Louis and Washington 

• Gentrification resulting from higher-educated, higher income households 
o Impact on housing costs 
o Compatibility with manufacturing sector 
o Impact on identity of Washington 

• Conversion of downtown Washington into a tourism haven at the expense of local residents 

STRATEGIC DIRECTION AND ACTION PLAN FOR RESILIENCY 

Strategy 1- Continue the City's annual business retention and expansion program. 

1. Personally meet with large employers, regardless of industry sector, at least annually with key and 
consistent questions about hiring needs, investment needs, and so forth. Follow up with requests 
from the employers where City intervention is rational. 

2. Personally meet with smaller employers on an as needed basis when it is learned or rumored that 
major changes could occur. 

3. Continue to partner with Chamber of Commerce in "Salute to Industry" recognition programs and 
semi-annual Industry Mixers. All businesses/ employers in Washington should be encouraged to 
participate. 

Strategy 2 - Continue collaboration with Missouri Partnership and Greater St. Louis Inc. to market 
Washington to new and existing businesses and to the city's residents, the resident 
workforce, and members of the workforce who do not live in Washington. 

1. Continue participating in Site Selector visits with Missouri Partnership and Greater St. Louis Inc. 

2. Invite and participate in internal critiques of economic development preparedness, usually 
conducted by outside consultants to remain aware of competitive strengths and weaknesses from 
outside perspectives. Formats, scheduling, and agendas of such critiques should be consistent with 
expectations and insights of the Missouri Partnership, Greater St. Louis Inc., and the Missouri 
Department of Economic Development. 

3. Maintain database of Site Selection consultants to keep them informed with various forms of 
community about and latest relevant information about Washington. 

37 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

Strategy 3 - Maintain and routinely update relevant data and maps to be consistently prepared for 
inquiries and marketing campaigns to attract new businesses and employees. 

1. Educate Site Selectors by using on all print and online marketing techniques such as the City's website, 
promotional programs of the Missouri Partnership and Greater St. Louis Inc., and through LOIS 
(Location One Information System) managed by Global Location Strategies based in Greenville, South 
Carolina. 

2. Continue to partipate as a Certified Work Ready Community, thus participating with and assisting 
educators in directing students and others toward careers alogned with the needs of local businesses 
and industry sectors. 

Strategy 4 -Target industrial clusters for additional employer and workforce expansion focused on 
Washington's strengths and needs toward a goal of added economic diversity and 
resilience to recessions. 

1. Major economic growth sectors (high job growth and high productivity growth) in the national 
economy with relevance to Washington's present economic base are: 

a. Transportation and \Varehousing (builds on strengths in manefacturini) 

b. Information } 
c. Professional, Scientific, and Builds on strengths of the greater St. Louis economy 

Technical Services and the skills and education levels of ma,ry 
d. Educational Services Washington residents who now commute elsewhere Jor 

e. Health Care (builds on existing .__s_,u_h_;_·ob_s _______________ _, 
strengths as a 1111tlti-counry health care 
center) 

f. Arts and Entertainment (supports high levels of education and intellectual interests of the existing 
population and on the tourism industry) 

g. Lodging and Dining/Drinking Places (builds on propensity to attract tourists and on the strength of 
the Downtown economy and its historic attractions) 

2. While manufacturing, generally, is not a job-expansion strength in the American economy, many 
manufacturing sub-sectors will see strong growth in both jobs and productivity, leading to higher 
profits and higher wages. Eight specific manufacturing sectors are recommended for targeted 
marketing and attraction in this strategic plan that have both strong national growth projections and 
are already present in Washington: 

a. Animal Slaughtering (NAICS Code 3116) 
b. Bakery Products (3118) 
c. Beverage Products (3121) 
d. Plastics Products (3261) 
e. Architectural Metals Products (3323) 
f. Machine Shops (3327) 
g. Semiconductors and Electronics (3344) 
h. Household and Institutional Furniture (3371) 

3. Other existing manufacturing sectors in Washington should also be targeted because of "clusters" 
o f similar firms and experienced workers already present in the city. 

4. While not directly analyzed in this strategic plan, the above lists should be supplemented by 
targeting business-to-business suppliers of the above sectors and business-to-business customers of 

38 



Washington, Missouri~ Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

the above sectors. Identification of such opportunities should be explored during annual business 
retention and expansion visits (Strategy Number 1). 

5. Discourage businesses and proposed developments that overburden available utilities and 
transportation networks. 

Strategy 5 - Continue to market quality of life in promotional materials to site selectors, industries, 
and future workforce. Crucial topics for marketing include, but may not be limited to: 

1. Proximity within the St. Louis region and the many amenities of the 21st most population metro 
area in the United States. 

2. Medical center for Franklin, Warren, Gasconade, and Crawford counties with support for some 
residents of western Jefferson County. 

3. Pro-business growth community including a cooperative City Council and active economic 
development organizations including Washington Civic industrial Corporation, Chamber of 
Commerce, 353 Redevelopment Corporation, and Industrial Development Authority. 

4. Active, effective, and highly successful historic Downtown Washington, Inc. that continues to 
foster a "sense of place" through community festivals and historic preservation of the downtown 
area (e.g., winner of National Great American Main Street Award) . 

5. Strong reputation in St. Louis area for manufacturing. 

6. Heart of Missouri Wine Country. 

7. Tourism destination for shopping, dining, festivals, and biking-including access by Amtrak for 
railroad passengers from St. Louis and Kansas City and a high quality trail network linked to the 
Katy Trail State Park. 

Strategy 6 - Continue participation in and sponsorship of Connect Washington, the collaboration 
with Washington's educational network to ensure students have broad opportunities to 
explore their career passions and interests through experiences in the city's businesses 
and industries prior to graduating. 

1. Continue holding annual industry expositions for industries/ students/high schools. 

2. Continue field trips with major employers for students. 

3. Market existing industries and job opportunities to school counselors, parent-teacher organizations, 
etc. 

4. Expose school counselors to local industries and career opportunities. 

Strategy 7 - Expand Highway 100 to four lanes west to Heidmann Industrial Park and expand 
Highway 47 to four lanes south to Union and St. Clair. 

1. Environmental assessments are already completed or underway for these projects. Be certain that 
these are up to date as project proposals move forward. 

39 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

2. Use the projects as "local projects" for promotion of state funding initiatives for MoDOT 
(Missouri Department of Transportation). 

3. Promote the projects as needed for Franklin County to EWGCOG (East-West Gateway Council of 
Governments) in the region's long range transportation plan. 

Strategy 8 -Widen Highway 47 to the north (into Warren County) and reduce flooding exposure 
on the highway. 

1. Explore a variety of infrastructure improvements that would reduce flooding on Highway 47, 
including preliminary benefit-cost assessments and a hydraulic study. Benefit and cost impacts 
should include financial considerations, safer and consistent travel in a growing region, the natural 
environment, economic development, airport access, access to Katy Trail State Park, and improved 
quality of life. 

2. Form and sustain relationships with overlapping jurisdictions such as Warren County, the School 
District of Washington, Boonslick Regional Planning Commission, and the Federal Aviation 
Administration in the pursuit of improvements to traffic flow on Highway 47 north of the city 
limits of Washington. 

Strategy 9 - Identify future land for industrial development purposes. 

1. Form an active committee that meets periodically to identify the best locations for future industrial 
parks that are consistent with the 2023-2028 Comprehensive Plan. 

2. Consider potential properties during annexation processes . 

3. Consider industry clusters for optimum location (see Strategy 4). 

4. Increase lot inventory. 

Strategy 10- Continue to improve Washington Regional Airport in Warren County. 

1. Monitor the current master layout plan to continue availability of federal and state funding. 

2. Expand the runway to a minimum of 5,500 feet while widening the runway an additional 25 feet. 
Goal is to improve the rating of the airport from Class "C" to Class "B." 

3. Continue improving the aesthetics of the terminal and exterior of airport with appropriate 
landscaping and signage to be attractive and welcoming to all users . 

Strategy 11 - Support continued growth and revitalization for retail, office, and mixed-use 
developments. 

1. Continue aid in redevelopment areas of the City. 

2. Evaluate opportunities for revitalization or renovation of under-achieving retail and office centers 
in the Highway 100 corridor that might be converted to higher-value mixed-use "villages" of 
limited but convenience-oriented retailing and dining while including higher density housing that 
can attract workforce households into the city and closer to jobs. 

40 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

3. Closely monitor trends and forces in the retailing/ dining sectors to better anticipate significant 
changes in future building and land uses. These are rapidly changing sectors subject to substantial 
technological innovations, job uncertainty, and financial failure that can enhance or detract from the 
commercial function and aesthetics of the city. Prepare for public intervention, as necessary, to 
help the market adapt buildings and land for the betterment of Washington. 

4. Assist in financing new and revitalized commercial and mixed-use developments where applicable 
through use of Community Improvement Districts (CIDs), Transportation Development Districts 
(TDDs), and Industrial Revenue Bonds IRBs). 

5. Require in-depth market studies to demonstrate that proposed commercial developments that seek 
public incentives will not diminish sales, revenues, or customers at similar business establishments 
in the city. 

Strategy 12 -Take the economic development strategies "on the road" to demonstrate that 
Washington is at the forefront of economic growth and innovation and assure that 
Washington is "top-of-mind" among relevant leader organizations. 

1. Routinely inform and visit state and federal government representatives, legislative leaders, and 
executive departments. 

2. Likewise, inform, visit, and make presentations before regional and state economic organizations 
such as Greater St. Louis Inc., the Missouri Partnership, the Missouri Chamber of Commerce, 
Missouri Economic Development Council, labor representatives, and educational institutions . 

Strategy 13 - Create a public relations and marketing program designed to attract private investors 
and development talent committed both to realizing the strategic plan and, conversely, 
to resist public and private actions and investments that are not compatible with the 
plan. 

1. To be most effective, the strategic plan needs to become a community project with wide support 
and acceptance. This will require a steady "drumbeat" of communication that focuses on the 
benefits of its realization and on progress toward its realization as it is made. 

2. The elements of this effort could include: 

a. Regular reports to city, county, and state economic development commissions and councils. 
b. A continually updated and informed web page. 
c. Progress reports to key local leadership groups and individuals. 
d. Articles in the local and regional press. 
e. Direct contact with development organizations with demonstrated talent and track record -

locally, regionally, or nationally - whose participation would enhance the quality and scope of 
the plan's implementation. 

f. Creation and reinforcement of a "brand identity" or "tagline" for the Washington economy 
that can be marketed to elicit premium values and a preferred image throughout the region 
and nation. Sub-area names may also be important such as downtown, Highway 100, the 
industrial parks, and so forth. 

EVALUAITON These strategies should be reviewed annually by the City and updated as needed. Measurable 

goals can be linked to action items attained, ongoing planning processes, associated measures on performance of 
job creation numbers, goals and objectives of the committee set to review the plan, and GDP income per capita 
for the community, wages, and measures for evaluating regional impact. 

41 



Exhibit A 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC PLAN 

CITY OF WASHINGTON, 
MISSOURI 
A COMPANION TO THE WASHINGTON COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

AUGUST 2023 

PREPARED FOR 

City of Washington 

SAINT LOUIS UNIVERSITY COMMUNITY PLANNING LAB 

1m 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

Page intentionally left blank 

SAINT LOUIS UNIVERSITY COMMUNITY PLANNING LAB 1h\ 



Washington, Missouri; Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

Contents 

SUMMARY .............. ......... ........ .... ..... ... ... ........ .. ....................................... .................................................................. ...... 1 
THE ECONOMY DEFINED BY JOBS IN ECONOMIC SECTORS ................... ...................................... ........................ 2 

JOB LOCATION QUOTIENTS ..... .. ................................................................. ........ .... ............................................... .. 3 

THE BACKBONE OF WASHINGTON: MANUFACTURING ............................... ................................................................. 5 

THE MANUFACTURING COMPOSITION OF WASHINGTON'S ECONOMY ........................................................................... 7 

TRENDS IN COUNTY, METROPOLITAN, AND NATIONAL EMPLOYMENT ................... ............................ ..... ............ ............ 9 

TRENDS IN MANUFACTURING EMPLOYMENT ......... ..... .................. .. .............. ..................................................... .. .... 10 

EMPLOYMENT AND OUTPUT PROJECTIONS: U.S.A ... .••••. ... ••••••.•..••••. .•..•. .•.......•....•.....•............•.•..•..••..••.•••..•...•. 11 

EMPLOYMENT AND OUTPUT PROJECTIONS: MANUFACTURING JOBS IN THE U.S.A . ... .. ............................. ........ ..... .. ..... 12 

NOT ALL U.S. MANUFACTURING SECTORS ARE CREATED EQUAL .... ............................ .... .... .... .... ............ ................ .. 14 

SWITCHING TO ST. LOUIS REGIONAL PROJECTIONS ................................................................ .............................. ... 14 

MANUFACTURING GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES FOR WASHINGTON ........... .......................... ....... ..................... ....... ........ 17 

BUSINESS ESTABLISHMENTS AND EMPLOYMENT DATA ........... ... ... .... ........................... .... ........ .. .. .. .. .. ................ ... ... 21 

THE CITY'S ESTIMATE OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED IN WASHINGTON ... .............. ... ................... .. ........................... ......... 22 

Comparing the City's List with the U.S. Census ................... .. ........ ............ .............................................. 23 

Employment Location Quotients Using Census Data ............................................................................... 24 

IMPORTANCE OF LABOR FORCE FROM ADJACENT COUNTIES .................. ................ ............................ . .... ........ 26 

WORKERS FROM ADJACENT COUNTIES ........................... ................ ........ ......................... ... .. ................ ................. 28 

SHARES OF WASHINGTON WORKFORCE BY SELECTED COUNTIES 2002-2020 ......................................................... 31 

JOB PROJECTION SCENARIO, 2020 TO 2030 ............................................................................. .. ..................... 32 

WASHINGTON'S RELATIVE STRENGTHS IN EMPLOYMENT, 2019 .. ............................................................................. 32 

UNITED STATES PROJECTIONS TO 2030 ........................................................................................................... 33 

SWOT ANALYSIS OF THE WASHINGTON ECONOMY ... .... .............. ....................................................... ............... 36 

STRENGTHS .. .. .... ................. ... .... ..................... .................................. ... .... ................. ...... ........ .. ...... .................. 36 

WEAKNESSES .. ...................................................... . .. ................. .. .... .. ... ..... .............. ............ ........ ...................... 36 

OPPORTUNITIES .................. ........... .... .. ........... .................... .... ... ....... ...... ......................... ..... .......... ..... . .... .......... 36 

THREATS .......... .••.••.•.••.• .•.•.•..••. •.••.... .••.. . ..• ..... •.. .....•.•.•...•.•.•.•.••.•..•• .. ..........•........... ......... .. •...•.••.•.• .• .•. ••••••...••.•.• 37 

STRATEGIC DIRECTION AND ACTION PLAN ...... .................................................................................. .... ............ 37 

STRATEGIC DIRECTION AND EVALUATION FRAMEWORK .............................. ............. ... ..... . .............................. ......... .. 37 

SAINT LOUIS UNIVERSITY COMMUNITY PLANNING LAB 



Washington, Missouri; Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

SUMMARY BACKGROUND OF THE REGIONAL ECONOMY 

Washington has generally performed well as a city with quality of life and economic measures. 
Reviewing the goals, objectives, and strategies of Washington's 2015 Economic Development Strategic Plan 
suggests that a great many of those policies and ideas remain relevant for the 2023 to 2028 plan. As a 
start, therefore, the 2015 goals, et al, are the basis for the following strategic actions but the list includes 
modifications, additions, and deletions based on current and anticipated future economic conditions in 
the city. 

Washington is a job creator for the region. Total jobs in Washington increased from 9,726 in 2002 to 
12,135 in 2019, a growth rate of about 25 percent over almost two decades. Meanwhile, the rest of 
Franklin County added not quite ten percent more jobs, causing the county-wide growth to be about 14 
percent. Washington is clearly doing very well as an attractor of jobs relative to the county and local 
area. 

Manufacturing and Health Care are the predominant industry sectors for Washington. The City will 
look to diversify those job opportunities with supplemental help in the Professional, Scientific, and 
Technical Services in addition to Lodging, Dining, and Tourism along with Transportation, and Agriculture 
sectors. 

This plan will be a blueprint for growth and direction for the community in the next five years. The City 
should review these goals and strategies annually and use the data to enhance its comprehensive plan for the 
future of the community. 

1 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

THE ECONOMY DEFINED BY JOBS IN ECONOMIC SECTORS 
The greatest detail and greatest accuracy for local area economic profiles is based on county-level statis
tics throughout the U.S., including groups of counties such as metropolitan areas. This database of the 
U.S. Department of Commerce's Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA) was initiated in 1969. City or 
municipal-level statistics are available in a less precise but, nevertheless, very useful database initiated na
tionally in 2002 with data currently available through 2020.1 This data is helpful in evaluating Washing
ton's relative position in the metropolitan St. Louis economy. 

As shown on the following chart, total jobs in Washington increased from 9,726 in 2002 to 12,135 in 
2019, a growth rate of about 25 percent over almost two decades. Meanwhile, the rest of Franklin 
County added not quite ten percent more jobs, causing the county-wide growth to be about 14 percent. 
Washington is clearly doing very well as an attractor of jobs relative to the county, having captured 
roughly half of the net additional jobs in the county between 2002 and 2019. 

50,000 

40,000 

30,000 

20,000 

10,000 

0 

Total Employment in Washington and the Rest of Franklin County 
2002-2019 (Source: U.S. Census On-the-Map) 

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

• Washington • Rest of Franklin County 

As a result, Washington's share of jobs in Franklin County increased from 29 percent in 2002 to 31 per
cent in 2019. This wasn't a steady trend, however. Washington dropped slightly to 28 percent of the 
county's jobs from 2003 to 2007, then climbed gradually to 31 percent. 

Manufacturing jobs in Washington, as discussed shortly, are the backbone of the city's economy, but 
manufacturing jobs declined in the city between 2002 and 2019 by about seven percent even as the city's 
jobs overall increased by 25 percent. The city's growth and decline trends in the major economic sectors 
are shown on the next two bar charts. 

Obviously, the Health Care sector was the fastest growing, adding nearly 1,300 jobs with a growth rate 
of almost 180 percent between 2002 and 2019. The Administrative Support/Waste Management 

1 This latter database, the LEHD (Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics) "On-the-Map" series from the U.S. 
Census Bureau, is based on matching home addresses of workers to the addresses of their employers. Apparently, the 
unusual behavior of "work-from-home" policies during the Covid-19 pandemic period (very early 2020 to, perhaps, as 
late as the present time) has strained this statistical address-matching substantially. The nation still awaits meaningful 
On-the-Map data for the post-pandemic period and even for the pandemic period. 

2 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

sector was a close second in growth rate (up almost 160 percent) but a more distant second in actual jobs 
(almost 400). The Professional, Scientific, and Technical Services sector added 330 jobs, doubling 
its numbers. Lodging and Dining places (e.g., hotels, restaurants, bars) added 310 jobs (up 41 percent) 
while Construction added 235 jobs (up 62 percent), Transportation and Warehousing added 187 jobs 
(140 percent), and Finance and Insurance added almost 150 jobs (61 percent). In many ways, these 
net additions have helped to diversify the city's economy, enabling it to be more resilient to economic 
downturns and offering more options for the nearby workforce. 

Major Economic Sector Job Growth Rate Trends in 
the City of Washington, 2002 to 2019 

Source: U.S. Census "On-the-Map" 

-100% 0% 100% 

Construction 62.0% 

Manufacturing -7.1% I 
Wholesale Trade -29.7% 

Retail Trade ,j 4.3% 

200% 

Transp & Warehsg 139.6% 

Information -57.2% 

Finance and Insurance 

Real Estate 

Prof, Scient, Tech 

Mgt of Enterprises 

Admin/Waste Mgt 

Education 

Health Care & Soc Asst 

-18.1% . 

Arts, Ent, & Recreation -43.6% 

Lodging & Dining 

Other Private Services 

Public Administration -46. 7% 

60.7% 

• 24.0% 

3.5% 

41.0% 

23.3% 

99.7% 

157.5% 

177,8% 

Major Economic Sector Job Changes in 
the City of Washington, 2002 to 2019 

Source: U.S. Census "On-the-Map" 

-500 0 500 1,000 

Construction 235 

Manufacturing -226 

Wholesale Trade -81 I 
Retail Trade 1 73 

Transp & Warehsg 187 

Information -202 • Finance and Insurance • 148 

Real Estate i 12 

Prof, Scient, Tech 330 

Mgt of Enterprises -5o I 
Admin/Waste Mgt 397 

Education j 21 

Health Care & Soc Asst 

Arts, Ent, & Recreation -24 j 
Lodging & Dining 310 

Other Private Services I 65 

Public Administration -56 I 

1,500 

1,284 

But not all is beautiful. The Information, Wholesale Trade, and Manufacturing sectors all declined 
as did-in smaller amounts-Management of Businesses and Enterprises; Arts, Entertainment, 
and Recreation; and Public Administration. In many ways, the last two decades have seen dramatic 
changes in the composition of the Washington economy based on jobs, which leads to a discussion of 
how that composition stacks up within the metropolitan economy. 

Joa LOCATION QUOTIENTS 

The chart on the next page illustrates employment location quotients (LQs) by major economic sector in 
Washington. The larger economy against which the city's LQs are calculated is the St. Louis 
metropolitan area.2 

A location quotient compares the percent of jobs in a given economic sector in Washington to the per
centage in that sector in the metropolitan area. To illustrate Washington's relative strengths, its 

2 The St. Louis metro area consists of 15 counties in both 1\tiissouri and Illinois, of which Franklin County is one. The St. 
Louis metro area is the 2Q<h largest (of 383) in the United States and has a remarkably diverse economic structure, as is 
described later. Thus, comparing Washington to the metro area is very instructive as to Washington's economic role in 
the larger region and even the nation. 

3 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

percentage is divided by the metro percentage in each sector. If the percentages are the same, then 
Washington's LQ equals 1.0. LQs exceeding 1.0 indicate relative strengths in the local economy ( often 
referred to as net export sectors) while LQs ofless than 1.0 are considered support sectors without 
significant ability to attract "new dollars" into the city. The support sectors are, of course, critically 
important in sustaining the overall economy, so they should never be discounted. 

As the chart shows, Wash
ington's greatest strength is 
in the manufacturing sector, 
which shouldn't be surpris
ing to most readers. The city 
has a much higher share of 
jobs in manufacturing than 
the region as a whole, even 
though jobs in manufactur
ing have declined. The loca
tion quotient of 2.81 is quite 
large and demonstrates that 
manufacturing is a major rea
son for economic growth 
and success in Washington. 
Of course, this can also make 
Washington rather vulnera
ble to, say, downturns in na
tional or international manu
facturing sectors. If the 
profits and employment in 

Jobs Location Quotients: Washington Compared to the St. Louis 
Metropolitan Area, 2019 

Source: U.S. Census On-the-Map 

0.5 1.0 1.5 2.0 2.5 

Ag, Forestry, Fishing, Hunting 

Mining, Quarrying 0.30 

Utilities 

Construction 0.98 

Manufacturing 

Wholesale Trade 0.34 

Retail Trade 1.42 

Transport & Warehsg 0.67 

Information 0.56 

Finance & Insurance 0.62 

Real Estate 

Prof, Scient, Tech Svcs 

Management of Enterprises 0.60 

Admin Support & Waste Mgt 0. 

Educational Services 0.65 

Health Care & Social Assist 1.01 

Arts, Ent, Recreation • 0.13 

Lodging & Dining .93 

Other Services 87 

Public Administration 0.21 

Washington's manufacturers are reduced, a substantially negative impact on the city may result. 
why most economies ( even at the city level) strive for more diversity in their location quotients. 

3.0 

2.81 

This is 

Note that retail trade is also important because Washington serves as something of a "shopping center" 
for a geographic area extending well beyond the city's boundaries. That is, retail shows off as a net ex
port industry for the city. 

The sectors of construction and lodging/ dining have LQs almost equal to 1.0, indicating that these have 
shares of employment almost identical to the shares throughout the metropolitan area. All the other sec
tors fall further and further below the "1.0 threshold" which gives them less importance in the general 
strength and diversity of the city's economy. 

Sectors with LQs less than 1.0 can also indicate opportunities for growth. If Washington could attract a 
larger share of wholesale trade businesses, for example, this would have the dual effect of increasing the 
city's value in the regional wholesale trade sector while likely reducing the percentage of jobs in the 
manufacturing sector. Washington would thus become less "dependent" on manufacturing alone. 
Instead, it would have more relatively strong sectors,3 making it less vulnerable in economic downturns in 
other sectors. 

3 Normally, local economies are compared to the U.S. national economy which is generally assumed to be almost "ideal" 
regarding distribution of jobs across sectors. The On-the-Map data is not available for the nation as a whole, however. 

4 

1m 



Washington, Missouri; E conomic Development Strategic Plan 202 3-2028 

Another way to analyze location quotients is to sum up the "absolute values" of the individual LQs.4 By 
measuring the numerical differences between the standard of 1.0 to the various location quotients, then 
adding them, a single "diversity metric" is created. For Washington in 2019, the shown LQs in the 20 
sectors achieve a sum of absolute values of 10.2. Franklin County's absolute value sum, when compared 
to the metro area in 2019, is 9.0, indicating that the county is slightly more resilient than Washington. 
This is not surprising. Larger geographic areas are expected to have more diversified economic structures 
than smaller areas. 

Note, however, that different data sources can result in different indicators. The above information is 
from the Census Bureau's On-the-Map series. The Regional Data series of the U.S. Bureau of Economic 
Analysis provides a deeper, and generally more accurate, set of data on employment, but only to the 
county level (or metropolitan level). Thus, LQs for the City of Washington cannot be determined with 
the BEA data, but LQs for Franklin County can be. And LQs for the St. Louis metro area can be created 
by comparing it to national data. On-the-Map does not provide national totals. 

The BEA employment data for 2019 (same year as above) shows that Franklin County, when compared 
to the St. Louis metropolitan area, had a location quotient absolute value sum of 10.5, a bit higher than 
the On-the-Map metric. When compared to the entire U.S. economy, however, the county's metric im
proves to 8.7 (keeping in mind that "closer to 1.0" is preferred. The St. Louis metropolitan economy, 
when measured against the national economy, had a metric of 3.7. The metro economy is far more in 
sync with the national economy than is Franklin County alone. By extension, Washington is probably 
even further from the national "ideal." 

This is not to denigrate the Washington or Franklin County economies. They each contribute substantial 
strengths to, and benefit from, the more balanced metropolitan economy. 

THE BACKBONE OF WASHINGTON: MANUFACTURING 

Manufacturing is the predominant sector both in Washington and throughout Franklin County. But, as 
the following two graphs demonstrate, the overall number of manufacturing jobs in Washington could 
be said to be relatively stagnant over time (2002 to 2019) and their share of all manufacturing jobs in the 
county has also been fairly consistent over time. 

Again, because metro St. Louis compares well with the nation, comparing Washington to the metro area is a good proxy for 
a national comparison 

4 Absolute values generally measure the distance from zero to the value, whether negative or positive. The number 1.5, 
for instance, has an absolute value of 1.5. So does negative 1.5. Absolute values are always expressed as positive measures. 
In the case of location quotients, however, the absolute value is a measure of each LQ's distance from 1.0. 

5 



12,000 

10,000 

8,000 

6,000 

4,000 

2,000 

0 

100% 

80% 

60% 

40% 

20% 

0% 

Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

Manufacturing Employment in Washington and the Rest of Franklin County 
2002-2019 (Source: U.S. Census On-the-Map) 

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

• Washington • Rest of Franklin County 

Manufacturing Employment in Washington as a Percent of Franklin County 
2002-2019 (Source : U.S. Census On-the-Map) 

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

• Washington a Rest of Franklin County 

As of 2021 (two years later than shown above and the latest comprehensive data available from the 
BEA), Franklin County encompassed 9.4 percent of all manufacturing jobs in the St. Louis metropolitan 
area. This was notably higher than the 7.9 percent of all manufacturing jobs in 2001 (the beginning of 
this data series), but the average from 2001 to 2021 is just 9.1 percent, so Franklin County has not im
proved its position significantly in two decades. 

6 

1m 



Washington, Missouri; Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

THE MANUFACTURING (OM POSITION OF WASHINGTON'S ECONOMY 

The Community and Eco
nomic Development office of 
the City of Washington main
tains a list of businesses in the 
city. This inventory includes 
types of business as well as 
each firm's number of em
ployees. The graph summa
rizes the 38 firms in Washing
ton considered manufacturing 
companies according to their 
NAlCS codes. For example, 
there is one animal slaughter
ing firm in the city and five 
machine shops . All told, the 
38 manufacturers are com
prised of 20 separate 4-digit 
NAICS codes. 

The city's full inventory of 
existing businesses contains 
485 separate listings. Manu 

Number of Manufacturing Firms in Washington by NAICS 
Code, July 2022 (Source: City of Washington) 

3116 Animal Slaughtering 

3118 Bakeries 

3121 Beverages 

3169 Leather Products 

3222 Converted Paper Products 

3231 Printing & Related 

3261 Plastics Products 

1 

3311 Iron & Steel Mills -
3312 Steel Products 

3323 Architectural Metals Prods. 

3327 Machine Shops 

3328 Coating & Engraving 

3332 Industrial Machinery Mfg 

3336 Engine & Power Transmission Equip. 

3339 Gen. Purpose Machinery Mfg 

3344 Semicondtors & Electronics 

3352 Household Applicances 

3362 Motor Vehical Bodies 

3371 Household & Institutional Furniture 

3399 Miscellaneous Mfg 

2 3 4 5 

facturers, therefore, make up about eight percent of the city's enterprises. In some contrast, however, 
manufacturing firms average 94 employees in Washington while all other firms average just 14. Only 
local government (144 total/ average) and health care (60 average) exceed the manufacturing sector. 

6 

The next graph shows the number of employees in these 38 manufacturing firms by NAICS code. 
Manufacturing employment, from the city's list, totals 3,582. The previously discussed On-the-Map data 

7 

1m 



from the U.S. Census Bureau 
for the year 2019 shows that 
there were 2,954 employees in 
Washington manufacturing 
firms, a difference of about 
628. As also mentioned ear
lier, the On-the-Map data are 
almost universally under
counted because some em
ployees and employers cannot 
be matched easily by their ad
dresses. 

The city's database shows that 
there were 10,230 people em
ployed overall in Washington 
as of mid-2022. On-the-Map 
shows 12,135 employees in 
the city as of 2019. Unlike 
manufacturing, the city's to
tals are lower than the Census 
Bureau's. As a result, the 
city's data indicates that man

Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

Employment in Manufacturing Firms in Washington by 
NAICS Code, July 2022 (Source: City of Washington) 

200 400 600 800 1,000 1,200 

3116 Animal Slaughtering 

3118 Bakeries ! 10 

3121 Beverages 2 

3169 Leather Products 

3222 Converted Paper Products 

3231 Printing & Related 

3261 Plastics Products 
3311 Iron & Steel Mills 

3312 Steel Products 

3323 Architectural Metals Prods. 

3327 Machine Shops 
3328 Coating & Engraving 

3332 Industrial Machinery Mfg 

256 

280 

3336 Engine & Power Transmission ... - ----~· 296 
3339 Gen. Purpose Machinery Mfg 

3344 Semicondtors & Electronics 

3352 Household Applicances 

3362 Motor Vehical Bodies 

3371 Household & Institutional Furniture 

3399 Miscellaneous Mfg 223 

1,025 

467 

ufacturing jobs make up over a third (35.0 percent) of all jobs while On-the-Map says that, in 2019, man
ufacturing jobs comprised almost a quarter (24.3 percent) of all jobs in the city.s 

Other contrasts are important to bear in mind as the economic data are analyzed. 

• Manufacturing supports the greatest number and percentage of jobs in Washington. 
o City: 3,582 manufacturing jobs, 24.3 percent of the city's 10,230 jobs. 
o Census: 2,954 manufacturing jobs, 35.0 percent of the city's 12,135 jobs. 

• Health Care & Social Assistance is the second largest employer by NAICS Code. 
o City: 1,855 jobs, 18.1 percent 
o Census: 2,006 jobs, 16.5 percent 

• Retail Trade is the third largest employment sector in Washington. 
o City: 1,296 jobs, 12.7 percent 
o Census: 1,760 jobs, 14.5 percent 

Back to manufacturing quickly. The employment projections discussed later in this report at the national 
level include 73 unique, four-digit NAICS codes in the manufacturing sector. Washington has firms in 
20 of those codes. 

5 Some of the difference can be explained by different surveying and statistical techniques, some by different years of data 
(2019 vs. 2022). Later years have been sharply affected by the Covid-19 pandemic, which could also explain some differ
ences. 

8 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

TRENDS IN COUNTY, METROPOLITAN, AND NATIONAL EMPLOYMENT 

Employment in Franklin 
County grew 15.0 percent 
between 2001 and 2021 
based on latest available 
data from the U.S. Bu
reau of Economic Analy
sis (BEA) which tracks all 
employment down to the 
county level, or groups of 
contiguous counties like 
metro areas and states.6 
Franklin County's growth 
rate outpaced the metro
politan area as a whole 
(8.4 percent) and even St. 

Total Employment in Franklin and St. Louis Counties and the St. 
Louis Metro Area 2001-2021 

Source: U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis 

2,000,000 
1,641,900 Up 8.4% 

1,500,000 

1,000,000 779,700 
Up 1.4% 

500,000 

47,400 

§ § § s 8 8 § s § 
N N N N N N N N N 

U 15.0% 

0 rl N 
rl rl rl 
0 0 0 
N N N 

- st. Louis Metro Area - st. Louis County - Franklin County 

1,779,200 --
790,900 

54,500 

Louis County (1.4 percent) where 44 percent of all metropolitan jobs are found (but down from 47 per
cent in 2001). As a result, Franklin County's share of the metropolitan employment expanded from 2.9 
percent in 2001 to 3.1 
percent in 2021. 

In fact, Franklin 
County's employment 
growth rate exceeded the 
national growth rate 
from 2001 to about 2016, 
as illustrated on the 
graph to the right that 
indexes job growth to 
"100" in 2001. In the 
subsequent two decades, 
the USA eventually 
reached 22 percent 
growth overall (about 

125 

120 

115 

110 

105 

100 

95 

90 

Total Employment Growth Rate Comparisons, 2001-2021 
Source: U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis 

100 

§ § § s 
N N N N 

USA 122 

one percent per year) while Franklin County slowed a little bit to reach a two-decade rate of 15 percent. 
Missouri's jobs grew nine percent, the metro area eight percent (8.4 percent, more precisely, as shown 
earlier), and St. Louis County grew just over one percent. 

6 These jobs encompass not only payroll jobs, which are reported on monthly in news reports and are relatively easy to 
track because the data relies on regularly supplied information on income tax withholdings. They also include all jobs that 
are not so readily tracked (self-proprietors, contractors) where tax information is not as current. Thus, there is a lag time 
between when payroll data is reported and when the BEA county-based data are reported. 2021 is the last available year. 
The time span shown here of 2001 to 2021 is consistent with reporting that uses NAICS (North American Industrial 
Classification System) definitions of economic sectors. Prior to 2001, sector definitions were based on the Standard In
dustrial Classification (SIC) system. 

9 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 202 3-2028 

TRENDS IN MANUFACTURING EMPLOYMENT 

While there has generally 
been net growth in jobs 
in Franklin County and 
elsewhere in the metro 
region, manufacturing 
jobs have not been con
tributing to this growth. 
Manufacturing jobs de
clined in number in 
Franklin County by 
eleven percent between 
2001 and 2021 even as 
all jobs in the county in
creased by 15 percent. 
These manufacturing 

Manufacturing Employment in Franklin and St. Louis Counties and 
the St. Louis Metro Area 2001-2021 

Source: U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis 

160,000 135,515 
140,000 ..........._ 
120,000 ""'---------
100,000 ~ -80,000 72,163 

---

Down 24.8% 

60,000 

40,000 
Down 32.4% 

20,000 10, 745 

§ § § 1§ 8 s § s 
N N N N N N N N 

Down 11.0% 

8 0 ..-i N 
..-i ..-i ..-i 
0 0 0 

N N N N 

- st. Louis Metro Area - st. Lou is County - Franklin County 

101,878 

48,795 

9,564 

~ r 
0 C 
N r 

decreases, however, were not as severe as in the metro area as a whole (down by a quarter) or in St. 
Louis County (down by a third). 

The region is not alone in these downturns. The next graph compares manufacturing job declines by 
indexing 2001 to "100." This shows that Franklin County's index dropped from 100 to 89 in the two 
decades, or eleven percent as noted above. In the U.S. as a whole, manufacturing jobs dropped to an 
index of 77, or a 23 percent decline. Missouri fared only a little better with a decline of 19 percent. 

Manufacturing Employment Growth Rate Comparisons, 2001-2021 
Source: U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis 

105 
100 

100 

95 

90 

85 

80 

75 

70 

65 
68 

St. Lou s County 

60 
,-t N M ,:;t LI) ID r-... 00 CTI 0 ,-t N M ,:;t LI) ID r-... 00 CTI 0 ,.. 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ,-t ,-t ,-t ,-t ,-t ,-t ,-t ,-t ,-t ,-t N (" 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 C 
N N N N N N • N N N N N N N N N N N N N N (" 

In short, manufacturing jobs are still relatively important in Washington and Franklin County and they 
are not as high comparatively within the St. Louis metro area. 

10 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

EMPLOYMENT AND OUTPUT PROJECTIONS: U.S.A. 

The U.S. Bureau of Labor 
Statistics (BLS) produces pro
jections of jobs by economic 
sector looking out ten years at 
a time and looking back ten 
years. The latest available 
projections are for the year 
2031 based on 2021 data and 
looking back to 2011. 

Forecasted growth in the na
tion is for 5.3 percent more 
jobs in 2031 than in 2021. 
But this would only be about 
half the rate of increase of the 
prior ten years . National em
ployment will still be increas
ing in the next decade, but at 
a much lower rate than in the 
past, averaging about a half 
percent per year rather than 
one percent per year.7 

Given those national projec~ 
tions, it is likely that the 
slower growing St. Louis area 
will experience even slower 
growth still. More on that 
topic shortly. 

The BLS projections also 

180,000 

160,000 

140,000 

120,000 

100,000 

80,000 

60,000 

40,000 

20,000 

0 

180,000 

160,000 

140,000 

120,000 

100,000 

80,000 

60,000 

40,000 

20,000 

0 

Trends and Projections: U.S. Total Employment 
2011-2021-2031 (thousands) 

Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

2011 2021 2031 

Trends and Projections: U.S. Total Employment 
2011-2021-2031 (thousands) 

Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

2011 2021 2031 

show anticipated changes in output by economic sector (graph on the following page). Output is the 
value of goods and services created in the economy. The projections show that the overall output 
growth rate for the next ten years is essentially the same as the past ten years. Yet this will be 
accomplished with slower employment growth. 

7 This is consistent with Census Bureau projections of the national population which show a dramatic decline in growth 

rates from 2020 to 2060. 

11 



This added growth with fewer 
workers is the result of a pro
jected increase in output ( or 
productivity) per worker. In 
chained 2012 dollars, output 
per worker in the United 
States was, on average, 
$198,700 in 2011. This in
creased by 11 percent in 2021 
to $220,700 per worker. It is 
projected to increase more 
rapidly-up 16 percent-by 
2031 to $256,500 per worker. 
Thus, the productivity of 
workers (aided by better edu-

$300,000 

$250,000 

$200,000 

$150,000 

$100,000 

$50,000 

cation, training, experience, $O 

Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

Trends and Projections: U.S. Total Economic Output per 
Job, 2011-2021-2031 (constant 2012 dollars) 

Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

and technological advances) 2011 2021 2031 
will enable the U.S. economy 
to expand at least as strongly in the coming decade as in the last decade. 

Of course, these projections are not guaranteed to come true, nor do they necessarily apply to greater St. 
Louis or Washington in the same proportions. But they are a highly researched indication of both 
challenges and opportunities in the American economy. 

EMPLOYMENT AND OUTPUT PROJECTIONS: MANUFACTURING JOBS IN THE U.S.A. 

The BLS projections also include projections in a wide range of economic sectors of the national economy. 
Of greatest interest here are the projections of manufacturing jobs and output. Again, the latest available 
projections are for the year 2031 based on 2021 data and looking back to 2011. 

First, a word on comparing 
databases. The ten-year 
projections come from the 
Bureau of Labor Statistics 
(BLS) while the detailed 
counts of jobs at the county
to-national levels come from 
the Bureau of Economic 
Analysis. The former is in 
the U.S. Department of La
bor, the latter in the Depart
ment of Commerce. While 
statisticians in both agencies 
work closely together, their 
"totals" do not always fully 
match. The direction of 

14,000 

12,000 

10,000 

8,000 

6,000 

4,000 

2,000 

0 

Trends and Projections: U.S. Manufacturing Employment 
2011-2021-2031 (thousands) 

Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

U S 3% Down 11% p 0 • 0 -
11,7 27.0 

12,346.6 12.201,2 

-
2011 2021 2031 

trends and statistics, like percentages and ratios, are therefore often more important in analyzing differ
ent sources of information than the actual numbers. 

12 



The first thing to notice on 
the previous graph of all 
U.S. manufacturing jobs is 
that the BLS shows a 5.3 
percent historical increase 
over the ten years of 2011 to 
2021 while the BEA data 
(shown earlier) showed a de
cline in the 20 years between 
2001 and 2021. In fact, the 
two sources are compatible. 
The BEA data for the same 
years as the BLS data (2011 
to 2021) actually shows a 5.7 
percent increase in manufac
turing jobs after a decline in 

8,000 

7,000 

6,000 

5,000 

4,000 

3,000 

2,000 

1,000 

0 

Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

Trends and Projections: U.S. Manufacturing Output 
2011-2021-2031 ($billions 2012) 

Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

Up S.7% • 
$5,663.8 $5,986.4 

2011 2021 2031 

the prior decade. The BLS prqjections, however, indicate a slight (1.1 %) decrease in manufacturing jobs 
between 2021 and 2031 even though overall job projections indicate a 5.3 percent increase. 

Even though manufacturing employment is projected to decrease in the corning decade, output is ex
pected to increase by an impressive 18.0 percent, only a little slower than the 22.4 percent increase in 
output for the overall economy. In other words, there should be a rather large increase in labor produc
tivity (better training and education, more skills, expanded use of technology, etc.) in the manufacturing 
sector in the next decade compared to the last. 

This added output growth with fewer workers would result from a remarkable increase in output per 
worker. In chained 2012 dollars, output per manufacturing worker in the U.S. was, on average, $483,000, 
about 2.4 times higher than the overall national average of $198,700, shown earlier. But manufacturing 
output-per-worker stayed ef
fectively level between 2011 
and 2021 (up only 0.4 per
cent). 

But output-per-worker is pro
jected to increase by 19 .3 per
cent in the manufacturing 
sector between 2021 and 
2031, three percentage points 
higher than the overall econ
omy (16.2 percent increase). 
If all holds true, output-per
worker in manufacturing will 
increase from 2.20 times the 
average of all American 
worker to 2.25 times.s Still, 

$700,000 

$600,000 

$500,000 

$400,000 

$300,000 

$200,000 

$100,000 

$0 

Trends and Projections: U.S. Total Economic Output per 
Job, 2011-2021-2031 (constant 2012 dollars) 

Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

Up0.4% 

$483,000 $484,900 

2011 2021 2031 

8 While a 19.3 percent increase in output-per-worker is impressive for manufacturing, it would be only the 9,11 largest 
increase in productivity growth the among 24 major economic sectors evaluated by BLS. The highest rate of increase 

13 



Washington, Mzssouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

employment in manufacturing would decline nationally by about 139,400 jobs between 2021 and 2031. 

NOT ALL U.S. MANUFACTURING SECTORS ARE CREATED EQUAL 

While "all" manufacturing jobs are projected to decline 1.1 percent, or 139,400 jobs, there are many sub
sectors of manufacturing that would increase in size, including the top 20 sectors shown to below 
(though some of these are overlapping). Overall, the food manufacturing sector would add 41,700 jobs 
while chemical manufacturers would add 40,100 jobs between 2021 and 2031. 

At the other end of the spectrum, the entire machinery manufacturing subsector would lose 125,000 
jobs, effectively nine out of ten net lost jobs in manufacturing over the present decade. The printing 
subsector, too, would be a substantial loser of 96,800 jobs.9 

Manufacturing Sectors Adding the Most Jobs, 
U.S.A., 2021-2031 (thousands) 
Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

Food manufacturing 

Chemical manufacturing 

Plastics and rubber products 

Miscellaneous Food 

Pharmaceuticals & Meds 

Other electrical equipment 

Plastics products 

Electrical equipment 

Other Food Mfg 

Machine shops 

Motor veh ides 

Other miscellaneous 

Medical equipment 

Structural metals 

Semiconductors 

Computers & Electronics 

Wood Products 

Bakeries 

Fabricated Metal Products 

0 10 20 30 40 50 

SWITCHING TO ST. LOUIS REGIONAL PROJECTIONS 

Manufacturing Sectors Losing the Most Jobs, 
U.S.A., 2021-2031 (thousands) 
Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

-140-120-100 -80 -60 -40 -20 0 

Coating, Engraving 

Pulp and Paper Mills 

Converted Paper Products 

Iron and Steel Mills 

Ship and Boat building 

Furniture 

Office Furniture 

Aerospace Products 

HVAC Equipment 

Power Transmission Products 

Paper Manufacturing 

Other Fabricated Metal Prods 

Metalworking Machinery 

Primary Metal Mfg 

Ag, Const, Mining Machinery 

Textile Mills 

Other Machinery 

Apparel & Leather Goods 

Printing 

Machinery manufacturing 

(8.1) 
(9.0 

(9.91 

(S.6.Bl---...-~ 
(125,,0) 

After the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics publishes its ten-year employment and occupational projections 
for the nation as a whole, state economic analysts typically produce their own projections within that 

would be in the·retail trade sector at a 32.8 percent increase! As a consumer, look out for much more technology (and self 
service) when shopping while there would likely be fewer retail workers. 

9 Obviously, these two sectors add to more than the net losses of all manufacturing but, as noted alongside, there are many 
subsectors where jobs are projected to increase. 

14 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

national context. State projections, therefore, are usually a year behind the U.S. projections. The 
Missouri Economic Research and Information Center (MERIC), a component of the Missouri 
Department of Economic Development (DED), produces its state projections within ten "regions" of 
the state, illustrated below. This report focused on the projections within the St. Louis region which 
encompasses Franklin, Jefferson, St. Louis, and St. Charles Counties plus the city of St. Louis. 
Projections by MERIC are only at the regional and state level, not smaller areas like counties or cities. 

For the five-county St. Louis region, MERIC projects that total employment will increase from 
1,120,200 to 1,201,700 be- tween 2020 and 2030, a net growth rate of 
7 .3 percent. This would be slightly 
faster growth than the U.S. projections 
for 2021 to 2031 of 5.3 percent.10 

Manufacturing job projections aren't so 
robust, as shown to the right. MERIC 
counted 91,580 manufacturing jobs in 
the region in 2020 and proj cts 91,470 

in 2030, a small decline. But, im
portantly, five of the 15 manufacturing 
subsectors tracked by MERIC would 
add jobs over the decade. 

• Food manufacturing would add 
600 jobs in the region for an 8.6 
percent growth rate. National pro
jections in food manufacturing call 
for a much smaller 2.5 percent 
growth rate (2021 to 2031), but St. 
Louis is a key center of agricultural 
production with many strengths in 
the food production sector. So, 

Manufacturing Job Projections for the St. Louis 
Region, 2020 to 2030 

-3,000 

Food Manufacturing 

Beverage & Tobacco Products 

Textile Mills 

Textile Product Mills 

2,000 7,000 

Appar.el M.anufact1,Jri~g 
Economic Keg1ons or t,,e Missouri Economic 

Printing and Related 

Petroleum & Coal Products I 
Chemical Manufacturing 

Plastics & Rubber Products 

Nonmetallic Mineral Products 

Primary Metal Manufacturing 

Fabricated Metal Products 

Machinery Manufacturing 

Furniture and Related Products 

Miscellaneous Manufacturing 

12,000 

lil 2020 

2030 

10 Note, however, that the U.S. BEA counted 1,388,700 total jobs in this MERIC-defined St. Louis region in 2020, some 
268,500 more than counted by MERIC, another indicator of the challenges of a variety of data sources. Given that this 
"gap" is about one-fifth of the BEA count, the difference is generally consistent with gaps between payroll jobs (i.e., those 
generally tracked by income tax withholdings) and total jobs, the latter including self-proprietors, contractors, and others 
who do not necessarily provide the state and federal governments with monthly or quarterly withholding tax statements. 
The important factor in this analysis is the projected growth rate which can be assumed to be the same for both counts. 

15 



Washington, Missoun; Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

the nation's growth is and should be heavily bolstered by greater St. Louis. 
• Machinery manufacturing is projected by MERIC to add 7 40 jobs over the decade for a 6.5 percent 

growth rate. In sharp contrast, the national projections show a substantial decline in machinery 
manufacturing jobs of 11.9 percent from 2021 to 2031. 

• Miscellaneous manufacturing in the St. Louis region would add 250 jobs for a 6.7 percent growth 
rate (national: 5.0 percent growth). 

• Fabricated metal products manufacturing would add 170 jobs in the St. Louis region for a 2.4 per
cent growth rate (national: 0.7 percent growth). 

• Beverage products manufacturing would add a small 25 jobs over the 2020s for growth of0.76 per-
cent (national: 2.9 percent growth). 

The fastest growing economic subsector in St. Louis is expected to be Performing Arts, Spectator 
Sports, and Related Industries. This would add almost 2,000 more jobs over the decade for a whop
ping 80 percent growth rate. It is part of the Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation sector which 
would grow by a combined 4,190 jobs, or 32.6 percent. This sector also includes museums and places of 
amusement. 

In second place for rate of growth in greater St. Louis is the Motion Picture and Sound Recording 
subsector which would add 600 jobs for a 65 percent net growth rate. This is part of the Information 
sector which would grow just 10.7 percent overall because of a 17.3 percent drop in the Telecommuni
cations subsector. 

The greatest job gains are expected in Food Services and Drinking Places subsector with 17,780 more 
jobs (up 24.8 percent). This is part of the Accommodation and Food Services sector which would 
add just under 21,000 more jobs for an overall growth rate of 26.2 percent over the decade. 

The following graphs illustrate job projections in the St. Louis Region for each of the major economic 
sectors. 

Major Economic Sector Job Growth Rate Projections 
for the St. Louis Region, 2020 to 2030 

Source: Missouri Economic Research & Information Center 

-10% 

Specialty Trade Contractors 

Manufacturing -0.1% 

Wholesale Trade 

Retail Trade 

Transportation 

Information 

Finance & Insurance 

Real Estate 

Prof, Scient, & Tech Services 

Management of Enterprises -4.1% 

Ad min Support & Waste Mgt 

Educational Services 

Health Care & Social Asst 

Arts, Ent, Recre ation 

Lodging & Dining 

Other Private Services 

Government -0.2% 

0% 10% 20% 

-----262% 

30% 

Major Economic Sector Job Additions for the St. 
Louis Region, 2020 to 2030 

Source: Missouri Economic Research & Information Center 

-10,000 

Specialty Trade Contractors 

Manufacturing 

Wholesale Trade 

Retail Trade 

Transportation 

Information 

Finance & Insurance 

Real Estate 

Prof, Scient, & Tech Services 

Management of Enterprises 

Ad min Support & Waste Mgt 

Educational Services 

Health Care & Social Asst 

Arts, Ent, Recreation 

Lodging & Dining 

Other Private Services 

Government 

-112 

-97 

0 

94 

12 

42 

. 920 

10,000 20,000 30,000 

16 



Washington, Missouri, E conomic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

If a goal is to identify where to invest resources where growth is most likely to happen, manufacturing 
might not automatically be on that list-at least from a jobs creation perspective. Yet this is the 
strength of Washington, and the city is well positioned to sustain that strength for the St. Louis area. 
The city has ample land for manufacturers and continues to develop more. It has a long and storied his
tory of supporting manufacturing. Manufacturing will not be going away. It is vital to economic activity 
and wealth creation everywhere. Yet it is doing so with greater productivity per worker and fewer work
ers, while more urban and suburban areas shun manufacturing establishments. The sector's national 
productivity per worker is presently more than double that of the overall national economy and is pro
jected to at least maintain that dominance (maybe slightly increase it) by the year 2031. 

MANUFACTURING GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES FOR WASHINGTON 

Several ways to consider how Washington might focus its manufacturing growth and attraction efforts 
emerge from this analysis. Initially, below, the opportunities are presented within the 20 manufacturing 
sectors already in Washington: 11 

1. Sectors of job growth as projected by Missouri E conomic Research and Information Center (re-
gional projections) 

2. Sectors of job growth as projected by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics (national projections) 
3. Sectors of output growth as projected also by BLS (national projections) 
4. Sectors exhibiting growth in both jobs and output at the national level. 

Stl Region Job Growth Rate Projections 2020 to 2030 
Manufacturing Sectors Now in Washington 

Source: Missouri Economic Research & In fo rmation Center 

The first option simply 
looks at job growth 
projections for the lim
ited number of manu
facturing subsectors 
evaluated by MERIC 
for the St. Louis Re
gion. These are shown 
to the right. 

-25% -20% -15% -10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 15% 

Theoretically, Washing
ton could concentrate 
on expanding firms and 
jobs in the eight sectors 
where job projections 
are positive. Unfortu
nately, MERIC does 
not provide projections 
for five of the 20 sec
tors, perhaps further 
limiting this strategic 

3116 Animal Slaughtering 
3118 Bakeries 

3121 Beverages 

3169 Leather Products 
3222 Converted Paper Products 

3231 Printing & Related-21.1% 
3261 Plastics Products 

3311 Iron & Steel Mills -17.4% 
3312 Steel Products -17.4% 

3323 Architectural Metals Prods. 
3327 Machine Shops 

3328 Coating & Engraving 

3332 Industrial Machinery Mfg 
3336 Engine & Power Transmission Equip. 

3339 Gen. Purpose Machinery Mfg 
3344 Semicondtors & Electronics 

3352 Household Applicances 

3362 MotorVehical Bodies 
3371 Household & Institutional Furniture 

3399 Miscellaneous Mfg 

-17.4% 

-17.4% 

11 After this analysis, the discussion expands to other manufacturing subsectors. 

I o.8% 

2.4% 

-2.5% 

8.6% 
8.6% 

6.5% 
6.5% 

6.5% 

6.7% 

17 

111' 



Washington, Missoun; Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

approach. This also ignores other possible growth measures, but MERIC does not consider other 
projection metrics. 

The second option does much the same but considers only the national job projections. In this 
case, ten of the 20 manufacturing sectors presently in Washington exhibit positive national job 
growth in the next decade. 

That said, while ten subsectors have positive projected growth, all but two of them would have 
job growth rates below the overall national average growth rate of 5.3 per- cent over ten years. 
Still, all ten would have positive growth rates-unlike their major sector of manufacturing as a 
whole where jobs would decline by 1.1 percent. 

A third approach to determining targets for Washington is to con- sider those sectors that are 
already in the city where national output growth (higher productivity) would be positive. In this 
case, all but one of the existing manufacturing sectors in Washington qualify. These 19 sectors 
anticipate output growth even though nine of them would have com mensurate jobs decreases. 

National Output Growth Rate Projections 2021 to 
2031 

Manufacturing Sectors Now in Washington 
Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

-30% -20% -10% 0% 10% 
40% 

3116 Animal Slaughtering 
3118 Bakeries l83~ 

3121 Beverages _ll% 
3169 Leather 5.7% 

Products 3222 Converted -26.3% 
Paper Products 3231 Printing 

5.6% & Related 

3261 Plastics 
. % 

Products 3311 Iron & "8:'8% 

Steel Mills 3312 
Steel Products 

3323 Architectural Metals Prods. 
3327 Machine 

Shops 3328 Coating & 
Engraving 3332 Industrial 

Machinery Mfg 

20% 

3336 Engine & Power Transmission ,8% 
Equip. 3339 Gen. Purpose 

Machinery Mfg 3344 
Semicondtors & Electronics 3352 

Household Applicances 

3362 MotorVehical 6.4% 

Bodies 3371 Household & Institutional 
Furniture 

3399 Miscellaneous Mfg 
11.6% 

30% 

18 

1m 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

A fourth approach 
combines the second 
and third by selecting 
only those sectors that 
demonstrate growth in 
both jobs and output at 
the national level. 
These ten sectors are 
shown on the graph to 
the right. If businesses 
in these sectors can ex
pand in Washington or 
more such businesses 
can be attracted (a 
"cluster" effect), Wash
ington could experience 
the maximum possible 
growth without adding 
more sectors. The lat
ter idea, of course, is 
both heartening and 
limiting. It would bol
ster the subsectors al

National Sectors Projected to Grow Both Jobs and Output 2021 to 2031 
Manufacturing Sectors Now in Washington 

3116 Animal Slaughtering 

3118 Bakeries 

3121 Beverages 

3261 Plastics Products 

3323 Architectural Metals Prods. 

3327 Machine Shops 

3344 Semicondtors & Electronics 

3362 Motor Vehical Bodies 

3371 Household & Institutional 
Furniture 

3399 Miscellaneous Mfg 

Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

0% 

1.3% 

5.4% 

10% 

4.1% 

8.8% 

55% 

9.8~~ 

4.6% 

3.2% 

20% 

1!8.3 

. ' ' ... 1,,1,. ,l 

30% 

a USA Job Growth 

USA Output Growth 

3~.J-'~ 

36.4~ 

ready proven in Washington but would limit growth to just them. Thus, a more comprehensive eco
nomic development approach would expand the above graph to include more manufacturing sectors 
with projected national growth in both jobs and productivity. 

40% 

That graph is on the next page. It includes 21 additional manufacturing sectors-that is, excluding the ten 
shown above which are already present in Washington. Those shown on the next graph are not now 
found in Washington. The graph combines positive growth rates for employment in the nation between 
2021 and 2031 with positive growth rates projected for output. 

That said, there are 36 additional four-digit manufacturing sectors included in the BLS projections. Only 
two of those have negative growth rate projections for both jobs and output (tobacco manufacturing and 
magnetic optical media). Generally speaking, output and productivity will advance in almost all 
manufacturing sectors. Of the other 34 sectors, only one has negative output growth ( of just -0.2 
percent) combined with positive job growth (other chemical products manufacturing). The remaining 33 
sectors all project negative job growth but positive productivity growth. 

This latter observation prompts the oft-asked question, "What is an advanced manufacturing company?" 
The best answer is that all manufacturing companies in the U.S. are "advanced" or they aren't in 
business. Productivity through technology and related "advances" in processing, management, etc., have 
been improving manufacturing output for several decades. But this has come at the cost of fewer jobs, 
though higher productivity per job (from not only technology but also training and experience) has 
improved the wages and salaries of most manufacturing workers. There just aren't as many of those 
workers as in the past. 

19 

1m 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

U.S. National Manufacturing Sectors Projected to Grow Jobs and 
Output, 2021 to 2031 (Excluding Such Sectors Now in Washington) 

(Sum of Growth Rates) Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

3111 Animal food 

3112 Grain and oilseed milling 

3113 Sugar and confectionery products 

3114 Fruit and vegetable preserving 

3115 Dairy products 

3119 Other food 

3211 Sawmills and wood preservation 

3212 Engineered wood products 

3219 Other wood products 

3251 Basic chemicals 

3252 Resin, synthetic rubber 

3254 Pharmaceutical and medicine 

3255 Paint, coating, and adhesive 

3256 Soap, cleaning compounds 

3262 Rubber products 

3272 Glass and glass products 

3273 Cement and concrete products 

3314 Nonferrous metal (ex aluminum) 

3321 Forging and stamping 

3324 Boiler, tank, & shipping container 

3325 Hardware 

3341 Computer and peripheral equip. 

3353 Electrical equipment 

3359 Other electrical equipment 

3361 Motor vehicle 

3363 Motor vehicle parts 

3391 Medical equipment 

0% 20% 40% 60% 

II Employment Growth Rate 

liill Output Growth Rate 

80% 

20 

1~ 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

BUSINESS ESTABLISHMENTS AND EMPLOYMENT DATA 

The City of Washington provided a list of "economic establishments" in the city according to its latest 
records, most of which date to 2021. This list includes business names but also non-businesses like 
churches, schools, and city government, all of which employ people. 

NUMBERS AND TYPES OF ESTABLISHMENTS 

The list also includes estimates of employees for each establishment and a brief description of "type of 
business." The type of business was then used by the Community Planning Lab to assign a 4-digit 
NAICS (North American Industrial Classification System) code. 

The business list further contains most of the establishment's web sites, which were often useful in better 
determining the type of business for the most appropriate NAICS code. 

NAICS codes were then abbreviated to their first two digits, which signify the major economic sector of 
that business. For in-
stance, an aerospace 

Business Establishments in Washington by Major 
equipment firm would 

Economic Sector (2-digit NAICS in parentheses) 
have a 4-digit code of 
3336 while a machine 

Sources: City of Washington (2022) 

shop would have a code 0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 

of 3327. Both of these 
Agriculture, Forestry (11) 

are in manufacturing ... or 
1 

code 33 (manufacturing Mining, Extraction (21) 3 

actually covers three 2- Utilities (22) 

digit codes, 31 to 33). Construction (23) 47 
They are distinguished in Manufacturing (31-33) 38 
code 33 by their addi-

Wholesale Trade (42) 21 
tional two code numbers 
in the database (which Retail Trade (44-45) 76 

can extend to as many as Transp & Warehsg (48) 7 

eight digits but too little Information (51) 6 
is known about each firm Finance & Insurance (52) 42 
from the provided list to 

Real Estate (53) 12 
rationally extend beyond 
four digits). Prof, Scient, Tech Svcs (54) 29 

Mgt of Enterprises (55) 

Using the city's records, Admin Support, Waste Mgt (56) 26 
there are 475 "economic 
establishments" in Wash-

Educational Services (61) 7 

ington in the major eco-
Health Care & Social Asst (62) 31 

nomic sectors shown to Arts, Ent, Recreation (71) 14 

the right. No establish- Lodging & Dining (72) 65 
ments were identified in Other Services (81) 59 
the utilities and manage- Public Administration (92) 1 
ment of enterprises sec-
tors. 

21 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

Retail trade businesses lead the pace with 76, or 16% of all establishments. Lodging and dining makes 
up 13% with 65 businesses, and other private services total 59 or 12%. Construction also offers a rela
tively large number of firms, which is consistent with growth taking place in Washington and Franklin 
County. The 38 manufacturing firms might not seem like much, but they employ a great many people! 

THE CITY'S ESTIMATE OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED IN WASHINGTON 

Again, using the city rec
ords, the average estab
lishment has 21 employ
ees. The city's list indi
cates a total of 10,229 em
ployees among the 485 
establishments.12 

Average employment is 
dominated by the govern
ment sector. In this case, 
the sole government es
tablishment is the City of 
Washington with 144 em
ployees. This is followed 
by the 38 manufacturing 
firms on the list who em
ploy 3,582 people, an im
pressive average of just 
over 94 per firm. 

T he third largest average 
is in health care and social 
assistance with 60 em
ployees per 31 establish
ments, with a total of 
1,855 total employees. 
Health care and social as
sistance is dominated by 
Mercy Hospital which 
claims almost 81 % of this 
sector's employees. 

Average Employees per Establishment in Washington 
by Major Economic Sector (2-digit NAICS in parentheses) 

Sources: City of Washington (2022) 

20 40 60 80 100 120 140 

Agriculture, Forestry (11) lil 
Mining, Extraction (21) 10 

Utilities (22) 

Construction (23) 7 

Manufacturing (31-33) 94 

Wholesale Trade (42) 10 

Retail Trade (44-45) 17 

Transp & Warehsg (48) 33 

Information (51) 17 

Finance & Insurance (52) !!I 
Real Estate (53) s 

Prof, Scient, Tech Svcs (54) l O 

Mgt of Enterprises (55) 

Admin Support, Waste Mgt (56) 6 

Educational Services (61) l!l 

Health Care & Social Asst (62) 

Arts, Ent, Recreation (71) 1,S 

Lodging & Dining (72) ii 
Other Services (81) 7 

Public Administration (92) 144 

TOTAL 211 

12 50 of the entries did not have an employee estimate, and one or two included ranges (e.g., 30 to 50). The Community 
Planning Lab filled in the empty spaces with separate estimates mostly consisting of the average of other businesses in the 
same business type category. Those with ranges were converted to the midpoint of the range. T hus, just over ten percent 
of the establishments were given employee estimates by the Community Planning Lab. But these estimates make up just 
216 of the overall total of 10,229 employees, or 2.1 % of the total. The CPL's estimated jobs are in red on the accompanying 
spreadsheet. 

22 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

Note that the retail trade sector, with the largest number of establishments and the third highest number 
of employees, has a relatively low average number of employees at 17, just below the overall city average. 
The notable exception to this average is Walmart with over 400 employees, which sharply skews the 
average. Without Walmart, the average retailer in \Vashington employs 111/2 people. 

Comparing the City's List with the U.S. Census 

The U.S. Census Bureau 
publishes independent 
estimates of employees by 
sector within cities, 
though the latest available 
data are for calendar year 
2019.13 A comparison of 
the Census estimates with 
the city's list is shown on 
this graph. Not shown on 
the graph is that the 2019 
estimates for Washington 
indicate 12,135 total jobs 
in Washington while the 
city's latest estimate is 
10,229 (with adjustments 
as noted). This appears to 
suggest a decline in jobs 
in the city over a couple 
of years (again, the city's 
data is almost all from 
2021), and this may actu
ally be the case. Explain
ing it could readily be the 
economic effects of the 
Covid-19 pandemic. The 
American economy only 
just Quly 2022) recovered 
the number of jobs lost at 
the beginning of the pan
demic period, so Wash
ington may be lagging, 
and/ or the city's data may 
not be fully current. 

Jobs in Washington by Major Economic Sector: 
(2-digit NAICS in parentheses) 

Comparing City Records with Census Records 
Sources: City of Washington (2022) and U.S. Census Bureau (2019) 

500 l,0001,5002,0002,5003,0003,5004,000 

Agriculture, Forestry (11) 

Mining, Extraction (21) 

Utilities (22) 

Construction (23) 

Manufacturing (31-33) 

Wholesale Trade (42) 

Retail Trade (44-45) 

Transp & Warehsg (48) 

Information (51) r 
Finance & Insurance (52) 

11 
3 
31 
10 

Real Estate (53) I ~~ 
Prof, Scient, Tech Svcs (54) 

Mgt of Enterprises (55) 
649 Admin Support, Waste Mgt (56) 167 

Educational Services (61) ~ 628 

Health Care & Social Asst (62) 

Arts, Ent, Recreation (71) 1.3\ 15 

1,760 
1,296 

2,006 
1,855 

Lodging & Dining (72) 1,066 
859 

Other Services (81) 

Public Administration {92) 

344 
391 

3,582 

• Census 

City 

There may also be certain inconsistencies in the measurement techniques and information sources be
tween the Census and city data. 

These inconsistencies are more pronounced within economic sectors, as illustrated above. For instance, 
the city's data show about 600 more jobs in manufacturing than the Census data, but the city shows 

13 This is the Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics (LEHD) "On-the-Map" series begun in 2002. 

23 



Washington, Missouri; Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

about 460 fewer retail trade jobs than recorded by the Census. As it turned out during the pandemic, 
retail kinds of jobs in America declined a lot more rapidly than manufacturing, and have recovered more 
slowly, so the relatively recent city data may truly be more representative of current conditions than the 
2019 data from the Census. 

Many of these differences might also be the result of inconsistencies with the assignment of NAICS 
codes. Typically, businesses themselves choose a dominant code (a business can have more than one in 
a diverse production environment), which may be different than the codes assigned by SLU's 
Community Planning Lab. 

All-in-all, though, the figures are sufficiently close to essentially confirm the city's inventory. 

Employment Location Quotients Using Census Data 
This graph compares the 

Job Location Quotients 2019 
Washington vs. St. Louis Metro 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau LEHO 

Utilities 

Construction 

3.0 

percentages of jobs by 
sector in Washington to 
the same sectors in the St. 
Louis metropolitan area 
using the LEHD On-the
Map data from 2019-
illustrative but perhaps 
out of date. Location 
quotients greater than 1.0 
mean that Washington 
has a larger share of jobs 
in that sector than does 
the metro area. Such sec
tors are typically consid
ered economic strengths 
for the city, but very large 
LQs can also indicate vul
nerabilities if those sec
tors suffer sharp reces
sions in the region or na-

Manufacturing 2.81 

tion. 

Manufacturing is clearly a 
strength of \Y/ ashington 
within the metropolitan 
economy. A location 
quotient of 2.81 is a sub
stantial indicator of the 
important role that Wash
ington plays in the manu 

Wholesale Trade 

Retail Trade 

Transp & Warehsg 

Information 

Finance & Insurance 

Real Estate 

Prof, Scient, Tech Svcs 

Mgt of Enterprises 

Admin Support, Waste Mgt 

Educational Services 

Health Care & Social Assist 

Arts, Ent, Recreation 

Lodging & Dining 

Other Services 

Public Administration 

- 0.67 

- 0.56 

- 0.62 

. 0.34 - 87 

- 0.60 

- 0.8 

- 0.65 

1.01 

.93 - 0.87 

• 0.21 

facturing sector of the region. But it also suggests an above average risk if the national or regional 
manufacturing sector declines for some reason. The city also has a healthy LQ in retail trade; this is 
almost certainly attributable to the city's amount of retail businesses serving a subregion much larger 
than the city itself. 

24 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

Notably, all the other employment location quotients, except health care, are below 1.0, indicating vary
ing degrees of "dependence" on the rest of the metro area for support. This does not mean that the 
manufacturing sector should be encouraged to shrink, however. Instead, using the manufacturing sector 
as a catalyst to attract more population, more workers, and a wide variety of additional businesses might 
be in order. 

The health care sector is effectively at par with the metro area, meaning that Washington is adequately 
supporting itself but not necessarily serving a much larger population. 

25 



Washing/on, Mtssouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

IMPORTANCE OF LABOR FORCE FROM ADJACENT COUNTIES 

Using the U.S. Census Bureau's "On the Map" data series, there were 11,834 people employed in 
Washington in 2020, the latest year in the data series that began in 2002.14 

As shown on the following chart, total jobs in Washington increased from 9,731 in 2002 to 11,834 in 
2020, an erratic growth rate of just under 22 percent through 2020, but a substantial (4.6%) one-year de
cline from 2019.15 Meanwhile, the rest of Franklin County (outside of Washington) added just 3.1 per
cent more jobs from 2002 to 2020 (but down 4.7% 2019-2020), causing the county-wide 2002-2020 
growth to be about 8.4 percent. 

Washington is clearly doing much better as an attractor of jobs relative to the county, having captured 
almost three quarters of the net additional jobs in the county between 2002 and 2020. While there have 
been ups and downs in the number of jobs over that period, the 2019 jobs were the highest number 
recorded in the city though, as noted, this dropped in 2020 (as it did virtually everywhere).16 

1·1 Prior to 2002, there were no reliable employment counts for sub-county areas like cities. Since then, the Census Bureau 
and other federal agencies match addresses of workers to the addresses of their employers to estimate how many jobs are 
within sub-county areas as well as identifying where those workers live, among other data items. The data, however, are 
limited to the ability to match addresses and this limitation means that the numbers provided by the On the Map series 
are almost always undercounted. This memo focuses on percentages of various sorts calculated with the On the Map data. 
The percentages and related ratios should be more reliable in tracking trends than the actual numbers. Far more reliable 
employment statistics remain at the county-level and above, but On the Map enables analysts to study city-level economic 
dynamics in ways not possible before. 

13 The year 2020 was an awkward year for counting employment based on where people worked and where they lived, 
which is the basis of the On the Map data series. The Covid 19 pandemic gripped the world in March of 2020 and pushed 
many people either out of work or to their homes or other remote places to conduct their work. Job counts certainly 
declined almost universally, but the accuracy of matching home-to-work locations might also have suffered. 

16 A separate database on employment maintained by the U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis at the county level only (i.e., 
not at the city level) shows net job gains for Franklin County in 2021 over 2020. City level data is not yet available for 
2021 . An implication is that Washington jobs also grew from 2020 to 2021. 

26 



14,000 

12,000 

10,000 

8,000 

6,000 

4,000 

2,000 

0 

Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

Number of People Employed in Washington, Missouri 2002-2020 
Source: U.S. Census "On the Map" 

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Jobs in Franklin County have also experienced something of a roller coaster ride with a result that the county 
(including all of the incorporated cities) had 8.4 percent more jobs in 2020 than in 2002. Washington grew 
more quickly and, in 2020, had 32.1 percent of the county's jobs, up from 28.6 percent in 2002.17 

45,000 

40,000 

35,000 

30,000 

25,000 

20,000 

15,000 

10,000 

5,000 

0 

Number of People Employed in Franklin County, Missouri 2002-2020 
Source: U.S. Census "On the Map" 

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

17 Strictly county-level employment data from the U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA) counted 53,773 jobs in Frank
lin County in 2020, some 16,926 higher than the 36,847 jobs tracked by On the Map. O n the Map, therefore, accounted 
for only 68.5 percent of actual jobs in the county. In 2002, On the Map's numbers were 72.1 percent of the BEA numbers.) 

27 



WORKERS FROM ADJACENT COUNTIES 

In 2020, well over half (55.2%) of the 
people employed in the city of 
Washington were residents of Franklin 
County. But only 17 .2 percent were 
residents of Washington itself; the rest 
lived in other Franklin County locations. 
Among the counties adjacent to 
Franklin, Warren County was home to 
4.9 percent of people employed in 
Washington, 4.1 percent lived in 
Jefferson County, 3.1 percent in 
Gasconade County, and 1.3 percent in 
Crawford County. 

Franklin County was also the dominant 
home of people employed throughout 
Franklin County in 2020, not 
surprisingly. Again, over half (54.7%) of 
the workers in the county also lived in 
the· county in 2020. 

Jefferson County was home to 5.3 
percent of Franklin County workers, 
Crawford County 4.4 percent, Gasconade 
County 3.5 percent, and Warren County 
was home to 2.8 percent of the people 
employed in Franklin County. 

But potential contradictions arise from a 
separate source of commuting 
information, even though it is also from 
the U.S. Census Bureau, as shown on the 
middle graph on this page. The source is 
the county-to-county commuter flows 
from the American Community Survey 
(ACS) showing annualized amounts for 
the five-year period of 2011 to 2015. 

Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

Percent of People Employed in Washington by 
Adjacent Counties of Residence, 2020 

Source: U.S. Census "On the Map" 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 

Franklin County, MO 

Warren County, MO 4.9% 

Jefferson County, MO 4.1% 

Gasconade County, MO 3.1% 

Crawford County, MO 1.3% 

Percent of People Employed in Franklin County by 
Adjacent Counties of Residence, 2020 

Source: U.S. Census "On the Map" 

0% 10% 20% 30% 

Franklin County, MO 

Jefferson County, MO 5.3% 

Crawford County, MO 1 4.4% 

Gasconade County, MO 1 3.5% 

40% 50% 

60% 

55.2% 

60% 

54.7% 

28 



Washington, Missouri, E conomic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

Map of Five-County Labor Force Area of Washington, Missouri 
Source of Map: Esri Business Analyst 

19 

Gasconade 
County 

,,, 

Warr.en County 

... 
51 

f,anklin County 

Qrawfor:d C0un 

,, 

w 

-1..!J' 

0 14 
t==±:::=::::I mt 

7 Mis.,..,; Ofljll,. 1:$ri, HER(. Garmin. S..,,:(; ~ MO, MlTI/NASA. LJSGS, EPA, 
NP'S 

wl 

29 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

This shows that over three quarters of the people employed in Franklin County originated their 
commutes from inside Franklin County, well over 20 percentage points higher than documents by the 
On the Map data series, above. 

For the four selected counties outside of Franklin County, the share of commuters to jobs in Franklin 
County sums to 11.6 percent, while the sum from the previous charts is 
13.9 percent. 

Of course, the first two graphs represent 
different time periods: 2020 vs. an 
average of 2011 to 2015. The bottom 
graph, therefore, returns to the On the 
Map data (same as top graph) but 
averages the years 2011 through 2015. 
Again, however, On the Map displays a 
much lower share of Franklin County 
workers living in Franklin County 
(56.7%) than those show on the middle 
graph. 

County-to-County Commuter Flows, 2011-2015 
Workers Employed in Frankin County, MO 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey 

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 

Franklin County 78.3% 

Crawford County 13.8% 
Jefferson County 13.4% 

Gasconade County 12.3% 
Warren County 12.1% 

Percent of People Employed in Franklin County by 
Adjacent Counties of Residence, Average 2011-2015 

Source: U.S. Census "On the Map" 

100% 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 

Franklin County, MO 56.7% 

Jefferson County, MO 1 5.1% 

Crawford County, MO 1 4.2% 

Gasconade County, MO 1 3.0% 

Warren County, MO 12.7% 

30 



Washington, Missomi, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

SHARES OF WASHINGTON WORKFORCE BY SELECTED COUNTIES 2002-2020 

\Vhile Franklin County was 
home to 55.2 percent of 
Washington's workers in 
2020, this was well down 
from almost three quarters 
(74.6%) in 2002.18 There has 
been a steady decline in the 
share of people working in 
Washington who actually live 
in Franklin County. As the 
city's workforce has grown, 
so apparently has the 
importance of other counties 
in providing workers for the 
city's employers. 

80% 

70% 

600/o 

50% 

40% 

30% 

20% 

10% 

0% 

Percent of People Employed in Washington Living in 

Franklin County, 2002-2020 
Source: U.S. Census "On the Map" 

A key question at the moment is the share of workers employed in Washington that live in Warren, 
Jefferson, Gasconade, and Crawford Counties. 

• Warren County supplied 3.5 percent of the city's workers in 2002, increased that share to as high as 
5.5 percent in 2010, but began losing share to where Warren County was home to 4.9 percent of 
Washington's workers in 2020. 

• Jefferson County was home to 1.9 percent of Washington's workers in 2002 and increased it share 
steadily to 4.1 percent of the city's workers in 2020. 

• Gasconade County supplied just 2.0 percent of Washington's workers in 2002, increased to 4.1 
percent by 2007, then decreased to 3.1 percent by 2020. 

• Crawford County supplied less than one percent (0.8%) of the city's workers in 2002, reached 1.5 
percent in 2011, then fell to 1.3 percent in 2020. 

Again, these trends seem to be indicators that the workforce in the city of Washington has increasingly 
found more diverse places to reside over time. 

18 Intriguingly, this is a percentage quite similar to the county-to-county commuting share of78.3 percent for the period 
of 2011 to 2015. Are they comparable? 

31 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

JOB PROJECTION SCENARIO, 2020 TO 2030 

The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics publishes bi-annual employment projections by major economic sec
tor for the United States. The latest available projections are for the period 2020 to 2030. Missouri, like 
the other states, uses those projections to forecast jobs by sector for the state and ten regions of the 
state. There is always a time lag between the U.S. projections and the state projections, but the Missouri 
Economic Research and Information Center (MERIC, which is part of the Missouri Department of 
Economic Development) published its 2030 projections in late July 2022. One of the regions of 
Missouri for which projections are made is called "St. Louis." The St. Louis region is made up of five 
counties: Franklin, Jefferson, St. Charles, St. Louis, and the City of St. Louis. This interim report 
provides background on where Washington fits within the trends and projections. 

WASHINGTON'S RELATIVE STRENGTHS IN EMPLOYMENT, 2019 

First, what are Washing
ton's employment 
strengths? This graph 
compares the percentages 
of jobs by sector in 
Washington to the same 
sectors in the St. Louis 
metropolitan area using 
the LEHD On-the-Map 
data from 2019.19 The 
data are illustrative even 
though out of date. Jobs 
in the year 2020 were se
verely impacted by the 
Covid-19, with some re
covery during 2021. But 
neither year should be 
considered typical. So 
reference to 2019 has rel
evance as a better stand
ard. 

Location quotients 
greater than 1.0 on the 
graph mean that Wash
ington had a larger share 
of jobs in that sector than 
did the metro area. Such 
sectors are characteristi
cally considered 

Job Location Quotients 2019 

Washington vs. St. Louis Metro 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau LEHO 

Utilities 

Construction 

Manufacturing 

Wholesale Trade 

Retail Trade 

Transp & Warehsg - 0.67 

Information - 0.56 

Finance & Insurance - 0.62 

Real Estate - 0.34 

Prof, Scient, Tech Svcs - 87 

Mgt of Enterprises - 0.60 

Admin Support, Waste Mgt - 0.8 

Educational Services - 0.65 

Health Care & Social Assist 1.01 

Arts, Ent, Recreation 

Lodging & Dining .93 

Other Services - 0.87 

Public Administration • 0.21 

3.0 

2.81 

19 The Longitudinal Employer- Household Dynamics (LE HD) "On-the-Map" series began in 2002 and the latest data 
available for places in the United States is for calendar year 2019. 

32 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

economic strengths for the city, but very large LQs can also indicate vulnerabilities if those sectors suffer 
sharp recessions in the region or nation. 

Manufacturing is clearly a strength of Washington within the metropolitan economy. A location quo
tient of 2.81 is a substantial indicator of the important role that Washington plays in the manufacturing 
sector of the region. But it also suggests an above average risk if the national or regional manufacturing 
sector declines for some reason. The city also has a healthy LQ in retail trade; this is almost certainly at
tributable to the city's amount of retail businesses serving a subregion much larger than the city itself. 

Notably, all the other employment location quotients, except health care, are below 1.0, indicating vary
ing degrees of "dependence" on the rest of the metro area for support. This does not mean that the 
manufacturing sector should be encouraged to shrink, however. Instead, using the manufacturing sector 
as a catalyst to attract more population, more workers, and a wide variety of additional businesses might 
be in order. 

The health care sector is effectively at par with the metro area, meaning that Washington is adequately 
supporting itself but not necessarily serving a much larger population. 

UNITED STATES PROJECTIONS TO 2030 

The U.S. economy added 11,607,100 jobs between 2010 and 2020 for a ten-year growth rate of 8.2 per
cent. The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) projects that the economy will add another 11,879,900 
jobs between 2020 and 2030. This is slightly more jobs than the previous decade, but at a slower ten
year rate of 7.7 percent. By 2030, the U.S. economy should have about 165,413,700 jobs, up from 
141,926,700 in 2010. 

33 



But growth rates will be 
uneven among the major 
economic sectors. The 
graph to the right shows 
the growth rates of sec
tors that are projected to 
add jobs more quickly 
than the national average 
of 7.7 percent between 
2020 and 2030. Twelve 
of the 22 sectors would 
grow above 7.7 percent. 
Most notably, the arts, 
entertainment, and recre
ation sector is projected 
to add 41.4 percent more 
jobs, followed by the so
cial assistance sector at 
30.1 percent. The slow
est growth rate among 
these sectors would be in 
administrative and sup
port services at 9.8 per
cent. Still, this would be 
above the national aver
age. 

Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

USA Sectors Projected to Grow Faster Than Total Jobs, 
2020-2030 

Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 

~ 

17.1% 

-----
15.2% 

-- ---------~ 
30.1% 

Mining 

Transp & Warehsg 

Information 

Prof, Scient, Tech Svcs 

Admin & Support Svcs 

Waste Mgt 

Educational Services 

Health Care 

Social Assistance 

Arts, Ent, Recreation 

Lodging & Dining 

Other Services 

ALL JOBS 

- 41.4% 
~ 

21.7% 

50% 

34 



The other ten major sec
tors, shown on the next 
page, would grow more 
slowly than the 7.7 per
cent overall average be
tween 2020 and 2030. In 
fact, three of them are 
projected to shrink in size. 
The utilities sector would 
have 7.2 percent fewer 
jobs after ten years, retail 
trade 4.0 percent fewer, 
and the federal govern
ment 2.3 percent fewer. 

Manufacturing, a clear 
strength in Washington, 
Missouri, would add just 
1.2 percent more jobs 
while the fastest growing 
sector in these below-av
erage sectors would be 
real estate at 5.9 percent. 

Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

USA Sectors Projected to Grow Slower Than Total Jobs, 
2020-2030 

Utilities 

Construction 

Manufacturing 

Wholesale Trade 

Retail Trade 

Finance 

Real Estate 

Mgt of Enterprises 

Federal Govt 

State & Loe a I Govt 

Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

-10% -5% 0% 5% 

--------7.2% 

5.9% 

.. 

--------

10% 

Thus, the top two em- ALL JOBS 7.7% 

ployment sectors in 
Washington-manufacturing and retailing-would either grow very slowly in the overall U.S. economy 
or would shrink. The third strongest sector in Washington, health care and social assistance, is expected 
to grow rather impressively. While the local (LEHD) data does not separate health care from social as
sistance, the combined national growth rate for these two sectors is 16.8 percent. The health care sector 
in the U.S. is much larger than is sister social assistance sector, but social assistance is projected to in
crease from 18.1 of the combine sectors in 2010 to 22.2 percent in 2030. 

35 



Washington, Missouri, E conomic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

SWOT ANALYSIS OF THE WASHINGTON ECONOMY 

STRENGTHS 

• Net population growth taking place 

• Net job growth taking place 

• High quality of life in exurban St. Louis 

• Good quality labor force from multiple counties 

• Ample and well-managed industrial parks 

• Highly respected manufacturing firms in preferred exurban locations 
o Well separated from most of the rest of the city's activities to minimize conflicts 
o Strong tax base to support community services 

• Well-located and well-served by wifi for remote workers (work-from-home) 

• Out-commuters earning relatively high wages and salaries to be spent in Washington 

• Expanding lodging economic sector to accommodate both business and tourism visitors 

• Net positive retail center serving markets well beyond the city's boundaries 

• New Missouri Highway 47 bridge to the north 

• Good high-speed access to Interstate 44 

• Serviceable regional airport 

• Well-managed city government and active citizenry 

WEAKNESSES 

• Distance from urban/suburban center of metropolitan area where "density-based" amenities are found 
(e.g., cultural institutions, major sporting leagues, diverse retailing and dining options) 

• Lengthy labor force commutes from adjacent counties (and beyond) 

• Shortage of housing where prices/ rents better match local labor force wages and income 

• Decreasing manufacturing jobs per manufacturing establishment 

• Lack of diverse options for high-speed access to interstate highways (south to I-44, north to I-70) 

• Shortage oflabor force relative to pace of business growth 

• Out-commuters earning higher wages than local jobs 

OPPORTUNITIES 

• More "brain power" jobs in light of quality of life and well-educated population 

• More manufacturing establishments with U.S. policies toward on-shoring 

• A technical and vocational training institution to support manufacturing and logistics 

• Additional road access to interstate highways 

36 



Washington, Missouri, E conomic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

• More tourism to take advantage of historic downtown and Missouri Riverfront with need to balance the 
needs and desires 

THREATS 

• Retail abundance in the city of Union closer to Interstate 44 
• Sharp decline in national population/workforce growth rates, reducing the future number of people and 

workers who can be attracted to greater St. Louis and Washington 

• Gentrification resulting from higher-educated, higher income households 
o Impact on housing costs 
o Compatibility with manufacturing sector 
o Impact on identity of Washington 

• Conversion of downtown Washington into a tourism haven at the expense oflocal residents 

STRATEGIC DIRECTION AND ACTION PLAN FOR RESILIENCY 

Strategy 1 - Continue the City's annual business retention and expansion program. 

1. Personally meet with large employers, regardless of industry sector, at least annually with key and 
consistent questions about hiring needs, investment needs, and so forth. Follow up with requests 
from the employers where City intervention is rational. 

2. Personally meet with smaller employers on an as needed basis when it is learned or rumored that 
major changes could occur. 

3. Continue to partner with Chamber of Commerce in "Salute to Industry" recognition programs and 
semi-annual Industry Mixers. All businesses/ employers in Washington should be encouraged to 
participate. 

Strategy 2 - Continue collaboration with Missouri Partnership and Greater St. Louis Inc. to market 
Washington to new and existing businesses and to the city's residents, the resident 
workforce, and members of the workforce who do not live in Washington. 

1. Continue participating in Site Selector visits with Missouri Partnership and Greater St. Louis Inc. 

2. Invite and participate in internal critiques of economic development preparedness, usually 
conducted by outside consultants to remain aware of competitive strengths and weaknesses from 
outside perspectives. Formats, scheduling, and agendas of such critiques should be consistent with 
expectations and insights of the Missouri Partnership, Greater St. Louis Inc., and the Missouri 
Department of Economic Development. 

3. Maintain database of Site Selection consultants to keep them informed with various forms of 
community about and latest relevant information about Washington. 

37 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

Strategy 3 - Maintain and routinely update relevant data and maps to be consistently prepared for 
inquiries and marketing campaigns to attract new businesses and employees. 

1. Educate Site Selectors by using on all print and online marketing techniques such as the City's website, 
promotional programs of the Missouri Partnership and Greater St. Louis Inc., and through LOIS 
(Location One Information System) managed by Global Location Strategies based in Greenville, South 
Carolina. 

2. Continue to partipate as a Certified Work Ready Community, thus participating with and assisting 
educators in directing students and others toward careers alogned with the needs of local businesses 
and industry sectors. 

Strategy 4 -Target industrial clusters for additional employer and workforce expansion focused on 
Washington's strengths and needs toward a goal of added economic diversity and 
resilience to recessions. 

1. Major economic growth sectors (high job growth and high productivity growth) in the national 
economy with relevance to Washington's present economic base are: 

a. Transportation and Warehousing (builds on strengths in manefacturiniJ 

b. Information } 
c. Professional, Scientific, and Builds on strengths of the greater St. Louis economy 

Technical Services and the skills and education levels of matry 
d. Educational Services Washington rcsidunts ivho now tv1111111tte e/se1vhere f or 

e. Health Care (builds on existing ..__s_u_ch_;_o_bs _______________ _.. 
strengths as a mu/ti-county health care 
center) 

f. Arts and Entertainment (supports high levels of education and intellectual interests of the existing 
population and on the tourism inc/11.rlry) 

g. Lodging and Dining/Drinking Places (builds on propensity to attract tourists and on the strength of 
the Downtown economy and its historic attractions) 

2. While manufacturing, generally, is not a job-expansion strength in the American economy, many 
manufacturing sub-sectors will see strong growth in both jobs and productivity, leading to higher 
profits and higher wages. Eight specific manufacturing sectors are recommended for targeted 
marketing and attraction in this strategic plan that have both strong national growth projections and 
are already present in Washington: 

a. Animal Slaughtering (NAICS Code 3116) 
b. Bakery Products (3118) 
c. Beverage Products (3121) 
d. Plastics Products (3261) 
e. Architectural Metals Products (3323) 
f. Machine Shops (3327) 
g. Semiconductors and Electronics (3344) 
h. Household and Institutional Furniture (3371) 

3. Other existing manufacturing sectors in Washington should also be targeted because of "clusters" 
of similar firms and experienced workers already present in the city. 

4. While not directly analyzed in this strategic plan, the above lists should be supplemented by 
targeting business-to-business suppliers of the above sectors and business-to-business customers of 

38 

1fY\ 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

the above sectors. Identification of such opportunities should be explored during annual business 
retention and expansion visits (Strategy Number 1). 

5. Discourage businesses and proposed developments that overburden available utilities and 
transportation networks . 

Strategy 5 - Continue to market quality of life in promotional materials to site selectors, industries, 
and future workforce. Crucial topics for marketing include, but may not be limited to: 

1. Proximity within the St. Louis region and the many amenities of the 21st most population metro 
area in the United States . 

2. Medical center for Franklin, Warren, Gasconade, and Crawford counties with support for some 
residents of western Jefferson County. 

3. Pro-business growth community including a cooperative City Council and active economic 
development organizations including Washington Civic industrial Corporation, Chamber of 
Commerce, 353 Redevelopment Corporation, and Industrial Development Authority. 

4. Active, effective, and highly successful historic Downtown Washington, Inc. that continues to 
foster a "sense of place" through community festivals and historic preservation of the downtown 
area (e.g., winner of National Great American Main Street Award). 

5. Strong reputation in St. Louis area for manufacturing. 

6. Heart of Missouri Wine Country. 

7. Tourism destination for shopping, dining, festivals, and biking-including access by Amtrak for 
railroad passengers from St. Louis and Kansas City and a high quality trail network linked to the 
Katy Trail State Park. 

Strategy 6- Continue participation in and sponsorship of Connect Washington, the collaboration 
with Washington's educational network to ensure students have broad opportunities to 
explore their career passions and interests through experiences in the city's businesses 
and industries prior to graduating. 

1. Continue holding annual industry expositions for industries/students/high schools. 

2. Continue field trips with major employers for students. 

3. Market existing industries and job opportunities to school counselors, parent-teacher organizations, 
etc. 

4. Expose school counselors to local industries and career opportunities. 

Strategy 7 - Expand Highway 100 to four lanes west to Heidmann Industrial Park and expand 
Highway 47 to four lanes south to Union and St. Clair. 

1. Environmental assessments are already completed or underway for these projects. Be certain that 
these are up to date as project proposals move forward. 

39 

1"' 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 202 3-202 8 

2. Use the projects as "local projects" for promotion of state funding initiatives for MoDOT 
(Missouri Department of Transportation). 

3. Promote the projects as needed for Franklin County to EWGCOG (East-West Gateway Council of 
Governments) in the region's long range transportation plan. 

Strategy 8 -Widen Highway 47 to the north (into Warren County) and reduce flooding exposure 
on the highway. 

1. Explore a variety of infrastructure improvements that would reduce flooding on Highway 47, 
including preliminary benefit-cost assessments and a hydraulic study. Benefit and cost impacts 
should include financial considerations, safer and consistent travel in a growing region, the natural 
environment, economic development, airport access, access to Katy Trail State Park, and improved 
quality of life. 

2. Form and sustain relationships with overlapping jurisdictions such as Warren County, the School 
District of Washington, Boonslick Regional Planning Commission, and the Federal Aviation 
Administration in the pursuit of improvements to traffic flow on Highway 47 north of the city 
limits of Washington. 

Strategy 9 - Identify future land for industrial development purposes. 

1. Form an active committee that meets periodically to identify the best locations for future industrial 
parks that are consistent with the 2023-2028 Comprehensive Plan. 

2. Consider potential properties during annexation processes. 

3. Consider industry clusters for optimum location (see Strategy 4) . 

4. Increase lot inventory. 

Strategy 10 - Continue to improve Washington Regional Airport in Warren County. 

1. Monitor the current master layout plan to continue availability of federal and state funding. 

2. Expand the runway to a minimum of 5,500 feet while widening the runway an additional 25 feet. 
Goal is to improve the rating of the airport from Class "C" to Class "B." 

3. Continue improving the aesthetics of the terminal and exterior of airport with appropriate 
landscaping and signage to be attractive and welcoming to all users. 

Strategy 11 - Support continued growth and revitalization for retail, office, and mixed-use 
developments. 

1. Continue aid in redevelopment areas of the City. 

2. Evaluate opportunities for revitalization or renovation of under-achieving retail and office centers 
in the Highway 100 corridor that might be converted to higher-value mixed-use "villages" of 
limited but convenience-oriented retailing and dining while including higher density housing that 
can attract workforce households into the city and closer to jobs. 

40 

1-m 



Washington, Missouri, Economic Development Strategic Plan 2023-2028 

3. Closely monitor trends and forces in the retailing/ dining sectors to better anticipate significant 
changes in future building and land uses. These are rapidly changing sectors subject to substantial 
technological innovations, job uncertainty, and financial failure that can enhance or detract from the 
commercial function and aesthetics of the city. Prepare for public intervention, as necessary, to 
help the market adapt buildings and land for the betterment of Washington. 

4. Assist in financing new and revitalized commercial and mixed-use developments where applicable 
through use of Community Improvement Districts (CIDs), Transportation Development Districts 
(TDDs), and Industrial Revenue Bonds IRBs). 

5. Require in-depth market studies to demonstrate that proposed commercial developments that seek 
public incentives will not diminish sales, revenues, or customers at similar business establishments 
in the city. 

Strategy 12 -Take the economic development strategies "on the road" to demonstrate that 
Washington is at the forefront of economic growth and innovation and assure that 
Washington is "top-of-mind" among relevant leader organizations. 

1. Routinely inform and visit state and federal government representatives, legislative leaders, and 
executive departments. 

2. Likewise, inform, visit, and make presentations before regional and state economic organizations 
such as Greater St. Louis Inc., the Missouri Partnership, the Missouri Chamber of Commerce, 
Missouri Economic Development Council, labor representatives, and educational institutions. 

Strategy 13 - Create a public relations and marketing program designed to attract private investors 
and development talent committed both to realizing the strategic plan and, conversely, 
to resist public and private actions and investments that are not compatible with the 
plan. 

1. To be most effective, the strategic plan needs to become a community project with wide support 
and acceptance. This will require a steady "drumbeat" of communication that focuses on the 
benefits of its realization and on progress toward its realization as it is made. 

2. The elements of this effort could include: 

a. Regular reports to city, county, and state economic development commissions and councils. 
b. A continually updated and informed web page. 
c. Progress reports to key local leadership groups and individuals. 
d. Articles in the local and regional press. 
e. Direct contact with development organizations with demonstrated talent and track record -

locally, regionally, or nationally - whose participation would enhance the quality and scope of 
the plan's implementation. 

f. Creation and reinforcement of a "brand identity" or "tagline" for the Washington economy 
that can be marketed to elicit premium values and a preferred image throughout the region 
and nation. Sub-area names may also be important such as downtown, Highway 100, the 
industrial parks, and so forth. 

EVALUAITON These strategies should be reviewed annually by the City and updated as needed. Measurable 

goals can be linked to action items attained, ongoing planning processes, associated measures on performance of 
job creation numbers, goals and objectives of the committee set to review the plan, and GDP income per capita 
for the community, wages, and measures for evaluating regional impact. 

41 

111\ 



405 Jefferson Street, Washington, MO 63090 

August 15, 2023 

Mayor & City Council 
City of Washington 
Washington, MO 63090 

Re: Economic Development Strategy - Resolution 

Mayor & City Council, 

636-390-1010 www.washmo.gov 

On your agenda for the August 21, 2023 agenda is resolution adopting the 2023 Washington Community 

Economic Development Strategy (CEDS). A more complete version of this document will be adopted 
fully with the completion of the 2023-2033 Comprehensive Plan later this year. 

City Staff is currently applying for funds from the federal Economic Development Agency (EDA) for 
improvements to the Oldenburg Industrial Park. In order to be eligible to receive funds, an updated CEDS 

must be adopted via resolution by the City. This particular document satisfies the needs of the grant 
program. 

A full review of the CEDS will be completed by the Washington 353 Redevelopment Corporation, the 
Comprehensive Plan Committee and City Council, allowing amendments to this document to be made in 
the coming months. 

Feel free to reach out with any questions. 

Sincerely, 

Sal Maniaci 

Community and Economic Development Director 


	08-21-23 Council Mtg Agenda
	0550_001
	0550_127
	0551_001



